SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

MEETINGS

9 a.m.

Friday, August 23, 2019

Alexandria City Hall Ballroom
1** Floor
Alexandtia, Louisiana 71301



ACADEMIC
AFFAIRS
COMMITTEE



ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom

15t Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019
9:00 AM
AGENDA

Call to Order

Invocation

Roll Call

Adoption of the Agenda

Public Comments
Action [tem(s);

A. Request to Name the Southern University Child Development Laboratory in Honor of the late
Dr. Eula Davis Masimgale (SUAREC)

B. Request Approval of the Southern University Child Development Laboratory 2012-2022
Staff Handbook (SUAREC)

C. Request Approval of the Southern University Child Development Laboratory 2019-2020
Parent Handbook (SUARIZC)

D. Request Approval of the Southern University Child Development Laboratory 2019-2020
Emergency Preparedness Plan (SUAREC)

E. Request the Ratification of Doctor of Humane Letters to James E. Charles (SUBR)

Information Item:
A. Notice of Submittal of Substantive Change to Reestablish Associate of Applied Science
Degree in Polysomnography (SUSLA)

Other Business

Adjournment

MEMBERS
Dr. Curman L. Gaines — Chair, Dr, Leroy Davis — Vice Chair
Dr. Leon R. Tarver, Mr. Sam Guilliam, Mr. John Barthelemy, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr.
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio




Southern University Child Development Laboratory Narrative Justification

Naming of the Southern University Child Development Laboratory in honor of the
Late Dr. Eula Davis Masingale

The information presented in this document was provided to our team by Dr. Doze
Butler, who whole heartedly shares the below written recommendations and
supporting documentation. The following is being Recommended for Approval:

RECOMMENDATION 1: The hands-on practicum experience program, provided through the
College of Agricultural Family and Consumer Sciences, Department of Child and Family Life, shall
be named the Southern University Child Development Laboratory. This Laboratory will serve
children Infant (Bweeks) — Toddler (48 months). The program shall be housed in Building 190
located at Jesse N. Stone on the SUBR Campus.

RECOMMENDATION 2: The Southern University Child Development Laboratory currently
located in Building 190, this building shall be named the Dr. Eula Davis Masingale for the
following reasons:

1. The late Dr. Eula Davis Masingale wrote the first grant proposal to create the Child
Development Laboratory. Unfunded initially, each subsequent grant proposal included
elements of the original proposal written by Dr. Masingale.

2. Dr. Eula Masingale chose to enter the dynamic profession of Home Economics (now
known nationally as Family and Consumer Sciences) in which she served 34 years at
Southern University and A&M College.

3, Love and respect for the profession led her to serve in many leadership positions at
Southern University including:

« Dean and Professor in the College of Home Economics (1975-1986)
= Associate Dean of Family and Consumer Sciences (1994-1996 and 2000-2001).

4. Dr. Masingale served as a professor in the Child Development program in the College of
Home Economics prior to moving into administration.

5. Dr. Masingale was a proponent of assessment and accreditation. She led the College of
Home Economics to its first accreditation in 1973. In addition, she was highly sought after
and served on many Family and Consumer Sciences accreditation teams across the
nation. Furthermore, she led many workshops nationally on accreditation.

6. Dr. Masingale not only served in professional capacities, but was also active in civic
organizations that support women, children and families including President of the Baton
Rouge Chapter of Links, Inc.; member of Phi Delta Kappa and member of Delta Sigma
Theta Sorority, Inc.

7. Dr. Masingale served as Chairman of the Council of 1890 Administrators in Family and
Consumer Sciences.

8. Dr. Masingale mentored many young women at Southern University who went on to earn
advanced degrees and are making contributions to the profession nationally in their own
rights. Some of them have formerly and or currently served in leadership positions in
Family and Consumer Sciences within the Southern University System. They include the
following



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Narrative Justification

e Dr. Kenyetta Nelson-Smith, Former Associate Specialistt Community and
Economic Development/ Currently Child Development Professor and Executive
Director to SU Child Development Laboratory;

= Dr. Kasundra Cyrus, Former Interim Chair of the Department of Family and
Consumer Sciences, SUBR, and Extension Specialist for Family & Human
Development, SU Ag Center;

« Dr. Gina E. Eubanks, Former Vice Chancellor for Extension, SU Ag Center;

o Dr. Doze Y. Butler, Former Associate Dean in the College of Agricultural, Family
and Consumer Sciences, Program Leader and Associate Professor of Apparel
Merchandizing and Textile, SUBR.

9. Dr. Masingale served as National President of Phi Upsilon Omicron National Honor
Society. She is still the only African American to have served in this capacity.

10. Upon the recommendation of the SU Board of Supervisors' Academic and Student Affairs
Committee, Dr. Eula Masingale received the designation of Dean/ Professor Emeritus
(College of Agricultural, Family and Consumer Sciences, SUBR) at the Friday January
11, 2002, SU Board meeting.

11. Dr. Eula Davis Masingale departed this life to receive her eternal reward on the morning
of Monday, April 5, 2004, having lived an exemplary life of commitment, dedication and
service to Southern University and A&M College.

Dr. Eula Davis Masingale is certainly worthy of the Southern University Child
Development Laboratory Building being named in her memory.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Narrative Justification

Signature Approval Page

Keisha Dandridge Ceasar, ML.Ed.
Director/Instructor, Child Development Laboratory

Cheryl Atkinson, Ph.D.
Chairperson
Department of Family and Consumer sciences

Date

C. Reuben Walker, Ph.D.

Interim Chancellor- Dean

Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center
College of Agricultural, Family and Consumer Sciences

Date

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.
President-Chancellor
Southern University System

Date

Domoine D. Rutledge, J.D.
Chairman
Southern University System Board of Supervisors

Date

Date



4-5 independence Doy
Holiday

2019-2020 SCHOOL YEAR CALENDAR

S |Im| T IWIThI|F 5

I
15 171 18
F 23| 24] 25 |
213013

1-3  Mew Yeaor Hofiday

(Mo school for Students)

1 Employes Holidaoy

2-3 Staff Professional
Development

16 Parent Meeting

20 ML King Day

(Mo school for Students and Staff)

M T
(Mo schoo! for Students ond 11 2
Employees) BE | %
140151411718 1%9 | 20
21120 | 23] 24125 )2 | 27
28 129 | 201 31
5-9 Steaff Training and AUGUST 2019
Professional Developrment s mlriwlmle]s
8 Open House il I
12 First Day of School | 2 10

2 Labor Doy

(Mo school for Students and
Employees)

12 Farent Meefing

1P 13l 14115 16 ) 17
18] 9 20211221 23) 24
25 |26 |27 |28 | 29 | 30| 31

SEPTEMBER 20179

| M| T | W !Th|F 5

5

1 3a5]6]7
gl 7m0 Nn 13 | 14
516 171819 [20]21]
23|24 |25[ 26|27

30

22
29

FEBRUARY 2020

5 M| T | W[ Th)F

21314151417

L
154 171 18] 19

BlEE =

2
7

13 Parent Meefing

17 Presidents” Day

21 Mardi Gras Holiday

[Earty Disrnissal)

24-25 Mardi Gras Holiday

(Mo school for Students and
Employeess)

3-4 Fall Break

(Mo school and Students and
Employeas)

10 Farent Meeting

N Halloween

OCTOBER 2019

12 Porent Mesting
simlr I wliml[Frls
P2 | @ |4 |5 ] & |5
8 | 5 [10] 11 [N 3] 14
15| 15|17 i8] 9|20 21
122123 |24 |25]|26 |27 | 28
22130 [ A
610 _Good Fiday
s ImlTIWIlmlE]|S (Mo school for Students and
= T 1z 12 |4 Employees) )
5 1 18 Parent Meeting

19 120 j21 122 23 |24 |35
26 127 |28 |29 |30

11 Veterans Day

14 Parent Meeting

3-22 Thanksgiving Holiday
{Ecrly Dismissal)

25-29 Thanksgiving Holiday (Mo
school for Students and
Employeeas]

28 Thanksgiving Day

50 M Th 5
1 2
3. |4 |5 & 7 |8 ¥
10 12 113 15 [ 16
17 118 |19 |20
24 30

12 Parent Meefing
23-31 Christrnas Holiday
(Mo school for Students and
Empioyeeas)

25 Christrnas Day

DECEMEER 2019
m| T w|m|F]|s

13-17 "Week of the Young Child"

NOVEMBER 2017
T | W F

W Holiday Break N
B Parent Meeting

5
1 I - S SN R ) 7
-] 2l1in 131 14
1518|1718 w2021
2 28 |
29

Special Days

First Day of School

MAY 2017

S M I T IWIT | F 5

1 2

S0 4| 51817 -

10 11 ] 12-] 13 15 16

174 181 19 | 200 21 | 22123

24 26 |27 |28 | 28 | 30
31

10 Mother's Day

14 Parent Meeiing

25 Mermorial's Day

(Mo school for Students and
Employeeas)

3 Ml T W | Th F 5

1 (213 4ls]s
7 18[9 | w0l oz 13
1415|1417 | 18] 12 [ 20
27 | 22| 23| 24 | 25| 26| A7
26 | 29 | 30

11 Parent Meeting
21 Father's Day

*SU Child Development Lab is a part of
Southern University' campus, therefore

any closures due to weather, power cutage,
efc. will go into effect with the laboratory's

hours of operation.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory
Staff Handbook

2019-2022




Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

:
Table of Contents

TEBOEVENF * st s i i s S S SR S B A A pg. 2
MISSIoR SEHBMBENE oo e i s T o B T i s o s v pg. 2
P TR B R P URERE oo e e R SO e I 0t pg. 2
Goneral Center IfOrmation’  w.iviiiiniiiiaiidm e b oo i s ivis v i pg. 3
General Saff EXPECIAtONS  .ooiiiiesieee ettt s s s pg. 4
Profassional DevelopmeNt «u i sisimsies iiosms dbssis i visiss iiuse i sississ sibisas e soess pg. 7-10
Personnel POIGIES  ....coooereeceneeemmissis i ssssis s s s is st e sn e snisb sk pg. 10-13
AHONUANCE POIOGYT cvimisessiiaissss e oass e 1005k iy 55458 0 44050 5 5 H50 oA PSS S YN pg. 13
DISCIIRGEEY PrOCBAUIE . cosmmmmmmrmrmirisivissisdio oo s sasioris oiin s sonssomess s A asab Boasas Fove sk pg. 13-14
Health And-S oty ProCEIUNE - mmitsomss s s arinsiis e vy S cises Seinssasia tioasseaiiaion pg. 14-18
Curmctlum PIBRNIRG: ol vyl diite e s i s s S S iR wivisiess il pg. 18-21
LD | W W— .. —" | . S——we—n . pg. 21
FlRldENpE ool i S i g v ossia s gy oo oo doma s oo o B e e o 33359 008 pg. 21-22
Daily Duties for All Classroom Staff ... ssssssssssssies pg. 22
Arirab and Depamiey ..o imitomiiies soisavb i e oot v s e osaas s Biis s s e pg. 22
GUKIBROR SITAIBGIES. ...codlimmerorrrrs i s esass sopms s Rgm s shmagb v b4 s R e AP pg. 23-27
MealS NG NUIHON ocioimiiosnsiosssion imerssnsismaiss s s vasonss oSN35 RP LRSS o434 na3i 345555 e sinsn USHERIA pg. 27
Infant, Toddler, and Twos Program Information ... pg. 28
PO ROBAEERIEE oo mminnmenisnss thtmomiosin a5 s T AR A pg. 28
POItOn DOSOTONONG s et i s i T B o Vi Ao oM NN S haRs b e pg. 28
e ] pg. 30
Emargency Medical & Dental.. ..o mmiminiimm o sisistiniin i s pg. 30
EMErgency ProCEAUMES ..........eeeieieiiiiiieeeisieaserenssensssmsssssassnsssnsnssnesssanssnesiesssssssnnsssssneesassesssareess o PGe 42
Exposurer Contiol PN, i e S A A R pg. 37
Hand WEshing ProDEIE: ..o e cmmonsnmsmmsissin iiisstimiiimssssinneoin e s s 15 st fessess pg. 38
B e[ 1 B e tn e [ R B e AR TR A e PO e PO R et pg. 39
Cleaning, Sanitizing, and Disinfecting of EQUIPMENE .o pg. 40

1|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

History

This handbook is intended to familiarize staff members with current Southern University Child Development
Laboratory policy, practices and standards. An electronic version (PDF) of the handbook is available to every
new hire during their hiring process and or probationary period. A print copy of the handbook is available
upon request. Southern University Child Development Laboratory reserves the right to revise its policies,
practices and standards as deemed appropriate by the Director. Staff members will be notified of updates to
the staff handbook as they occur.

Background

The Southern University Child Development Laboratory (CHDV Lab) uses research based curriculum and
serves as a research facility within the Department of Family and Consumer Sciences. It is aligned with the
Child Development and Family Life undergraduate program.

The CHDV Lab serves as a laboratory for all future educators and practitioners and provides opportunities
for cutting edge research in the areas of child development, speech pathology, psychology, and education.
This laboratory will have at its main focus to serve as a trarnmg site for undergraduate’ students who wishi to
enter the field of early childhood education. Through experiences and research in best practices, students
will gain knowledge and skills to make them strong Eeaders in the nation and internationally in the area of
earty ch||dhood educatlon = SO o T

Mrssron Statement

The mrssron of the SU Child Deve]opment Laboratory in the Department of Famr]y and Consumer Scrences
isto prowde students with hands-on experience working-with and ‘observing young children while’ servrng
as a model early chrldhood program for young chrldren ‘including those wrth disabilities and therrfammes

Phﬂosophy

Our program and |ts staff of qualrfred early chlIdhood educators are dedlcated to creating a iearmng
environment that is safe, stimulating and encouraging. The following principles will serve as the foundation
for high quality instruction that we are committed to providing to every child that crosses the threshold of
our Lahoratory:

e Children develop knowiedge of their world through active interactions with caregivers, peers,
materials, and events.

e Leaming is sequential, building on prior understandings and experiences.

o Learning proceeds at different rates in each area and each child; children will show a range of skills
and understandings in any one area of development.

o Learning in each area is interconnected. Young children learn best through experiences, which
incorporate several areas of development.

« Learning is embedded in a culture. Children learn best when their learning activities are rooted in a
famifiar cultural context.

« Leamning begins in the family, continues in early care and education settings, and depends on
parent involvement and caregiver guidance.

» All children have the potential to achieve the lowa Leaming Standards with appropriate supports
and instruction.

2|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

General Center Information
ADMINISTRATION
Director: Ms. Keisha Ceasar
Email: Keisha_dandridge@subr.edu
Office (lab): (225) 771-2180 Office (PE Thrift): (225) 771-3494
HOURS OF OPERATION
The center calendar will be based on the university calendar. It will be closed for the following holidays:

e New Year's Day

e labor Day

o :Memorial Day

s . Thanksgiving .

s Independence Day

o Christmas - :

e SU Graduatlon ST
PROGRAMS o ;;ingL

There are 3 chridcare programs offered. at SU Child Development Laboratory They are:

- Infants 6 weeks 0 12 months L : S
- Toddlers'(1-2) 12 months to 24 months = Teachlng Strategles GOLD
- Preschool (3-4) 36 months to 48 months = Teaching Strategies GOLD with STEM Based lnfusaon

In addition, SU Lab provides before/after school care.

RATIOS

At SU Lab, we maintain the following stafi-to-chiid ratios at all times in our classrooms:
Age of Children Minimum Ratio of Staff to Children

2 weeks to 2 years 1 staff for every 4 children

1-2 years 1 staff for every 10 children

2-3 years 1 staff for every 10 children

34 years 1 staff for every 12 children

Children of different age groups may be combined if the following guidelines are followed:

+ Infants are never combined with children over the age of 18 months, except in certain
circumstances (e.g., at open or close of the center, if children are siblings).

3|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

»  Children 18 to 24 months may be combined in a classroom with children two years of age, as long
as the ratio is maintained.

+  Chiidren 2 years old may be combined with children who are 3-5 years old as long as the ratio is
maintained.

»  Classrooms of children 3 years and older may be combined, with the ratio determined by the age
of the majority of the children in the group.

During naptime, at least one staff member shall be present in every room where children are sleeping
and/or resting. Staff to child ratios can be reduced to one staff member per room where children are resting
for a period not to exceed one hour.

Staff should remain in the center so, if needed, they can assist in a classroom.

Volunteers such as students {can be high school students 16 years of age or older), college students,
parents, or refired individuals may be used to meet staff-to-child ratios.

Ratros must be marntarned at at! ttmes mc]ud;ng when emergency procedures are in effect e

LICENSING

SU CHDV Labis a pubhc program voluntanly hcensed by the Loursrana Department of Educatron A copy of
the Ircensrng rules is avartabte for review in the office. -

SuU CHDV Lab will remarn open dunng most severe weather unless otherwrse not;ce is received by the
universrty that the campus is ctosed i

In the event that SU CHDV Lab closes early or cancels care for the followrng day, parents will be contacted
and informed of the situation. Ch[ldren should be picked up in a reasonable amount of time to ensure all
parents chiidren and staff can travel safely home o

Loursmna Ratmg System

SU CHDV Lab will participate in Louisiana’s Classroom Assessment Scoring System, or CLASS. There are
a variety of requirements for SU CHDV Lab to maintain its CLASS Rating. Staff members should familiarize
themselves with those requirements and participate in all trainings in relation to CLASS.

General Staff Expectations

PROFESSIONALISM

Each SU CHDV Lab staff member is a child care professional and is expected to act as such. The following
general guidelines for professionalism should be maintained at all times:

»  Arrive on time and stay entire shift, if needed.

» |s not absent from work on a regular basis and finds a substitute when necessary.

«  Dress appropriately for interaction with children.

+  Take directions, suggestions and criticisms, and follow through to improve performance.

+  Respect confidential information regarding children, families, and co-workers.

«  Display a positive attitude toward the entire center (the program, children, families, volunteers and
co-workers).

4|Pa.ge.



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  Attend staff meetings and other Laboratory/Campus events.
+  Complete ALL required training courses in a timely fashion.

DRESS CODE
Staff members are expected to observe the 3 C's for appropriate attire at work as follows:

COMFQRTABLE - Staff is expected to play with the children and be down at their level whenever it is
appropriate. To do this, staff must be dressed in comfortable clothes that allow free movement and activity.
Staff members should wear clothing they feel comfortable getting dirty or stained, as staff members are
expected to participate alongside the children during all daily activities. Sneakers are appropriate footwear.

CLEAN - All clothing should be clean with no stains, rips or tears, and must smell appropriate. This also
applies to personal hygiene.

COURTEQUS - Staff members must interact with chrldren and parents on.a darty basrs in-a posrtave
mannerand shoutd dress professronafly -g L S

Clothrng may not contam alcohol drug, orcrgarette references Vulgar sayrngs or suggestions are
forbrdden s . :

Certam articles of c!oth;ng are never approprrate for the work envrron ment mcludlng haitertops strapless

Itis expected that atE staff members wﬂ present themsetves and SU CHDV Labin a professmnat
respectable manner. Any staff member not adhenng to the dress code may be asked to leave and retum

dressed approprratefy
CELL PHONES

It is important that every staff member's attention remains on the children at all times. A second'’s lapse in
attention could result in a serious accident, which, with appropriate supervision, would have been
prevented. Therefore, the use of cell phones are not permitted in any of the classrooms. Cell phones
should remain turned off and stored in a purse, bag, coat, classroom cell phone box, or the office, etc. while
a staff member is clocked in. Cell phone use is permitted only during an approved break, and never in a
classroom. It is never appropriate to make a personal phone call, send a text message, check voicemail,
etc. while in the presence of children, even while on an approved break.

It is expected that when leaving the center for any reason (walk, field trip, etc.), one staff member wilt carry
with them a cell phone. In this circumstance, the cell phone should only be used in the event of an
emergency and not for personal calls/text messaging.

In the event of an emergency, the staff member must inform both the Lead Teacher and Director and/or
Assistant Director or Director Designee of the situation. In this case, cell phones must be set to vibrate.
Calls may be answered only after a substitute has arrived to replace the staff member, and outside of the
classroom. Ratios must be maintained at all times.

5| pag e. .



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

COMPUTERS/TECHNOLOGY

All SU CHDV Lab-owned computersftechnology are to be used for work purposes only. Under no
circumstances may software be installed without prior permission of the Director and/or Assistant Director
or Director Designee. Staff members may bring in a personal computer to use during nap time only. The
wireless network password may be obtained from the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director
Designee.

Computer use is forbidden during all times other than nap/rest time.
UNMONITORED CONTACT

For the protection of each staff member, we always work in teams. No staff should ever be alone with a
single child. Another staff member should be within sight/sound at all times.

APPROVED LEAVE AND PAYROLL

The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee must approve all leave of staff of the SU.CHDV
Lab. In the case of an emergency ‘which results in an absence the staff member must contact the Director

or Lead Teacher immediately. All leave must be on an offi cial University System leave form and submltted

to the Director or Administrator Assistant. Failure to follow the above gmdehnes may delay processmg ofa

staff members payro]] check unt|I the followmg pay date i 5

Payroii schedule is the same: as the UnzverSIty System EmpEoyees are pald or the Iast day of the. month In
the case the fast day of the month faHs ona weekend the employee will be patd the last workday pnor to
that weekend """ - : g _

DIRECT DEPOSIT

Direct depoS|t of payroEE checks is the only form of payment ava:tab[e to all staff members. Staff should
comp]ete and retum a Direct Deposit Authorization form to enroll during hiring process. '

PERSONAL BELONGINGS

Coats, backpacks, purses, etc. must be safely put on hooks, in closetsfcabinets and out of reach of
children. SU CHDV Lab is not responsible for fost or stolen items.

FOOD/MEALS

SU CHDV Lab is a peanut free facility. No food containing, or processed in a facility with peanuts, are
allowed in the center. Staff members may store a small amount of food in the break room refrigerator or
designated area in kitchen refrigerator. All food should be clearly fabeled with the staff member's name and
date. Food should be removed or discarded after one week or when spoiled. Meals should be eaten and
prepared only during nap/rest time or during an approved break.

HAND WASHING
Staff members must wash their hands at the following times:

« Upon arriving at the center
»  After each diaper change

GlPage



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

«  After helping a child use the foilet

»  After wiping a nose, coming into contact with saliva or any other bodily fluid.
+  Before preparing meals

»  Before and after meal times

» Before and after using the sensory table

»  After removing gloves

+  After using the restroom

+  After returning to the center from a break

+  After coming indoors from the playground

**Frequent hand washing with soap and warm running water for at least 20 seconds is the most effective

way to reduce and prevent the spread of ilinesses like diarrhea, the flu, and conjunctivitis {pink eye).
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
REQUIRED TRAlNlNG

Researoh rndroates that formal educatron or fraining that anoreases the knowledge of provrders has been

shown to be the greatest determinant of: safe and quallty programming for children. Therefore, the state of

Louzsrana has set the followrng reqmrements for staff trarmng and development

Requ;red training w1th[n the ﬁrst thlrty days employees are requared to oomplete orlentation tramlng, for ALL
stafl members i : : e :

Twelve olook hours per academzc school year |n toprcs directly related to Chlld Development

Certification in Amer;oan Red Cross or Amersoan Heart Assoolation infant, child, and adult

S oardlopulmonary resusortatlon (CPR) every two years. A’ valid certification indicating the date of the
'ﬁ'f.é'itrasnlng and exprratlon date must be turned into the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director

Designee. (Valid for two years)
+  Certification in infant, child, and adult first aid from American Red Cross, American Heart
Association, the National Safety Council, or Emergency Preparedness Plan. A valid certificate

indicating the date of training and expiration date must be turned into the Director. (Valid for two

years.)

All fees for required training courses are to be paid by the staff member, unless otherwise arranged with the
Director. If a staff member is interested in participating in training courses after his/her annual requirement
for training has been met, SU CHDV Lab may pay the course fee if the course is approved by the Director.

ORIENTATION TRAINING

Within seven calendar days of the first day present at the center, and prior to assuming sole responsibility for
any children, each staff member shall receive orientation to the policies and practices of the center that at a

minimum shall include:
1. child abuse identification and reporting;
2. emergency preparation;
3. licensing reguiations; and

7lPage



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

4, safe sleep practices.

Within 30 calendar days of date of hire, each staff member shall receive orientation to the additional policies
and practices of the center that at a minimum shall include:

1. child development;

2. child guidance;

3. learning activities;

4. health and safety;

5. shaken baby prevention; and

6. CPR and first aid, as applicable.

In the case of transporting children, all staff members respansible for transporting children shall receive
additional orientation training in the following areas prior to assuming their transportation duties:

1.-.-fransportation regulations,.including the modeling of how to properly conduct a vehicle. passenger
.-.‘check and demonstratron by staft to director on how to conduct a vehtcle passenger: check

21: proper use of child safety restrarnts required by state faw; '

3 proper Ioadlng, unloading, and trackrng of chrldren as requrred by state faw;

4. location of first aid sdpplres and -

5':: emergency procedures for- the \vehicle, mcludzng act;ons to be taken in: the event of accrdents or
breakdowns : : - -

CONTINUING EDUCATION : S ffﬁfli;-

Eariy iearnlng centers shall provrde opportunrtres forcontrnurng educatlon of staﬁ members who are left alone
wrth chrldren or who have superwsory or drscrphnary authority over. chlldren .

1 Staﬁ members of early leamning centers, exctudlng foster grandparents shall obtain a mrnrmum of
12 clock hours of continuing education per center anniversary year.

Staff members of type I, type Il and type Hll centers who are neither left alone with children, nor have
supervisory or disciplinary authority over children, shall obtain a minimum of three clock hours of continuing
education in job related topics per center's anniversary year.

Continuing education for all types of centers shall be conducted by trainers approved by the department. The
department shall keep a registry of approved trainers.

Continuing education hours shall be in the areas of:
1. child development;
. child guidance;
. child abuse prevention;

2

3

4, emergency preparation;
5. licensing regulations;
6

learning activities;

8| P.a..g.e .



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

7. health and safety;

8. shaken baby prevention;

9. CPR;

10. first aid;

11. management/administrative education; or

12. college credit hours in child care, child development, and/or early childhood.

The three hours of training by a child care heaith consultant on infectious diseases, health and safety, and/or
food service preparation required in LAC 51:XX1.301.A.9 shall not count towards continuing education hours
for staff members.

Pediatric first aid training and infant/child/adult CPR training may count as continuing education in the
anniversary year in which i is taken.

Medication administration training by a child care health consuEtant may count as contrn urng educatron in the
annrversary year in whrch itis taken : o S

CPR AND FIRST AID CERTEFICATEONS

A _!nfant and Child CPR. Frfty percent of staff members on the premrses of a center and access:bte to
- children, or at least four staff members on the premises and accessible to children, whichever is less,
“shall have current certif cation in 1nfant and chr[d CPR through training approved by the department

B : .fAduIt CPR. Frﬂy percent of staff members on the premrses of a center and accessible to chridren or at
" least four staff members on the premises. and accessible to children, whichever s less, shall have
- current certrt" cation in adu[t CPR through trarnlng approved by the department i

C.:'-E:Pedratnc First Aid. Frfty percent of ‘staff members on the premrses ~of a center and accesssble to
children, or at least four staff members on the premises and accessible to children, whichever is less,
shall have current certification in pediatric first aid through training approved by the department.

D. When a center has more than one building, each building shall have at least one staff member present
at all times certified in the CPR and first aid appropriate for the age of the children present in the
building.

E. Certification. A copy of the certification for each such staff member shall be on-site af all times and
available for inspection by the department.

F. First Responder. Staff members who maintain current certification as a first responder are considered
to have current certification in CPR and pediatric first aid.

MEDICATION MANAGEMENT TRAINING
A. All staff members who administer medication shall have medication administration training.

B. Whether the center is administering medication or not, each early learning center shall have at least
two staff members trained in medication administration and at least one trained staff member on the
premises during the hours of operation. A staff member who is a licensed practical nurse (LPN) or
registered nurse (RN) with a valid nursing license shall be considered to have medication
administration training.

-9.|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

C. Such training shall be completed every two years with an approved child care health consultant.

STAFF MEETINGS

Alt SU Child Development Lab staff members are required to attend ALL staff meetings. Important
information, procedures, and policies are introduced and reviewed at these meetings; it is important to have
100% attendance. Employees will be notified at least one week in advance and must meet with the Director
and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee if unable to attend a staff meeting.

NEW STAFF ORIENTATION

All new staff members will be asked to read the SU Child Development Lab staff and parent handbooks.
Prior to warking in the classroom, the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will schedule
an orientation meeting fo complete required paperwork (in accordance with SUS hiring policies and
procedures), and review center operation and policies.

EVALUATIONS oo

Eva!uat|ons of a staff members performance will be conducted by the Dlrector and/or Ass;stant Director or
D|rector Designee. Evaluatlons will be performed annualfy tnformal evaluatlons will be performed -
throughout the year. dunng scheduled and unscheduled classroom observations. Parent surveys will be
passed out shortly before a staff members evaluation: meetlng and feedbaok wr[! be mcluded in the staff
member’s evaluation.:: i S -

Staff members will be requrred to complete a self- evaluatlon pnorto meetmg w1th the Director and/or
Asststant Dlrector or Dlrector Destgnee Sl :

PERSONNEL POLICIES

The fo!iowlng poIrcnes are lntended to protect the raghts of staff members and to ensure maximum -
understanding and cooperation. SU Child Development Lab staff members are expected to be:

+ On-time and alert when scheduled to be at work.

+ Careful and conscientious in performance of duties, including the use of positive words and actions.
» Respectful, thoughtful, and considerate of other peaple.

» Courteous and helpful when dealing with children, parents, visitors, and other staff members.
CONFIDENTIALITY

It is important that all staff members be discreet in sharing information regarding the children and their
parents in public areas. Names and identifying characteristics of children and families should not be shared
with anyone other than staff members working in the classroom and the Director and/or Assistant Director
or Director Designee. Confidentiality is expected and required when grievances arise; staff members who
discuss issues with individuals not directly related to the situation may be subject to the Discipiinary
Procedure.

iOIPage



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Staff should also be careful in discussing details of the center operation, particularly problem areas, with
others in public. Staff members may not distribute or post children’s names, address, phone numbers, etc.
with the exception of distribution to SU Child Development Lab employees. Personal information should
never be used for personal purposes.

CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT

All SU Child Development Lab staff members are mandatory child abuse reporters. Suspected cases of
child abuse or neglect must be reported to the Department of Human Services to:

CHILD ABUSE HOTLINE, DCFS 1-855-4LA-KIDS.

Staff members may directly report suspected incidents of child abuse or neglect to the Louisiana
Department Children and Family Services (DCFS). The staff member should inform the Director and/or
Assistant Director or Director Designee of the report and together decide whether or not to inform the
parents of the report

such. an accusatron will be reported to the Dtrector and a determrnatron willbe made as to whether there | rs
reasonable cause to suspect that a child has been subjected to abuse and/or neglect. if there is reasonable
cause; a report must be made to the DCFS. SU Child: Deve[opment Lab will cooperate with any DCFS
rnvestrgatlon [n addition, the accused staff member W]II be informed of the- attegatrons and be given an
opportunity to respond to those attegatrons Terminatron of employment after a chaid abuse attegatton is at
the discretion of the Director. : 2

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

As chrtdcare professronats alt staff members are expected to make reasonabte attempts to resotve conflicts
d;rectty with the individual(s ) concemed. If a solution cannot be reached staff members should then seek
assistance from the Director andfor Assistant Director or Director Designee in resolving the conflict.

Confidentiality is expected and required when grievances arise. Staff members who discuss issues with
other staff members not directly related to the situation may be subject to the Disciplinary Procedure. This
policy applies both during paid hours as well as on a staff member's personal time.

CO-WORKER COMMUNICATION

Open communication between staff members, parents, and children is crucial to a successful program.
Before leaving a classroom for any reason (bathroom, making a copy, calfing a parent) an employee should
inform his/her cooperating teachers, interns, practicum students, or volunteers of the reason he/she is
leaving. For all involved, it is important that all issues be addressed and resolved as they arise. All
employees are expected fo function as a team member at all times.

SUPPLIES

Lead Teachers are responsible for reporting to the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee
when supplies are running fow so they can be replenished before supplies are completely depleted.

11|Page”



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

PARKING

Staff members should park in the rear staff parking lot on the east side of the center only. The parking lot to
the north of the center is reserved for parents picking up and dropping off. If the staff parking lot is full, staff
may park along the curb of the entrance and exit.

SUGGESTIONS

SU CHDV Lab is always seeking suggestions that will: improve methods, procedures, and working
conditions: reduce costs or etrars; and benefit the children, staff, and tab. Staff members who have
suggestions or innovative ideas are encouraged to discuss them with the Lead Teacher or Director and/or
Assistant Director or Director Designee.

PERSONNEL FILES

SU CHDV Lab maintains a permanent personnel file for each staff member. These files are confidential and
staff must arrange a time with the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee to review their .
file. Staff members are prohibited from accessing the personnel file of another staff member for ¢ any reason.
Staff members shouid report {0 the Darector and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee if there'is a
charge in address, phone number, or emergency contact. In the case that the marital status or number of
dependents have changed piease see the Human Resource office for the SU System.

SUBSTANCE ABUSE

Any staff members reportrng for work under the snﬂuence of atcoho] or controiled substances will: be asked
to leave zmmed;ateiy If the Drrector and/or Assistant Drrector or Director Designee or other staff member
has probable cause: 1o bet;eve a staff member's facuitres are rmparred whrle on the job, the staff member
may be suspended ortermlnated rmmedtately :

TOBACCO USE (7

Southern University and A&M College Baton Rouge Campus is a smoke free campus. Smoking and the
use of smokeless tobacco products is also prohibited on SU CHDV Lab grounds or in personal vehicles.
Staff members who smoke are strongly suggested against doing so immediately before or during their shift,
as smoke can stay on clothing and hair for an extended time.

NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT

SU CHDV Lab does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, age, religion, national origin, sexual
orientation, gender identity, sex, marital status, disability, or status as a U.S. veteran. SU CHDV Labis an
equal opportunity employer.

SU CHDV Lab prohibits harassment of and by its staff members on the basis of gender, race, age, color,
national origin, refigion, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, citizenship, disability, and other
characteristics. Harassment includes, but is not limited to, making derogatory remarks about any of these
characteristics, making jokes or stereotypical comments about ethnic or other groups, and engaging in
verbal, physical, and visually offensive behavior.

12|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

ATTENDANCE

Consistency is crucial to creating a successful program. All staff members are expected to be in regular
attendance, in order to provide a consistent environment and routine. Regular absences will be subject to
disciplinary procedure.

ABSENCE DUE TO ILLNESS

If a staff member is ill and unable to work, the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee
should be notified immediately, by phone. Electronic communications such as text message and email are
not acceptable methods of contact when reporting sick. If absent three or more days consecutively, the
staff member must follow the SU faculty/staff guidelines and have a doctors excuse. The Director and/or
Assistant Director or Director Designee will require a note from the staff member's physician indicating an
illness and when said staff member may return to work.

SUBSTITUTES

Staff members are requrred to grve at Ieast a two week’ notrce when possrble when they will not be in the
classroom. If it is an illness, & staff member should attempt to grve at least 24 hours to give time for the
Drrector to locate a substitute : :

One qui-tlme staff member must aiways be in the ciassroom Situations i in Wh]Ch afull-time staff member of
classroom are gone must be avozded Staff members are expected to communicate with each other to
ensure all fulltime staff members are not absent on the same day T|me otf may not be taken the f rst week

of transrhons/new semester : : : B

SCHEDULES

suU CHDV Lab is open Monday through Fnday, 6 30am to 5. 30pm Al schedutsng requests shou[d be
submitted in writing to the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee. Schedules will be
created based upon the needs of SU CHDV Lab and the children, as well as staff member availability.

Occasionally, staff members may be required to dedicate time outside their regular work schedule in order
to satisfactorily complete or carry out SU CHDV Lab responsibilities (parent-teacher conferences, staff
meetings, trainings, lesson planning, etc.). In this case, staff members will not receive additional pay for
work performed outside their normal work schedule.

VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION

Teachers should submit a letter of resignation to the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee
when resigning from a position. SU CHDV Lab appreciates at least four weeks’ notice if you choose to
resign. This will ensure an appropriate replacement can be hired and adequately trained

Disciplinary Procedures

UNACCEPTABLE JOB PERFORMANCE

i3EPage



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

SU CHDV Lab uses progressive discipline as a positive way to correct unacceptable job performance. This
is not a contractual obligation because all SU CHDV Lab employees are “at will” which means an employee
can be terminated at the will of SU CHDV Lab for any reason or no reason. The following are the steps,
which are taken using progressive discipline.

STEP 1 Verbal Warning

If a staff member’s job performance is not meeting SU CHDV Lab standards, or if a staff member is in
violation of any policy stated in this handbook, hefshe will be informed of the problem and the possible
penalties if performance does not improve, Suggestions on ways to improve job performance are
discussed. Verbal warnings may be given for violation of SU CHDV Lab policies, failure to follow
procedures, unsatisfactory performance, absenteeism or tardiness.

Verbal warnings will be recorded, discussed, and signed by both the staff member and Director and/or
Assistant Director or Director Designee. After three (3) verbal warnings have been issued for any reason
within a perlod of six (6) months, a written warning will be issued.

S TEP 2 Wntten Wammg

A wntten warning is glven |f a problem Wthh has been 1dent|f' ed by muitlple verbal warnings has not been
corfected. Written wamings will be recorded dlscussed and srgned by both the staff member and Dlrector
and/or Assistant Dtrector or Dlrector DeS|gnee T

A staff member may reoerve onEy one (1) written wamlng durrng a six (6) m'on:th:b'er'io'd After one '(1") written

warning has been |ssued any further rssues or actlons subJect to the Dlsmpl:nary Procedure may result in
termination. 5 : : :

Wntten warnings: w1ll be lssued lmmed|ately for refusal to follow lawful lnstructlons or any other serlous
polroy vrolatlon which endangers the safety or mtegrsty of a child or staff member :

STEP 3 Termmatron

Termination may result when using progressive discipline if steps have not produced satisfactory and
acceptable performance. Termination may be immediate without using progressive discipline. Reasons for
immediate termination may include, but are not limited to:

»  Commitment of child abuse under Louisiana law

»  Abuse of a parent/guardian of a child or another staff member

+  Harassment/Bullying

+  Being under the influence of drugs or alcohol while at work

«  Theft

«  Possession of a weapan

+  Violation of any policy which states that violation of such policy may result in termination

The above violations are only examples and are not meant to be all-inclusive. Disciplinary action up to and
including termination may be taken immediately at the discretion of the Director.

Health & Safety Policies

14|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

STAFF PHYSICALS AND TUBERCULOSIS SCREENING

Each staff member must receive a pre-employment physical and tuberculosis (TB) skin test, performed
within 6 months before beginning employment. Physicals and TB tests must be updated every year. Staff
members will have a “grace period” of 30 days to turn in updated physicals and TB tests. After 30 days,
staff members will be required to take unpaid leave for a period of time until the physical is completed or
terminated. This decision wilt be at the discretion of the Director andfor Assistant Director or Director
Designee or Director Designee.

[ILLNESS

Our first priority at SU CHDV Lab is providing a healthy, safe learning environment for all children.
Children/staff will be sent home as soon as possible if any of the following is experienced: an illness
prevents the child from participating comfortably in activities (as determined by the staff); an illness results
ina greater need for care than the staff can reasonab]y provide without compromising the heatth or safety

'-" ';"'Fever of 101 orgreater untrt 24 hours symptom free w1thoutfever reduc;ng medrcatron

Srgns/symptoms of severe illness, Encludrng Iethargy, uncontro]led coughrng, mexpllcable rrrltabsiity

Seoor persrstent crying, drff iculty breathrng, and/or wheezing '

-+ Diarrhea (not assocrated with diet changes or medications) (Two :nstanoes) until drarrhea stops for

- 24 hours or the oontEnued dlarrhea is deemed not to be mfect;ous by a Iroensed health care

. professional. | - - -

L Blood in stoots not expEarnable by dietary change medrcatron or hard stools

“: ahealth care prov;der determrnes the cause for vomrtmg rs not contaglous and the child ES not in

- danger of dehydration :

.o fPersrstent abdominal pain (contlnues more than 2 hours) or rntermrttent pain associated wrth fever
or other signs/symptoms of illness

+  Mouth sores with drooling, unless a health care provider determines the sores are not contagious

+  Rash until a physician determines that these symptoms do not indicate a communicable disease

+  Pink eye (conjunctivitis) until after treatment has been initiated for 48 hours

+ Head lice, from the end of the day until after first treatment

«  Scabies, until after treatment has been completed

+  Tuberculosis, until a health care provider states that the child is on appropriate therapy and can
attend child care

« Impetigo, until 24 hours after treatment has been initiated

+ Hand Foot and Mouth sores have dried and crusted and no fever

«  Strep throat, until 48 hours after initial antibiotic treatment and cessation of fever

»  Chicken pox, until all sores have dried and crusted (usually 6 days)

+  Pertussis, until 5 days of appropriate antibiotic treatment has been completed

«  Mumps, until 9 days after onset of symptoms

»  Hepatitis A virus, until 1 week after onset of iliness

+  Measles, until 4 days after onset of rash

+  Rubella, until 6 days after onset of rash

15|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  Unspecified respiratory tract illness accompanied by another illness which requires exclusion
»  Herpes simplex, with uncontrollable drooling

A child who becomes it while at SU CHDV Lab must be removed from the classroom in order to limit
exposure of other children to communicable disease. An ill child will be sent to the office to wait for histher
parent to arrive.

SU CHDV Lab reserves the right to make the final determination of exclusion due to iliness. Any exceptions
to our illiness policy will require a written note from a licensed health care professional stating that the child
is not contagious.

NOTICE OF EXPOSURE & REPORTING DISEASE

If a child or staff member is found to have a communicable disease, a notice will be posted on the door of
all affected classrooms. Additionally, families who have provided an email address will receive email
notlfacatlon of the iliness.

department ' “-._'_2_3{'?_-
MEDICATION AUTHORIZATIONS

Staff: members may not admantster medlcatlon to any ch;id un!ess a parent has completed a Medlcatzon
Authonzatzon Form. : G

Parents must [ndscate a start date and end date, a reason for the medacatlon or the dosage or medzcatlon
cannot be administered. Medications must be stored in a locked-box (refrigerated medications) or in a high
cabmet (non- refngerated medscahons) while in use at SU CHDV Lab The:Medication Authorization Form
must remain.with the medication at all times. Unused medications: must be 1mmed|ately returned to the
family and will not be stored at'SU CHDV Lab. : -

Medications may be administered only by the Teachers, the Director, or Assistant Director or Director
Desigriee, or those who have been properly frained on medication administration. When a medication is
given, the teacher will document the type of medication administered, the dosage, and the time it was given
as well as any unusual reactions or circumstances. Expired Medication Authorization Forms must be tumed
in to the front office to be filed in the child's permanent enrollment file.

DOCUMENTATION OF ACCIDENTS/INCIDENTS

Staff members shalf document accidents and incidents that occur at SU CHDV Lab using an
Accident/incident Report. Please document all biting incidents as accidents. If a biter breaks the skin of
another child, an accident/incident report needs to be completed for the biter as well as the child who was
bitten. Use great detail when explaining events, but never include other children’s names. If the injury is
serious, a parent needs to be contacted before pick-up. The parent shall sign the report the same day of
the incident. A copy may be given to the parent. All Accident/Incident Reports must be given to the Director
andfor Assistant Director or Director Designee to be placed in the child's permanent file.

DOCUMENTATION OF HEALTH INCIDENTS

iGIP.age



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Each time a parent is contacted regarding an ill child or symptoms of illness, staff members should
complete a Health Incident Form. A copy of the form should be given to the parent and the original to the
Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee to be placed in the child’s permanent file. Al
parents will be notified of any communicable illnesses present in the center via a sign posted on the main
entrance to the center explaining the iliness. In addition, parents with children in the classroom of the
infected child will receive an email regarding the illness.

DOCUMENTATION OF ALLERGIES

A child with allergies must have an Allergy Action Plan posted in a visible location in the classroom. If the
allergy is food related, an Allergy Action Plan must also be posted in the kitchen area. All staff working in
the classroom of a child with allergies must review the Allergy Action Plan to ensure understanding of
emergency procedures should the child have an allergic reaction. All allergic reactions must be
documented with a Health Incident Form.

DOCUMENTATEON OF SPECIAL HEALTH CARE NEEDS

staff workang in the classroom must familiarize themselves w1th this plan, should an emergency anse If
necessary, staff w;i! recelve trarnlng regard;ng a chzid s or staff member’s specn‘lc health care needs

ACCESS POLICY

Any person in the center who rs not a drrector facu!tylstaﬁ’ member substltute practrcum student or
subcontracted staffor voEunteer who has had a record check and: approval fo be involved with child‘care
shall ot have unrestrscted access to children for whom that person is not the parent, guardian or. custodran
nor be counted in the staff to_child ratio. Unrestncted access means that a person has contact w1th a child
alone oris directly responsible for child care. :

Persons who do not have unrestricted access will be under the direct supervision and monitoring of a paid
staff member at ail times and will not be allowed to assume any child care responsibilities. The primary
responsibifity of the supervision and monitoring will be assumed by the Director or Lead Teacher unless
he/she delegates it to another Teacher due to a conflict of interest with the person.

Center staff will approach anyone who is on the property of the center without their knowledge to ask what
their purpose is. If a staff member is unsure about the reason, the staff member must see the Director or
Assistant Director or Director Designee to get approval for the person to be on site.

If it becomes a dangerous situation, staff will follow the “Dangerous Adult” procedure. Non-agency persons
who are on the property for other reasons such as maintenance, repairs, etc., will be monitored by a paid
staff member and will not be allowed to interact with children on the premises.

A sex offender who has been convicted of a sex offense against a minor (even if the sex offender is the
parent, guardian or custodian) who is required to register with the Louisiana sex offender registry:

«  Shall not operate, manage, be employed by, or act as a contractor or volunteer at the child care
center.

17 Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  Shall not be on the property of the child care center.
The Director is not obligated to provide permission and must consult with their DHS licensing agent first.
STATE and FEDERAL CRIMINAL HISTORY CHECKS

Each staff member must complete a Child Care Criminal Background Check every five years. A search will
be completed and includes checks of Louisiana Criminal History, Child Abuse and Sex Offender Registries.
The cost of the background checks will be the responsibility of each staff person.

VISITORS

All individuals who are visiting the center (i.e., someone who is not a parent or authorized pick-up person;
or staff member) is required to sign in at the front office before entering the center. The visitor is then
required to sign out before leaving the building. Staff members should notify the Director and/or Assistant
Director or Director Designee if expecting a visitor.

“in - Curriculum Planning

CURRICULUM
offered to young chrldren tha't'e'upport and ennch the|r development physrcally, emaofionally, soo]ally, and

cognrtnveiv suU CHDV Lab uses TS Gold as gmdes for plann;ng the ourrloulum in each of its program
rooms: : _ S i

Each classroom has weekly lesson plans posted in the classroom These: plans contain a number of
actrwtles designed to foster each child's development and the development of the group as a whole
Lesson pEans should be changed in order to aooommodate the ch;ldren S ohangmg interests.

Each olassroom is set-up in centers wh|oh 1nolude blocks dramatlo play, books gross motar, fine: motor
and art. Qutdoor play is important to a child's physical development and must be included in both the
morning and aftemnoon schedule. Self-selection or “free-play” is a daily part of the curriculum and means a
child has the opportunity to choose which center or activity he/she participates in. This promotes creative
expression and development of important social skills.

DAILY SCHEDULE AND ACTIVITIES

The Teacher and practicum students work cooperatively to create a daily schedule and plan activiies that
meet each child’s developmental abilities and needs. Every staff member is responsible for carrying out the
schedule and activities. The daily schedule and activities create a balance between active and quiet times;
large and small group, and individual activities; small and large muscle activities; indoor and outdoor play
times; as well as times for self-selection and teacher-directed activities.

Consistency from day-to-day is particularly important to the overall well-being of the children and classroom
environment. Children thrive on consistency! Routines should be maintained whenever possible for arrivals
and departures; meals and snacks; resting or nap times; personal care routines like diapering/toileting and
hand washing; and transitions.

Lesson plans and the daily schedule must be posted in the classroom and visible at all times.

1”8. [. 1.5.a ge



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

THEMES

The use of themes is a practical and logical way to begin curriculum planning. The themes should be based
upon what the children know and see every day, as well as the children’s interests. The themes must be
age-appropriate and may span the length of one week, or one month depending on the interest level.

Teachers are encouraged to discuss with each other their themes and coordinate the sharing of materials
and activities.

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT

The actual room arrangement of each program room is the responsibility of the program Teacher. Space
should be organized according to the Environment Rating Scales (ERS). Centers should include blocks,
dramatic play, art, large and small motor, and books. These areas should be clearly defined, with obvious
boundaries. Quiet areas should be set-up as far away from noisy activities (blocks, cars, efc.) as possible.
The room décor should consist mostly of child artwork and photographs of animals, people, food, and the
children themselves at the child’s eye level. Room arrangement should ta_k_e_ |_nto consaderatron that statt
must be able to:see every chlld atalf trmes e .

For 2 amore detailed: descnpt;on of room arrangement and the physical envrronment staff members may
refer to copy of the: appropnate ERS manual, or seek. a551stance from the Director. The Director and/or
Assrstant Director or Drrector Desagnee must approve changes fo the physrcat envrronment 1ncluding the
room arrangement T i

FREE PLAY

“Free- p]ay" (also catted chlld—lmtrated actwmes free chorce setf~setectaon) must be incorporated 1nto the
mornlng and aftemoon schedule. Teachers are expected to actively partrcrpate with the children dur:ng free
play activities by asking questrons about what the ¢hildren are doing, participating in their pretend play,
reading books when prompted, encouraging children to try new activities or play with a new toy, etc:

QUTDOOR PLAY

Outdoor play must be incorporated into the daily schedule for both the moming and afternoon, in almost all
weather conditions. In the event of rain, severe wind/cold, or extreme heat, children are permitted to remain
indoors.

There is less structure in an outdoor leaming environment; however, it is expected that staff members
actively engage in activities when prompted by the children. Outdoor play is an opportunity for children to
run, jump, climb and use their bodies in ways that would otherwise be unsafe in an indoor ¢classroom. In
addition, a large amount of social interaction takes place when children play outdoors. Because they are
engaged in fewer teacher-directed activities and more child-directed play, children are able to choose their
friends and who to interact with.

The outdoor learning environment is an extension of the indoor classroom. Concepts taught indoors can be
expanded upon while outdoors. For example, building with blocks on an uneven surface outside, or playing
with toy cars in the grass teaches children about different textures, sounds, and smells because the

19 p'a' .g..e.. .



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

environment is naturally different from the indoors. Lesson plans must include an outdoor leaming
compaonent.

NAP/REST TIME

The Louisiana Department of Children and Family Services requires that all children be provided a regularly
scheduled nap or rest time. Children will not be forced to sleep but may be encouraged to lie quietly for a
period of time. The length of time a child should have to remain resting varies by child. There is no hard

and fast rule regarding the maximum amount of time a child should have to remain resting. Children should
be provided alternative quiet activities if unable to rest. Children unable to rest will not be allowed to disturb
their classmates.

MULTIMEDIA

The use of multimedia in our program is an extension of the teaching and learning that takes place in our
ctassrooms

Teachers may select movie, te!e\nsron and computer game tlttes based upon weekEy themes Chrtdren are’
not required to VIeW part or all of a videg or television show, or to play computer games. Instead, the activity
is offered as one of several centers. Al multamed|a must have arating of *PG” or “E” and must possess an
educational theme. Chrldren are I|m|ted to a specifi ed amount of time per week they may use or vrew
multrmed;a ' " i : :

TOOTH BRUSHING

At teast once a day, chttdren over 1 year of age wrtt pract;oe brushrng therr teeth after a meal. SU CHDV
Lab will provide a toothbrush for each ch!!d Toothbrushes mustbe labeled with the child’s name, a[lowed
to air-dry before berng stored in a ventilated container, and should not come into contact with other.
toothibrushes. Storage contatners will be washed and sanitized weekly Toothbrushes must be dlscarded if
contaminated. : :

WEAPONS/VIOLENT PLAY

There is a strict policy of allowing no weapon play at SU CHDV Lab. Children are not permitted to play with
weapons of any type or size or to pretend that other items are weapons, including their fingers, hands, or
blocks. Redirection should be used when a chiid is engaging in weapon or violent play. if a child brings a
weapon to SU CHDV Lab, the weapon should be placed out of sight and sent home the same day with a
note explaining the policy about weapons.

Bullying is not considered acceptable behavior; all efforts wili be made to guide children in finding
appropriate ways to interact with others.

PETS & VISITING ANIMALS

Staff may introduce a class pet to the classroom. Pets and visiting animals that are brought into the
classroom must be carefully considered for their temperament, health risks, and appropriateness for young
children. No animal may be brought into SU CHDV Lab without first nofifying and receiving permission from
the Director and/for Assistant Director or Director Designee. Once approved by the Director and/or Assistant
Director or Director Designee, pets and visiting animals must have documentation from a licensed

20.|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

veterinarian or animal shelter to show that the animal(s) is fully immunized and that the animal is suitable
for contact with chitdren.

Assessments

The Teaching Strategies GOLD™ is the assessment tool used by the laboratory to evaluate and track each
child’s individual development during their time at SU CHDV Lab. Itis an on-going assessment system,
meaning that teachers are continually watching, observing, and documenting each child's development.
The same tool is used from birth through kindergarten, to allow a more complete picture of a child’s
development. By tracking a child's development, teachers are able to plan activities that are appropriate for
gach child’s developmental abilities.

PARENT-TEACHER CONFERENCES

Teachers are expected to conduct a minimum of two parent-teacher conferences per year and must make
every. effort to meet with each family A copy of the parent-teacher conference form and child development

su;tabte trmes to hoId conferences wrth the Drrector andfor Asslstant Dlrector or Dzrector Dessgnee
ASSESSMENT PORTFOLIOS S

A permanent assessment portfotso will be kept for each ch||d and passed to the next teacher when achild
transrtrons These portfotzos will not be: released to anyone outsrde Su CHDV L.ab without written
permission from the parentiguardian, Assessment portfotzos will contain a varlety ofitems, mcludrng
photographs, examples of artwork, assessment profi iles, and parent teacher conference forms. [tis the
responsibility of the Teacher and practrcum students to ensure: portfohos are perrodlca]ly and contanuously
updated ' : :

Portfohos may be perrodrcally taken home by famrlres but should be returned promptly When a chafd leaves
SU CHDV Lab, the assessment porifolio should be given to the famrly

Field Trips

SU CHDV Lab offers a variety of experiences both at and away from the center. Field trips are a creative
way to enrich a theme and expand the learning environment. The Director and/or Assistant Director or
Director Designee must approve all field trips. Field trips outside the SU Campus require a parent to
complete a “Field Trip Permission Form.” These forms can be obtained from the Director and/or Assistant
Director or Director Designee. Parents must be notified at ieast one week before the planned field trip.

Teachers may decide and are encouraged to conduct short, unannounced fieid trips including but not
limited to: walks as a class around the campus; trips to local playgrounds; and trips to local businesses.

Teacher-child ratios must be maintained at afl times. Parents complete a “Parent/Guardian Permissions”
form at enrollment for this type of field trip and do not need to complete a separate form for the above
named instances.

RULES RELATED TO TRANSPORTATION

« Children are not allowed to sit in the front seat under any circumstances.



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+ Children under the age of six riding in a car or passenger van must be properly buckled in a federally
approved car seat or booster seat. Older children and adults must be properly buckled in a seat belt.

» Doors should remain locked when the vehicle is moving.
» Smoking and the use of smokeless tobacco products is forbidden when transporting children.
» Children shall enter and leave the vehicle curbside unless the vehicle is in a protected area or driveway.

» Head counts shall be taken before leaving the center, after entering the vehicle, during a field trip, after
taking children to the restroom, after returning to the vehicle, and upon returning to the center.

« When children leave the vehicle, the vehicle shall be inspected to ensure no children are left in the
vehicle.

Should the time arise where the SU CHDV Lab obtain passenger vans to transport children, these rules are
mandatory Statf members who operate a SU CHDV Lab van must have a valid ohautfeurs Iicense

form

Datlv Dutles for Ctassroom Staff :E_

anh classroom has a set of Opemng, nap time, clos;ng and weekly o]ean:ng tasks: Below are some
generaE things that miist be oompleted each day. Statf members are expected to famifiarize themselves
with the classroom specrflo dutaes L B e e :

MORNING DUTIES

Make ! sure all program room- doors are untooked mix new bteaoh water put away sanitized toys; stralghten
toys and shelves; re-stock supphes such as soap, paper fowels, toilet paper, diapers, wipes, etc.; and
complete room set-up for the day’s lesson plan.

NOON/NAP-TIME DUTIES

Straightening of shelves; sanitizing toys; cleaning tables/chairsffloors; curricutum planning; wash dishes;
complete daily activity sheets for children; and prepare for afternoon.

AFTERNOON DUTIES

Wash or spray toys that have been mouthed by children with bleach solution and air dry; take trash to
dumpster, sanitize trash ¢an, and replace trash bag; put toys and equipment away; check outdoor play area
for equipment that needs to be put away; sanitize tables, chairs, and shelves; wash dishes; empty bleach
solution; vacuum carpets; lock all program room doors after the last parent leaves for the day.

Arrival and Departure

ARRIVAL

2.2! page o



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Staff members are expected to greet each child and parent by name upon their arrival to the classroom.
Arrival is the opportune time to discuss how the child’s night was, what he/she ate for breakfast, special
instructions for the day, etc.

Upon arrival, each child must have direct contact with a staff member. Staff should be looking for previous
injuries, signs of iliness, or unusual behavior.

DEPARTURE

During the enroliment process, each family completes an “Emergency Contact and Parental Consent” form.
This form provides authorization for select individuals to pick-up children from the center. If you are not
familiar with the person attempting to pick-up a child, you must request photo identification and check the
“Emergency Contact’ form. At the end of the day, staff must check the attendance clipboard to verify all
children have been signed out.

LATE PICK-UP

SU CHDYV Lab charges a late fee of $1 .00 for every mlnute a child is present past 430PM and not enrolled
in aftercare If achild is plcked-up after 430PM please miake a note on the’ attendance clipboard and inform
the Director or Assistant Director or Dsrector Designee the followrng day. If parents do not arrive by 430PM
fo prck up their Chlld attempt to contact them at all avallable phone numbers. If the parents cannot be
reached, attempt to contact other authonzed pick-up persons: If you are unable to reach the authorized
p|ck-up persons, contact the- Drrector or ASS|stant Drrector or Dlrector Desrgnee The SU Police Department
will then be contacted ' o :

Gu1dance Stratemes

Every adult who' cares for chrldren has a responsrblhty to guide, correct and socialize children toward
appropnate behavrors These adult actions often are calfed child guadance and discipline. Positive guidance
and discipline are crucial because they promote children's self-control, teach children responsibility and
help children make thoughtful choices. The more effective caregivers are at encouraging appropriate child
behavior, the less time and effort adults will spend correcting children's misbehavior.

Effective guidance and discipline focus on the development of the child. They also preserve the child's self-
esteem and dignity. Actions that insult or belittle are likely to cause children to view their caregivers
negatively, which can inhibit iearning and can teach the child to be unkind to others. However, actions that
acknowledges the child's efforts and progress, no matter how slow or small, is likely to encourage healthy
development. Teaching children self-discipline is a demanding task. It requires patience, thoughtful
attention, cooperation and a good understanding of the child. SU CHDV Lab staff will use only positive
guidance techniques.

When interacting with young children, staff should ask themselves the following questions:
‘Am l...”

+  Validating feelings?
»  Asking open ended questions?
+  Encouraging problem solving?

23|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Respecting children’s choices?

Using praise and positive reinforcement?
Talking with children - not at them?
Circulating throughout the classroom?
At the child’s eye level?

REASONS FOR MISBEHAVIOR

If caregivers understand why children misbehave, they can be more successful at reducing behavior
problems. Listed here are some of the possible reasons why children misbehave.

‘They want to assert themselves and their mdependence
: __-;They feelill, bored, hungry or sEeepy s
- They lack.accurate information and prior expenence

Children want to test whether caregivers will enforce rules.

They experience different sets of expectations between school and home.

A child does not understand the rules, or are held to expectations that are beyond their
developmental levels.

They have been prevrousiy "rewarded" for thezr mrsbehavzor with adult attention.

PREVENT!NG MISBEHAVEOR

Chl[d mrsbehav;or 5 |mp0831ble to’ prevent completely Chrldren usually cunous ‘and endlessly creatlve are
Ilkety to do things parents and other caregivers have not expected However there are many poslt;ve steps
caregrvers can take to help prevent m[sbehavzor i et

Set clear, cons1stent ruies (e.g.; walkrng feet gentle touches)
__Make certarn the envrronment Is safe and worry—free

”znterested for longer penods)

Encourage self-control and independence by providing meaningful choices. (e.g., “You may pick up
the blocks or art center.”)

Focus on the desired behavior, rather than the one to be avoided. (e.g., "Ashley, please use gentle
touches with your friends.”)

Build children's images of themselves as trustworthy, responsible and cooperative.

Give clear directions, one at a time.

Say "Yes" whenever possible.

Notice and pay attention to children when they do things right. (e.g., “Joey is playing so nicely. 1 like
it when you keep the blocks on the table.”)

Encourage children often and generously.

Set a good example. (e.g., using a quiet voice when children should be quiet)

Help children see how their actions affect others.

RESPONDING TO MISBEHAVIOR

2] pag e .



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Below are strategies SU CHDV Lab staff will use to respond to child misbehavior. Remember, however,
that it's always a good idea if rules are explained fully and clearly understood before misbehavior occurs.
Whenever possible, involve children in making the rules for the classroom.

Redirection

This strategy should be used most frequently when working with young children. If a child is not following
the rules or being uncooperative, quickly get the child's attention and introduce another activity. For
example, "Kate, please help me water the flowers now. You've been riding the bike for a long time and it's
now Logan's turn."

Logical consequences

These are structured consequences that follow specific misbehaviors. The child should be able to see how
the behavior and the consequence are directly related. For example, Andrew is standing on his chair at
Iunch H|s teacher should remrnd hrm that if he stands on h|s chair, he couId fatl and get hurt thrs will make

If a ch11d damages someth|ng, he/she needs to help in’ ﬂxrng rt orin cleanrng up. If a child causes someone
distress, hefshe should help in relieving that. For example, "t made Brandon very sad when you told him
he wasn 't your frrend anymore Please come apo[ogaze and help me make hrm feel better

Natural consequences

Atlowang children to experrence the consequences of: therr behavror is aiso called learning the hard way. For
example, Laura does not put her books back in her school bag after she frnrshes reading. One day she
loses:a book,, and:therefore must find a way to reptace it. Only use natural consequences when they will not

endanger the child's health or safety.
“Take a break” or “Calm down chair”

In some instances, a child may need to be removed from a particular situation in which he/she has become
overwhelmed or violent. The child should be directed to “take a break” or sit in the “calm down chair.” This
strategy gives the child a chance to calm down, regain control, and reflect quietly on her or his behavior
away from others. Once the child has calmed down, staff should talk with the child about the actions that
led up to and resulted in needing a break or being sent to the calm down chair. For example, "Hannah, we
have talked often about how hitting is not acceptable. But because you hit John, please leave the blocks
center and go to the calm down chair. | will talk to you when you are ready."

If these actions do not help in reducing or changing behavior the foIIowing will take place:

1. Staff will report behavior and what strategies have been attempted to the Director and/or Assistant
Director or Director Designee(s).

2. The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will observe the child and meet with the
Teacher to develop a behavior management plan.

3. The behavior management plan will be discussed with the parent and then put into practice.

25| Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

4. The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee, Teacher, and parents will evaluate the
behavior management plan. If needed, adjustments will be made.

** |f a child's behavior becomes threatening to themselves, other children, staff or teachers, the child wili be
removed from the classroom and possibly the program for a period of time or permanently.

USEFUL PHRASES

The following phrases are useful when problem-solving with children.

Instead of “No” or “Don’t* Say “Please stop’, “| don't fike that”, “That's not OK”, or “That is not a choice”
Instead of “That's not nice” Say “That's not OK®, “Please use gentle touches”, or “That hurts Jordan”
Instead of “No running” Say “I need you to use your walking feet” or “You may run when we go outside”

Instead of “Stop crying” Say “I need you to use your words to tell me what is wrong”

he]p me piCk up: the blocks or heip Alyssa pick up the puzzles
!nstead of | said yes (when a Chlld tells you no’} Say “No :s not a chorce E need you to...
BlTING POLICY ' '

Brtrng is a behavior that usuaity appears between the ages of one and three years thie b|t1ng is an age-
appropnate behavror itis 1mportant to:remember it is also an unacceptable behawor in a childcare -
environment. Chrldren bite for a variety of reasons: teethrng, sensory explorahon cause and effect;.
imitation, crowding; seeklng attention, frustration and stress. B]t;ng is not somethlng to blame on chr[dren
their parents or- their teachers There are’a. vanety of strategies we: |mplement at SU CHDV Lab to prevent
and stop bitlng This is the process foEEowed when a child bites:

«  The biting child is stopped and told “Stop biting. Biting hurts in a firm voice. Teachers should
remain calm, being careful not to show anger or frustration towards the chiid.

+  The biting child is removed from the situation. Depending upon the observed motive for the bite,
the separation may include re-direction or meeting the child's needs. As little attention as possible
will be placed on the biting child, to avoid reinforcing the behavior.

»  Appropriate first aid will be provided to the child who was bitten. The bite will be washed with soap
and water; cold compress will be applied to reduce pain and swelling. A bandage will be applied if
necessary.

It is important to explore the reasons for biting when it occurs. Teachers need to work with parents to
gather information about the child’s behavior and begin observations to determine the reasons for biting.
Examples of triggers would be: communication deficits, transitions, hunger, lack of sleep, need for oral
stimulation or teething pain. Once triggers are identified, staff can work on prevention strategies and start
teaching replacement skills. Below are the steps the teacher will take to identify triggers and replace the
behavior:

1. The teacher wili examine the context in which the biting is occurring and look for patterns. The following
guestions should be asked:

26|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  Was the space too crowded?

«  Were there too few toys?

+  Was there too little fo do or too much waiting?

+  Was the child who bit getting the attention and care he/she deserved at other times?

2. The teacher will change the environment, routines or activities if necessary.

3. The teacher will work with the child who is biting to resolve conflicts and frustrations in more appropriate
ways

4. The teacher will observe the child, to get an idea of why and when they are likely to bite.

5. The teacher will identify children likely to be bitten and make special efforts to reduce their chance of
being bitten.

6. The teacher, parent and Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will meet regularty to
regulate an actron plan and measure outcomes e

7. 1f blt;ng cont;nues the teacher W|It observe the group more ctosely and work wrth the parents to seek out "
addit[onat resources as necessary to shadow the chrid who |s b;tlng

All anformatlon rs confrdenttat and names of the chrldren rnvoEved in the mcrdent are not shared between

szgned by a teacher and parent A copy is provrded to the parent and the ongrnal kept in the chttd s
permanent enroEEment file | in the office. - - :

REMOVAL OF A CHILD FROM THE CLASSROOM

Chridren cannot be removed from the classroom as we do not have extra staﬁ available to correct rat|os in
rare instances, chrldren may | ‘be brought to the main office and the Director and/or Assistant Director or
Director Designee wilt assist the child in calming down and/or help staff manage the classroom. Teachers
must call the office and speak to the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee before
removing a child from the classroom.

If at any time a child's behavior becames threatening to themselves, other children, staff or teachers, the
Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee should be immediately notified.

Meals and Nutrition

SU CHDV Lab follows the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) nufrition and practice guidelines
for meals and snacks.

+  Prior to each meal, tables must be washed with soapy water. Each table must then be sanitized
with bleach water and either air-dried or wiped clean with a dry paper towel.

«  All staff and children must wash hands before and after each meai, for at least 20 seconds.

+  Staff shall sit with children at the tables and supervise all mealtimes. Staff shouid encourage
conversation by asking questions or talking about the food; good table manners should be
modeled.

27iPage.



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  First-serving child sized-portions will be provided for all staff. Each staff member is expected to eat
the meal provided, in order to model good eating habits.

»  Children will never be forced or bribed to eat. Children must have every food on their plate.
However, if a child states that he/she does not like a particular food, they may place just a smalt
amount (ex: one or two peas) on their plate.

«  Following every meal, tables and chairs must be washed with soapy water and sanitized with
bleach water.

FOOD FROM HOME

Children are welcome to bring in special treats to celebrate a birthday or holiday. Due to various food
allergies and dietary restrictions in our classrooms, we require supplying store-bought snacks still in the
original packaging. Homemade snacks are not allowed. A list of healthy snack options approved by the
USDA and Louisiana Department of Education is available from the Director and/or Assistant Director or
Director Designee.

lnfant Todd!er and Two Year Old Program Enformatlon

The fo!lowrng lnformatlon is specnr ic to the mfant toddler and two year old prograrn rooms:

Parents must supply dlapers WIpes diaper cream bottles forrnu[a baby food, extra ctothlng,

- pacifiers (if necessary) and blankets for rest fime. Please label all items with child’s name.

».. Children are not encouraged to use pacifiers durrng rest time nor any other-time throughout the

. day. Inthe case a pacn‘ler is’ necessary to calm a baby, to reduce the likelihood of spreading

 illness, pac:ﬂers must be kepti in-a child's cubby or draper bag dunng all other times of the day.

« - [f a mother.is breastfeeding, please be sure fo discuss with the mother when she would hke her

-+ child to be fed breast milk, and when she would like to come in to’ breastfeed i

¢ Breast milk must be brought in ready-to-use containers. For health reasons we are not abte to

~=store bags of frozen-or bagged milk:

«  We recommend that all new foods be tried at home first since a child could have an a]]erglc
reaction to foods they have not had before. Check with parents before introducing ANY new food.

*  Children must be held when being fed - bottle propping is forbidden.

SIDS

Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS) is the unexpected, sudden death of a child under age 1 for which a
cause of death cannot be identified. It is not known what causes SIDS, however several sleeping practices
have been linked to an increased risk for SIDS. Therefore, SU CHDV Lab has a strict policy for infant sleep
placement.

« Allinfants less than one year will be placed on their back to sleep.

» Infants shall not be allowed to sleep in a car seat or swing for a period of longer than 15 minutes.

e Once a child has been placed in his or her crib for nap, if the infant rolis from back to front - and is
also able to roll from front to back - it is acceptable to leave the infant sleeping on his or her
stomach. NO heavy blankets, stuffed toys or pillows should ever be placed in a crib.



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

A request for alternative sleeping positions must be accompanied by a signed and dated physician’'s note
stating the reason for the request. Staff members found to violate this policy will be subject to the
Disciplinary Procedure and possibly termination.

Parent Relationships

PARENT INTERACTIONS

Many of our employees will become well acquainted with the parents of the children. This is an important
part of providing quality care, but there are a few guidelines to which staff members must adhere:

L]

Address parents by their first name.

Talk with parents about an issue with their child only if you are not in the classroom with children.
Never talk about concerns about a child in front of any other children.

When stating a concern about their child, also state at least two positive things about their child.
Don't focus only on the negative.

. Do not use other children’s names when discussing behavior concerns and/or incident reports. -
“~Avoid the phrase "l don’t know.” Instead, say “I'm not certain of the answerfor that'can'l get back

to you?” then find the answer and: reply to the parent as soon as possrble

3 Conversations at prck—up and drop~0ff should be brief; your chief responsibility remains the

supervision of the children. If you feel a parent needs more time or attent|on ask to scheduie a

: J time to meet out31de the classroom

HANDLING PARENT COMPLAINTS

. Listen carefully Many ttmes a person Just needs an opportunlty to air his or her feehngs and feel

- they've been heard.":

~-Repeat:y what you have heard the other person say, trylng to summarize it in one sentence (“You re
upset that Gavin isn’t able to stay awake for dinner and seems crabby at night.")

State the changes that you think the parent would like to have made. (*You would like us to make
sure Gavin lies down for at least an hour every afternoon.”)

State what you will do to solve the problem. (I will speak with the other teachers and make a note
on his chart to make sure the message reaches everyone.")

Follow through. If you tell a parent you will do something, do it promptly and follow up with them
immediately afterward. (*I spoke with the other teachers last week; how are things going with
Gavin? Did you notice a change?”)

If you are unsure how to solve the complaint, refer the parent to the Director and/or Assistant
Director or Director Designee. (“I'm not sure how to answer that; the Director and/or Assistant
Director or Director Designee will be abie to better help you.”}

Position Descriptions

There are four classes of employee at SU CHDV Lab: Director, Administrative Assistant, Cook, Teacher,
and Practicum Student (nonpaid). All full-time, paid staff members are eligible for benefits such as paid
vacation/sick leave or health/ife insurance, etc., in accordance with the SU System policy.



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

There are different responsibilities, expectations, and qualifications for each position. Please refer to your
job description for expectations and responsibilities.

HOLIDAYS

SU CHDV Lab is closed in observance of the following holidays in accordance fo the SU System approved
holiday schedule and payment process:

New Years Day * Memorial Day * Independence Day *Labor Day * Thanksgiving * Christmas

Benefits {Health, Life, Dental, Vision, etc.)

Individual or family health insurance coverage is available to all full-time paid staff persons employed at the
SU CHDV Lab. As an employee of the SU CHDV Lab, you are considered a SU System employee and
have the same opportunity to benefits in accordance with the SU System policy.

BREASTFEEDING POLICY
Company Responsrbrlrtres

Breastfeedmg employees who choose to contrnue prov;dlng therr milk for thelr infants after returnrng to
work shaII receive:. ; i o

M:Ik Expressron Breaks

breastfeed Or eXpress. milk dunng work hours. For trme that may be needed beyond the usual break times
or ful ﬂrst year, emp[oyees may use therr tunoh break ormake up the ttme as negotrated with therr
supervrsors i :

Mamtarn Ratros in Classroom

If another staff member or pract|oum student is not able to switch classrooms to maintain ratio, one of the
directors or if available an extra staff will be provided for the employee to step out of the classroom fo
breastfeed or express milk.

A Place to Express and Store Milk

If the employee does not want to breastfeed in the classroom another closed door room will be provided for
staff to breastfeed or express milk in privacy. Employees wishing to use this room must reserve the room
by informing the director when they will need to use it.

Staff may store expressed breast milk in a SU CHDV Lab refrigerator in a designated area and must be
labeled with the name of the employee and the date of expressing the breast milk. Any nonconforming
products stored in the refrigerator may be disposed of. Employees storing milk in the refrigerator assume all
responsibility for the safety of the milk and the risk of harm for any reason, including improper storage,
refrigeration and tampering.

Emergency Medical/Dental Procedure

30[Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

It is important that parents complete and update, as needed, an Emergency Contact and Parental Consent
Form. This form contains contact information for both the parents as well as the individuals authorized to
pick up the child in the event of illness or emergency. In addition, the form allows SU CHDV Lab staff
members to seek emergency medical or dental care from authorized care providers in the event of serious
injury. It is the responsibility of the parent to complete this form and to make corrections to this information
when necessary.

+  Ifachild becomes ill or injured after arriving at the lab, the Teacher will attempt to contact the
parent(s) at all available telephone numbers. If a parent cannot be reached, the individuals listed
as emergency contacts/authorized pick up persons on the Emergency Contact & Parental Consent
form will be called.

»  Children who are ill or seriously injured will be sent to the office and remain under the supervision
of the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee or other designated staff until a
parent arrives.

IF THE CHILD REQUIRES IMMED!ATE MEDICAL ATTENTlON

The statf member who wrtnessed the emergency srtuatron will remarn wrth the Enjured chr!d ‘and
" instruct someone else to call 911. If no one is avarlabte first ensure the child is stable and if

- possible, bnng the chiid with you to call 911. -

< CALL911. s ' ;
e o Provrde the lab’s. name and location: SU CHDV Lab, Jesse N Stotie Building 109

o Provrde the-child’s name and a descnptron of the ;ncrdent Foiiow instructions as provrded
A by the operator. ' i
A statf member who wrtnessed the emerge_n_cy srtuatron wrll accompany the child to the hosprtai
. _-_Consent Form.
«.- Staff may not transport an il and/or 1n;ured child in a personal vehrcie

EMERGENCY FIRE PROCEDURE

+  If you detect a fire, pull the nearest fire alarm signal (small red box mounted on the wall near the
exifs).

« If itis a small fire, attempt to extinguish the fire using the nearest fire extinguisher. (If you are on
duty in a classroom at the time of a fire, follow the instructions below and evacuate the children
first.)

«  Exit the building and proceed to the designated meeting place.

« Call 911 as soon as you have reached the meeting place.

o Provide the center's name and focation: SU CHDV Lab, Jesse N. Stone Building 109
o Describe the location of the fire.

IF THE FIRE ALARM SOUNDS WHILE YOU ARE ON DUTY IN A CLASSROOM:

+  Assist in the evacuation of the children from your classroom.
+  Collect the classroom first aid kit, classroom binder, and attendance clipboard.

31]{Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

. Staff member closest to the outdoor exit is responsible for leading children out that exit and to the
designated meeting place for your classroom.
+  Staff member farthest from the outdoor exit is responsible for ensuring everyone has evacuated the
classroom.
»  The |ast staff member to exit the classroom must turn off all lights and close all doors.
»  Once assembled at the designated meeting place, the Teacher is responsible for using the
classroom attendance clipboard to ensure all children are accounted for.
o Ifthe Lead Teacher is not present, the substitute will assume this responsibility.
«  The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will verify, as soon as possible, that all
children are accounted for.
+ |f unable to return to the building in a timely manner:
o The SU Police Department - (225) 771-2770 will be contacted.
o Children will be guided to Moore Hall Auditorium.
o Teachers will be responsible for contactang parents and |nform|ng them of the srtuatlon

“FIRE DRILLS WILL BE PRACTICED REGULARLY* - - G T
The Drrector or A33tstant Dlrector or Darector Desrgnee wzli mrtrate all dnlls and maintain records of aI] drills.

Emergencv Procedure

©fromyourclassroom. o T m
.. Collect the classroom ﬂrst ald krt classroom blnder and attendance chpboard :
o Staff member closest tothe hanay exitis respon3|ble for Ieading children out that exnt and
to the designated shelter area. =
Lo Every classroom must stay together as a group :
o Staff member farthest from the interior exit is responsrble for ensuring everyone has
evacuated the classroom.
»  Once assembled in the designated shelter area, the Teacher is responsible for using the classroom
attendance sheet to ensure alf children are accounted for.
« Ifthe Lead Teacher is not present, the Substitute Teacher assumes this responsibility.
+  The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will verify, as soon as possible, with
Teachers that alf children are accounted for.
« Al children and staff must remain on the floor in the designated shelter area and wait to receive an
"all clear’ from the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee.
During a tomado/hurricane warning, the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will
be responsible for monitoring weather information by radio and will keep staff members informed of
emergency weather changes.

“*TORNADO/HURRICANE DRILLS WiLL BE PRACTICED REGULARLY*™
The Director or Assistant Director or Director Designee will initiate all drills and maintain records of all drills.

INTRUDER OR DANGEROUS ADULT

32|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

A dangerous adult is considered someone who is displaying inappropriate or threatening behavior, carrying
a weapon, or showing signs of intoxication from either drugs or alcohol. This also includes an individual that
is prohibited by court order from picking up or having contact with a child.

[f there is an intruder or dangerous adult in the center:

+  Staff members in the immediate area will position themselves between the chifdren and
intruder/dangerous adult.

+ A staff member will attempt to have the parentfintruder move to the hallway and close the
classroom door, while a second staff member calls the Director or Assistant Director or Director
Designee to assist with the situation.

IN THE EVENT OF AN INTRUDER OR DANGEROUS ADULT

«  Staff members will be notified by the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee of the
threat,

. :_ALL staff and children rust return to their classrooms; lock all classroom:doors; and sit'on the ﬂoor

- away from doors and windows. ‘Wait for an “All Clear” from the DErector or Assistant Dtrector or-

- Director Designee before continuing with activities.

+-* The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Desngnee ora staff member deSIQnated by the

g ~ Director andfor Ass&stant Director or Director DeSJQnee will contact the SU Police Department -

o (225)7T71-2770 10 notrty thern.of the situation. - i

« The Director and/orAssnstant Director or Director Desngnee will |nstruct the intruder or dangerous

“o adultto leave the premises, masntam[ng wsual contact Wlth the mdnndual until the pohce arrlve or

"'fﬁ untif the mdtvsdua[ Ieaves $ :

IN THE EVENT OF AN INTOXICATED PARENT

The Dtrector and/or ASSIStant D1rect0r or Dtrector De31gnee and Teacher will talk with the
intoxicated parent about alternative arrangements for pick up, while another authorized plck up
person is contacted.

+  If another authorized pick up person cannot be reached, the child must be released to the
intoxicated parent.

»  The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee, or Teacher will inform the parent that
the police wilt be nofified.

+  Call the SU Pglice Department — (225) 771-2770 and inform them of the situation. Provide as much
information as possible, including parent's name, make/model of the car, and license plate number.

BLIZZARD/SEVERE WINTER WEATHER

The Director andfor Assistant Director or Director Designee will monitor the weather and local news
stations throughout the day to determine when it is appropriate to close the center early or cancel care for
the following day.

Teachers are responsible for contacting parents to inform them of the situation. Routine classroom
activities will continue until parents arrive.

LIGHTNING

33| Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Al children must immediately retum indoors when lightning is observed. Children playing under or around a
tree must be immediately removed from the area.

MISSING OR ABDUCTED CHILD

« In the event of a missing child, the Teacher will search for the child in the immediate area,
while another staff member calls the Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee to
help with the search.

o If the child cannot be located in a reasonable amount of time, the Director and/or
Assistant Director or Director Designee will notify the SU Police Department — (225)
771-2770 and the child's parents.

+ In the event of an abducted child, the Teacher must immediately contact the Director and/or

Assistant Director or Director Designee, the SU Police Department, and the child’s parents.

POWER FAILURE

Staff members and children should remain in the classroom and if possible proceed wrth actlvrtres a8’
usual Brmay go to the outdoor playground until power resumes

If power cannot be restored wrthrn a reasonable amount of trme the center wrll close and parents '.
contacted - - o : g

. Teachers or desrgnated staﬁ are responsrble for contactrng parents fo rnform them of the
i closing: and of the need to immediately pick up their child. e
-*}: . Actrvrtres wrtl resume as possrble until parents arnve

Chemlcal Spill - _ _
ENViRONMENTAL OR OUTDOOR CHEMICAL SPILL

If the center receives notrfrcatton from the SU Police Department that there has been a chemical sprtl in the
area, or if staff members observe an unusual odor while outdoors:

+  Staff members and children must immediately retum to their classrooms.

+  All doors and windows must be immediately closed.

+  The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will monitor the situation and
provide information to staff members as it is available. Further action taken will depend on
instructions received from the SU Police Department.

INDOOR CHECMICAL SPILL: (including the mixing of chemicals which creates hazardous fumes)

+  Immediately notify the Director or Assistant Director or Director Designee of the situation then
assist in the evacuation of the children from your classroom. :
Collect the classroom first aid kit, classroom binder, and attendance clipboard.
o Staff member closest to the outdoor exit is responsibie for leading children out that exit
and to the designated meeting place.
o Staff member farthest from the outdoor exit is responsible for ensuring everyone has
evacuated the classroom.
+  The last staff member to exit the classroom must turn off all lights and close all doors.

34fjPage



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Once assembled at the designated meeting place, the Teacher is responsible for using the
classroom attendance clipboard ta ensure all chifdren are accounted for.

o Ifthe Teacheris not present, the Substitute Teacher will assume this respansibility.
The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will verify, as soon as possible,
with Teachers that all children are accounted for.

The Director or Assistant Director or Director Designee will contact the SU Police Department

—~(225) 771-2770 to inform them of the situation. Further action taken will depend on

instructions from the SU Palice Department.

if unable to return to the building in a timely manner:

o The children and staff members will be moved to the Moore Hall Auditorium across the
parking lot.

o Teachers or designated staff will be responsible for contacting parents and informing them
of the situation.

BOMB THREATS

Ifa staff member receives a bomb threat or locates a susprcrous package; the D:rector or Assrstant Dzrector
or Director Destgnee must be rmmedzately notified. DO NOT ATTEMPT TO MOVE A SUSPICIOUS
PACKAGE The Director orAssrstant Drrector or Drrector Des:gnee will contact the SU Police Department
(225) 7712770, : : :

IF YOU ARE ON DUTY IN CLASSROOM

Position yourself between the children and |mpend|ng threat as much as possrbte
Cottect the ciassroom first a1d kat classroom blnder and attendance chpboard

to the desrgnated meetrng place Every classroom must stay together as a group

b ::;_'o Staff member farthest from the outdoor exitis responsible for ensuring everyone has

evacuated the classroom.

Once assembled at the designated meeting place, the Teacher is responsible for using the
classroom attendance clipboard to ensure all children are accounted for.

o If the Teacher is not present, the Substitute Teacher will assume this responsibility.
The Director and/or Assistant Director or Director Designee will verify, as soon as possible,
with Teachers that all children are accounted for.
if unahble to return to the building in a timely manner:

o The SU Police Department - (225) 771-2770 will be contacted.

o Children and staff members will be moved to Moore Hall Auditorium, across the

parking lot.

o Teachers or a designee will be responsible for contacting parents and infarming them

of the situation.

GENERAL EMERGENCY PROCEDURE GUIDELINES

A First Aid kit is located in each classroom. An additional First Aid kit is also available in the
front office. The Director will restock items as needed; however, staff members are respansible
for reporting when additional items are needed.

35|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  Blood bome pathogens kits are available in the office and in each of the haliway bathrooms.

+  Allincidents or accidents (including biting) are reported to the parents, Teacher, Director
and/for Assistant Director or Director Designee using the Incident/Accident Report form. A
completed form must be signed by a parent on the day of the incident. A copy must be given to
the parent and the signed original given to the Assistant Director or Director Designee to be
filed in the child's enroliment folder. In some cases, {i.e., there is a large cut, bruises or a bite
mark visible on the child’s body) staff members are required to call parents before pick up to
inform them of the incident.

+  Parents are discouraged from trying to pick up their child during an emergency. However, if a
parent arrives during such a situation, the child must be released to the parent.

+ In the event of an emergency, it is important to remain calm.

+  As a staff member, your first responsibility is ensuring the safety of the children in your care.

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

The Drrector is responsrble for'

r_j':_ . Emplementlng ECP and rev1ewrng the plan at Ieast annually and updatrng it as needed

~ .+ Assuring that wntten clean up procedures are developed and that an appropriate d;srnfeotant is
o available and used. :

.« Maintaining ongoing controls such as Iabellng brohazard bags and solutions and provrde all
personal protectave equ;pment (PPE), and other needed supp!;es slch as sharps containers
and’ splll kits”. (¢ Sp[l! Kits” refers to a kit made up-of; dtsposabie medical gloves, resuscitation
bags, eye protection or goggles, aprons disinfectant, disposable towels, red/bichazard labeled
bags. Redelohazard bags-are needed only for rtems wh[ch release blood when compressed)

The Assrstant Drrector or Drrector Desrqnee is responsrble for:

Ensurrng Unrversai Precautions tra;mng is available for employees
+  Documentation of completed training
« Making the written ECP available to employees

EMPLOYEE EXPOSURE DETERMINATION
The following is a list of job classifications in which employees will be expected to handle blood or OPIM:

»  Director/Owner

+  Assistant Director or Director Designee

» Teachers (Leads, Assistants and Aides)
Volunteers/Interns

+  Kitchen Manager

METHODS OF IMPLEMENTATION AND CONTROL

«  Universal Precautions procedures must be used by employees when handling blood or OPIM.
Universal Precautions means an approach to infection control in which alf human blood and certain
bodily fluids are treated as if known to be infectious with HIV, hepatitis B, and other bloodborne
pathogens.

3'6|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  Exposure Control Plan (ECP) is available to all employees and volunteers,
«  Work Practice Controls include:
o Accessible handwashing facilities
o No eating drinking, smoking, applying cosmetics or lip balm, and handling contact lenses
when blood or OPIM is present.
o No food or drink shall be kept in areas (such as on countertops) where blood or OPIM is
present
o Al surfaces contaminated with blood will be cleaned with bleach and water solution
o Most items used in cleaning a blood spill (i.e. paper towels) will be placed in the regular
trash unless saturated with blood. Items saturated with blood to the point that blood is
released when compressed shall be placed in a leak-resistant bag labeled with the
biohazard symbol.
o Containers for “sharps.” All needles and syringes will be discarded in container
immediately after use.
I Needles must not be: recapped

e avarlable at-SU CHDV Lab
© o Single-use non-latex gloves _
. o Mouthpreces for resuscitation (CPR). P
vl Gloves shall be used when handlmg blood or OPlM and repiaced 1f torn punctured contamrnated

i removal of gloves _____
+: Unless saturated with blood, gloves may - be placed in the regular frash. Gloves saturated wrth
 blood shall be placed in a leak-resistant bag labeled with the biohazard symbol. '
<+ Trainingin Universal Precautions and Bloodborne Pathogens is required of all employees annually.
“The training must covers at a minimum, the foliowing elements:
o A copy and explanation of the OSHA standard.
Epidemiology and symptoms of bloodbome pathogen
Modes of transmission
Methods to recognize exposure tasks and other activities that may involve exposure to
blood.
Use and limitations of engineering controls, work practices and PPE.
PPE-types, use, location, removal, handling, decontamination, and disposal
PPE-selection and basis
Hepatitis B vaccine (stated to employee that vaccine is free of charge prior to offering
vaccine).
Use of “spill kits” and location of kits with quick access.
Procedures for fimiting exposure to blood or OPIM
o Post-exposure evaluation and follow-up

g 0O O 0 cC O O©

c O

Exposure Control Plan

37| Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Should an exposure incident occur, the Director must be immediately notified and a medical evaluation
must take place immediate. SU CHDV Lab will see that the following efements are performed:

+  Documentation of the route of exposure and how the exposure occurred

+ |dentification of the Source {person’s blood that employee was exposed)

«  QObtain consent and test source individual for HIV and/or Hepatitis B antibody as soon as possible
+ |f source does not give consent, document that consent could not be obtained

SU CHDV Lab will ensure that the medical care provider is given the following information:

« A description of the employee's job duties relevant to the exposure incident
»  Route and circumstances of the exposure

«  If possible, the results of the Source antibody testing

+  Relevant employee medical records, including hepatitis B vaccination status
+  Copy of regulation

The medfcal prowder will be requested fo provide the facrllty with the followmg

_-_"; :5 §f Hepatltls B is indicated and Ef employee has recelved vaccine., 'j-: .' S
- Whether or not the employee has been informed of the results of medical and any medloal
. condition that may requtre further evaluation and treatment :

RECORD KEEPlNG _:j'_i..: . _ . - .
Employee medical records and reoords of exposure w1ll be kept on site for & minimum of 10 years

Tralning records Wlll be malntalned in eaoh employee 5 personnel t' le for a mlnlmum of 3 years. Traln;ng
records must ;nclude date of. tratmng and name of trainer. '

Hand Washlnq Procedure

All adults in SU CHDV Lab olassrooms need to follow ALL the steps 1dentnr ed below to prevent the spread
of disease to children and staff members.

How to Wash Your Hands Most Effectively

+  Use soap and warm (between 60 and 120 degrees F), running water
Rub hands vigorously for at least 20 seconds (sing the “ABC's”).

«  Wash all surfaces, including backs of hands, wrists, under fingemails with fingers pointed to the
sink drain

+ Rinse hands well with the water running

+  Dry hands with a disposable towel

«  Turn off water with the paper towel

When to Wash Your Hands

+  Upon arrival in the classroom

When changing from one group of children to another
+  Before preparing or serving food
+  After eating food

38|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

+  After diapering/toileting a child

. After contact with bodity fluids (vomit, blood, mucus)
+  Before and after administration of medication

+  Before and after sensory play, including water play
+  After coming indoors or returning from a break

+  After handling pets

+  After using the restroom

When to Wash the Children’s Hands

+ Upon arrival in the classroom

+  Before eating, drinking or preparing shacks for others
«  After eating

+  After using the toilet or having their diapers changed
«  After contact with bodily fluids (vomit, blood mucus)
+.- Before and after sensory play, including water play
j_.__f’*Aﬁer returnlng indoors from: the playground S
*. After handhng pets :

If they are too young todoit themselves YOU the teacher must wash the chridren s hands. Older chr!dren
should get into the habat of hand washing fo stop d|sease from spreadsng Remember they will Ieam by
watchngOU ' S

| Diaperiné-'Proced_u3}é.-
PREPARING FOR DIAPERING el

To mrnlmzze contamrnatron outsrde of the diaperrng area, prepare for a draper change before brlngmg the
child to diapering area, for example by having ready: : _

+  Changing table paper {if used) to cover the table from the child’s shoulders to heels {in case it
becomes soiled and must be folded over to give a clean surface during the change)

»  Enough wipes for the diaper change including wiping the bottom and hands after taking the soiled
diaper away from the child's skin)

+  Aclean diaper, plastic bag for soiled clothes, and clean clothes of soiled clothing is anticipated

»  Non-porous gloves if they will be used, and a dab of diaper cream on a disposable piece of paper
or tissue if cream is being used

DIAPERING PROCEDURE

1. Prepare for diapering as indicated above.

2. Place child on diapering table. Remove clothing to access diaper. If soiled, place clothes into
plastic bag.

3. Remove soiled diaper and place into lined, hands-free trash container used only for diaper waste.
(To limit odor, seal in a plastic bag before placing into trash container.)

4. Use wipes to clean child's bottom from front to back.

5. Use a wipe to remove soil from adult’s hands.

39|Page



= L ~No

1.

Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Use another wipe to remove soil from child’'s hands.

Throw soiled wipes into lined, hands-free trash container.

Put on clean diaper and redress child.

Place child at sink and wash hands following the *handwashing procedure.”

. Spray diapering surface with bleach-water solution and wait more than 10 seconds before wiping

with disposable towel or allow to air dry. It should be noted that the recommended practice is to
wait for 2 minutes to allow the solution to kill the germs. However, if there is a delay of at least 10
seconds before the solution is wiped from the surface, this will be considered adequate. The
surface cannot be sprayed and immediately wiped.

Adult washes hands using the “handwashing procedure,” without contaminating any other
surfaces.

ADDITIONAL PRECAUTIONS

The diapering surface must be sanitized after each diaper change with a bleach-water or other

: :';_fapproved sanitizing solution(all surfaces must be to be sanitized ~ e:g:;no quilted pads.or safety -
~ " straps, no containers that are stored on the diapering surface). The bleach-water solution must be-
- allowed to stay on the surface for more than 10 seconds, and ideally 2 minutes, to kill the germs

~ Soitis bestfor staff to spray the surface as the last step of the diapering procedure before washing

+ theirown hands. After the time lapse, the surface can be dried (no additional handwashirig
.+ required at thrs trme) or allowed to air dry (and wiped dry if still damp) before use with another

. child, :
Diapers are drsposed of ina hands-free covered can (usually one that has a step pedal that lifts the
- id) to prevent further contamination of surfaces R

© Toys that are played with or objects that are touched whrle chlldren s diapers are changed must

. be put. aside to be sanitized.

Note Both child's and ‘staff's hands must be washed after the daapenng procedure is completed

Cleaning, Sanitizing and Disinfecting of Equipment

Cleaning, sanitizing and disinfecting are important steps to removing dirt and reducing the spread of germs
in child care settings. Routine cleaning with detergent soap and water removes dirt and grime from
surfaces. Floors, carpets, walls and windows are cleaned. Sanitizing removes dirt or filth and small
amounts of germs. Bedding, bathrooms, kitchen counters, dishes and eating utensils are clean {to remove
dirt) then sanitized. But some child care items and surfaces require the added step of disinfecting after
cleaning to kill the germs on a surface. Diaper changing tables, hand washing sinks, table tops, and some
toys should be cleaned then disinfected.

Using regular household bleach and water solution is an inexpensive, effective and easy way to remove or
kill germs found on surfaces in child care. Bleach and water solution may be used in several ways:

Dipping the object into a sink or pan filled with the bleach and water solution then letting the item
air dry.
Using paper towels soaked in bleach water solution fo wash surfaces, then letting the surface air

dry.
Using spray bottles to thoroughly wet a surface, then allowing the surface to air dry.

40|Page



Southern University Child Development Staff Handbook

Alf containers of bleach/water solution should be clearly labeled with the contents of the container and the
date. Example: Bleach and Water Solution, March 3, 2010. Remember to keep all containers of cleaning
and disinfecting products out of the reach of children.

A solution of bleach and water loses its strength and is weakened by heat and sunlight. A fresh bleach and
water solution must be mixed every day. Unused bleach and water solution should be poured down a drain
at the end of the day. Do not discard bleach water solution where other cleaners or chemicals are used. Do
not mix household bleach with other household chemicals such as toilet bowl cleaner, rust removers, acids
or products containing ammonia. Mixing these chemicals with bleach will produce toxic and hazardous
gases.

SANITIZING

When using bleach and water for sanitizing eating utensils or toys that are mouthed, a weaker bleach and
water solution may be used.

*. . 1'teaspoon bleach to 1 quart of cool tap water L :
v Dishes; eating utensils-and toys should be subme_r_g_ed in the bleach and water soiutron for at [east '

-~ Tminutethen aiiowed o air dry Food preparatron and food serwce items should not be towel
- dried. : : :

DISINFECT!NG

Use a stronger bteach and water soEutron on diaper. changrng tables hand washrng slnks toilets, and other
surfaces that need drsrnfectrng Use the followrng recrpe to mix bleach and water for dlsrnfectrng

; :': - Yacup household bleach in 1 gaEEon of coal water OR
- 1 tablespoon bleach to 1 quart of cool water
A!iow the surface to remarn wet for 2 mrnutes

41fPage



Keisha Dandridge”Puositively Impacting
Early Childhood Education through Research,
One Family at a Time"

20013-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK




2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Table of Contents
Beneral Information
SU CHOV LAB Welcome Letter pa.2
SU CHOY LAB Information pa. 3
Louisiana Department of Education pg. 4
Emergency Preparedness Plan po. 5
Scheduled Days and Hours of Operation po. B
Notice of Prohibition of Bullying, Orug, Alcohal, Tobaceo, and Frearms po.7
Mission. Philasaphy. Our Child Development Program pg. 8
Child Development Staff. Staff Demographics, Communication with Staff po. g
Classroom-Bahavior Management Plan, The Curriculum, Whole Group po.l0
Instruction, Free Choice Learning Centers
Fre Choice Learning Centers, Student Grass Mator Activity. Student Music pg. Il
Movement Activity Typical Daily Schedule, Student Absences/Late Arrivals
Parent Conferences and Meetings, Emergency Preparedness Plans, Daily Meals pg. 12
Daily Meals and Snack Benefits, CACFP Frogram
CACFP Program (cantinued), Student Backpack and Cliphoards, SU CHOY LAB pg. 13
Health Iniative, lliness Guidelines
liness Guidelines (continued), Unusual Circumstances, Parent Commitees, pg. 1§
SU CHOV LAB Program Visitors
Puolicies and Procedures
Admission. Non-Discrimination. Abuse and Neglect. Computer po. [0
Buidance/ Discipline, Hectronic po. B
Disclosure of Information po. 17
Complaint po. |8
Parental Involvement pg. 14
Behavior Management pg. 20
Hand Washing po. 21
Biting pa. 23
Programs, Movies, and Video Bames po. 24
Infection Contral po. 29
Drug-Free Warkplace po. 27
Physical Activities Procedure pa. 28
Sleep/Mest Procedurs po. 30

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Dear SU Child Development Laboratory Families,

Welcome to the Southern University Child Development Laboratory. We are happy that you have
chosen our program for your child's preschool enrichment. We look forward to providing a year filled with
exciting and rewarding experiences to all our preschool friends,

We hope the information provided in this resources handbook will help you to gain an
understanding and appreciation for your child's preschool experience. The aim of preschool is to provide
a basic foundation for your child's education and to make each child's first experience with school a
successful and happy one.

As teachers and parents we must remember. and keep in mind, that a positive self-image is the
main ingredient to a child's success. It is our job as parents and teachers to make this a priority.

As we look forward to the next academic year. we are reminded of these words, "Knowledge
enters the mind gradually, almost unconsciously. It is the teacher's job to plant it like a seed, tend to it
with encouragement and love, and nurture it while it grows and blooms”. We believe the teachers,
specialists, and support staff in our program provide such an atmosphere for all our students to
successfully grow and bloom,

Enjoy your every moment of your year with us! We know that we will enjoy the year getting to
know all of our childrens and families as we conguer new milestones and create beautiful lasting
memaries.

Academically Yours,

Soathers University Chitd Development Laboratory Famity

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



SII CHDV LAB mrnnlﬂnﬂll“

Southern University Child Development Laboratory
Serving Children Six weeks ta Four Years of Age

SU CHDV LAB
Hours of Operation: B:30am - 3:30pm

Jesse N. Stone Building 190

Baton Rouge, Lovisiana 70813
New Number Being Assigned

Email: suchdvlab@subr edu

Keisha Y. Ceasar, Director
Office: (225) 771- 2180 (SU CHOV LAB)
Office: (225) TN-3494 (Pinkie E. Thrift Hall)

Email: keisha dandridgeEsubr.edu

Dr. Kenyetta Nelson-Smith, Executive Director
Office: (225) TT1-5598 (Pinkie E. Thrift Hall)

Email: kenyetta nelsonsubr.edu

Erica Brown, Administrative Assistant
[ffice: New Number Being Assigned

Email: erica brown@subr.edu

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



IMPORTANT inFORMATION

Louisiana Department of Education

Division of Childcare Licensing
1201 North Third Street
Baton Rouge, LA 70802-5243

Toll-Free 1.877.453.2721

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS

SU CHDV LAB PHYSICAL ADDRESS
Southern University and A & M College
Jesse N. Stone Building 190
Baton Rouge, LA 70813
225-775-6025

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A & M COLLEGE INFORMATION NUMBER
e  Campus Dperator 225- T71-4500
COLLEGE OF FAMILY AND CONSUMER SCIENCES DEPARTMENT OF CHILD DEVELDPMENT AND FAMILY LIFE
o [Deirdra Ricard (Administrative Assistant) 225-771-4660 (College of FESC)
SU CHDV LAB DIRECTOR/ INSTRUCTOR
o Keisha Dandridge Ceasar~ 318-229-2011 ( Mobile) 225-771-2081 (Laboratary ffice) 225-T71-3434 (Pinkie Thrift Office)
s SUCHOV LAB DIRECTOR DESIGNEE
»  Mexis Perkins -225-385-2730 (Mabile)
FIRE DEPARTMENT
»  [City of Baton Rouge Fire Station |4~ 4121 Harding Boulevard Baton Rouge. LA 70807~ 225-383-4660
»  [ity of Baton Rouge Fire Station (6~ 1200 Rosenwald Road Baton Rouge, LA 70807~ 225-383-05564
o Brownsfield Fira Department~ 11420 Plank Road. Baton Rouge, LA T081-225-778-0344
POLICE DEPARTMENT
o  William L. Pass Station (SUBR) ~Farm Raad, Batan Rouge, LA T0B07~ 225-T71-2770
e  Baton Rouge Police Department~B227 Scenic Hwy. Baton Rouge, 70807 225-383-2000
o  Haton Rouge Police Department~4443 Plank Road, Baton Rouge, 70807~ 225-383-3866
HOSPITALS
e  Lane Memorial Hospital~ B300 Main Street, Zachary, LA 70731~ 225-654-4000
o  [Our Lady of the Lake Medical Center~5000 Hennessy Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70808~  225-TB3-Baka
o  [ur Lady of the Lake Children's Hospital~5000 Hennessy Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA T0808-225-7T65-6365
POISON CONTROL
e  American Association of Poisan Control Centers ~ Baton Rouge. LA 7T0801~800-222-1222
CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES
e Lnuisiana Department of Children and Family Services ~ B27 N. 4 Street. Baton Rouge. LA 70802~ BBB-524-357

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

The Southern University Child Development Laboratory will operate according to the following schedule:

HOURS OF OPERATION

Monday through Friday - 7:30a.m. - 3:30 p.m. (Regular Operation Hours)

Monday through Friday- B:30 a.m. -5:30 p.m. (Before and After Care Operation Hours)

2019-2020 ACADEMIC CALENDAR AT A GLANCE

The S CHDV LAB will be closed for students on the below listed days.

July Independence Day (7/4/2013) ;
Summer Closure-Building Maintenance (7/28-31/15)
August School Closure- Professional Development ( 8/1-2/18 ; 8/5-9/19)
September Labor Day (8/2/18)
October Fall Holiday (10/3-4/13)
November Thanksgiving Holiday ( 11/27/18-11/28/18)
December Winter Holiday ( 12/20-31/13)
January New Year Haliday (1/1-3/20) : Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (1/20/20)
February Mardi Gras Holiday (2/24-25/20)
March NONE
April Easter Holiday (4/6-10/20) (inclusive of Good Friday 4/10/20)
May Memorial Day (5/25/20)
June NONE
O

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

NOTICE OF PROHIBITION OF BULLYING, DRUG,
ALCOHOL, TOBACCO AND FIREARMS

Be advised that the Southern University Child Development Laboratory program, its
administration and staff which are located in this building, in accordance with the Southern
University and Agriculture and Mechanical College on the Baton Rouge Campus fully comply
with the following and stand that we are without any reservations a

4 . , and i
ALL violators will face severe Federal, State, and Local criminal penalties.

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Mission
The mission of the Child Development Laboratory will offer a full day year-round program fr infants, toddlers. and
preschoolers. The Laboratory's early childhood education model will provide observartions and participatory experiences
for SUBR students preparing to be early childhood teachers, administratars, childcare owners/directors, and family
specialist. It will also serve as a early childhood research site for our college and university.

Philosaphy
Our philosophy is based on the belief that children learn best in an early childhood program that provides developmentally
appropriate educational experiences in an integrated setting. Dur early childhood program is designed to provide a
stimulating learning environment that supports the social, emotional, cognitive and physical development of every child. In
this engaging environment, children learn through appropriate play experiences that encourage active participation in
learning. Teachers quide. support, and when needed, directly teach our children developmentally appropriate play and social
skills.

Our aim is to build a community of learners by providing children with enriching experiences to develop self-confidence,
independence and strang cognitive and social skills. We respect the dignity. worth and individuality of each child and are
committed to helping children achieve their full potential.

Our goal is to help children grow up confident in their own identity and respectful of other people. The Southern University
Child Development Labaratory recognizes the significant relationship among teachers, students, parents, and families and
encourages continuous collaboration in a climate of mutual respect, cooperation and shared responsibility.

Our Early Childhood Program

The Southern University Child Davelopment Labaratory offers integrated language-based early childhood classrooms, serving
infants to 4 year olds. An integrated preschool includes typically developing children as well as children with disabilities.
These classrooms offer children the opportunity to work and play with age-appropriate peers as well as children with
developmental challenges. Children with disabilities excel in some areas, affording all children the opportunity to be models
in some realm. As children work together in activities with their peers. they discover their similarities and develop a better
understanding of their differences. Flexible, but consistent, structure and routines are offered. including activities designed
to promote language/listening skills, gross and fine motar development, and opportunities for dramatic play. Music. sensory
activities, and a wide variety of developmentally appropriate materials and activities are employed, all of which support a
strong foundation for learning. Weather permitting: outside play is a daily event.

Early Childhood Staff

Each Lab classroom is staffed with a degreed teachers specializing in Child Development. Additonally, an assigned Child
Development Practicum student will assist our lead teacher throughout each academic semester. Additional staff members
include Child Development Research Assistance. Speech/language Pathologists, a School Guidance Counselor, and &
Pediatric Nurse.

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

STAFF DEMOGRAPHICS
STAFF TITLE EDUCATION LEVEL
Kenyetta Nelson Smith Executive Director PhD
Keisha Dandridge Ceasar Director MAT Early Childhood Education

Alexis Perkins Infant Teacher Director Designes Bachelor
Child Development and Family Life

Deminigue Singleton Teacher Bachelor
I-2 years old Child Development and Family Life

Diona Zachary Teacher Bachelor
2-3 iar old Child Development and FHmiFI Life

Communication with Staff

While staff welcame and value the oppartunity to meet and talk with parents, it is difficult for the staff to speak with parents
when class is beginning or ending or while it is in session. Therefore, parents are encouraged to communicate through e-
mail or your child's class Remind App(please see teacher's welcome letter). Communication about your child's progress can
be discussed during a planned meeting with the teacher and or the director. The Child Development team is available discuss
a child's progress during a time that is convenient for the family when necessary. Teachers will communicate classroom
activities and events through weekly newsletters, daily schedules, and information placed on child's individual clipboard.
Please check your child's backpack and cliphoard on a daily basis to ensure you are always up to date. Our team will make
every effort to use best practices to be BREEN, therefore, all notices will be sent home at least once and repeat notices will
be sent via the Remind App. As we continue to grow these notices and other information will be posted on our SU CHOV LAB
webpage. Instagram, Facebook, and Twitter accounts as well. We will keep you posted as our social media outreach developes.

Classroom-Behavior Management Plan

The goal of discipline is to assist and quide children in the development of self-control. Teachers will discipline in a consistent
way, based on an understanding of varying developmental levels. Simple and understandable rules will be established so that
expectations and limitations will be clearly defined. Discipline will be constructive in nature, including such methods as
diversion, separating the child from the situation, encouragement with affirmations and reinforcements for appropriate
behavior and efforts.

The Curriculum

Based on the belief that children learn through play, active manipulation of their environment. life experience and
communicating with peers and adults, the curriculum is designed to facilitate children's involvement in their own learning.
[ur program utilizes, "The Creative Curriculum for infant-PreK4, to make certain that our students engage in the highest
|evel of teacher-child interaction through their curriculum experiences. The program balances active and quiet play. Children
work both alone and in small groups where teachers facilitate the children's interactions with each other and their
environment, Teachers observe each child's activities in order to tailor and expand curriculum to meet individual needs and
interests. Teachers encourage parents to maintain close communication with staff, and werk closely with parents to develop
strategies for dealing with specific issues.

(o)) Whale Group Instruction

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Whale group time, or circle time as it is referred to in many preschool settings, allows the teacher ta connect with all of the
young learners at once and creates an opportunity for children to support and accept one another. Whale Group Instruction
alsa helps to reinforce a sense of classroom community, respect for others, listening and language skills, turn taking, self-
esteem and so much more. Children learn to participate in a group and how to communicate their ideas, thoughts and feelings.
Children also learn to respect one another's ideas and feelings. The ability to communicate is one of the maost important and
essential life skills that a child can acquire. It takes time, patience, and experience to strengthen a child's ahility to

communicate.
Free Choice Learning Centers

Periodically new Free Choice learning centers are introduced. Each center is usually directly related to the present
curriculum theme and/or specific skill that the children are trying to master. With each new theme, we try to integrate all
areas of the curriculum, language arts. math. art, science and social studies. Children have a chance to work independently
at their own pace, as well as cooperatively with others. Free Choice Learning Center time also allows the teachers ta move
around freely to observe and work with the children individually, as well as in small groups. Each center is designed with the
student's various developmental levels in mind. All children develop along the same continuum, but not all children develop at
the same pace. This is taken into careful consideration when planning each Free Choice Leaning center.

Student Outdoor Activity

Outdoor activity is an essential part of a child's development and learning experience. Physical activities that include running
climbing, skipping, and balancing enhances a child's large motor development. Expressing newly acquired physical ability and
control heightens self-esteem. utdaor activity is also beneficial in building a child's social skills. not to mention that this age
group requires so called "down time” or should we say "some time to run"! In the event of inclement weather, our Lab has
designated an indoar play area to make certain that these experiences happen daily without interruptions to our daily routine.

Student Music/Movement Activity

Children are also given the oppartunity to move within the classroom on a daily basis. Activities are based on the child's
creativity as well as specific movements that help the children focus their attention better. It is important to have specific
mator activities that stimulate certain areas of the brain for attention and memary. Music is incorporated daily to facilitate
language development, movement, enhance memory, sequencing and for general pleasure. Our experience suggests that
maost children truly enjoy and learn through music activities.

Typical Daily Schedule

Daily activities include a variety of active and quiet individual and group projects. A typical day may consist of the follawing:
morning meeting, free play, art projects, cooking, creative expression, sand and water play, blocks, books, games, puzzles,
science exploration and computers. Daily Schedules are posted in each of our classrooms. Schedules may vary according
to age level . breakfast/lunch, and indoor/outdoor playtime. Arrival and dismissal times vary per family in accordance with

before care schedules.

Student Absences/Late Arrivals

If a child is going to be absent, please call, email. or text using the REMIND App prior ta the day of absence if possible. If the

absence is determined the day of school please contact us using the same procedures. If your child is going to be late, he or

she should check in at the front desk before going to class. If a student has to leave school early for some reason, please

send in & note to the teacher/front desk alerting them of the time of pickup, who will be picking him/her up. and the purpose
© for early dismissal. The child will be accompanied ta the frant office at the appointed time and should be met there promptly
= by the person identified in the handwritten note or email.

—— ]

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Parent Conferences and Meetings

Parent conferences and progress reparts are offerad twice a year. Progress notes will be sent home often to ensure that
the teacher and family are on one accord with the student’s academic progress. It is best to talk openly when children are
not present. Please arrange for a babysitter for conferences and meetings. If you are unable to secure a babysitter please
infarm us so that we make special accomodations to ensure that the parent and teacher are able to have their conference
or meeting interruption free,

Emergency Preparedness Plans

Please nate that during inclement weather, if you want to pick up your child early, you are encouraged to do so. Parents must
sign their child out and they may not go directly to the classroom. A student information form will be sent home in early
September, and should be filled out carefully by all parents and caregivers. It is very important for parents to keep the school
informed of any changes to phone numbers, work. home. cell phones, emergency contacts, address, pick up/drop off
schedules, etc. During an emergency situation, time is crucial so current data is essential to make sure your child arrives
home safely and or parents/guardians are renunited successfully.

Daily Meals and Snack Benefits

We pravide healthy and nutritious meals and snacks ta the children we serve. We follow the USDA recommended meal patterns
and choose to use some whole grains, fresh and frozen produce, and low-sodium items. Therefore limiting the amount of
processed items on our menus. We provide breakfast. lunch and an afternoon snack. Daily breakfast and lunch are served
family meal style.

Our program will proudly participate in the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFR). It is critical that parents inform the
administrative and classroom staff of any allergies or other medical conditions that restrict your child's diet. Birthday
celebrations are encouraged and guidelines will be provided during orientation. Snack time is an opportunity for children to
sit and relax and enjoy a healthy snack. Children engage in small group discussions during these times. Children often discuss
various activities that occur both in and outside of school. This is an opportunity for children to build language skills through
the communication of thoughts and feelings, practice social skills and reinforce table manners.

Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFF)

The Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) features a nutrition program that meets the nutritional needs and feeding
requirements of each child, including those with special dietary needs and disabilities (with proper medical documentation).
The pragram serves a variety of foods, considers culture and ethnic preferences, and broadens the child's food experience.
Foods served are high in nutrients, low in fat, sugar, and salt, and conform to the serving sizes and requirements of the
United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) and CACFP meal patterns. The CACFP provides meals for children enralled
in the Souther University Child Development Laboratory. Infants are fed "on demand” and at appropriate intervals.
Preschool/toddler children will receive meals according ta their class schedule. In accordance with Federal law and LS.
Department of Agriculture palicy, this institution is prohibited from discriminating on basis of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, or disability. To file a complaint of discrimination write: USDA Directar of the Office of Civil Rights, Room 326-W
Whitten Building, 14th and Independence Avenue SW, Washington, OC Z0250-3410, or call (202) 720-5364 (voice
and TOD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

Student Backpack

Your child should have a backpack to transport books, notices, art projects and any additional items from the teacher or
w={ school. The backpack should be user friendly and the appropriate size in accordance with your child's age group. The backpack

i

— s

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

should alsa be appropriate for the child to learn to manage independently. Please check your child's backpack daily since we
will be communicating with you through written notices.

SU CHOV LAB Health Initiaitive

The major goal of our Lab health initiative is to protect and promote the health of children within the early childhood
environment. SU CHOV LAR's health records provide a confidential record of each child's health status. The information that
we gather about your child's health status enables us to identify children with special health care needs and to develop a
health care plan that anticipates possible emergency situations.
The following information is required prior to starting our program:

e A physical examination within the past year

o A dental examination within the past year

e Up to date immunization Record

o Sl CHDV LAB Health assessment form

o Student Lead level (Prek4 Students ONLY)
In addition to the above listed documents, the health recard will also include each child's height and weight assessment taken
twice during each academic school year.

lliness Guidelines

Here are some guidelines that might be helpful in keeping your child as healthy as possible. As you know, infants. toddlers.
and preschoolers do not have the same kinds of self-care skills for & cold or infection as school-age children. Alsa, young
children can be in very close contact with each other while they play. This information will assist you in making decisions
about when to send your child to school if they are not feeling well.
o A Fresh Cold - Continuous nasal discharge. cough, watery eyes which has developed within the past 24-48 hours
is considered contagious
o Fever - Must be fever free for 24 hours before returning to school
o Vomiting/Diarrhea - Keep at home for 24 hours after symptoms have resolved and the child can keep food and
fluids down
o Strep Throat - Must wait 24 hours after antibiotics have begun
Conjunctivitis - If conjunctivitis is diagnosed, your child will be prescribed eye cintment and should not return to
school for 24 hours
o Head Lice - Until treated and has been checked by the appropriate medical professional and accompanied with the
necessary documentation to return to the Lab.
In addition, if your child is enly mildly ill but is irritable and cannot fully participate in the day's program, they should remain
at home. If a child appears ill at school, a staff member will call you to come pick up your child as soon as possible. We can't
prevent all illness, but if we work together we can minimize the spread of germs. It is very important to keep the classroom
teacher aware and up to date on any medical conditions, and/or medications your child is taking. Please contact us at your
convenience with any guestions or concerns regarding your child's health at during their school day.

Unusual Circumstances

If there are any unusual circumstances at home, such as illness or death, parents’ vacations, or changes in childcare
arrangements (such as a new sibling, babysitter, or spouse), please notify the teachers so that they can help your child adjust

more easily to the situation.
—

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Parent Committees

The Southern University Child Development Laborator Team recognizes the important role of parents/guardians in the
learning process. We welcome and encourage you to take an active role in your child's program. We also hope that you will
enjoy new friendships with other families as a result of your child's experience. All parents and guardians of enrolled students
are automatically a member of part of our Parent Committee, which meets bi-manthly at our site or an agreed upon site.
Parent officers will be elected to serve in parent committee leadership positions.

SU CHOV LAB Program Visitors

Far safety purposes, any non-school personnel - including parents - must report to the office upon arrival at our Lab. If you
have a scheduled appointment with a staff member and or voluntearing in the Lab. you are required to sign in and get a
nametag or a visitor's badge. If you have an important message or something to deliver to your child during the school day,
please leave it with our administrative assistant or authorized personnel, who will make sure that the child receives the
delivery in a timely manner. This policy is meant to keep disruptions to children's learning ta @ minimum as wel as for their
safety and ours.

Policies & Procedures
id Admissions Policy

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

This written policy shall be posted

Ta be eligible for SUI Child Development Laboratory, the family must include an eligible infant or toddler from birth to the age
of four. The SU Child Development Laboratory will maintain waiting lists that rank children according to the program's
selection criteria to assure that those eligible enter the program as vacancies occur (see parent handbook). Recruitment
of eligible infants, toddlers. and pregnant women, including children with disabilities, will continue throughout the year.

Ta apply, families may contact the SU Child Development Laboratory and ask to speak with the Director or
Administrative Assistant.

Non- Discrimination Policy

This written palicy shall be posted

Discrimination by child care providers on the basis of race, color, creed, sex, national origin, handicapping condition,
ancestry. or whether the child is being breast-fed is prohibited.

Abuse and Neglect

This written policy shall be posted

As mandated reporters, ALL center staff shall report any suspected abuse and/or neglect of a child in accordance with R.5.
14:403 to the local child care protection agency. Call the number below to report suspected abuse and/or neglect.

-B55-4LA-KIDS (B55-452-5437)

Computer Paolicy
This written policy shall be posted

Computer policy requires computers that allow internet access by children to be equipped with monitoring or filtering
software that limits access by children to inappropriate websites, e-mail, and instant messaging;

Our program doesn't participate with our children engaging in use of computers or technology under the age of three (3)
years old at this time.

Guidance/Discipline Philosophy

This written policy shall be posted

It is our belief that physical punishment is both harmful and ineffective in working with young children, Dur first priority must
always he the safety and well-being of the children and staff. Please ask your Administrative Assistant or your child's
o teacher for Resources on providing guidance to your child.

v Our policy:

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

o Nochild shall be subject to physical or corporal punishment, verbal abuse or threats. Cruel, severe, unusual or
unnecessary punishment shall not be inflicted upon children. Derogatory remarks will not be made about family
members' children or about the children themselves.

o Nochild or group of children will be allowed to discipline another child.

No child will be deprived of a meal or any part of meals for disciplinary reasons.

Reports of any mistreatment of children coming to the attention of the center, the SU CHOV LAB, Department of
Health and Hospitals, or the Department of Children and Family Services, will be investigated.

Electronic Policy

This written policy shall be posted

Electronic devices policy that provides that all activities involving electronic devices, including but not limited to
television, movies, games, videos, computers and hand held electronic devices, shall adhere to the following
limitations:

o electronic device activities for children under age two are prohibited; and

o time allowed for electronic device activities for children ages two and above shall not exceed one (1) hour per day:

Disclosure of Information Policy

This written policy shall be posted

(Personally identifiable information (PIl) means any information that could identify a specific individual, including but not
limited to a child’s name, name of a child's family member, street address of the child, social security number, or other
information that is linked or linkable to the child)

Disclosure with parental consent procedures are implemented to protect PIl must require following:
e The program to obtain a parent’s written consent before the program may disclose such Pll from child records.

e The procedures to protect Pll must require the program to ensure the parent's written consent specifies what
child records may be disclosed, explains why the records will be disclosed, and identifies the party or class of
parties to whom the records may be disclosed.

The written consent must be signed and dated, “Signed and dated written consent” under this part may include a record
and signature in electronic form that:

o |dentifies and authenticates a particular person as the source of the electranic consent: and, indicates such
person's approval of the information.

e The pragram must explain to the parent that the granting of consent is voluntary on the part of the parent and may
be revoked at any time. If a parent revokes consent, that revocation is not retroactive and therefore it does not
apply to an action that occurred before the cansent was revoked.

. Complaint Policy

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

This written policy shall be posted

These are the steps to follow, if you have a concern or problem regarding your child's services in the Southern
University Child Development Laboratary:

| Discuss the concern or problem with your child's teacher. If the concern or problem is not resolved at this level,
or the concern is with the teacher, then

2. Discuss the concern or problem with the SU CHOV LAB Director at (225) 771-2180 or via email at
keisha dandridge@subr edu, to help resolve your concern or problem. Should this step not provide a satisfactory
resolution, then

3. Contact the Program Leader at (225) 771-5538 or via email kenyetta nelsonEsubr.edu in the College of
Agriculture, Family and Consumer Sciences, the Department of Child Development.

These are the steps to follow, if @ member of the community has a concern or problem regarding SU CHOV LAB please
follow the procedures listed below:

o Discuss the concern or problem with the SU CHOV LAB Director. If the concern or problem is not resolved at this
level, then;

e Discuss the concern or problem with the Pragram Leader If the concern or problem is not resolved, then;

e [Contact would be made with the Or. Cheryl Atkinson, Chair of Family and Consumer Sciences at (223) 771
3168/4291 or via email at cheryl atkinsonEsubr.edu in the College of Agriculture. Family and Consumer
Sciences, the Department of Human Nutrition and Food.

Parental Involvement Policy

This written policy shall be posted

SU Child Development Laboratory believes that a child's parents are not only the child's first teachers, but they also are the
most important teacher that the child will have. The SU Child Development Laboratory administration and staff, the parents.
and the community have the responsibility of nurturing and enhancing each child's intellectual abilities and developmental
skills. We believe that parents and staff working together as a TEAM provides the best experiences for your child's ongoing
development. There are several ways for parents/guardians to get involved in the SU Child Development Laboratary:

e Child Development Meetings-Child development meetings with parents of enrolled children are scheduled on an
annual basis. The meetings allow staff and parent's time to review the child's progress, discuss any concerns,
and set realistic development goals.

o [pen Door Policy-Parents are welcome to visit the Lab at any time of day, join in room activities or attend
special events.

¢ Information Sharing-We encourage daily contact with the classroom teachers so that any information regarding
your child's day can be shared.

o Family Services-The SU Child Development Laboratary provides family support services such as manthly family
socials (e.g. muffins with moms, donuts with dads, grandparent day and other evening activities) and parent
waorkshops and in-service training on a variety of topics (e.g. financial budgeting/planning, communicable
diseases and low-cost family meals).

1

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Behavior Management Palicy

This written policy shall be posted

(ur palicy concerning behavior management ~ sometimes referred to as discipline ~ is based on the individual need of the
child, the ability of each child to understand what he/she is doing and the consequences of their actions.A child is never made
to feel that the outcome of an act will result in physical or verbal abuse. Children are not told to "sit out" and “time out” is
not used. Positive reinforcement is always encouraged and children are told what they are daing well.

It is the responsibility of the teacher in charge to ascertain what has taken place as clearly as possible. If an altercation
between children has occurred. each child is spoken to with reason and with respect. Each child is then given the
responsibility of approaching the other child in a friendly manner, with adult supervision, in arder for the children ta
participate in the resolution to the misunderstanding. This is done in direct relation to the verbal ability of the child but can
be accomplished even when the child is not yet talking.

When inappropriate behavior oecurs with the adult being the recipient. the child will be approached either with a reasonable
verbal response or with the technique of redirection. Removal from an activity for a short period of time is used only if it has
been ascertained that other responses have failed or if a child is at risk.

There is less likelihood of discipline problems when positive respanses and remarks are the norm throughout the day. If 2
positive base is established in an atmosphere of respect and understanding, inappropriate or negative behavior then becomes
the exception when any staff member feels that he/she is unable to manage a situation with a child in an effective manner,
he or she will direct the child to ancther staff member and take a break. Staff members assist one another in creating a
positive, relaxed atmosphere.

THE FOLLOWING ARE PROHIBITED:

Corporal punishment, including spanking;

Verbal or physical abuse, humiliation, neglect, or abusive treatment;

Speaking to a child in a manner or tone that is disrespectful, sareastic, demeaning or threatening;
Withholding food, drink or sleep;

Force feeding children;

Disciplining a child for soiling, wetting, or not using the toilet; forcing a child to remain in soiled clothing
or forcing the child to remain on the toilet, or using any other unusual or excessive practices for
toileting.

Hand Washing Paolicy

This written paolicy shall be posted

Proper and frequent hand washing is the easiest and most effective way to prevent the spread of illness and
disease in child care. Louisiana state licensing regulations require that child care providers and the children in
their care wash their hands before and after certain duties and activities.

M~
v Child Care Staff Must Wash Hands...

—

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Before and after the following tasks:

e Preparing meals and snacks

e [ating

o Feeding infants and children

« Bathing infants and children o Wiping noses

o [iapering and assisting children with toileting
After completing the following tasks:

o Taileting

o Handling badily fluids

o [oughing into hands

o Handling pets
Children Must Wash Hands...

Before and after the following tasks:

e Assisting with meal and snack preparation
o Eating
After following tasks:

Tunileting or a diaper change
Handling bodily fluids
Coughing into hands
Handling pets
e Returning from outdoor or inclement weather play
When is Hand Washing Recommended?

Must laws or policies covers the hand washing basics, but there are numerous other instances when hand washing is recommended
for health and safety purposes. It is recommended that staff and children wash hands:

o fefore and after touching contaminated surfaces. A surface is contaminated if there is reason to believe that
the surface has been or could be exposed to contaminants. This would include washing hands after taking
the trash out.
After coming in from the outdoors
Upon arrival at the SU CHOV LAB and befare leaving,
After sensory play invalving sand, water, etc.
e ltis also recommended that staff wash hands before or after administering medication,
The Proper Procedure

The “Proper” procedure is the hand washing process that has been proven most effective at eliminating germs. Staff and children
must wash hands using the proper procedure.

Wet hands under running water;

Use plenty of soap to make a good lather;

Keep fingers pointed toward the drain;

Scrub fronts and backs of hands:

Remember to wash wrists, scrub around fingernails and rings;

o0
L |

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

o Scrub between 20-30 seconds:
o [inse well with running water:
o  [ry hands with a clean disposable towel or wall mounted drying device

Using the proper procedure and washing hands frequently can prevent the spread of the comman cold, flu, and food borne
illness as well as many other germs. Children mimic behavior, so staff who wash their hands using the proper procedure at
the appropriate times are setting a great example for the children in their care.

Biting Palicy

This written policy shall be posted

Biting is unfortunately not an unexpected behavior for toddlers. Some children and many toddlers communicate through this behavior,
However, biting can be harmful to other children and to staff. This biting policy has been developed with both of these ideas in mind. As
a Child Development Laboratory. we understand that biting, unfortunately, is & part of an early childhood setting. Dur goal s to help
identify what is causing the biting and resolve these issues. If the issue cannot be resolved, this policy serves to protect the children
that are bitten. If a biting incident occurs. LOOE state licensing regulations require that the parent of the child biting and the parent of
the child who was bitten be contacted. immediately. Names of the children are not shared with either parent.

When Biting Does Occur:

Our staff strongly disapproves of biting. The staff's job is to keep the children safe and help a child that bites learn different, more
apprapriate behavior. We do not use technigues to alarm, hurt, or frighten children such as biting back or washing a child's mouth out
with soap.

For the child that was bitten:

«  First aid is given to the bite. It is cleaned with soap and water. If the skin is broken, the bite is covered with a bandage.
o  Parents are notified.
o  The “Incident/Injury/Accident/lliness/Behavior Report” is filled out documenting the incident.

For the child that bit:

e The teacher will firmly tell the child “NO! WE DO NOT BITE!"
o  The child will be placed in time out for no longer than the child's age (one year old, one minute).
o  The parents are notified.
o  The "Parent Contact Form” is filled out documenting the incident.
When Biting Continues:

o  The child will be shadowed ta help prevent any biting incidents.
o  The child will be observed by the classroom staff to determine what is causing the child to bite (teething,
communication, frustration, etc.) The administrative staff may also observe the child if the classroom staff is unable to

determine the cause.
s The child will be given positive attention and approval for positive behavior.
When biting becomes excessive:

e  |f achild inflicts 3 bites in a one week period (5 weekdays) in which the skin of another child or staff member is broken

(@) or bruised or the bite leaves a significant mark, a conference will be held with the parents to discuss the child's
Lo | behavior and how the behavior may be modified.
—— |

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

o | the child again inflicts 3 bites in a ane week periad (3 weekdays) in which the skin of another child or staff member
is broken or bruised or the bite leaves a significant mark, the child will be suspended for 2 business days.

e Ifachild once again inflicts 2 bites in a one week period (3 weekdays) in which the skin of another child or staff
member is broken or bruised or the bite leaves a significant mark the parents will be asked to make other day care
arrangements,

If a child. who has been through steps 1 and/or Z goes 3 weeks (15 business days) without biting, we will go back to step one if the
child bites again. If a child bites twice in a 4 hour period, the child will be required to be picked up from day care for the remainder of
the day. This will not count towards the 2 day suspension.

Programs, Movies, and Video Games Policy

This written policy shall be posted

Eecausetwe care ahout the health and well-being of the children in our care. we follow best practice recommendations on
screen time:

e Children under Z years old shall have no screen time
e [hildren age 2 years older and over shall watch less than | hour per week at child care.
o Screen time includes the use of television, videos, computers, and viden games during care.

Southern University Child Development Laboratory understands that TV and nther screen time can get in the way
of playtime, physical activity, and interactions with others, which all contribute to learning and healthy
physical/social development.

Therefore, we will restrict screen time by adhering to the following guidelines:

e We allow a maximum of | hour per week of educational, age appropriate screen time.
e We allow zero screen time for children under the age of two years old.

e We do not allow television or movies to be left on as background noise.

¢ We do not have television or movies playing during mealtimes.

e We do not offer screen time as a reward.

Infection Contral Policy
This written policy shall be posted

Palicy Statement: It is the priority of Southern University Child Development Laboratory to protect all children attending our
facility and all persons working in our service from the transmission of infections. The health and well-being of all children, staff and
visitors to our laboratory is paramount and our aim is to prevent and manage any infection which may be present in the building.

Infection can lead to serious ill-health among infants and young children. Infection control procedures seek to reduce the
risk of children getting sick in a service by ensuring good hygiene is followed and the risk of infection is minimized.

Prevention & Infection control measures:

Q
o~

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

o We have a hand washing policy which all staff promote and model for children, after using the tailet, before
eating/preparing food, after wiping noses, waste disposal and mopping up spills.

e [ur immunization policy will be followed at all times with all children and staff.
Parents are asked to keep their child at home if they have an infectious illness in line with our illness and
exclusion Policy as set out in the HSE quidelines: Managing an infectious disease in childcare setting.
Staff will also adhere to our illness and exclusion palicy.
When a child/ staff member is diagnosed with an infection, the HSE quidelines for exclusion will be followed.
We reinforce good practice regarding keeping the environment clean and safe.
Daily, weekly and monthly cleaning schedules are in place and records kept.
We have a contract with a hin removal company for the removal and disposal of all waste at our Labaratory.
Our premises are free from pests and rodents and we have a contract with an external agent who checks
our premises on @ manthly basis.
All staff receive reqular support § supervision in relation to infection control and training is provided.
Our Laboratory carries and maintains a good stock of cleaning products and tools to ensure that hygiene
practices can be carried out at all times.

e We provide information leaflets on immunization schedules, oral hygiene and prevention of infection.
Hygiene Procedure:

o All staff are aware of their role in maintaining high standards of hygiene.

o Toilets, floors, tables and chairs and other areas are cleaned daily to help decrease the spread of infection,
cleaning agents used are detailed on our cleaning schedules.

o A wash hand basin is provided in each room with a constant supply of hot and cold running water, liquid anti-
bacterial soap and paper towels. A wash hand basin is also available in all bathrooms, nappy changing areas.
kitchens and activity rooms.

e [Children are encouraged to wash their hands under supervisian after visiting the toilet, before eating, and
after playing outside.

o [hanging area is wiped down after every use and there is a nappy changing policy in place.

Wet and soiled nappies are disposed by individually wrapping and sealing them. Then placed in a lidded bin
which is emptied daily.

o Staff always wear glaves when changing or diapering, cleaning. preparing and serving food and wash hands
after removing gloves.

e  Staff must wash their hands, before preparing or serving food, before feeding children, before eating or
drinking, after going to the toilet, assisting children going to the toilet, changing or diapering, dealing with
bodily fluids, cleaning procedures, caring for sick children, handling soiled clothing, dealing with waste and
after remaving disposable gloves.

e AMllinen is washed ance per week and more frequently if necessary. Children do not share bed clothes and all
sheets and blankets are stored separately,

Procedure for Managing an infectious illness

Staff will report any illness to the manager/designated person in charge.
Unwell children, with a temperature and/or specific signs and symptoms, will be excluded from the service
until a diagnosis can be made.

e Children should remain at home if they are suffering from general diarrhea or vomiting for at least 48
hours.

i
(g

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

2

-

A plan will be drawn up to help prevent the spread of the illness and the Louisiana Department of Health and
Sanitation guidelines for Managing an infectious disease in childcare setting will be followed.

In the case of notified diseases o if the illness spreads the manager will notify the local East Baton Rouge
Department of Health and Sanitation.

Parents will be informed verbally and in writing if an outbreak has occurred.,

Drug-Free Workplace Palicy

This written policy shall be posted

Southern University Child Development Laboratory intends to help provide a safe and drug-free work environment for our children,
families, and our employees. With this goal in mind and because of the serious drug abuse problem in today’s workplace, we are
establishing the following policy for existing and future employees of Southern University Child Development Laboratary.

Southern University Child Development Laboratory explicitly prohibits:

The use, possession, solicitation for, or sale of narcotics or other illegal drugs, alcohol, or prescription
medication without a prescription on the premises or while performing an assignment for Southern
lIniversity Child Development Laboratory.

Being impaired or under the influence of legal or illegal drugs or alcchal away from or customer premises, if
such impairment or influence adversely affects the employee’s work performance, the safety of the
employee or of others, or puts at risk the Company's reputation.

Possession, use, solicitation for, or sale of legal or illegal drugs or alcohol away from Sauthern University
Child Development Laboratory or customer premises, if such activity or involvement adversely affects the
employee’s work perfarmance, the safety of the employee or of others, or puts at risk the Company's
reputation.

The presence of any detectable amount of prohibited substances in the employee's system while at wark
while on the premises of Southern University Child Development Labaratary or its customers, or while on
company business. "Prohibited substances” include illegal drugs, alcohol, o prescription drugs nat taken
in accordance with a prescription given to the employee.

Southern University Child Development Laboratory will conduct drug and/or alcohal testing under any of the following
circumstances:

RANDOM TESTING: Employees may be selected at random for drug and/or alcohaol testing at any interval
determined by the Company.

FOR-CAUSE TESTING: Southern University Child Development Laboratory may ask an employee to submit to
a drug and/or alcohol test at any time it feels that the employee may be under the influence of drugs or
alcohol, including. but not limited to, the following circumstances: evidence of drugs or alcohol on or about
the employee's persan or in the employee's vicinity, unusual conduct on the employee's part that suggests
impairment or influence of drugs or alcohol, negative performance patterns. odors that may reveal exposure
t drugs and or alcohol, and excessive and unexplained absenteeism or tardiness.

POST-ACCIDENT TESTING: Any employee invalved in an on-the-job accident or injury under circumstances
that suggest possible use or influence of drugs or alcohal in the accident or injury event may be asked to
submit ta a drug and/or alcohol test. "Invalved in an on-the-job accident or injury” means not only the
ane who was or could have been injured, but also any employee wha potentially contributed to the accident or
injury event in any way.

Southern University Child Development Laboratory




2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

If an employee is tested for drugs or alcohal outside of the employment cantext and the results indicate a violation of
this palicy, or if an employee refuses a request to submit to testing under this policy, the employee may be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action, up to and possibly including discharge from employment. In such a case. the employee
will be given an oppartunity to explain the circumstances prior ta any final employment action becoming effective.

Physical Activities Procedures Policy
This written palicy shall be posted

Children attending Southern University Child Development Laboratory shall play outdoors daily when weather and air
quality conditions do ot pose a significant health risk. Time planned for outdoor play and physical activity depends on the
age group and weather conditions. Activities shall include structured play (led by the adult caregiver) and free play (not
led by an adult).

o Toddlers (12 months to 3 years old) shall participate in B0 to 30 minutes per day of moderate to vigorous
physical activity.

o Preschoolers (3 to B years old) shall participate in 30 to 120 minutes per day of moderate to vigorous physical
activity.

o Children shall be dressed apprapriately for the weather, including wearing appropriate seasonal clothing and
footwear, so they can participate fully, move freely, and play safely.

o  SU Child Development Staff will inform parents, caregivers, and families that children need to be dressed
appropriately for the current weather conditions to play outdoors.

Children should wear clothing appropriate for the current weather:

e  Snow: heavy coat, waterproof boots, hat, and mittens.

e [Rain: raincoat and waterproof boots.

o [Different temperatures during the day: layers of clothing.
Footwear should provide support far running and climbing. Examples of appropriate footwear include sneakers. gym shoes.
and other shoes with rubber soles that enclose the feet and will nat come off easily. Examples of inappropriate clothing
and footwear include:

o Footwear that can come off while running, or that does not provide support for climbing (examples: flip-flops and
tlogs).

o Clothing that can catch on playground equipment (examples: clothes with drawstrings or loops).

o [lothing that dues not protect children from the current weather condition

Sleep/Rest Procedures Policy

This written policy shall be posted
Palicy Statement

Al children have individual sleep and rest requirements. Children need a comfortable relaxing environment to enable their
€ bodies to rest. This enviranment must be safe and well supervised to ensure children are safe, healthy and secure in their

environment,
———

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2

2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Southern University Child Development Laboratory will ensure that all children have appropriate opportunities to sleep, rest
and relax in accordance with their individual needs. The education and care service will provide beds and cots that comply
with Australian Standards. The risk of Sudden Infant Death Syndrome (SIDS) will be minimized by following practices and
guidelines set out by health authorities.

Wha is affected by this policy?

e [hild

o Staff

e Families

e Management
Palicy Implementation
The Approved Provider will:

e 'Take reasonable steps to ensure that the needs for sleep and rest of children being educated and cared for by
the service are met, having regard to the ages, development stages and individual needs of the children.”
(Regulation .)

Ensure there are adequate numbers of mats and or cots and bedding available to all enrolled children.

Ensure that all mats and or cots meet Bulletin 137 regulatory guidelines

Ensure that areas for sleep and rest are well ventilated and have natural lighting.

Ensure that supervision windows will be kept clear to ensure safe supervision of sleeping children by
administrative and ather approved staff.

The Lead Teacher and or Assigned staff person will:

A, ‘“Take reasonable steps to ensure that the needs for sleep and rest of children being educated and cared for by
the service are met, having regard to the ages, development stages and individual needs of the children.”

(Regulation 81.)
B. Maintain up to date knowledge regarding safe sleeping practice and communicate this information to educatars
and families.
Educators will:

A Consult with families about children's sleep and rest needs. Educators will be sensitive to each child's needs so
that sleep and rest times are a positive experience.

B. Ensure that beds/mattresses are clean and in good repair. Beds and mattresses will be wiped over with warm
water and neutral detergent or vinegar between each use.

C. Ensure that bed linen is clean and in good repair. Bed linen is for use by an individual child and will be washed
before use by another child.

0. Arrange children's beds, mats, and or cots to allow easy access for children and staff.

E. Create a relaxing atmosphere for resting children by playing relaxation music, reading steries, cultural reflection,
turning off lights and ensuring children are comfortably clothed. The environment should be tranquil and calm for
both educators and children. Educatars will sit near resting children and suppart them by encouraging them ta
relax and listen to music or stories.

F.  Remember that children do not need to be “patted” to sleep. By providing a quiet, tranquil environment, children
will choose to sleep if their body needs it.

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

b. Encourage children to rest their bodies and minds for @ minimum of 30 minutes. If children are awake after this
time, they will be provided quiet activities for the duration of rest 73 minute time.

H. Children's rest requirements will be accommodated according to their individual needs.

Maintain adequate supervision and maintain educater ratios throughout the rest period.

J.  Assess each child's circumstances and current health to determine whether higher supervision levels and checks
may be required.

K. Communicate with families about their child's sleeping or rest times and the policy and procedures regarding
sleep and rest times.

L. Respect family preferences regarding sleep and rest and consider these daily while ensuring children feel safe
and secure in the environment. Conversations with families may be necessary to remind families that children will
neither be forced to sleep nor prevented from sleeping. Sleep and rest patterns will be recorded daily for
families.

M. Encourage children to dress appropriately for the room temperature when resting or sleeping. Lighter clothing is
preferable, with children encouraged to remove shoes, jumpers, jackets and bulky clothing. The room
temperature will be considered to ensure maximum comfaort for the children.

N. Follow SIDS guidelines recommending that necklace/bracelets (including Amber Teething Necklaces) must be
removed while the infant sleeps at day or night. Necklaces and bracelets area choking hazard.

Children in Mats/Cots
Educators will:
Give bottle-fed children their bottles before going ta bed. Children will not be put in beds or on mats or cots with bottles.

C. Observe children at 10-15 minute intervals while sleeping. Educators must remain in close proximity in the infant
classrooms ta physically see babies breathing. The educator will then officially record this sleep record.

Ensure that bed, mat and or cot mattresses are clean, firm and the correct size for the bed frame and the child.
Make up beds. mats, and or cots to comply with SIDS safe sleeping guidelines.

Babies will be placed on their backs to sleep. but they will be able ta find their own sleeping position. No loose bedding is to
be available to the child. Bed linens will be firmly tucked under the mattress to reduce the risk of a child covering their
face.

Put the baby's feet at the bottom of the cot so the baby cannot slip down under the covers. Tuck the baby in securely so bed
linen is not loose. No duvets, pillows or bumpers will be placed in infant beds.

Participate in mandated staff development about safe sleeping practices.

All SU CHOV LAB staff will participate in and actively seek quidance. best practices, and professional development training
on SIDS & Kids resource kit and provide information to families on safe sleeping practices.

Implementation: The Director, Director Designee, and all other SU CHOV LAB Staff will ensure that this policy is
maintained at all times.

25

Southern University Child Development Laboratory




2019-2020 PARENT HANDBOOK

Review: The policy will be reviewed annually. Review will be conducted by management, employees, parents and
any interested parties.

2

Southern University Child Development Laboratory



Southern University Child Development Laboratory
PARENT HANDBOOK

ol T
" =

2019-2020 Handbook Agreement Form

Child: Age:

Teacher: Date:

1 received my
Parent / Guardian's name

Southern University Child Development Laboratory Parent

Handbook. | agree and understand that it is my responsibility to

thoroughly and adhere to all policies and procedures stated therein.

Parent Signature: Date:

Teacher Signature: Date:

Director Signature: Date:




2019-2020 Emergency
Preparedness Plan

Southern University Child Development Laboratory

\ “Positively Impacting Early Childhood through Research, One Family at a Time”

\




Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan

This Emergency Preparedness Plan shall comply with Louisiana Department of Education
Licensing Regulations Bulletin 137 as stated below in Regulation 1921:

Emergency Preparedness and Evacuation Planning

A.

10.
11.

O

O i e W0

Emergency and Evacuation Plan. The director shall consult with appropriate state and local authorities
and shall establish and follow a written multi-hazard emergency and evacuation plan to protect
children in the event of emergencies that at a minimum shall:

address any potential disaster related to the area in which the center is located;

include procedures for sheltering in place, lockdown and evacuation to a pre-determined site for
potential threats to the safety, health and well-being of children in care;

include specific procedures for handling infants through two year olds, including food and formula;
include specific procedures for handling children with special needs, including the evacuation and
transportation of children in wheelchairs;

include a system to account for all children;

include a system, and a back-up system, for contacting parents and authorized third party release
caretakers:

include a system to reunite children and parents following an emergency;

include procedures for providing information about the emergency plan to parents at the time of
enrollment and when changes occur;

be reviewed annually for accuracy and updated as changes occur; and

be reviewed with all staff at least once per year.

practice drills shall be conducted at least twice per year to include all children and shall be
documented.

Individualized Emergency Plan. An individualized emergency plan shall be in place for each child with
special needs and shall include medical contact information and additional supplies and equipment as
needed.

Evacuation Pack. The center shall have an evacuation pack, the location of which is known to all staff,
that at a minimum shall contain:

a list of area emergency phone numbers;

a list of emergency contact information and emergency medical authorization for all enrolled children;
an emergency pick-up form;

first aid supplies, hand sanitizer, wet wipes, and tissue;

diapers for children who are not toilet trained and plastic bags for diapers;

a battery-powered flashlight and radio and batteries or a crank flashlight and radio; and

disposable cups and bottled water.

. Records. A center shall maintain a copy of records, documents, and computer files necessary for its

continued operation following an emergency in either a portable file or at an off-site location.
Tornado Drills. Tornado drills shall be conducted at least once per month in the months of March,
April, May, and June at various times of the day necessary to include all children and shall be
documented.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan

Emergency Preparedness Plan

Southern University Child Development Laboratory
Jesse N. Stone Building 190
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

New Number Being Assigned
Louisiana Department of Education Child Care Licensing: 1-877-453-2721

Department of Child and Family Services: 1-888-LAHELPU (1-888-524-3578)
Southern University Safety Department — Charles Joseph Martin (225) 244-5798

For EMERGENCY assistance contact 911

Evacuation

e

The Director or Director Designee in charge will contact 911.

2. Children’s emergency contact numbers will be taken to the evacuation area and parents
will be notified of the situation.

3. Post a message on the front door of the facility or on the answering machine telling
parents where the children have been relocated.

4. Use the nearest clear exit to evacuate the building during all continuous alarms.

5. Ensure the Director or designee has a fully charged, working cell phone to contact
parents and/emergency personnel.

6. Know two evacuation routes.

7. Calmly walk to the outside assembly area located at SU CHDV LAB carpool area (front
entrance) unless the wind is blowing smoke or other hazards in that direction. If so,
assemble inside at Pinkie E. Thrift Hall (back entrance). Be cautious and yield the way
for emergency vehicles entering the property.

8. At the assembly area, staff will immediately take a head count of each classroom to
ensure that everyone is present and accounted for. Lead teachers shall report the final
head count to the Director or designee. Names of any missing children or missing
personnel must be given to the Director and emergency official.

9. Do not re-enter the building until you are given the “ALL CLEAR” command. Many times
the situation must be verified as safe, so be patient. Remember, this is for your
protection.

10.LDOE and or DCFS will be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or Director Designee

in charge.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan
11.Medical supplies including children’s medication and emergency contact information

will be taken when facility relocates.

Lockdown

2
3.
4
5

4

Lock outside doors and windows.

. Close and secure interior doors.

Close any curtains or blinds.

. Turn off lights.
. Keep everyone away from doors and windows. Stay out of sight, preferably sitting on

floor.
Maintain calm atmosphere in room by reading or talking quietly to children.

7. If phone is available in classroom, Director or Director Designee in charge will call 911 to

ensure emergency personnel have been notified.

8. Remain in lockdown until situation resolved and police give the all clear.
9. DECAL will be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or Director Designee in charge.

*Notify parents/guardians about any lockdown, whether practice or real.

Shelter-In Procedures (Tornado/Severe Weather i.e. thunderstorm, ice storm, etc.)

1.

An emergency radio with extra batteries is located: Portable Emergency Preparedness
Kit.

2. If a severe weather watch is issued staff will gather children at the shelter-in place
located at: Inclement Weather Play area located in the middle of the Laboratory.

3. Lead teachers will take a head count to ensure all children are accounted for. Names of
any missing children or missing personnel must be given to the Director.

4. Children will sit with their backs to the wall and heads tucked between knees during a
tornado warning.

5. Staff will keep children calm by reading books and singing songs.

6. Ensure the Director or designee has a fully charged, working cell phone. If possible, the
Director will make contact with all parents to let them know of the situation.

7. No children are allowed to leave the Center while a severe weather watch is in effect
without the legal parent or guardian.

8. When the threat has passed, staff may continue with the daily schedule.

Lightning
1. If outside- move indoors immediately.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan

3

3.

Fire
1.

9.

Avoid use of telephone, electrical appliances, and plumbing as much as possible. (Please
note: wires and metal pipes can conduct electricity)
Move away from windows. Cover windows with shades or blinds, if available.

If heavy smoke or flames are seen or if the fire alarm is sounded the Director, Director
Designee, Administrative Assistant, or any other Staff will call 911 and or SUBR Police
Department at (225) 771- 2770, and Charles Joseph Martin at (225) 244-5798 (mobile).
Staff will line children up at the nearest exit door (exit routes posted).

A head count will be conducted of all children immediately before exiting the building.
Teachers should search their rooms and close all doors before leaving. Additionally, the
Director or designee will search all areas within the Center and ensure all occupants
have been safely evacuated.

Children will be escorted outside in a single file line.

Children will be taken to the designated assembly area located across the parking lot
adjacent to the Lab at: Moore Hall Address: E. C. Harrison Blvd Building #000 Baton
Rouge, LA 70813.

Emergency personnel (911) will be contacted by the Director after all persons have been
evacuated.

At the assembly area, teachers will immediately take a head count of each classroom to
ensure that everyone is present and accounted for. Lead teachers shall report the final
head count to the Director or designee. Names of any missing children or missing
personnel must be given to the Director and emergency official.

Ensure the Director or designee has a fully charged, working cell phone to contact
parents and/emergency personnel.

10. Parents will be contacted (i.e. phone, email, text) to be made aware of the situation.
11. If the building cannot be reentered then all children will be taken to the designated

evacuation area located across the parking lot adjacent to the Lab at: Moore Hall
Address: E. C. Harrison Blvd Building #000 Baton Rouge, LA 70813.

12. If necessary, all parents and emergency contacts will be contacted via phone to arrange

for pick up.

13. If the program will be closed for an extended time, then LDOE /DCFS will be notified

with-in 24 hours by the Director or designee in charge.

14. Documentation to support any of the above steps will be submitted within 24 hours of

the incident. The Original will be placed in the appropriate binder and copy will be
emailed to Charles Joseph Martin and LDOE Licensing Consultant, if applicable.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan
Carbon Monoxide Poisoning

Symptoms of carbon monoxide poisoning:
» Sudden flu-like illness
« Dizziness, headaches, sleepiness
« Nausea or vomiting
» Fluttering or throbbing heart beat
« Cherry-red lips, unusually pale complexion
« Unconsciousness
If you suspect carbon monoxide poisoning:
« Get the victim out and into fresh air immediately.
« Call 911 or emergency medical help at once.
« Geteveryone else out.
« Open the windows.
To prevent carbon monoxide poisoning:
1. Be alert for the symptoms of carbon monoxide poisoning.
2. Install and maintain carbon monoxide detectors.
3. Never operate internal combustion engines indoors.
a. Never use a charcoal grill indoors.
s. Have all fuel-burning appliances, flues, vents, and chimneys checked regularly.
Communicable Disease

1. A child shall not be accepted nor allowed to remain at the Lab if the child has the
equivalent of a one hundred and one (101) degrees or higher oral temperature and

another contagious symptom, such as, but not limited to, a rash or diarrhea or a sore

throat.
2. Parents will be notified of a contagious illness by: Director, Director Designee, or
Administrative Assistant.

3. Other parents will be notified of a contagious illness by: Director, Director Designee, or

Administrative Assistant.

4. The health department will be notified on any communicable diseases as outlined on

the communicable disease chart.
Structural Damage

1. Staff will line children up at the nearest exit door.
2. A head count will be conducted of all children.

3. Teachers should search their rooms and close all doors before leaving. Additionally, the
Director or designee will search all areas within the Lab and ensure all occupants have

been safely evacuated.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan

4. Children will be escorted outside in a single file line.

15. Children will be taken to the designated assembly area located across the parking lot
adjacent to the Lab at: Moore Hall Address: E. C. Harrison Blvd Building #000 Baton
Rouge, LA 70813.

5. Emergency personnel (911) will be contacted by the Director after all persons have
been evacuated.

6. Atthe assembly area, teachers will immediately take a head count of each classroom to
ensure that everyone is present and accounted for. Lead teachers shall report the final
head count to the Director or designee. Names of any missing children or missing
personnel must be given to the Director and emergency official.

7. Parents will be contacted (i.e. phone, email, text) to be made aware of the situation.

8. Building will only be reentered if emergency personnel gives the all clear.

9. If the building cannot be reentered then all children will be taken to the designated
evacuation relocation site area located across the parking lot adjacent to the Lab at:
Moore Hall Address: E. C. Harrison Blvd Building #000 Baton Rouge, LA 70813.

10. Medical supplies including children’s medication and emergency contact information
should be taken when facility relocates.

11. If necessary, all parents and emergency contacts will be contacted via phone to arrange
for pick up.

12. LDOE /DCFS will be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or Director Designee in
charge.

*Loss of Water

1. Bottled water will be provided to wash hands, flush toilets and for drinking

2. A supply of bottled water is kept: Portable Evacuation Kit.

3. The Director or Director Designee in charge will contact the water company for
assistance if applicable. The phone number is Baton Rouge Water Company
brwater.com (225) 925-2011.

4. Parents will be contacted (i.e. phone, email, text) to be made aware of the situation.

5. If the water will not be restored with-in 2 hours then all parents and emergency
contacts, if necessary will be contacted via phone to arrange for pick up.

6. The program will remain closed until water is restored.

*Loss of Electricity

1. Flashlights are kept in each Portable Evacuation Kit for emergency use.
2. Curtains and blinds will be opened to provide light.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan
3. The Director or Director Designee in charge will contact the power company for

assistance. Number: Entergy 1-800-368-3749

4. If the Center also losses the cooling system, then see emergency plan below.

5. Parents will be contacted (i.e. phone, email, text) to be made aware of the situation.

6. The Director will make a determination on if the Center can operate safely. If necessary,
all parents and emergency contacts will be contacted via phone to arrange for pick up.

7. If the program will be closed for an extended time, then LDOE /DCFS will be notified
with-in 24 hours by the Director or Director Designee in charge.

*Loss of Heat

1. Children will be made comfortable by putting on coats and outer garments.

2. The Director or Director Designee in charge will contact a Southern University Facility
Services (225) 771-4741 and or an HVAC company for assistance.

3. Parents will be contacted (i.e. phone, email, text) to be made aware of the situation

4. If the temperature of the building drops to 65 degrees Fahrenheit or lower the program
will then close. All parents and emergency contacts, if necessary will be contacted via
phone to arrange pick up.

*Loss of Cooling System

1. Children will be made comfortable by removing excess clothing and opening windows.

2. The Director or Director Designee in charge will contact a HVAC company for assistance.

3. Parents will be contacted (i.e. phone, email, text) to be made aware of the situation.

4. If the temperature of the building rises to 85 degrees Fahrenheit or higher the program
will then close. All parents and emergency contacts, if necessary will be contacted via
phone to arrange pick up.

* If the program will be closed for an extended amount of time do to the loss of any above
utilities Louisiana Department of Education Licensing Division will be notified.

Heatwave

1. We will follow WBRZ 24 hour weather live stream https://www.wbrz.com/wbrz-24hr-live-
weather-386

2. Ensure everyone drinks plenty of water.
3. If loss of air-conditioning occurs, follow emergency plan for loss of cooling system.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan
Please note:

Children may not adapt to extremes of temperature as effectively as adults because
they produce more heat (relatively) than adults when exercising and have a lower
sweating capacity.

Loss of a Child (i.e. loss on site or during a field trip)

-

Teacher should let the Director know immediately that a child is missing.

The teacher will conduct a head count to ensure all children are accounted for.
Teacher will write down a description of what the child was wearing.

The playground, Center vehicles and bathrooms will be immediately checked.,

The classroom cabinets and closets will be checked.

If child is not located call 911 or emergency personnel. Numbers posted next to: ALL
Telephones and posted in ALL classrooms.

7. The Director or Director Designee in charge will contact the child’s parents.

8. Director will notify other parents regarding the incident as necessary.

9. LDOE /DCFS will be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or designee in charge.

I S

Death of a Child
If a child appears unresponsive:

1. Call for assistance from Director or other staff person.

2. Remove all children away from the child.

3. Do not move the child.

10.Call 911 or emergency personnel. Numbers posted next to: ALL Telephones and posted
in ALL classrooms.

4. Contact parents and tell them only that the child is being transported to the hospital
located at Hospital: LSU Health Baton Rouge North Clinic Urgent Care address: 5439
Airline Hwy Baton Rouge, LA 70805 (25) 358-4853.

5. Director will notify other parents regarding the incident.

6. LDOE /DCFS will be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or designee in charge.

Serious Injury

1. Remove all children away from the injured child.

2. Do not move the child.

3. Provide first aid as trained in an approved First Aid training course until emergency
personnel arrive. The first aid kit is located: ALL classrooms and Portable Evacuation
Kits.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan
4. Call for assistance as needed.

11.1f necessary, Call 911 or emergency personnel. Numbers posted next to: ALL
Telephones and posted in ALL classrooms.

5. Contact parents and tell them only that the child has been injured and is being
transported to the hospital located at Hospital: LSU Health Baton Rouge North Clinic

Urgent Care address: 5439 Airline Hwy Baton Rouge, LA 70805 (25) 358-4853
6. Take the child’s emergency medical information form(s} with you to the hospital and remain with the
child until a parent arrives.

7. Director will notify other parents regarding the incident as necessary.
8. LDOE /DCFS wil! be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or designee in charge.

Bomb Threat

1. Check caller ID if available.
2. Signal to another staff member to call 911, if able. (Asking if anyone has RED paper)
3. Before you hang up, get as much information from caller as possible.

Ask caller:

e Where is the bomb?
e When is it going to explode?
e What will cause the bomb to explode?
e What does the bomb look like?
e What kind of bomb is it?
e Why did you place the bomb?
Note the following:
e Fxact time of call
e FExact words of caller
e Caller’s voice characteristics (tone, male/female, young/old, etc.)
e Background noise
e Do not touch any suspicious packages or objects
¢ Avoid running or anything that would cause vibrations in building. Avoid use of cell
phones and 2-way radio
4. Confer with police regarding evacuation. If evacuation is required, follow EVACUATION
procedures.



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan
Chemical or Radiation Exposure

1.

If emergency is widespread, monitor local radio for information and emergency
instructions.
Prepare to SHELTER-IN-PLACE or EVACUATE, as per instructions.

. If inside, stay inside {unless directed otherwise).
. If exposed to chemical or radiation outside:

e Remove outer clothing, place in a plastic bag, and seal (Be sure to tell emergency
responders about bag so it can be removed).

e Take shelter indoors.

e If running water/shower is available, wash in cool to warm water with plenty of

soap and water. Flush eyes with plenty of water.

Dangerous Person

1.

If a person at or near your program site is making children or staff uncomfortable,
monitor the situation carefully, communicate with other staff, and be ready to put your
plan into action.

Immediately let staff know of dangerous or potentially dangerous person.

Initiate LOCKDOWN. (See lockdown procedures)

Cali 911 from a safe place.

If the person is in building:

e Try to isolate the person from children and staff.
e Do not try to physically restrain or block the person.
e Remain calm and polite; avoid direct confrontation.

If children are outside:

e And dangerous person is outside: Quickly gather children and return to classrooms
and initiate lockdown procedures. If it is not safe to return to the classrooms,
evacuate to designated evacuation site.

e And dangerous person is in the building: Quickly gather children and evacuate to
designated evacuation site.

10



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan

If children are inside:

e Keep children in classrooms and initiate LOCKDOWN

Reunification at facility/with family members

When returning children to the facility:

1.

Calmly walk in a single file line. Be cautious and yield the way for emergency/parent
vehicles entering the property.

Once inside the facility, staff will immediately take a head count of each classroom to
ensure that everyone is present and accounted for. Lead teachers shall report the final
head count to the Director or designee. Names of any missing children or missing
personnel must be given to the Director and emergency official.

Pick up routines of children by parent(s) should remain as close to normal as possible.
LDOE /DCFS will be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or Director Designee in
charge.

When returning children to families at evacuation site:

1.

Children should be grouped together by classrooms. Be cautious and yield the way for
emergency/parent vehicles entering the property.

2. The center will communicate its location to parents by: REMIND APP.

3. Staff will periodically take a head count of each classroom to ensure that everyone is

present and accounted for. Lead teachers shall report the final head count to the

Director or designee. Names of any missing children or missing personnel must be given

to the Director and emergency official.
When children are picked up, release signatures from parents should be recorded in a

notebook/clip board.
LDOE /DCFS will be notified with-in 24 hours by the Director or Director Designee in

charge.

Special Accommodations

e Medical supplies including children’s medication and emergency contact information

should be taken when facility relocates.

e The Director or designated staff person shall have a fully charged, working cell phone

with them at all times.

11



Southern University Child Development Laboratory Emergency Preparedness Plan
e Keep a weather radio with extra batteries in a central location.

e Maintain an emergency or “ready-to-go” file which includes copies of sign-in/sign-
out forms, medication administration forms, and incident/injury forms. The Director
or designated staff should be responsible to take the emergency file. Additionally,
there must be a designated back-up staff person should they be off site or unable to
fill this responsibility.

e Take and maintain a current digital photo of each child enrolled in the program that
can be used if it is necessary to post the child’s photo to aid in reunification.

e Become familiar with the National Emergency Family Registry and Locator System
(NEFRLS) and the National Emergency Child Locator Center which have been
developed to help reunite families who are separated during an emergency.

12



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT
SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA

Substantive Change
Prospectus

Submitted August 9, 2019 by:

Rodney Ellis, Ed.D.
Chancellor

Regina Robinson, Ph.D.
SACSCOC Liaison

3050 Dr, Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive | Shreveport, LA71107
www.susla, edu




I TC‘T A
JAAIEA L

Exrvilence - Indvgriey

OFFICE OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR FOR
RESEARCH, SPONSORED PROGRAMS & INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

August 9, 2018

Dr. Belle Wheelan, President

Southern Association of Colleges and Schools
Commission on Celleges

1866 Southern Lane

Decatur, GA 30033

RE: Substantive Change Frospectus
Dr. Wheslan:
Southemn University at Shreveport Louisiana (SUSLA) is seeking approval to offer an Associate of

Applied Science Degree in Polysomnography. The proposed program will become part of the
inventory of programs within the Division of Allied Health and Nursing.

It is our desire to implement the Polysomnography Program January 1, 2020. Thank you in advance
for your kind review and acceptance of this document. If questions regarding this submission should
arise, please feel free to contact Dr. Regina Robinson, SACSCOC Accreditation Liaison at 318-670-

9337 or mobinson@susla eduy.

SA SGGC Accradﬁatlon Liaison

3050 MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DRIVE - SHREVEPORT, LOUISIAMA 71107
PHONE: 316709536 - FAX: JIB.6TO.6489
TOLL FREE: LA00A5E. 1472 x5036

srww sgala ody
“ iy Equal Cpportunigp Empigyer * By Cholos, Regardiess of Roce, Color, Creed, Sex, Disabiiity or Pelenar Sizins”

Prospecius Page | 2



Cover Sheet for Submléian of
Substantive Changes

Requiring Approval

P —————— =
OFEICIAL FAME OF INSTITUTION MAIN CAMPUS CITY + STATE emaosras. commm?

Shreveport, Louisiana

Southern Univ' at Shrevep()r SUBMISION DATE | SIENDED STARTING

[MM/DDANYY} DATE {MMSrTYY}

Type of change (check the appropriate boxes}

08/09/2018 01/01/2020

v

New program at the currant degrea level that is a significant departure from current programs

TIAMIE OF PROPUSED PROGRAM [E.6_CERTIFCATE 1N CYBER SECAIRITY, BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN IV ENGINGERING)
Assocla{e of Applied Sclence In Polysomnography

]

New off-camypus Instructional site whera 50% or more of a prograny's credits are offered

SITE HAME oty S$TATE

STREET ADDRESS ZIF COUNTRY

Will the site be a branch campus? {see substantive change Palicy, p. 15, far definition)|{_)¥es{ o

Distance delivery: approval of the Institutlan to offer 50% or mare of programs electronically for the
frst time

Compstency-based educational program in which 50% or more of the credit is offered by direct
assessment (see "Direct A t Comp y-based £d \al Programs” policy)

Closing a program, nstructional site, or institution

Type of clasure: [T Program closure (7 Site closure O Institution closure

Degree Leve! Change (see Sabstantive Change Poficy, p. 15, for defindions; for changes from Level [ ta IV and from LavelV
to Vi, an Applicatian ls nct repulred; contact Commission staff far guldance]

FROM LEVEL [T LEVEL TG GFFER {£ 6., BACHELOR OF SCIENCE (M COMPUTER SCIENCE}

Merger / consolidation, program acquisition, of site acquisition  [NAMES AND ACCREDITORS OF ALL INSTETUTIONS

DESCRIFTION AND LEAD ENSTITUTICN

Change of governance, ownership, control, or legal status NAMES AND ACCREDITORS OF ALL INSTITUTIONS

DESCRIPTION

Gther {pLease bescriBe)

SALSCDC - RaY Ap 20T V2

Prospectus

Page | 3




Submission Information
1. Name, phone number and e-mail address of person to be contacted.

Regina S. Robinson, Ph.D.
SACSCOC Accreditation Liaison
Southern University at Shreveport
3050 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive
Shreveport, LA 71107

(318) 670-9336

E-mail: rrobinson@susia.edu
2. Degrees that the institution is authorized to grant.
Associates, Certificates, and Technical Diploma

Associate of Science: Computer Science, Human Services, Business
Management, Accounting

Associate of Science Nursing: Nursing

Associate of General Studies: General Studies

Associate of Arts Louisiana Transfer: Louisiana Transfer

Associate of Science Louisiana Transfer: Louisiana Transfer

Associate of Applied Sciences: Criminal Justice Administration, Dental Hygiene,
Health Information Technology, Respiratory Therapy, Radiologic Technology, Surgical
Technology, Polysomnographic Technology, Medical Laboratory Technician

Certificate of Technical Studies: Computer Networking Technology, Child
Development, Healthcare Access Associate, Emergency Medical Technician-Basic,

Phlebotomy, Dialysis Technician, Sterile Processing Technician, Accounting Technology
Clerk, Administrative Technology Specialist

Certificate of Applied Science: Computer Information Systems, Web Development,
Medical Coding Specialist

Technical Diploma: Airframe/Powerplant Maintenance Technology, Emergency
Medical Technician-Paramedic

3. Certificates and degrees related to the prospectus.

Associate degree programs: General Studies, Louisiana Transfer (AALT), Louisiana
Transfer (ASLT)

Prospectus Page | 4



4. Approved off-campus sites

Metro Center
610 Texas Street
Shreveport, Louisiana 71101

Aerospace Technology Center
1660 Airport Drive, Hanger #20
Shreveport, Louisiana 71107

Southern University and A & M College
801 Harding Boulevard
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

Southern University at New Orleans
6400 Press Drive
New Orleans, Louisiana 70126

Prospectus | Page | 5



iL

VIl

VI

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABSTRACT 7

ASSESSMENT OF NEED AND PROGRAM PLANNING/APPROVAL -—7-8

DESCRIPTION OF THE CHANGE 8-9
FACULTY QUALIFICATIONS 8
LIBRARY AND LEARNING RESOURCES 9
STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES 10
PHYSICAL RESOURCES 11
FINANCIAL SUPPORT: 11
EVALUATION AND ASSESSMENT 1112
APPENDICES 13

A. Curriculum Committee Approval

B. Letter of Approval: Vice Chancellor of Academic and Student Affairs
C. Letter of Approval: Chancellor

D. Approval: The Southern University System Board of Supervisors

E. Approval: Louisiana State Board of Regents

F. Poiysomnography Curriculum

G. Curriculum Vitae: Dean of Allied Health & Nursing

H. Job Descriptions: Director & Faculty

Prospectus Page | 6



. ABSTRACT

Southern University at Shreveport, Louisiana (SUSLA) s presently categorized as an SREB
Two-Year 1 institution, a Camegie Associates College, and a Commission on Colleges Level
1 institution. The University is open admissions providing associate, certificate, and diploma
programs, as well as comprehensive developmental education services. During 2004-2008,
SUSLA offered the Associate of Applied Science (AAS} degree in Polysomnography. In
2016, SUSLA proposed to re-offer the program via a letter of notification; however,
exceeded the 5-year window to re-establish a previously offered program — thus, this
prospectus. The Polysomnography Program will be the only program of its kind in the
northern region of the state of Louisiana.

The Polysomnography Program will provide students with the knowledge and skills
necessary for entry into the profession. Individuals will be prepared to perform sleep tests
and work with physicians to provide information needed for the diagnosis of sleep disorders.
The polysomnography technologist monitors brain waves, eye movements, muscle activity,
multiple breathing variables and blood oxygen levels during sleep using specialized
recording equipment. The technologist interprets the recording as it happens and responds
appropriately to emergencies. Technologists provide support services related to the
treatment of sleep related problems including helping patients use devices for the treatment
of breathing problems during sleep and helping individuals develop good sleep habits.

The proposed date of implementation is spring, 2020 and the projected number of
students is fifteen (15). The program will admit students each spring semester and the
courses will be taught face-to-face and in a hybrid format.

able.
Year Admission Graduates/Annually
1 (2020) 15 12 (2022)
2 (2021} 15 12 {2023)
3 (2022) 15 12 (2024)
4 (2023) 15 12 (2025)
5 (2024) 15 12 (2026)

As Table A indicates above, the program would admit a maximum of fifteen (15) students
each year for the first 5 years. With an expected retention rate of 80%, the program would
produce a minimum of 60 graduates during the 5-year period (2020-2025). Graduates will
be able to enter the workforce and be eligible to sit for the Registered Polysomnographic
Technologist (RPSGT) examination. The RPSGT is an internationally recognized credential
representing the highest certification in the field for healthcare professionals who clinically
assess patients with sleep disorders.

I ASSESSMENT OF NEED AND PROGRAM PLANNING/APPROVAL

Southern University at Shreveport {SUSLA) has a clearly defined, comprehensive and
published mission statement that is specific to the institution and appropriate to higher
education. Its mission is to afford opportunities for teaching, transfer, workforce, and life-
long leaming. Within this context, the institutional strengths are inherent in our primary focus

Prospectus Page | 7



in impacting {ives through education and training.

The Polysomnography Program is poised to support the mission of the University as a
program that affords opportunities for workforce development by responding to workforce
needs for professionally trained Polysomnography Technologists. The field of sieep studies,
or polysomnography, is experiencing tremendous growth, as illustrated by the significant
expansion of the scientific knowledge base, the large increase in the number of clinicians
practicing sleep medicine, and its recognition as an independent medical sub-specialty.
According to the National Sleep Foundation, over 82 million Americans suffer from sleeping
disorders, including greater than 12 miflion Americans suffering from obstructive sleep
apnea.

As noted in one of the goals of Southern University at Shreveport's Strategic Plan, the
Polysomnography Program will seek to ‘cultivate a culfure of academic excellence
accomplished through atiracting and retaining students who are academically successfully
and prepared for successful careers.” The program is needed at Southern University at
Shreveport to educate and provide training for a skilled workforce in meeting the
employment needs of the neurology and sleep lab employers in Northern and Central
Louisiana. The nearest polysomnography program is at Delgado Community Colleges
located in New Orleans, LA, a 5-6-hour drive from Shreveport, LA.

The program’s approval process was initiated at the departmental level with the writing of a
Letter of Intent that was approved at the divisional level. The Letter of Infent was forwarded
to the Curriculum Committee {see Appendix A-Curriculum Committee Approval} for approval
and upon approval, was forwarded to the Vice Chancellor of Academic and Student Affairs
fsee Appendix B-Vice Chancellor for Academic and Student Affairs-Lefter of Approvaf
Regquest}. Upon approval by the Vice Chancellor, the recommendation was sent to the
Chancellor for approval {see Appendix C-Chancelfor Letter of Approval Request}. Once
approved by the Chancelior, the approved document was sent to the Southem University
System Board of Supervisors {see Appendix D-Southem University System Board of
Supervisors Approvaf}. Upon approval by the Board, the document was then sent to the
Louisiana State Board of Regents (BOR) for final approval. In February 2015, the Louisiana
Board of Regents approved the Polysomnography Program {see Appendix E-Board of
Regents Approval}. The Polysomnography Program offices and classrooms wiil be located
at the Metro Center 810 Texas Street, Shreveport, LA 71101.

. DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE

Currently, the Division of Allied Health Sciences at Southern University at Shreveport
(SUSLA) offers 7 associate degrees; 1 technical diploma; and 6 certificate programs.
Students that enter into the Polysomnography Program will follow existing general
admission, curriculum and graduation requirements as outlined at SUSLA. The
Polysomnography Program will serve to further strengthen the career offerings of SUSLA.
Southern University at Shreveport is seen state-wide as a provider for quality market driven
vocations in the area of healthcare professions.

SUSLA proposes a 62-credit hour curriculum consisting of combined didactic and clinical
education {see Appendix F-Polysomnography Curriculum). The curriculum is composed of
courses such as neuroanatomy and physiology, neurophysiology of sleep, and respiratory
care procedures, and includes 16 credit hours of clinical work which provides the student
Prospectus Page|]8




with patient contact in a sleep laboratory. It is consistent with requirements for the
Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP), the agency
which accredits postsecondary educations in twenty-six (26) health science occupations.

Upon completion of a CAAHEP-accredited Polysomnography Program, graduates are
eligible to sit for the Registered Polysomnographic Technologist (RPSGT) examination.
Registration by the Board of Registered Polysomnographic Technelogists (BRPT) satisfies
education/training requirements for licensure by the Louisiana State Board of Medical
Examiners (LSBME). Effective July 2017, an applicant must be a graduate of a CAAHEP-
accredited program like to the one presented by SUSLA.

IV. FACULTY QUALIFICATIONS

Currently, the Dean of Alied Health Sciences and Nursing will provide temporary oversight
to the Polysomnography Program while awaiting approval from SACSCOC.
Polysomnography is a content area within Respiratery Therapy. As indicated in Table IV-A
below, the Dean of Allied Health Sciences and Nursing is a Registered Respiratory Therapist
and has taught Respiratory Therapy for over twenty-five (25) years. {see Appendix G -
Curriculum Vitae}

Jo Ann Dean, Division of Allied M.B.A., Health Care iServed as faculty, department head
Warren Brown [Health and Nursing Management, University of;for respiratory therapy, and
hoenix ghairperson for over 25 years at
outherm University at Shreveport.

A., Respiratory Therapy, L
| uthern University at erved aver ten years in the

shreveport healthcare field as the Director of
Lardio-Pulmonary Services and a
Licensed Respiratory taff Supervisor, among other
Therapist and Certified ositions.
Respiratory Therapy

Technician

Once the program is approved, The Dean will oversee the hiring process of a qualified full-
time director and faculty for the program. The Dean will ensure that personne! meet the
necessary qualifications to perform the functions in accordance with the Committee on
Accreditation for Polysomnographic Technologists Education (CoAPSG) Standards and
Guidelines. {see Appendix H - Job descriptions for Director and Faculty}

V.  LIBRARY AND LEARNING RESOURCES

All programs are supported with a wide variety of library and leaming resources to support
the institution’s mission related to learning, services, and outreach. The Library is a
member of the Louisiana Library Network Consortium (LOUIS). LOUIS combines the
resources of Louisiana’s public and private academic libraries. The consortia provide a
union catalog. The union catalog allows faculty to borrow materials that an institution may
not have. A LALINC card is issued to faculfy at all institutions that allows faculty to borrow
from other institutions in person or via the Interlibrary Loan system. All library and learning
resource information, as well as information on online databases are available to faculty,
staff, and students through the institution’s website.

Prospectus Page | 8




VI. STUDENT'SUPPORT SERVICES

Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana (SUSLA) provides student support prograsms,
services, and activities consistent with its mission that promote student leaming and
enhance the development of its students. Services such as counseling and advising are
designed to facilitate educational, vocational, social and personal growth. Programs and
services range from those that support the most basic student needs to those that enrich
students’' lives and personal development.

The vast majority of student support services and activities are sponsored within the Student
Affairs area of the University. The offices provide and oversee services such as residential
life, student activities, testing, counseling and career services, outreach programs, and
retention. Student affairs sponsors or assists in implementing activities for the general
student population and Student Govemment Association (SGA). All support units are
committed to student success and efficiency. The following services are provided:

General Process Support Services

Admissions: A completed application and all required admission forms and
records are processed for admission and must be received in the Office of
Admissions before the prescribed deadlines. The applicant will be notified
regarding eligibility for admission.

Financial Aid: The Southern University at Shreveport Financial Aid Office is
available to assist students in meeting their college expenses by administering
programs of financial assistance. The SUSLA’s financial aid team is available
to assist with the collection of data for verification and to ensure aid is awarded
and processed.

Academic Support Services

Academic Advising/Counseling: Members of the Student Success
Department and Program Advisors are available to students enrolied in the
prerequisite and professional courses. The ACT/SAT/ACCUPLACER test
scores are used to determine course placement/schedules. Advisors aid in
helping students jearn how to make practical academic plans and decisions,
how to discover the range of options available to the student, based on the
student's goals, and how to think through consequences of the student's
choices. The advisors also assist in the development of an academic/career
plan consistenit with the student’s goals, interests, and abilities. Individual
counseling is available as needed by the student.

Tutoring:

Tutorial services are available in areas of English, Mathematics, and Biological
Sciences and for students enrolled in the Allied Health Sciences programs.
Students are referred to the appropriate areas and students may also self-
seek assistance. Additionally, the Division of Allied Health Sciences and
Nursing employs a Director of Tutorial Services specifically for its students.

Prospectus Page} 10



VI. PHYSICAL RESOURCES

The proposed changed for the Polysomnography program does not have a significant
impact on existing programs and services. The Polysomnography Program’s offices and
classrooms will be located at the Metro Center 610 Texas Street, Shreveport, LA 71101,
one of SUSLA’s approved off-campus sites. Currently, there is adequate classroom,
office spaces, and laboratory space that can be utilized for the Polysomnography
Program.

VIll. FINANCIAL SUPPORT

The Polysomnography Program will be financiaily supported by the State of Louisiana’s
state-operating budget (state appropriations and student tuition}, Title [li, and Carl Perkins
funds. The budget covers the cost of a Program Director, Adjunct Faculty, and operating
supplies and services. Table VII-A depicts the allocated budget for the program.

Salaries $75,000.00
Benefits $33,750.00
Travel C $4,000.00
Cperating Services $4,500.00
Supplies $3,500.00
Professional

Services -

Other Ch $6,500.00

$127,250.00

IX. EVALUATION AND ASSESSMENT

The institution engages in ongoing, integrated, and institution-wide research-based planning
and evaluation processes that {1) incorporate a systematic review of institutional mission,
goals, and outcomes; (2} result in continuous improvement in institutional quality; and (3)
demonstrate the institution is effectively accomplishing its mission. The Department of
Outcomes Assessment and Quality Management provides considerable support for faculty
in the development and assessment of program and student learning outcomes.

Each assessment unit engages in the university’s institutional effectiveness planning and
reporting process, which includes the identification of expected outcomes, determines the
extent to which it achieves its intended outcomes, and provides evidence of improvement in
services to students. In conjunction with the SUSLA annual reporting and budget request
cycle, the Polysomnography program will identify strategic initiatives, objectives/outcomes,

Prospectus Page | 11



and assessment plans that are aligned with and related to SUSLA’s mission. As a part of
SUSLA’s inventory, the Polysomnography program will be assessed annually as guided by
the Institutional Effectiveness Model. The Institutional Effectiveness Model is consistent
with the reporting structure which supports the development of the state fiscal year operating
budget. The IE planning process commences in April of each fiscal year and provides an
opportunity for budget units to present outcomes and goals which are linked to the mission
and goals of SUSLA and guided by best practices learned from assessment resuits from the
previous year's report. The previous year's report is completed in October of each fiscal
year with documentation of performance achieved. E planning and IE reporting forms are
designed to ensure reporting consistency in critical mission attainment, provide an interface
for convergent sirategic initiatives, and establish a framework for performance
measurement.

Responses are documented on the Evaluation of Instructional Program Planning,
Assessment and Improvement form which is made available in the University's LiveText™
module in an Institutional Effectiveness Portfolio. LiveText™ is an electronic assessment
management system that enables the institution to plan, assess progress, and evaluate and
strengthen the quality of its programs and departments, and thereby, mission. Within the
portfolio, the documentation is comprised of the 1) mission statement; 2) program
description that includes a brief summary of the program, student learning outcomes, and
advisory council members, when applicable; 3) curriculum map; 4) assessment reports by
academic year, including a budget request; and 5) completed program reviews. Each unit's
mission statement is aligned with SUSLA’s mission statement, and the units are encouraged
to align whenever possible their goals/objectives with the initiatives in SUSLA's Strategic
Plan. Multiple measures are required to ensure that each goal/objective is achieved {or in
cases where the goals/objectives are not achieved, to identify where specific improvements
can be made). The data generated by these measures is analyzed by the units, and on the
basis of the analysis, units establish improvement strategies to address needed changes.

Prospecius Page | 12



A.

@MmoOw

APPENDICES

Curiculum Committee Approval

Letter of Approval: Vice Chancellor of Academic and Student Affairs
Letter of Approval: Chancellor

Approval: The Southern University System Board of Supervisors
Approval: Louisiana State Board of Regents

Polysomnography Curriculum

. Curmiculum Vitae: Dean of Allied Health & Nursing
H.

Job Descriptions: Director & Faculty

Prospectus

Page | 13



Appendix A

Curricuium Committee Approval

Prospectus - Page | 14



CT KC'I

£ SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SHREVERORT EQUISIANA_

Excellence « Integrity - Accountability - Service
Division of Allied Health Sciences

To: Dr. Rosetta lones
Vice Chancellor for Academic and Student Affairs

From: Jo Ann Brown, Chair %f
Curriculum Committe
Date: August 18, 2014

Re: Curriculum Committee Approvals

The following Letters of Intent have been approved by the Curriculum Committee:

STEM

Computer Networking Technology (CTS)
Forensic Science (A.S.)

Behavioral Science
“Early Childhood -Pre K-5 yrs. [AAS)

Humanities

Graphic Arts [CAS}
Television Production {CAS)

Business Studies

Accounting Technology Clerk (CTS)

Off. Systems Business Techn (CTS]
Entrepreneurship Certificate Program (CTS)

Health Sciences [Allied Health]
Computed Tudmnlogv_[l'".lsj
Polysomnography (AAS)

A quorum was established with the following members and voting approval of the Letters of Intent
presented:

Jane O'Riley Barry Hester

Rosalyn Holt Lalita Rogers

Cynthia Hester Wanda Waller



Appendix B

Letter of Approval: Vice Chancellor of Academic and Student Affairs

Prospectus : | Page] 15



Execlimze « lmemazy - Acsainesf=hoe s Soowite

OFFICE OF ACADEMIC & STUDENT AFFAIRS

Dr. Rosetta Jones, Vice Chancellor

September 3, 2014

Dr. Ray L. Belton

Chancellor

3050 Martin Luther King Drive
Shreveport, LA 71107

Dear Dr. Belton:

Please accept this letter as an official request to approve the following six new programs of
study:

Associate of Applied Science — Polysomnography

Certificate of Technical Studies — Computer Networking Technology
Certificate of Technical Studies — Office Systems Business Technology
Certificate of Technical Studies — Entrepreneurship

Certificate of Technical Studies — Accounting Technology Clerk
Associate of Applied Science — Early Childhood (Pre K~ 5 years)

e ®» ® & & @

The aforementioned programs are designed to address the workforce needs in the Northwest
Louisiana area and to aid in achieving the mission of SUSLA, “Shrevepori's Community
College”. The enclosed programs provide a purpose, description, and job outlook. These new
programs will be an asset to SUSLA in the areas of increasing student enrollment and providing
more program options to SUSLA’s students.

Your consideration is greatly appreciated.

()]
Date

3050 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive + Shreveport, LA 71107 = Phone: I18-670-6000 or 318-570-9312 » Fax: 670-6338 - email: suglnedu

Southern Universily. af Shreveport does nat diseriminaie on the basiz &f race, color, watlonal orighy, gender or disability.
Tivke [X Coardianior: Eleda [nes, Fine Arts Bidy, Rin, C-00 « {J18) 670-588 = Srcitan o4 Canlinatar: Buble Scevw, Folrmy L Viene Jr. Stmclord Activiiy Conter, Ane. 303 « (2118} 5708023

s —— — ——— — __——————— ]




Letter of Approval: Chancellor

Prospectus Page | 16



Academic ltem 5B

Ch ICYT A
LN A L N .

Excellence * Integrity ~ Accountability ~ Service

Office of the Chancellor

September 8, 2014

Dr. Ronald Mason Jr, President

Southern University System Office

4™ Floor, J. S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, La. 70813

Ref: Letter of Intent to develop new program;

Assuciate of Applied Science -Polysomnography

Certificate of Technicsl Studies- Computer Networking Technology
Certificate of Technical Studies- Office Systems Buslness Technology
Certificate of Technical Studies- Entrepreneurship

Certificate of Technical Studics-Accounting Technology Clerk
Assoclate of Applied Selence-Early Childhood (Pre K-5 Years)

000000

Dear Dr. Mason:

This correspondence is directed to your attention secking your endorsement of six (6) new
programs offering as recommended by the Curriculum Committee and Academic Council at
Southern University at Shreveport Louisiana (SUSLA). Specifically, the university advances a
Letter of Intent to establish the mentioned programs.

The development of the proposed programs werc prompted by requests from area industries and
appropriately aligns with SUSLA’s mission lo be responsive to the workforce needs of the
community.

Therein, your kind consideration is desired, and that of the Southern University Board of

Changellc-r

RLB/w

050 MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. DRIVE - SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 7110
PHONE: (J18)670-0312 ~ FAX (318)670-6374
TOLL FREE: 1-300-458-1472. #3312
s SUSH A W

“ A% Bl Orrowrerry EMeLover By Cho ., Hocasot s Ul e, § s Sos s o Os Vi pimas NI g

I ——




Appendix D

Approval: Southern University System Board of Supervisors

Prospectus — Page| 17



Board of Supervisors

Minuntes, September 19, 2014

Page3

&k

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southern University, upon the
recommendation of the Academic Affairs Committee, that the Letter of Intent to
establish the following academic programs at Southern University —Shreveport, be
and they are hereby approved.

Associate of Applied Science-Polysomnography

Certificate of Technical Studies-Computer Networking Technology
Certificate of Technical Studies-Office System Business Technology
Certificate of Technical Studies-Entrepreneurship

Certificate of Technical Studies-Accounting Technology Clerk
Associate of Applied Science - Early Childhood{Pre K-5 Years)

® & & 8 8 @

khk

RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors for Southem University, upon the
recommendation of the Academic Affairs Committee, that the request to approve
the Endowed Professorships at Southern University - Baton Rouge, and they are
hereby approved.

Dr. Mahmoud Braima

Cleo Fields Endowed Professorship in Mass Communication

Dr. Addie Dawson-Euba

Community Coffes/Frank Hayden Memorial Endowed Professorship in the Arts
Dr. Nathan Haymer

Isaac Greggs/Casino Rouge Endowed Professorship

Dr. Diana Kelly

Emma Glyon Trust Fund Endowed Professorship

Dr. James Taylor

[sabel Herson/Casino Rouge Endowed Professorship in Education
Dr. Atley Walker

Joseph Kermit Haynes/Casine Rouge Endowed Professorship

Dr. Eugene Calvasina

Southern University Business & Industry Cluster Endowed Professorship
Dr. Vineeta Hingorani

George Leon Netterville/Kellogg Endowed Professorship

Dr, Stephen Jaros

Dr. E.C. Harrison Endowed Professorship in Business

Dr. Victor Mbarika

Houston Alumnae Endowed Professorship in Business

Dr. Sung C. No

W.W. “Bill" Tucker Endowed Professorship in Business

Dr. Saviour Nwachukwu

Een D. Johnson, Sr. Endowed Professorship in Business

Dr. Mysore Ramaswamy

Peter Moncrief Endowed Professorship in Business

Dr. Lauria Young

Rosalie Guidry Daste Endowed Professorship in Urban Education



AGENDAITEMA2a
PROPOSED NEW ACADEMIC PROGRAM

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT

ASSOCIATE of APPLIED SCIENCE in POLYSOMNOGRAPHIC
TECHNOLOGY

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Southern University at Shreveport {SUSLA) requests Board of Regents’ approval to offer an AAS in
Polysomnographic Technology {PSGT). The program was approved by the Southern University Board of
Supervisors in Seplember 2014. The proposal was received by Regents’ staff in Oclober 2014 and, since
ihal time, stafl has worked with campus representaiives to address questions regarding the propesed
program.

STAFF SUMMARY

1. Description

The AAS in PSGT is designed to provide graduates with the skills required to perform quality sleep
studies and to work in comprehensive sleep centers located in hospitals and independent diagnostic
testing facilities. Sleep medicine is a recognized sub-specialty involving several medical disciplines.
Polysomnography is essential to the evaluation of sleep and involves the collection and scoring of
physiologic measurements and applications of therapeutic interventions. A polysomnographic
technologist is trained on the use of information technology equipment and direct observation of clients in
sleep laboratories to document diagnostic data for the purpose of treating sleep disorders. The scope of
practice of polysomnographic technologists enables them to work in hospital sleep labs, private sleep
centers, laboratories for sleep-related breathing disorders, Durable Medical Equipment (DME) and
industry ressarch setfings, and home environments.

SUSLA proposes a 62-credit hour curriculum consisting of combined didactic and clinical education. The
curriculum is composed of courses such as neuroanatomny and physiology, neuraphysiology of sleap, and
respiratory care procedures, and includes 16 credit hours of clinicals which provides the student with
patient contact in a sleep lab. It is consistent with requirements for the Commission on Accreditation of
Allied Health Education Programs {CAAHEP), the agency which accredits postsecondary education
programs in 26 health science occupations.

Upon completion of a CAAHEP-accredited polysomongraphy program, graduates are eligible to sit for the
Board of Registered Polysomnographic Technologist (BRPT) examination. Registration by the BRFT
satisfies education/training requirements for licensure by the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners
(LSBME). While there are currently multiple pathways for an individual to obtain a polysemnographic
technologist license in the State of Louisiana, after 1 July 2017, an applicant will have to have graduated
from a CAAHEP-accredited program like the one proposed by SUSLA.

2. Need

The field of sleep studies, or polysomnography, is experiencing fremendous growth, as illustrated by the
significant expansion of the scientific knowledge base, the large increase in the number of clinicians
practicing sleep medicine, and its recognition as an independent medical sub-speciaity. There are
multiple factors contributing to this growth, including improved recognition of the frequency and
conseguences of sleep disorders and an increase in the number of academic centers devoted to teaching
and conducting research in sleep medicine. According to the National Sleep Foundation, over 82 million
Americans suffer from sleeping disorders, including greater than 12 million Americans suffering from
obstructive sleep apnea,

With the continuing annual growth in supply and demand of sleep labs, the need for credentialed, well-
trained polysomnographic technologists is also increasing. Several sleep laboratories and healthcare

23 February 2015 -ltem A2a-p. 1



facilities (e.g., Knighton Medical Center Systems, The Sleep Center In Shreveport, etc.) located in the
Bossier-Shreveport area have contacted SUSLA expressing their need for an educated workforce to meet
their employment needs. Delgado Community College is the only Louisiana public institution of higher
sducation offering an AAS in PSGT; there is no such educational opportunity of this kind in the Northern
region of the State.

3. Students

Enroliment in the program will be limited to eight (8} students annually for the first five years of program
implementation. With an expected retention rate of B0%, the program expects to produce a minimum of
25 graduates during the first five year period.

4. FEaculty, Resources and Administration.

Professional courses within the curriculum would be taught by two new adjunct facuity members with
experience in polysomnography who meet CAAHEP qualifications. A full-time program director will also
be hired fo oversee the proposed program and to provide instructional support.

The proposed program will make use of existing resources such as classrooms and [aboratory areas, and
there will be common usage of equipment and supplies currently in the existing Respiratory Therapy
Program. Local sleep laboratories have expressed their willingness to be a member of the program'’s
advisory board as well as to provide facilities for learning through clinical externships and experience in
fully-equipped sleep laboratories, :

The proposed PSGT program will be housed in the Divislon of Allied Heaith. No impact on campus
administration is anticipated.

5, Accreditation
The proposed AAS in PSGT willi seek speciallzed accreditation from CAAHEP.

6. Budget.

Modest costs (approximately $75K per year) are associated with developing the PSGT program to
include: faculty salaries, equipment, travel and supplies. in addition to tultion revenue, the cost of the
proposed program will be offset by Title Il and Cari Perkins funds.

STAFF ANALYSIS

The proposed program responds ta workforce demand in an area that should experience continuous
growth. Currently, individuals that reside in the area surrounding SUSLA do not have the opportunity fo
pursue an associate's degree In polysomnographic technology. With the changing requirements for
licensure in the State of Louisiana, many pathways currently available for licensure will no longer be an
option and, as a result, individuals will need to enroll in and complete a CAAHEP-accredited program.
The proposed pragram complements SUSLA's exlsting Respiratery Therapy program which will allow for
the sharing of resources. The proposed curriculum is consistent with recommendations of the accrediting
agency. Basic facilities and facuity in related disciplines are present, but additional technical faculty will be
nesded.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The staff recommends that the Board of Regents grant condltional approval for the Assoclate
of Applied Science in Polysomnographic Technology (CIP Code 51.0917), effective Fall 2015,
at Southern Universily at Shreveport. By June 1, 2016 and annually, the campus wili update
the Board on program Implementation, licensure rate, and progress foward accreditation.

23 February 2015 ~-ltemA2a-p. 2



Appendix F

Polysomnography Curriculum

Prospectus Page | 19



Polysomnography Program
Associate of Applied Science

Purpose: This proposed program will be 12-months. This program will prepare
individuals to work under the supervision of a physician to provide comprehensive
evaluation and treatment of sleep disorders. Inciudes instruction in human anatomy and
physiology, polysomnographic technology, polysomnography scoring, neuroanatomy and
neurophysiology of sleep, sleep disorders, and medical terminology.

Program Description: Polysomnographic Technology (PSGT) is a Health Sciences
specialty for the diagnosis of disorders of sleep and daytime alertness. The range of the
sleep disorders is varied but includes common disorders such as narcolepsy, sleep apnea,
insomnias, and many others. PSG technologists operate a variety of sophisticated
electronic monitoring devices, which record brain activity (EEG), muscle and eye
movement, respiration, blood oxygen and other physiological events.
Polysomnography Program Intended Outcomes
1. Graduates will demonstrate the ability to comprehend, apply and evaluate clinical
information related to their role as Registered Polysomnographic Technologists.
2. Graduates will demonstrate technical proficiency in ali skills necessary in their role
as Registered Polysomnographic Technologists.
3. Graduates will demonstrate personal behavior consistent with professional and
employer expectations in their role as Registered Polysomnographic Technologists.

CURRICULUM
NO. Course CR
Pre-requisite Courses
ENGL110 Freshman English 3
BIOL 221 Anatomy & Physiology | Lec 3
BIOL 222 Anatamy & Physiology |l Lec 3
ALLH 210 Medical Terminology 3
Total 12
First Semester
PSGT 120 Polysormnography | 4
PSGT 121 Sleep Disorders - 3
PSGT 122 Neuroanatomy & Physiology 3
PSGT 123 Neurophysiology of Sleep 3
PSGT 124 Respiratory Care Procedures _3
Total 16
Summer Semester
PSGT 125 Polysomnography Clinical | 4
PSGT 127 Sleep Scoring Staging 3
Total 7

Prospectus ' Page | 20



Second Semester

PSGT 128 Polysomnography Clinical Il 6
PSGT 126 Polysomnography [l 3
Behavioral/Social Sciences Elective 3
Math 133 or higher 3

Total 16

Third Semester

PSGT 200 Special Topics 1
PSGT 210 Infant & Pediatric Polysomnography 2
PSGT 226 Polysomnography Clinical lif 6
Humanities Elective 3

Total 12

TOTAL HOURS FOR PROGRAM 62
Prospectus Page | 21



Appendix G

Curriculum Vitae: Dean of Allied Health & Nursing

Prospectus | | Page | 22



Jo Ann Brown, MBA
Southern University At Shreveport

Dean

Allied Health Sciences and Nursing
4610 Texas Street, Suite 201
Shreveport, LA 71101

Cell {318) 469-2628

Office {318) 670-9651

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, Conceniration Heafthcare Administration, University of Phoenix,
Phoenix, AZ 2007

Bachelor of General Studies, Lovisiana State University Shreveport, 1995

Associate of Applied Science, Respiratory Therapy, Southern University Shreveport, 1986
Registered Respiratory Therapist, 1986

EXPERIENCE
Dean, Division of Allied Health Sciences and Nursing
2017-Presenl!

Responsible for the development of and implementing the division’s vision and goals statement
Responsible for leading the division efforts toward achieving university goals

Develop and manage the division's budget

Lead and coordinate the division's strategic planning and curriculum development

Oversee the pracess of faculty and staff selection and retention

Provide oversight of the professional development of divisional faculty and staff

Evaluate Program Directors

Review Departmental/School policies, procedures, and recommendations for appointment, salary,
retention, tenure, and/or promotion of faculty, and ensuring that all policies are followed

Provide recommendations to the VCAA regarding sabbaticals and other leaves for faculty nd
staff

Manage non-faculty division staff members

Directer of the Academy of Excellence, Southern University at Shreveport
2015-2017

Responsible for effective planning, development, coordination, implementation and monitoring of
training and development programs for all employees.

Collaborate with each Insittutional administrative unit to access employee development needs.
Research new technologies and methodologies in academia and staff-related dufies.

Acts as Haison to university administration, faculty and staff for grant activity.

Secures grant funding for ongoing departmental operations, generating proposals and
supporting documents in response to soficifations.

Manage budgets and assesses return on investment.

Division Chair, Division of Allied Health Sciences, Seuthern Univérsily af Shrevepon;
2005-2015

*
.

‘Directly supervises all faculty within the division.

Conducts annual performance evaluations of faculty within the division.



Title Il Acfivity Director for the Division of Allied Health

Fadilitates the development of programs, projects and initiatives that support the Strategic Plan of
the Division of Allied Health Sciences.

Ensures the relevance and vitality of programs within the divisions.

Encourages professional development opportunities for faculty and staff.

Class room instructor

Oversee the day-to-day operations of the Division.

Supervises the submission of course schedules to meet deadlines.

Supervises the completion and submission of the required annual reports, self-studies, and site-
visits for each of the designated programs.

Faculty Advisor

Provides leadership in developing, evaluating, and maintaining curricula and programs that
respond fo community needs, prepare students for success and that meet the state requirements of
the Louisiana Board of Regents {BOR) and the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools
(SACS).

Facilitates divisional meetings to review/approve divisional plans, delivery of services, resolve
faculty and student issues, and ensure faculty support.

Ensure textbook adoptions are completed and submitted in a timely manner.

Develops and assist in implementation of student recruitment efforts,

Develops and coordinate program promotional materials.

Participate in professional finformal learning activities to enhance personal and professianal
development.

Maintain faculty records.

Serve on various university committees.

Perform other dutles as assigned by the Vice-Chancellor and Chancellor.

Department Chair of Respiratory Therapy, Souvthern University at Shreveport,

1995-2007

Supervised and administered all faculty, budgets, students, and daily operations of the
department

Kept abreast of latest technological advances and best practices by participating in professianal
development

Seminars

Clinical Instructor, Respiratory Therapy, Southern University at Shreveport,
1991-1995

To provide instruction and guidance to the students.

Meeting all scheduled classes for the full class period.

Following prescribe course syllabi and adopted textbooks.

Preparing instructional materials and keeping them current to make the best possible use of each
class period. :
Informing students of course abiectives, performance objectives, dass procedures, and grading
policies at the beginning of the semester.

Keeping accurate records of students’ attendance, grades, and final semester grades per
University and program palicies.

Paoge 2



Director of Respiratory Therapy Department, P & S Hospital, Shreveport, LA
1989-1991
s Oversaw daily deparimental operafions, including but not limited fo: employee scheduling,
payroll, Joint Commission reaffirmation, risk management, quality control, patient education and
clinical preceptors.

Supervisor and Slaff Respiratory Therapist, Willis Knighton Medical Center, Shreveport, LA
1986-1991

e Performed all respiratory care related duties

e Coordinated and directed clinical shifts

SERVICE TO THE UNIVERSITY
¢ Chancellor’s Cabinet Member
Curriculum Committee Chair
Online Peer Review Committee Member
Quglity Management Commiftee Member
Registration Committee Member
Academic Council Committee Member
Planning & Priorities Committee Member
Commencement Committee Member
Cataleg Committee Member
University Professional Development Committee Member
Worlcfarce Innovation of Northwest Louisiana {WINLA} Healthcare Alliance Committee Member
Allied Health Executive Council Chair
QEP Committee Member
Scholarship Committee Member
Strategic Planning Committee Member
Workforce Develop (WINLA Project)
Safety Committee Member
Outcomes Assessment and Quality Enhancement Committee Member
Budget Revision Adhoc Committee Member

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
e Introduction fo Grants and Cooperative Agreements for Federal Personnel Certificate — July 13,
2016
Certified SCID {Systematic Curriculum & Instructional Design) Facilitator-March 20135
Certified DACUM {Developing ¢ Curriculum] Facilitator — October 20014
Quality Matters Peer Review Cerfified — 20136
NACADA-Assessment of Academic Advising Instifute-February 2012
Certified Online Course Development- May 2011
Grant Writing Workshop — April 2010
MOODIE Training/Certified — July 2012
Voted Educator of the Week KSLA TV — December 2003
Developing an Online Ctientation — March 2010
Student Leaming Qutcomes: Where Do We Go From Here? — Faculty /Staff Institute-August 2006




e Online Cerfified Blackboard-August 2005

FUNDED PROJECTS
e Board of Regents Grant
s  Work Innovations of Northwest Louisiana (WINLA} Healthcare Parinership Grant

Page 4



Appendix H

Job Descriptions: Director & Faculty

Prospectus | Page |23



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT LOUISIANA
POSITION DESCRIPTION

TITLE: Program Director

ReEPORTS TO: | DEAN

DEPARTMENT: | POLYSOMNOGRAPHY

DIVISION: ALLIED HEALTH SCIENCES AND NURSING

The program dlrector position will be responsible for the continuous review, planning,
development, and general effectiveness of the Polysomnography Technologist
Program. The program director has the primary responstbmty for the organization and
administration, provision of input and part|01pat|on in a[l aspects of the program
PRINCIPAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES. e e e

Principal Duties and Responsibilities (Essential Functions):

1. Establish mutua! program goals in conjunction with program
faculty which are consistent with the goals of the Division of Allied
Health Sciences and Nursing and the University.

2. Responsible for collecting and analyzing survey data for
maintaining program accreditation reguirements.

3. Administer a systematic curriculum for students to acquire the
knowledge and skills necessary for entry-level competency in
Polysomnography.

4. Coordinate with faculty to develop instruction materia] to include
syllabi course plans, objectives, laboratory activities, and
evaluation tools.

5. Coordinate with faculty in the selection of laboratory and teaching
materials.

6. Assess course effectiveness through student evaluation of
courses.

7. Update and revise course plans and objectives.

8. Provide administrative assistance in budget preparation,
selection of instructors, development of course offerings and
other tasks, related program operation.

9. Serve as a resource for academic, administrative, business,
student services, and community relations.

10. Develop the plan for ongoing program seff-evaluation.

11. Develop criteria for admission of students to the program.

12, Advise students on academic and professional aspects of the
program and performance.

13. Develop and assist in implementation of student recruitment efforts




14. Develop and coordinate program promotional materials.

15. Instruct courses in accordance with University workload
guidelines.

16. Certification in online course teaching utilizing the Moodle
Learning Management System,

17. Serve as liaison to the HIT Advisory Committee.

18. Participate in professional and informal learning activities to
enhance personal and professional development.

19. Mentor new program faculty.

20.0ther duties as needed or required.

QUALIFICATIONS & SKILLS
REQUIRED:
Two years of experience as a practicing polysomnographic technologist.
Must possess at least an associate degree.
Must be a Registered Polysomnographic Technologist (RPSGT}).
Possess excellent computer skills.
Excellent communication skills both verbal and written.
Excellent organizational and time management skills.

PREFERRED:
Bachelor's degree
Working knowledge of MOODLE Learning Management Platform
Teaching experience

Must be able to work under stress. Work independently and handle multiple tasks.
Must have excellent communication skills, both verbal and written.

Work positions include sitting 60%, standing 20%, walking 10%, lifting and carrying
10%.

Program Faculty

REQUIRED STATEMENT FOR TrrLe [Tl GRANT L - Lk S L
This position is grant funded and contlnued employment is contsngent upon sponsor
approval and consistent funding levels.

The preceding job description has been designed fto indicafe the general nature and
level of work performed by employees within this classification. It is nof designed to
contain or be interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of alf duties, responsibilities and
qualifications required of employee assigned to this job.




Approved by:

Signature of the person with the authority to approve the job description

Date approved:

Date upon which the job description was approved




SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT LOUISIANA
POSITION DESCRIPTION

“TITLE: Faculty and/or Clinical instructional Staff

RePORTS TO: | PROGRAM DIRECTOR

DEPARTMENT: | POLYSOMNOGRAPHY

Division: ALUED HEALTH SCIENCES AND NURSING

POSITION OVERVIEW

Provide instruction and guidance to students in the Polysomnography Technologist
Associate Degree Program. Faculty must be qualified, clearly designated as liaison(s)
to the program to provide instruction, supervision, and timely assessments of the 0
student’'s progress in meeting program requirements.

Principal Duties and Responsibilities (Essential Functions):
1. Assist with collecting, analyzing, and aggregating survey data to
, maintain program accreditation requirements (e.g. Graduate
Survey, Employer Survey, Exit Survey, Annual Program
Accreditation Report, etc.).

2. Assist with collecting, analyzing, and aggregating performance
outcomes related to course / program leaming outcomes and
Institutional Effectiveness Reports

3. Develop instructional materials to include syllabi, course plans and
objectives, student leaming outcomes, laboratory activities, and
evaluation tools.

4. Coordinate with program chair in the selection of laboratory /
teaching materials.

5. Update and revise course plans, content, objectives, and student
learning ocutcomes as necessary.

6. Coordinate student clinical experiences with program chair and

healthcare facilities.

7. Visit professional practice experience clinical sites at regular
intervals and conduct routine clinical interactions throughout the
applicable semester.

8. Assist in the applicant selection process for admission fo the
program.

9. Advise students on academic and professional aspects of the

program and expected performance.
10. Participate in student recruitment and retention efforts.
11. Instruct courses in accordance with University workload guidelines.




12. Serve as a member of the Advisory Committee.
13. Actively participate in professional and informal learmning
activities (e.g. district, state, and/or national level) to enhance
personal and professional development.
14. Certification in online course teaching utilizing the Moodle
Learning Management System.
15. Maintain continuing education hours.
16. Maintain continuing education hours.

REQUIRED:
Two years of experience as a practicing polysomnographic technologist.
Must be a Registered Polysomnographic Technologist (RPSGT).
Possess excellent computer skills.
Excellent communication skills both verbal and written.
Excellent organizational and time management skills.
Must be able to work evenings.

PREFERRED:
Associate Degree
Working knowledge of MCODLE Learning Management Platform
Teaching experience

WORKING CONDITIONS AND PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS = 0

Must be able to work under stress. Work independently and handle multiple tasks.
Must have excelient communication skifls, both verbal and written.

Work positions include sitiing 60%, standing 20%, walking 10%, lifting and carrying
10%.

DIREGTREPORTS 0 0 b i e e
N/A

Thts posation is grant funded and contlnued empioyment is contlngent upon sponsor
approval and consistent funding levels.

The preceding job description has been designed fo indicate the general nature and
fevel of work performed by employees within this classification. If is not designed to
contain or be interpreted as a comprehensive inventory of all dulies, responsibilities and
qualifications required of employee assigned fo this job.




Approved by: Signature of the person with the authority to approve the job description

Date approved: - Date upon which the job description was approved




SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM

Office of the Executive Vice President/Executive Vice Chancellor
J. 8. Clark Administration Building, Third Floor
Baton Rouge, LA 70813
Phone: (223) 771-4025

July 24 2018

Dr. Ray L. Belton

President-Chancellor

Southern University System

4th Floor, J.S. Clark Administration Bldg.
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

Re: Awarding of the Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters to Mr. James E. Charles
Dear Dr. Belton:

Mr. James E. Charles has been recommended as a candidate for the Honorary Doctor
of Humane Letters by the faculty in the School of Education in the College of
Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies for the August 2, 2019, Commencement
Exercises. Mr. Charles has broken color barriers in the field of education by being the
first African American to serve as a curriculum development specialist and as principal
of Allen J. Ellender Memorial High School. He also is the first and only African
American to serve as superintendent of the Terrebonne Parish School System.

Mr. Charles started his career in education in 1968 after graduating from Southern
University with a degree in elementary education. He went on to earn his master's
degree in administration and supervision in 1974. Mr. Charles used his degree to
ensure that children from all races and backgrounds could receive a quality education.

| am submitting this packet on Mr. James E. Charles for your review and submission to
the Southern University Board of Supervisors for ratification at its August board
meeting.

Sincerely,

James H. Ammons, Ph.D.
Executive Vice President/Executive Vice Chancellor

“Five Campuses, One Vision... Global Excellence™



SOUTHERN'
UNIVERSITY

AMD AGEICUU U!Lll ﬁ 'U. {"‘Il\."ll:.u. CDLLE\.-E
College of Humanities and Interdrs:uplmury Studies

College of Humanities and
Interdisciplinary Studies
Rodney G. Higgins Hall
P.0. Box 9571

Phone: (225) 771-5384
(225) 771-3631
Fax: (225)771-3696

July 23, 2019

Dr. Bijoy Sahoo

Senior Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs
Southern University and A&M College

3rd Floor, J. S. Clark Administration Building

Baton Rouge, LA 70813

Dear Dr. Sahoo,

The faculty from the College oh Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies at Southern
University and A&M College has approved the recommendation to grant an Honorary
Doctorate Degree to, Mr. James E. Charles, a pioneer in the education circle and a great
community server of families and children.

Mr. James E. Charles, a BA and MA graduate of Southern University in Baton Rouge, continued
his education in the classroom and the community. He was the first African-American
educator to work as the Curriculum Development Specialist for Native American Children.
Mr. Charles was also the first African-American Principal of a high school as well as the First
African American Superintendent of Terrebonne Parish School System. To this date, no other
African-American has held this position. He was also part of the team who developed the
0.N.E.C.H.A.LN. program, that served 800 underprivileged children per summer for over 3
years.

Mr. James E. Charles has dedicated his professional and personal life to serve others,
especially children and the African-American community.

[tis an honor to nominate Mr. James E. Charles to receive an Honorary Doctorate Degree at
the Summer commencement ceremony.

Sincerely,

Vo

‘_‘,F'Ilthla Dﬂwnmg Bryant
Dean, College of Humanities and Interdisciplinary Studies
Southern University & A M College

www.subr.edu



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM

Office of the Senior Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs
J. 8. Clark Administration Building, Third Floor
Baton Rouge, LA TO813
Phone: (225) 771-2360

July 23, 2019

Dr. James H. Ammons

Executive Vice President/Executive Vice Chancellor
3 Floor, ]. S. Clark Administration Building

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

RE: Honorary Degree Recipient

Dear Dr. Ammons:

The Academic Council recommended the awarding of the honorary degree of Doctor of Humane
Letters to James Charles, scholar, educator and humanitarian. Mr. Charles has made
outstanding contributions to the field of education and society in general. Awarding of this most
prestigious degree would honor both the School of Education as well as the Southern University
campus.

[ await your approval. Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

X

Bijoy K. Sahoo, PhD
Senior Associate Vice Chancellor

Jjrnt

“Five Campuses, One Vision... Global Excellence”



James E. Charles

James E. Charles started his educational career in 1968 when he graduated from Southern University in
Baton Rouge, LA with a Bachelor’s Degree in Elementary Education. He then used his degree back in his
home parish of Terrebonne, in 1969 as a classroom educator. After a few years of classroom work, Mr.
Charles decided to further his own education. In 1974, he graduated with his Master’s degree in
Administration and Supervision from Southern University Baton Rouge. He then used this degree to
continue to work with the children of Terrebonne Parish and break barriers for others. Mr. Charles
became the first African-American to work as the Curriculum Development Specialist for Native
American children. In 1989, he became the first African-American principal of a high school, Allen J.
Ellender Memorial High School. Eventually, he felt It was time to help more than just the students of
Ellender and became the first African-American Assistant Superintendent of Terrebonne Parish School
system. To this date, no other African-American has held this position. Mr. Charles also reached the
pinnacle of his educational career, when he became the first African-American Superintendent of
Terrebonne Parish school system, another position where no other African-Americans have held to this
date.

Even with all of the positions he held inside of the school system in Terrebonne Parish, he still wanted to
do more. He worked for years with the Terrebonne Parish Recreation Department. Also, along with
other family members, he developed O.N.E. C.H.A.L.N. program. This program serviced over 800 children
per summer for over 3 years, providing a summer enrichment program for low to moderate income
families. His love of children and community has led to an illustrious career and the children of
Terrebonne Parish are the better for it.



ATHLETICS
COMMITTEE



ATHLETICS COMMITTEE

(Following the Academic Affairs Committee)
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom

1%t Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019 !
AGENDA
Call to Order
Roll Call
Adoption of the Agenda

Public Comments

Action Item(s): :

A. Request Approval of SUBR FY 2019-2020 Athletic Budget (SUBR)
B. Request Approval of SUSLA FY 2019-2020 Athletic Budget (SUSLA)
C. Request Approval of SUNO FY 2019-2020 Athletic Budget (SUNO)

Other Business

Adjouwrnment

MEMBERS
Mr, John Barthelemy — Chair, Atty. Edwin Shorty — Vice-Chair,
Mr, Raymond Fondel, Rev. Donald Ray Henry, Atty. Patrick Magee, Dr. Rani Whitfield
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge-- Ex Officio




FACILITIES
AND
PROPERTY
COMMITTEE



FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE

(Following the Athletics Committee)
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom

1%t Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019
9:00 AM
AGENDA

. Call to Order

. Roll Call

. Adoption of the Agenda

. Public Comments
. Information Item(s):

A. Update on Grounds and Campus Beautification (SUBR)
B. Priority Projects Updates, by Campuses

. Other Business

. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Rev. Donald R. Henry — Chair, Dr, Rani Whitfield — Vice-Chair,
Drt. Leroy Davis, Mr, John Barthelemy, Mrs. Ann Smith, Mr, Richard Hilliard
Atty, Domoine D, Rutledge- Ex Officic




)
w2,

SOUTI II:-I!‘\H'
UMIVERSITY
Viea Chancellor I‘m‘ Financa and Adminialratian
Vice Chancellor for Finance and Administration
Post Office Box 9212
Baton Houpe, LA 7OH13
Fax; 225 771-2014
Office: 225 771-5021

August 15, 2019

Dr. Ray L. Beltan

System President/Chancellor
Southern University

].5. Clark Administration
Baton Rouge, LA 70813

RE: SUBR CAMPUS UPDATE
Dear Dr. Belton,

The purpose of this correspondence is to provide your office with an update relative to
campus landscaping and building maintenance.

The Office of Human Resources and the Purchasing department are still in the process of
researching the feasibility of outsourcing the University's landscaping function, However, | am
pleased to report that | have witnessed significant improvement in our landscaping due to expanded
use of contracted services (at no additional cost) and the hiring of three full-time personnel in our
landscaping unit. Mr, Pitts, Executive Director of Facility Services, and | tour the campus every
worlkday to ensure the campus presentation meets your expectations.

The Office of Human Resources has initiated discussions with the Louisiana Department of
State Civil Service regarding salary upgrades for custodial personnel. Hopefully, we will be able to
schedule a meeting soon, We have been able to utilize some of our best custodians on an overtime
basis to provide floor waxing and building clean-up in what our Facilities department has named
“Operation Clean Sweep.”

Additionally, the Facilities department performed a two-day preventive maintenance check
an our high voltage power system to proactively address power outages that caused school closures
in FY 2019, Lastly, repairs were made to exterior lighting located around housing facilities at the rear
of the campus.

I would like to commend Mr. Pitts and his staff for an outstanding effort in responding to
concerns of your office and the Southern University Board of Supervisors. | have attached
photographs documenting items noted in this memo for your review.

If you have any questions or concerns, please free to call.
Sincerely,

e

Benjamin Pugh
VICE CHANCELLOR FOR FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

cc: Dr. James Ammons, Executive Vice President and Executive Vice Chancellor



Southern University and Agricultural & Mechanical College

INCORPORATED 1880 RELOCATED 1914 BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

Facility Services Snapshot:

Electrical Infrastructure Improvement

A campus wide shut down was done on July 27" and 28" ta PM the Main HV Switch, Sectionalizer Cablinets
and HY Switches. The load was removed at the Main Switchgear and the primary feeders were isolated.
All high veoltage breakers and cable were disconnected, cleaned, greased and reconnected. High-pot
testing was done to identify and replace defective and dead-break hoots.

Academic Buildings- Operation "Clean Sweep”

Stewart Hall 100%

Isaac Greggs Bldg 100%

1T Allain 95%

Higgins Hall 80%
Blanks Hall Starting 8/16

1B Moore Hall TBA

- Stewart Hall

Isaac Greggs

TT Allain l-'
i



Southern University and Agricultural & Mechanical College

INCORPORATED 1880 RELOCATED 1914 BATON ROUGE, LOUISTANA

Higgins Hall

Grounds

Visible improvements were realized through hiring additional staff and increasing the responsibilities of

the current grounds contractor. A zone grid of the campus has been developed and a maintenance
sehedule has been established.




Southern University and Agricultural & Mechanical College

INCORPORATED 1880  RELOUCATED 1914 BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA

Lighting Repairs

Physical plant electricians carrected the lighting issues in residential housing by changing wires, lights and
new ballasts. Burnt wires on several fixtures contributed to the loss of power on pole lights which effected
the contral eye sensor ability to command the lights to come on and/or go off,

Road/Pot-Hole Repairs

...... See attached Images



HI0AA JO SBIY D

Jdjemxoidde oIe SuoISuI (]
J[EJS 0] JON

WOYUOHILOSUO U0 TAMM  SO0L-TLT (STE) =uoyd
JLBT 20UIG 28N0Y uoleq SUIAe ],

U] .OU

UONITLIISUO))
Juoure

P
A Py




WOY HOTINNSUOUOWE MMM CO0T-ZLE (STT) :2uoyy

saop joseary [ JLET 2IUIS 95N0Y U0IRg SUIAR],

U] .OU

JJewIXodde 2.1 SUOISUud I EOAHUEHWQOU
3[EIS 0] JON ®
juoure]




MO TONINTSWO JHEOIE T amn  CO0T-TLT (ICTE) =uoug

HI0A\ JO SEATY D JLBT 20Ul mMﬂOﬁ uoleq mﬁ_bmm__

U] OU

UONONIISUO))
BWIX0I0dE 218 SUOISUITII
i 3[€JS 0] JON : - H—.—.\._”OE@.I—




WO UOIRNNSUO)IUOWE MMM COOT-ZLE (CZT) Puoyd

wiopjoseary [ JLET 20UIS 9810y uoieg Suired,

U] OU

J]e EmH_uHH—.HH <1 SHOISUWI(y .—“—”O._”HUEH wgo U
[E3S 03 JON H.HH OEN_IH




SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLLEGE SYSTEM
J. 8. CLARK ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
3" FLooR
166°G, LEON NETTERVILLE DR,
BaTon RoudE, LOUISIANA 70813

OFFICE OV (225Y771-2786 QOFFICE

FACILITIES PLANNING (225) 771-2922 FAX
Eli_Guillory@sus.edu

August 5, 2019

Hon. Dr. Ray L. Beltan

President of Southern University System
4™ Floor, J. 8. Clark Adm. Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

RE:  Southern University System Office of Facilities Planning Project Updates

Dear Dr, Belton,

We are transmitting the attached updated document report, which indicates the remarkable status
of each campus building construction, renovations, building repairsfupgrades and facilities
planning progress for your files. Additionally, many meetings have been held to consult with
each SU System campus facility management group along with the Board of Regents, Facility
Planning and Control, DOTD and the Govemor's Office of Homeland Security/Emergency
Preparedness for the overall capital improvement process to meet the goals of this great
university.

Should you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to call me, Your approval and sustained
support of Southern University System Office of Facilities Planning is greatly appreciated.
Respectfully submitted,

(TR

Eli G. Guillory ITI
Director of Facilities Planning

Attachments enclosed: Progress report and construction pictures

“Five Campuses, One Viston,..Global Excellence”
WWW.SUS.EDU



Southern University and A&M College System

SU Systern Campuses Projects

Eil G. Gulllery 111 Augusl 2019

) Pl LT

T BUAG A bl - -
| fina = ing
exterior painting andwall | 78,000,00 [State 2018 ,’;’;:g"&":“mm oo
: m.‘mol':an Y ropalis
|toisa GpocamnAs” | 1052208 s ool i
e W "
Aclive - 98% complste Mel
Eng. and CMGC -
completed, pending
JA. ©. Willlams Hall recommendation of
Mechanlcal HVAC system accaptance from he
upgradas - Wastalda of 3 140,000,00 |State 2018 Dagigner - addilienal
Phass one - part 1 mech, panding work by Sllag for
unite, eoll upgrades, 240k -Pending by FP&C
sasking additional AFC
funding $1,500,000 and
£180,000 for ang. Deign,
.. |Fad, Gev - %’h wtﬂk
" e oy 2008 2019l oo e
1
Panding approval by Fp&a
SUAG - A, O. Willlams Hall of Capilal Cullay funding
Renovatlons - Phase 2 for 34,600,000 for phase 2
Enstaids, axt. wall flashing, de §  4,500,000.00 |State 20 3!
brick masonry and
|Machanical Systam upgrades
Mullipurposs Buliding $  1,492,444.00 |Fed. Gov. 200
21830000 |Fad. Gov. |apr 2018
2003
Fail, Gov 2003
§0,000.00 [Fad, Gov. 2003
212,400.00 |m. Gov. |Apr. 2018
schanical AHU Mach, | 140,00000 me 10202017
aom aquipment Rapalrs i -
Acliva - panting Fpie
| appraval of deslgner In
Hew Maga Disnster Rellal Siala / Julyfiug 2018 -
shoiter (for 2,500 beds) | * 17500000 Ipyey  [1An- 2018 p2_81,000,000
p5_%$8,375,000 interagenoy
! GOHSEP$15,000,000
|8UAG - Road/Etrest and
Canal Sall Emllw; e
Impravemants at
Exparimental Fam Statisn §  3,300,000.00 |Siate THR2O18 panding siate approval
| 14600 Scenic Highway / US
Hwy 61 (EARP/Baker LA)
: E;‘:f_ 9E F":‘:‘“"mn §  1,226,000.00 |State THR018 pending slate approval
Dlmnlrlien of Barn bullding(s) Activa - panding planning
|af the 1960's and 1970 $ 10350000 |Stale ol and bidding by fpae
supn [ SUHELE%TIE}‘L;&W' § 15177800 [rwe s 2018 201a|complete
= nr ciance Complex - ] : T
| grlm recnyapace planning | % 88,000.00 [Tiile 3 2017 '201_9' complalad
—— '- 1




mcansibllity

Panding full planning and
Cansirustion funding by
B ety T ERM" State / DoA | Fplelo
SUBR | m;:mm i § 48,000,000.00 (State 7102017 rosssd Vil desion
i planning (p2 $500,000) far
construclion
T B 100%
am favermene o ooomfes e | s
1 At - HVAG ; complated - Canatruction in
BUBR  achanical Systam Rapain | ®  127+11200 [ote 10MA018]  713072019) oo reas - 100% complate
= Alr Handling Unit Rapair - W, . 350,000,00 |State 100017 A:h:;fg;:;mﬂhn In
PV 5 100,000,00 |Stals 10M8/2017|  7/30/2018]complete
8
] 100,000,00 |Stata 10M8/2017|  7/30/2018| complate
Conatruclian in progress -
i -Phase $  100,000.00 |Stale 10MB/2017 2018 100% complele
ing Systam Repalr - Construction in
;mlwu A Debose Musle |5 226,000.00 |State 10Me/2017 ﬁ;;f ;;;f. complete
| |Active - Censlruction In
|progress 92% complate
| : =1 ! K fundi roval
$ 7.000,00000 [staie 2018 Loy P
|perimater readway, walks,
Jand sirasls )
|Active - Consluction In
i |progress B8% completa
Ees ey sak funding approval
3 7450,00000 [state 018 A e
|perimater roadway and
.y i rhing )
suBr |15 omrkAdm BTG - |y 54566 00 [stae 1212012017 complatad
| ~ |Frank Haydan Hall - Theatra i 1 funding fo
;:?: ;::ltmnml Phase1 |3 15000000 T3  |Apr.2018 ot ™
Ruffin Paul Cantral Plant -
Loap Pump and Valva
|Replacament (Rebulid fE‘JM i i
mm |Loop pumps and replaca with va - In the planning
BURRS o0y VEDs, Roplace vaives |°  212/000.00 (Siate naTRate phass for bidding by fp&c
on fop of afwminum cooling
lpwvar and replaca sofely
PRI~ Safuly Camplance & Agtive - In the planning
raﬁiqh- g::w::uu Projact at the Law | § 95,400,00 |State 712712018 phase for bldcing by fphc
T Pending WBS no, fro
SUBR 5 300,00000 [State 2018 i )
HUBR | T ke ey § 70,0000 [SUBR 2018 duli@ complete
o I Aclive - FPAC panding
upR I § 440,000,00 |Stale 2018 planning ghase
* |Repairs of 100ft tower and
L parking lot Ightlng upgradea i
GUBR  [to LED's - Wostand Eastof £[ §  175,000.00 |State 2018 i P i
|G Clark Activity Contar piennng phese
{Disastar Rolief Shofter }
~ [Upgrade lighting syatem for .
BUBR  |classrooms, exits and ] 100,000,00 |State 2018 M":l.m:;:‘%h':.fm
|atmirweila in varous buildings
~ |Campus aldewalks repalrs . ; "
e |nautralizing trip hezards and Agliva - canglruction in
Fm suring whaalechalr ' el o e pregrass complete




J. 8. Clark Af:lrn.ﬂuildnuh . Actve- FPAC panding
BRI O o wrd ey |° 19000000 Sl 2018 blanning phase
automatad digital centrals
= W, W, Stewart Hall . Ty
SUBR  |Audtorium Mech HVAC |3 265414.00 [State 2018 ot i
prol= e ! 'f e
:.;?I'; m::ﬂpllmihn Activa - construction § low
T L P W bid $5,000,000 by Merrick
GUBR  |Gontrol & Rend 3 10,000,000.00 ngw 62512017, LLE & Frg-mnet raaating
~ |improvaments : 34uly20719
Active - In progress -
u;rrwmammuullw ? T (e Deslgner AST Engl
SUBR  [Line Erasion Conlrol nd | 1,221,407.00 |Stats 2016| m-:nn: A2 -
: Reloaatlon I Gallo Mech, bid $400,000
Musiz Bullding Annex - Music ' Acive - el ks
- Construction Bid
O e B $  200,000.00 [Title 3 2018, mmur:t:n@ -
|\ W Stewart Hall Firat Fi Active - programing &
SUBR lewﬂ:nw:- Harth 2 ¥ IR | a3 i planning phasa for bidding
S |WL W, Btewart Hall Lob Active - programing &
'mw Raslraoms HILER 1s 160,000 [Tie3 mml planning phase for bidding
|ﬂl-l5ﬁ |T. H. Harrie :ml Window s 50,000,00 |State ;mgl 2017|Complats
|susr ;msﬁﬁ“aim $ 402600 state 201 2017|complels
s 426000 [State 201  2016/Complete
S 4700.00 |state zma] 2017|Camplets
S 28783135 2017|Gomplala
"|$  B87.087.70 [Biale 2018 2017|Complets
: $ 20249185 |Stawe 2018 2017|Complete
SUBR ," Lbrary -FimAlem | 5 279 106,00 [stale 2018 2017|Complaw
suar  |Sa% '”“W' S S 15000.00 [Stata 2018  2017|complete
BUBR | Oecae T |5 101000000 |state 2018 2018(Complelad
Tony Glaytan Championshi U
SUDR |t ek P ls asso0000 (- 2017 2018(Camplated
~ [Frank Haydan Hall - Thealre
BUBR Jasatng and s it |6 28800000 T3 |Aor 2018 2018|compiated
LT S ikl ‘W“"""‘“ Theal® | & 25700000 |Tiled  |Apr. 2018 2018 complatad
E. G. Harrison Stent &
SUBR  |sidewalk Replacoment / 5 404,000,00 |Tille 3 Apr. 2018 2018|complaled
Sa L Log
Behoal of Computer Sclende
aUBR mﬁm H’:':“;.u Hi |y 2amococo|mies  |apr 2016 2018]complated
== omple:
suBrR [ *n "-“""‘“ﬁ; Feor | \azoooco[ries  |apr 2018 2018 camplatad
sur  |rcoinaReplacement -JS 15 1a570.7 |stme yrzon|  2018|compisted
""n K“""""“ > $  270308.87 [Stote 11282018 2018{Cempiated
j== fRoofing Replacament - ,
SUBR  |Southem University Museum | 5 41.200.00 |State 1112002018 2017|Complatad
i ﬂf At (GLIMA
Door Enirance ADAREOAIS: [ 4 41,500.00 [state 127008 2018|Completed
Eiectical Lightng
: Ropair/Upgrades - Rednay | 8 77.250:00 |Stale 1218/2016 2018|Complaiad
Higgin Hall & C
aupr  |Sdewalk & Curb Ramp
SUBR |Ropairs for ADA Compliance 5 20,000.00 |&tale 1211022018 2018|Complated




SUBR [ e |3 33090000 State 21612017 2017 |Complatad
supr  [hod “"[ﬂ'"“ﬁm‘? 3 22047812 |Stale 20602017 2018|Complated
SUBR s 231,383.60 [State 202017 3018[compieted
SUBR 5 8742040 s wasporr|  2010{Compietad
BUBR [VACT £-Mulllle | s 4n.750.00 [aume aanotr|  z018|Completed
, panjamin Krall Hall - Rootop . J
SUBR  [Mechanical Equlpmnt 5 26,000.00 |State AB/2018 2018|Comphatad
‘a‘i.l!ir'(: I|“'°°“‘“ Higgins Hall - Rooftop s g,000,00 [State 1272018 2018|Complated
FEET |Eshaust Fan Raplacemant haibs
UBR__|Btudent Health Centar - $  133,000.00 [State 712412018 eou]cnrnwm-d
§ Conlral Byslama .
Rpimt-Minl LabiCompliance | $  150,000,00 |State 10/19/2017 2018|Campleted
olifg Tovar Repnirs-Autin
SLBR le §r. Caniral Fllnl phase [ §  226,000.00 |Sale 1001972017 2017|Completed
SUBR :mmnﬁmmmht s 46508000 |Fias e 5017 mmiam and
7 I Saaking funding approval
S8UBR  |SU Police Station Rencvalion | 3 450,000.00 |SUBR Apr. 2018 for ranovalions by SUBR -
SUBR ;ﬁ,ﬁ;";: AT 5 45000000 [SUSR 2018
' Active - pllnrlm ane Wi
p 01-107-18-02 WRS-
J. W, Fishor Reonvations - oLl F01003468 - Coleman
,,,,,, mﬁimnm .hnm:llb N 7 2018 April | Partners A _
SuBR ’ o Elegt, $ 550000000 5 E  |appraved 85,027) £/2010 to
mﬂnuﬂﬁr'fﬁ\\hhw- i um June 8120 E I',I;I;gm
upgrad p =7 §: %m ralling
funds ¢ Intaragency
52,000,000
mastar planning /
cenalruatlon In prograss at
30% and mlqug
SUBR  [Softball Complex Upgrades | $  500,000.00 |SUBR 512019 o, SOOI
review w/ BoR and fpda for
capital autlay funding July
|2018
Domolition of Bulldings-
" - Arch, Wast, Jesse Cwani,
P ' Y Aclive - In the planning
aum hmt- ;:mm:ﬂ \:::l_;ingl;n $  1.980,000.00 |State B//2018 ohasa for bldding by fpde
|Jones Hall
§ 0,000 2018|2017 |completed
v - panding planning
$ 47530000 [State 8/31/2018 If'f”“ e
$ 22636500 |State 11/20/2018 2018|Complated
Acllva - 75% comjplnle-
Phasa 1 & 2 - tamporary fama| § 2,184 846,00 |FEMA 2015 b Sl
irallers lake l:d park campus Hl-lﬂllfjlbl I;lgldlrﬂ
Utiv. Conler Replace A |5 205,778.00 {stale 2018 Complote
5 40440000 |Stale 201#‘ Gamplata
hereiy mrm-l'lrmmm
Resurfacing, Sldowalk & §  61,800.00 {Stale 2018 Complete
ighting repal
: i 3 7 0 Eﬁi 1 me
Arts and Humanities Bullding | § 21,200,000.00 [FEMA 2016 compliate
Arls and Humanitios Actlva - planning phase for
|Buiiding = flooring upgrades e bl bldding




] I\

Active - planning phase for

|Arts and Humanities bidding - fadkditiomal
|Buliding - Museum $ 26678000 |FEMA 2019 m;:,?g rf:};dm; of
|Renovation 2nd floar $1, 200,000 mﬂmm
Machanleal HYAC Controls & i Agtive = planning and
Equipment upgradas ’ Wi P i bidding byfpfc |
S SN .:-:d{p.mm Active pllnrllnu and
let upgrades ! repaira for &
various locations on the Park | ¥ 145.000.00 Giale bidding by fpdo
Campus and Lake Campus
Campus wide Mmar;b:ﬂ Al i oo
HVAG Syatam Upgradas for .
varlous bulldings on the Park | ¥ 900.000.00 Giale and bidding
and Laoke ¢
Univaraity Conter 2nd & 3rc‘l:|
fMaar door replacemants an ding fp&a al
calfting of $  200.000.00 [State Pending fp&a approv
olfices/rasl roome/coridars,
2,700,000.00 [FEMA 2015 Active - planning phass
Damolition of existing )
Bulldinga - New Sclance and | §  1,393,000.00 [FEMA 2018 s BTr momn oy
Old Belance Bulldings
2R 11,608,000.00 |FEMA 2018 ﬂ;‘:‘:;;ﬁ:“‘"”““"
2016 2017|Completed
‘"‘""l""“h Library HVAG iz :
Eleetrical Undarground Wiring ; e P
Rapairs & Outdecr Lighting doie aniscompleled
Machariesl Underground |5 s1,500,00 [stale 26| 2017|Completed
LRl Qe : -
oefing Repalr -} § 38,1500 [State sn3notr|  2017|Completed
Emarganey Chilled Watar
Valva Instalintion - L. § 10,0000 [Stale 81372017 2017|Complated
Washinglen Mamarial Library
Elscirical & Lighting ] )
Repalrs/Replacamants - 3 51.500,00 |Stale Traaraoit 2018)Complaled
]tk Laad L)
$ 6520017 |Stale 10/17/2017 2018|Completod
- |_3__6,087,000.00 |FEMA 205 complaiod
""" & 10,257,000.00 |FEMA 2018 2017|complated
Acliva - pending planning &
Lidding {on hald by FRAC
susia [Mechanloal/HVAC System 15 424,000.00 |State Tr2T12018 dua o a RFP for anergy
Fapun ? rnquinpn peromiance
conlracling by S8UELA)
BUSLA |ADARestroomsupgrades | $  117,873.00 [State :;”m‘f;; pending planning
SUSLA  |Elavatior repalia H 71,180.00 |State Acllve = repalrs In progresa
‘Allan Buliding Sehael of
8USLA  |Nursing Renovation §  3,500,000.00 |Staa 2018 Active - 88.6% complela
[Davwniown Texas 51.) _
HVAC upgrades, Install New .
BUBEA L o e Ovaivegs. 8 192,710.00 [Tiie Nl Active - In Progress
Install Keylnas Entry Looks on
HUSLA  |MLE, Incubator and Metro § £0,000,00 |Tite I Active - Panding
Campus’
Campua Bullding Cirections -
SUSLA Sighage g 3 15,000.00 |Title I Active - Panding
Tnstall Energy Efficiant .
SUSLA : B8 Lighiing 8 85,000.00 | Title 111 Active f'muinn
SUBLA  |Renovals Admiasions Office | % 10,000.00 [Titla 11 Active - Panding
[BUBLA_|Renovate Bathracms §___60,000,00 [Tila Nl Active - Panding




BLISLA

SUsLA -Campus HYAC
Syalam Ropairs

§ 184,688.00

Ginta

1302017

Activa - panding
eomplation

BUSLA

Sita campls draindge
upgrada threughsut tha maln
CAMPLUSE,

5 160,000.00

Slate

Active - Panding planning

SUSLA

Wachanical Syalam - Foplace
Adr Handlsr Units and Duct
syslem, Fan Colls, Exhaust
Fana {(Sclence Bullding
(BOTH05), (Fine Arts, 507508
& Jesas Sione, S07511)
Sarvar Unit Repair (IT, Main
Campus, S07603), Replaca
Fan Coll Unik Motors and
{Administration S07503),
Raplaca Pumps
{(Administration S07603)

$ 282,232.00

Glate

Activa - panding planning &
bidding {en hold by FPAC
due lo & RFP for anergy
savings parfermance
confracling by SUSLA)

SLISLA

Replace Hol and Cold Watar
unidarground piping on
campus (Administeation

S07603, NCR 507504,
Selence 07505, Fine Arls
807509, Jesse Slone
S07611, PD & Facliitias
507608, Library S07508,
Fhyslcal Plant 807510,
Shipping & VWarshousa
512089, Health & Education
513204, Btudant Unlon
507807, Studant Astivity
515813, Womens and
Minorities Small Businoss
515937, Jackson & Dental
Hyglens Bulldings)

§ 20,000,00

State

Panding sppraval by fp&e

BUSLA

Dawrtawn Metro Bullding roof
repiln nnd existing rooftop
machanical ltema removal

§ 30,000.00

Slate

Active - planning and
bldding by SUSLA

SUSLA

SLISLA -Campus Safety
Compliance Prejects -
alka/doorallighting repairs

] 97,850.00

Slate

113082017

Active - Rapairs In
in!llﬂmmu

SUSLA

SUSLA -HPER-Gymnasium

§ 14248013

Slate

20T

2017|Completed

SUSBLA

SLELA

3 26,750.00

State

4132017

2018|Complatad

SUSLA

& 5548000

AATEMT

2018 Compleled

5 6,300,000.00

Stale

2018]Completed

Hew Dental Hyglene Learning
Gantar

3 0900,000.00

$ 231,669,008.91

ona lime

atate
il

2017 |Complatad




SU Systam Campuses FY 19_20 Doferrad Maintanance llems

July 2010 funding yaar

Rinlusl ¥

¥2 M iata Sananai Fund (SOF Cah) - Mnunmh

Gl Borad (P GO Furiding) = Avallible o8
or roune Cepabis faatng of Siste Dond Commislan, Ocdebe b
\namnyily tha manth whian tha Bos) Gommiglon fands out e
GLOCH for P2 apprapristions. 5 Twal

parn at e
P sppeet

[EU Baten Rouge Deforred Maintenance ltams

ufidlfag '
e s el
P AL PGleuls s ol “ -
I L i (b
(UL Fion Alsin slarus upaaites | puters o ok | |
Labpraicny Sotool Gpm ool replacenent and (40, wakways) | B B00,000.00 | oM ficammandag appiedsl |3 300,000.00
R
00,000 1
]
]
- 1
] R e 88 SR W
4 WSS e anl ) M 5 116,00000 | Bel pommending bppiowsl | 8 110.000.60
1. . Masre Hall Moot Maplasaasin A 1 30000000 | Bal meommanding spprossl | § 300,000.00
1
i
* Frcech al Fan! asin of sladnm
brenichind but an wind e g iyslam b
: aF T a1 rarvcvnim
q.mnmummmmummmu i [l Xt
: i
3
]
F.ﬂ.mMHrWhﬂ Wmﬂlhiﬂﬂ“
[wearebirind s A v 1 iliggta, i
gy fier dus to damige NHI.MNMF Fajlatiag Goils R aaid b D, 10 pEosAde codl

i wlring In nerth and souihend, Refurbizhing or mpladng tha
weaight mpam fioer, Raplacing damaged lockars In beih e Mer's,
Wismae's 80 Aol b Lackar Raom, Repisce demaged sanis in ik
i e ALY M,

el (e acapa o works
L]




l::.mﬂuim Fiibdhousa - BLe tha lealed iros Uve AS Gnll on
141, 2 aivd Ieid Agar, figiing on 3nd floos dud 10wl
|damagan boa A uallh. damaged caliing ilea from walst

ipalka o tha 181, Brd and Srd Naos. i of i i am agad SUIR and AD. 6 pravida coat
it e iz wliltes mnd sidsling solles. 1l Ti W g bl wid vl acepa of work-
iy amiyd 1y I A i i el i the il dome., Shaes reed paning

o e erirengd &0 Wilar Dan drsln gy, Fic he suldsled wideg in
Wiumiend Stadivn hor the phes Bow G Sorabosnd s

Ihanghout
|IM atadium. Faplace of Mafurblih lghtng Indide staaim an e

aryimur Qe Facilly « Wao] ijilacmant requlied, lmaving anto

Noor which [ cuiing F Ko sk i ceads 13 bi eken down 1o BN wnd 03, 80 piowiita cadl
m'mmum&unmumﬂnhhldﬂmlmnﬂﬂ rel ravinve scape f eivks
it #5d wasl, raplacing damagod und okl Iockar b [9eker foorm, panding

Plapla o6 da pgedd BoUN EFkIEm dus o lahing ef raal.

Lea Hired Bt -'Mmmnum wall and fancing sman
mred raplacing fl Lackalep

[Shaifun ll Flaid -

halevilivia Pleis P addig Lot - Papliciag ar riwiring the sleciicsl
I el

50 Law Center Daferrad hMalntenance |lsms
L)
tltillag il approval el |complalian
!

., w

Live Sanber HPAG isjalin 18,000.00 | Ball prtammanding apgrovsl | § 1800000
Latw Chinks Ande HVAS fapldismanl #5,000,00 | Befl recommaending apatval B0

cILs |':1|I /!
N

|8U Agriculturs Research and Extension Center Dafarred Maintanance llams

Dbl ding Wl §ppravil mmzl kit o i

wurice A, dwvond Arena - 16 paira, Visang B Panieg p———

el 18 flvm 41 (i bl B v

Pomyliry Williling « dwirmn el of daled o

ral D g vt $250,000.00

Wiilkding Wit appaaval i Gl W Y
w| LD, ’ . 5




brary
100G, WER [KLE ADA Maihmoms Difdings

! | A compmani resiroams snd athar pubiic ssssmmid ilioni i i

13 1, Ak, Mikdy, Catajafa, Unbvarity Canter, Haalth 8 PE Bidg. L
wiashiraglon Libiary,

N i FLEXEIT]

il B 3836000

Az I 1T

3

A1 | 800301 [Advwiuiration Buliding - Rl Rsplscamant e AS0000.00 | BeM recomamanaiing approal | 1§ 8000000
o AT P A L i LT

[} Afch, Budding Rapovation Prajas

& | B00AT [Finanalal Ald cillica Aaininairation Bulkding i LT

43 | BODI0I |Chuncalior ard Vice Cliniicelion's Enedutive Sultis Admisiiyation

pincs Moo e hpetemerganic a e 5 20,80990
4 | sosch duois and ignags on Fnd & 3rd fic
o ] 2000000
44 | a0oses ge duars nnd signaga Snd & Jd feos of Pe L
Iauhingran Liwar ] ARG, 000.00
Raos 81171 T i ) il g
il B 1000000
o 5o 1980
B B ammane
i 10000
i B 00
] g T
[.5] BRO030] | 13 mﬁ ﬁ
23 (A ‘ol ligFiireg fisturan o iw drd ard ord Raors of ihe
el C L ':.. 8 g R ] 37, Do
A3 | BO0A0D fraplacaran af alage hmmmmmmqu y
[x] WEiAcal Briry (of s Laba Ca g 3 :
ETe L R : ¥
1 |Ovarall SU ayatam Grand Talal [ 2030680000  Hiate funding [ §2,0000
Konduy, July 20, 3018
Wil G, Guiilary Bl
Diridor
Hoihein Unlvas) T
Em af Faiiitles sz
FIITH-3708 afca

HEbTa4811 oalt



FINANCE
COMMITTEE



FINANCE COMMITTEE
(Following the Facilities and Property Committee)
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom
15 Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019
9:00 AM

AGENDA
1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Adoption of the Agenda
4, Public Comments
5. Action Ttem(s)

SU Board and System Administration Operating Budgets — FY 2019-2020

SUBR Operating Budget - FY 2019- 2020

SUNO Operating Budget - FY 2019-2020

SUSLA Operating Budget - FY 2019-2020

SULC Operating Budget - FY2019-2020

SUAREC Operating Budget - FY 2019-2020

SU Board and System Inter-Institutional Cost Transfers Budget — FY 2019-2020
SU Board and System Unrestricted Fund Inter-Institutional Cost Transfers Budget —
FY 2019-2020

SU Board and System Special Meals and Miscellaneous Travel Budget - FY 2019-
2020

J. SU System 2019-2020 Operating Budget Form BOR-10 Salaries of Non-Classified
Employees and Form BOR-11 Salaries of Classified Employees

TQIETOE P

—

6. Information Item(s)
A. Interim Financial Report

7. Other Business

8. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Dr. Leon R. Tarver—Chair, Mr. Richard Hilliard-Vice-Chair
Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Dr. Letoy Davis, Mrs. Arlanda Williams, Mr. Sam Gilliam,
Atty, Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio




GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE



. Public Comments

. Other Business

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

(Fellowing the Finance Comniittee)
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom

1% Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019
AGENDA
Call to Order
. Roll Call
. Adoption of the Agenda

. Action Item(s)

Request Approval of SUS Accountability Score Card Results — Year One (SUS)
Request Approval of the Updated System Hazing Prevention Policy (SUS)

Request Approval of Southern University Law Center’s Mission Statement (SULC)
Request Approval of SUS Contlict of Interest Statement for SU Board of Supervisors
(SUS)

E. Request Approval of SUS Board Dismissal Policy (SUS)

Uawp

. Information Item(s)
A. Board Self-Evaluation Instrument Period 2018-2019 (SUS)

. Adjournment

MEMBERS
Mr. Sam Gilliam—Chair, Dr. Leon R. Tarver —Vice-Chair,
Rev. Donald Ray Henry, Atly, Patrick Magee, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Rev. Samuel C. Tolbert, Jr.,
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge-Ex-Officio




FULFILLING THE PROMISE
SU SYSTEM ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Dr. Viadimir A, Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Tonl L. Manogin, Executive Director

OUTCOMES SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
CYClE | Gomss | oBli KEY PERFORNANCE INDICATORS (KPls) Target Actual Difference % Difference
F2018 1 1 |Total Head Count Enroliment 12,251 12,324 3 0.60% A
Ipzum 1 2 |Dual Encolinest 27 227 ] 000
[Fan1a 1 3 |Ondne Encclment 181 228 a7 2597% A
|Fan18 1 4 |Mew FTFT Student Encetinent 2,138 2177 39 LE2%A
F2018 1 5  |uUndergraduate Enoliment 10,241 10,417 176 1.72%
|F2018 1 6 |Transfer-in Enroliment 763 789 % JA1% A
lFa018 1 7 |Graduate Enrcliment 1,275 1,283 8 0.63% A
F2018 1 &  |meAdmit Enrcliment 678 741 53 9.29% A
Fa018 1 9  |Cross-Enrcliment 149 148 -1 DGR
F2018 1 10 |Pel Elgible Students [% of Usdergraduate Enroliment) GLETH 62.67% D005 LD —
Fa018 1 11 [Adult Leaemers - 25 years and oider (X of Undergraduate Esecilment} 32.00% 33.77% L77% 5.52% A
F2017-1B 2 1 |t-bo-2 Year Fall-io-Fall Same intitution Retention Rate 49,00% £9.57% OL57% LG A
AY 2017-18 2 2 |Gyear Gradustion Rate Same lastiution {15006 of Mol Thme) [Fall 2012 Cobart) 24,00% 24,95% 0.95% 254 A
AY 2017-18 2 3 |3yeer Gradustion Rate Same lastitution (1500 of Moenal Time) [Fall 2095 Colat] 1.00% 1.07% 0.07% 7.00% A
AY 2017-18 2 4 [Credentisls pwarded (Completers) 1,971 1,981 10 051% A
A F047-18 2 5 |Bacal Diegree Awarded 1,031 1,032 1 0,105 &
av2017-18 | 2 6 |Master's Degree mwarded 463 464 1 022%A
av2017-18 | 2 7 |Docior's Degres Awseded 16 14 2 A12.50% 7
AY 2017-18 2 8 |Professonal Degree Awaeded 144 152 8 5.56%.A
AN 2007-18 2 9 |Diploma Awarded 10 10 i} 0005
AN 2017-18 2 10 [Certicabe Awarded B0 &5 5 G255 A
AY 2017-18 2 11  [Assoclate Degres Awanded 7 224 T 123% A
CY 2018 2 12 |WCLEX Passage Rabe [Baccalavceate Degres) BI.00% 83,00% 0.00% 000 —
CY 2018 2 13 Rate [ gree| 75.00% B7.50% 12.50% 1667T% A
lcy 2018 2 14  |PRAMS Examination Pawsage 100.00% 100.00% 0LO0%. 0,00 e
CY 2018 2 15  |Lovisiana Bar Assodation Passage 53,00% T1.68% 12.68% 21.49% A
lcv 2018 2 16 |Law Graduates Job Placement 74.00% 77.40% 3.40% 4.59% A
lov 2018 2 17 |utimate sar Passage 77.76% 85,29% 7.53% 9,58% A

1of2




FULFILLING THE PROMISE
SU SYSTEM ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANMING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS
Dr, Viadimir A. Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Toni L, Manogin, Executive Director

OUTCOMES ‘SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BYSTEM
cvcte | Goalsy | o KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [ItPis) Target | Actual Dlfferance % Difference
2048 3 1 100% Comph {hooreditation Standard 100.00% 100.00% 00003 10,005
2008 3 7 |t00% Compliance wledividiad Program Accreditation Standands. 100,005 100.00% 0.00% 10,03
[Py 2018 3 3 |Financisl lesth index - Corrent Ratio 245 2.52 0.07 2.78% 4
[Py 2018 3 4 |Fnancial Heath ciex - Working Capita $5,960,000 $7,162,408 51,202,408 20.17% A
Fi 2018 3 S |Fnancil leath Index - Uneesaricted el Pasition -42,890,000 -4005,597 §1,984,4038 68.66% A
AY 2007-18 4 1 |Grast Propesal Submitbed [} 153 171 18 10.76% A
AY 2007-18 4 2 |Grast Propssal Submilbed (5] 458,437,575 $63,747,808 45,310,129 9.09% A
AY 2007-18 4 3 |Grank Fropesal Awarded () 102 129 a7 26ATH A
AY 2007-18 &4 4 |Grank Propesal swvarded [$] 431,012,645 531,705,680 £653,035 123 A
CY 2018 5 1 |oenorsin) 2,200 2,220 20 0.91% &
CY 2018 5 2 |asp 3,900 2,905 5 0.13%
CY 2018 5 I $6,500,000 $6,995,831 $156,831 2.B9% A
|F2018 7 1 [intemationss student Esrciiment 246 262 16 6.50% A
|F2018 T 7 |Out-of-State Sudent Ensoliment 1,192 1,408 216 18.17% A
2018 T 3 [ipasdl Anewas Adome Membershios (4} 1,600 2,332 732 45, 75% A
2018 T 4 [traid) e Akemni Memberships 41} 2,831 3,271 440 15.54% A&
2018 T S |eress Releases (5] 5 30 5 20.00% A
2068 T 6  [Website - Bownce Rake [%) 49,505 A5.15% 0.32% 0.55% A
2018 T 7 |Social hedia - Total Fass/Foliower |1} 5,000 90,536 5,535 6.51% A
2018 T B [secialtedsa - Total Meisages Seat (1] 2,000 4,385 2,386 119.30% A&
2018 T 9 | Social Mieda - Totsl Meisages Recesved (1) 9,000 25,517 16,517 183.52% A
2018 T 10 |Socisl Meds - Tots! tmpressions (4] 19,000,000 30,935,816 11,935,816 62.82% A
2018 T 11 [Sockal Meds - Totsl Engagement (5] 110,000 659,542 549,542 499.58% A
2018 T 17 [Social edia - Total Link Chcks (1) 30,000 70,571 40,571 135.24% A
YEAR 1 - SU SYSTEM ACCOUNTABLITY SCORECARD
OUTCOMES SUMMARY
Year 1 - Expectation Level Mumber Percent

|Exceeded Cutcomes Expectations 43 33%

IMet Outcomes Expectations 7 13%

|Failed to Meet Outcomes Expectations 2 4%

TOTAL 52 100%

Zof2



IMAGINE 20K - ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Dr. Viadimir A, Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Tonl L. I‘Eannﬁln. Executive Director

QUTCOMES SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE
cvcle | coaush | osi# KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [KPIs) Target Actual Difference % Difference
[F2018 1 1 [Totaltiead Count Enrolimen 5,672 6,693 21 031% A
lF2018 1 2 [Dual Enrolment 180 189 9 5.00% k&
|F2018 1 3 [Online Enrobment 140 188 48 34.29% A
lF2018 1 4 |Mew FTFT Student Enroliment 1,300 1,342 42 3.23%A
[F2018 1 5  |undergraduzte Enmilment 5,750 5,838 88 1.53% A
Fz018 1 & |Transier-in Enroliment 180 317 7 931% A
F2018 1 7 |Graduate Enroliment 850 855 5 0.59% A
F2018 1 8 Re-Admit Enrcliment 175 220 54 J0.B5% A
F2018 1 9 |Cross-Enroliment 130 146 16 12.31% A
F201i8 1 10  [rell Eligihle Stadents [% of Uadergraduate EnnoBment) T0.00% 69.00% -1, -1.43%Y
F2018 1 11 [Adult Learners - 25 yesrs and odder (3% of Undergraduste Encollment) 15.00% 13.00% -2.00% -1333%Y
F2017-18 2 1 |i-to-2 ¥ear Fall-to-Fall Same Institution Retention Rate 64.00% 64.02% 0.02% 0.03% A
AY 2017-18 2 3 [6vear Graduakion Rase Same Institution (150% of Normal Time| (Fad 2012 Cobort) 30.00% 30.78% 0.78% 2.60% A
Avam7as | 2 S [credentials Awarded {Completers) 1,047 1,047 0 0.00%—
AY 2017-18 2 6 [Bsccalaureate Degree Awarded 735 736 1 0.14% A
AY 2017-18 2 7 [Mester's Degree awarded 296 297 1 0.34% A
AY 2017-18 2 8  [ooctocs Degree Awarded 16 14 2 -12.50% Y
CY 2018 2 9 [WCLEX Passage Rate {Baccalaureate Degree) £9.00% 89.00% 0.00% 0,003
CY 2018 2 10  [PRANS Examination Passage 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%—
2018 3 1 |100% Compliance wiAccreditation Standards 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0,00
2018 3 1 [100% Compliance wiindwiduzl Program Accreditation Standards 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%~—
FY 2018 3 3 [FinandialHeath Index - Current Ratio 1.40 1.47 0.07 5.00% A
FY 2018 3 4 [Financial Heath index - Working Capial $10,000,000 $10,381,558 $381,558 3.82% A
FY 2018 3 5 [l-h'nrﬂilHerthrUnresuitudHethm 54,200,000 S4,471,878 5271,878 GATH A

1of2




IMAGINE 20K - ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Dr. Viadimir A. Appeaning, Wice President & Dr. Toni L. Manogin, Executive Director

2of2

OUTCOMES SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE
CYCLE GOALSH | OBJY KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [KPIs) Target Actual Difference % Difference
AY 2017-18 L] 1  [GrantProposal Submitbed () 67 73 6 8.96% A
AY 2017-18 4 2 [&mrwmmm 525,000,000 429,021,274 54,021,274 16.09% A
AY 2017-18 4 3 |Grast Propasat Awarded () 55 59 14 25.45% A
AY 2017-18 4 4 |Gram Proposal Awarded {5) S1B,500,000 519,070,911 $570,911 3.09% A
CY 2018 5 1 |ponors i 1,571 1,760 189 12.03% &
CY 2018 5 2 |sifsim 2,641 2,896 255 0.55% A
CY 2018 5 3 |eis(s) $3,001,000 44,644,738 41,643,738 54.77% A
F2018 7 1 [|international Stadent Earcllment 140 152 12 B57TH A
F2018 T 1 |out-of-State Student Enwoliment 300 1,088 198 T2.25% A
2018 T 3 |[Paid) Annual Alumnl Memberships: () 1,600 2,332 732 A5, TH% A
2018 7 4 |Ipata) uite Abamni Memberstips () 2,831 3,27 440 15,54% A
2018 7 S [press Releases ) 25 56 31 124.00% A
2018 7 6 |Website - Bounce Rate (%) 49.50% 53.43% 3.93% TSR
2018 7 7 |social Media - Total Fans/Follower (4] 85,000 90,536 5,536 6.51% A
YEAR 1 - SUBR ACCOUNTABLITY SCORECARD
OUTCOMES SUNMARY
Year 1 - Expectation Level Number Percent

Exceeded Outcomes Expectations 29 76%

Met Outcomes Expectations o 13%

fFailed to Meet Outcomes Expectations 4 11%

TOTAL 38 100%



SUNO ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

S5U SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIOMAL EFFECTIVENESS
Dr. Viadimir A. Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Toni L. Manogin, Executive Director

OUTCOMES SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS
CYCLE GOALSE | OBIR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [KPis) Target Actual Difference % Difference

F2018 1 1 Tolal Head Count Enrollment 2,341 2,356 15 0.64% A
F2018 1 2 |Dual Enrcliment 189 195 6 1THA
F2018 1 3 IDnheErunllm:m 28 29 1 3.57% .4
F2018 1 4 |NewFTFTStudent Envoliment 190 183 E) 368NV
F2018 1 5 |undergraduate Enroliment 1,872 1928 56 2.99% A
F2018 1 6 |Transker-in Enroliment 275 73 -2 D.73%Y
|F2018 1 7 |Graduate Encollment 425 428 3 0.71% A
||=1013 1 B |Re-Admit Enrallment 180 188 3 4445 A
lF2018 1 9 |cross-Envoliment 10 1 9 50,00% Y
F2018 1 10 |Ped Efglble Students [% of Undengraduate Encoliment] 61.00% 62.00% 1.00% 1.64% .4
F2018 1 11 |Adult Leamers - 25 years and older (% of Undergraduate Enroliment] 50.00% 53.00% 3.00% 6.00% &
F2017-18 2 1 [t-to-2 Year Fall-to-Fall Same Instizution Retention Rate 48.00% 48.98% 0.98% 2.04% A
AY 2017-18 2 2 [6-vear Graduation Rate Same InstRution (150% of Normal Time) [Fall 2012 Cohort) 18.00% 19.11% 1.11% 6.175% A
AY 2017-18 2 3 ICredemlals Awarded [Compheters) 480 480 ] 000
AY 2017-18 2 4  [Baccalaureate Degree Awarded 296 296 0 0.00%~=
AY 2017-18 2 5 [Master's Degree Awanded 167 167 o 000
AY 20017-18 2 6 [|nssodate Degree Awarded 17 17 ] 0.00%m—
AY 2017-18 2 T |PRAGS Examination Passage 100,00% 100.00% 0.005%6 0.00%—
2018 3 1 [100% Compliance witccreditation Standards 100.00% 10:0,00%, 0.00% 0.00%—
2018 3 2 100% Compliance wiindividual Program Accreditation Standards 100,008 100.00% 0.00% (.00 %
FY 2018 3 3 [Financial Heath index - Current Ratio 0.25 0.38 0.13 52.00% A
FY 2018 3 4 |Financial Heath index - Working Capital -$9,000,000 -48,487,773 -$487,773 542%Y
FY 2018 3 5 IFI.narchaI Heath Index - Unrestricted Net Position -59,000,000 -59,629,264 -5629,264 <6995

1of2




SUNO ACCOUNTAEBILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE DF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIOMNAL EFFECTIVENESS
Dr. Miadimir A. Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Toni L. Manogin, Executive Director

OUTCOMES SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS
CYCLE | GOALSH | OB KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPis) Target Actual Difference % Difference
AY 2017-18 4 1  |Grant Proposad Submitted (¥ 43 43 o 0. D0 e
AY 2017-18 4 2 |Grant Proposal Submitted [$) 59,801,233 59,801,233 50 (0, 00 e
AY 2017-18 4 3 Grant Proposal Awarded {¥) 28 2B 0 0, O
AY 2017-18 4 & Grant Proposal Awarded [$) 58,150,205 48,150,205 S0 0. 05—
Ifzm T |internationat Stusdent Enroliment 40 41 1 2.50% &
||:3913 T Out-of-5tate Student Enroliment 70 70 1] 0,005 e

Year 1 - Expectation Level

YEAR 1 - SUNO ACCOUNTABLITY SCORECARD
OUTCOMES SUMMARY

|Exceeded Outcomes Expectations

Met Outcomes Expectations

Failed to Meet Outcomes Expectations

TOTAL

Number | Percent
12 41%
12 41%
5 17%
29 100%

20f2



SUSLA ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Dr. Viadimir A. Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Toni L. Manogin, Executive Director

OUTCOMES SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT
CYCLE GOALSH OBIN KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [KPIs) Target Actual Difference % Difference
F2018 1 1 [Total Head Count Enroliment 2,619 2,651 32 1.22% A
F2018 1 2 Dual Enroliment 558 543 -15 -2.60% Y
F2018 1 3 |Online Enrollment 13 11 -2 -15.38% Y
FI018 1 4 |Mew FTFT Student Enroliment 648 652 4 0,625 A&
F2018 1 5 Imwm:e Ensoliment 2619 2651 32 LI2% A
F2018 1 6  [Transfes-In Enroliment 198 159 i | 0.51% A
[F2018 1 7 jRe-Admit Enroliment 323 324 1 0.31% A
|F2018 1 8 |crossEnrotiment 9 1 8 8B.80% Y
||:3013 1 9 |Pell Eligible Students {% of Undergraduate Enrofiment) 57.000% 57.00% 0.00% 000
IFEDEE 1 10 [adult Leamers - 25 years and older [% of Undergraduate Ennollment] 31,00% 35.30% 4.30% 13.87% A
[F2017-18 2 1 |140-2 Year Fall-to-Fall 5ame Instittion Retention Rate 35.00% 35.71% 0.71% 2.03% A
AY 2017-18 2 2 |3-+ear Graduaticn Rate Same Institution [150% of Normal Teme) (Fall 2005 Cohort) 1.00% 1.07% 0.07% 7.00% A
AY 2017-18 2 3 |credentials Awarded (Completers) 300 302 2 0.67% A
AY 2017-18 2 4 Diploma Awarded 10 10 1] 0,00
AY 2017-18 2 5 |Certificate Awarded 80 85 5 6.25% A
MY 2017-18 2 6  |Associate Degree Awarded 200 207 7 3.50% &
CY 2018 2 7 |WCLEX Passage Rate [Associale Degree} 75.00% B7.50% 12,50% 16.67% &
2018 3 1 100% Complance w/Accreditation Standards 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%—
2018 3 2 |100% CompBance w/indhvidual Program Accreditation Standards 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 000
FY 2018 3 3  |Financal Heath Index - Current Ratlo 1.10 1.22 0,12 10.91% A
FY 2018 3 4 |ﬂrBrH:h| Healh Index - Working Capital $660,000 £1,332,162 4672162 101.84% A
FY 2018 3 5 Iﬂrum:ial Heath index - Unaestricted Net Position 550,000 $1,377,501 41,327,501 2655.00% A

10f2




SUSLA ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

S5U SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Dr. Viadimir A. Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Toni L. Manogin, Executive Director

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT SHREVEPORT

OUTCOMES
CYCLE | GoALSK [ OB KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS {KPIs) Target Actual Difference % Difference
AY 2017-18 4 1 |Grant Proposal Submitted [¥) 17 17 0 0,00 e
AY 2017-18 4 2 |Grant Proposal Submitted ($) $16,636,446 §16,635,446 50 0,00 e
AY 2017-1B ) 3 |Grant Proposal Awarded (¥] ] 8 0 0,005
AY 2017-18 4 4  |Grant Proposal Awarded {5) $1,362,440 $1,362,440 50 0.00
]Fzmﬂ T 1 |mternational Student Enroliment 65 68 3 4.62% A
IFZDIB T 2 |Out-of-State Stident Enollment 72 75 4.17% A
I YEAR 1 - SUSLA ACCOUNTABLITY SCORECARD
OUTCOMES SUMMARY
Year 1 - Expectation Level Number Percent
Exceeded Outcomes Expectations 17 61%
[Met Outcomes Expectations 8 29%
[Failed to Meet Qutcomes Expectations 3 11%
TOTAL 28 100%

2of2



SULC ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Dr. Viadimir A, Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Toni L. Manogin, Executive Director

OUTCOMES SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
CYCLE GOALSRE | OBl KEY PERFORMAMNCE INDICATORS [KPIs) Target Actual Difference % Difference
{F2018 1 1 [Total Head Count Enrollment 619 624 5 0.81% A&
AY 2017-18 2 1  |Credentials Awarded {Completers) 144 152 8 5.56% A
AY 2017-18 2 2 |Professional Degree Awarded 144 152 8 5.56% A
CY 2018 2 3  [|Lowisiana Bar Association Passage 59.00% T1.68% 12.68% 21.49% A
CY 2018 2 4 [Law Graduates Job Placement 74.00% 77.40% 3.40% 4.59% A
CY 2018 2 5 |Ulimate Bar Passage 77.76% B5.29% 7.53% 9.68% A
2018 3 1 [100% Compliance wfAccreditation Standards 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00%=—
2018 3 2 100% Compliance w/individual Program Accreditation Standag 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0005 e
FY 2018 3 3 |Financial Heath Index - Current Ratio 4.80 4,80 0.00 0,00
FY 2018 3 4 |Financial Heath Index - Working Capital 3,250,000 43,575,601 £325,601 10.02% A
FY 2018 3 5 Fimanciad Heath Index - Unrestricted Net Position 51,590,000 52,150,604 $560,604 35.26% A
IFIDEB T 1 [international Student Ensoliment 1 1 0 000K
|F2018 7 2 |outotState Student Enollment 160 175 15 9.38% A
YEAR 1 - SULC ACCOUNTABLITY SCORECARD
OUTCOMES SUMMARY
| Year1- Expectation Level Number Percent
Exceeded Outcomes Expectations 9 69% l
Met Qutcomes Expectations 4 31%
Failed to Meet Outcomes Expectations 0 0%
TOTAL 13 100% |

1of1l




SUAREC ACCOUNTABILITY SCORECARD - YEAR 1

SU SYSTEM OFFICE OF STRATEGIC PLANNING, POLICY, AND INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS

Dr. Viadimir A. Appeaning, Vice President & Dr. Toni L. Manogin, Executive Director

Southern University Agricultural

OVIEAMES Research and Extension Center
CYCLE GOALSH OBl KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS [KPis) Target Actual Difference % Differance
2018 3 1 100% Compliance wiAccreditation Standards 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0. 00 K
2018 3 2 |100% compliance wiindividual Frogram Accreditation Standards 100.00% 100.00% 0.00% (01, D0 e
FY 2018 3 3 Financlal Heath Index - Cunrent Ratio 4.70 4,72 0.02 0.43% 4
FY 2018 3 4  |Financial Heath Index - Working Capital $1,050,000 51,360,861 5310,861 20.61% A
FY 2018 3 5  |Financial Heath Index - Unrestricted Net Pasition $270,000 4723,684 5453,684 168.03% A
AY 2017-18 4 1 |Gram Proposal Submitted (#) 26 38 12 46.15% A
AY 2017-18 4 2 Grant Proposal Submitted (3] 57,000,000 %B,2BB,B55 51,288,855 1B.41% A
AY 2017-18 4 3 |Grant Proposal Awarded ] 11 24 13 118.18% A
AY 2017-18 4 4 |Grant Proposal Awarded (5] 43,000,000 53,122,124 5122, 104 4.07% A

YEAR 1 - SUAREC ACCOUNTABLITY SCORECARD
OUTCOMES SUMMARY '

Year 1 - Expectation Level Number Percent
|Exceeded Outcomes Expectations 7 78%
[Met Outcomes Expectations 2 22%
[Failed to Meet Outcomes Expectations 0 0%

TOTAL 9 100%

1ofl



POLICY TITLE
Hazing Prevention Policy

POLICY NUMBER
13-001
Responsible Unit: Effective Date:
Office of the President-Chancellor for the Southern University 08/23/2019
System and each campus Office of Student Affairs
Last Reviewed Date:
Responsible Official: 08/01/19
President-Chancellor
Policy Classification: Origination Date:
Student Affairs 08/01/2018
L POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE

1|Fage

The Southern University System Board of Supervisors (SUBOS) does not condone
hazing in any form at any of their governed institutions. All SUBOS governed
institutions shall prohibit hazing and take all reasonable measures to address hazing,
including without limitation: adoption of effective policies; clear communication to
campus organizations, students and other stakeholders of laws and policies; prompt and
faithful enforcement thereof; education; and training. All SUBOS governed
institutions shall be committed to providing a supportive educational environment free
from hazing, one that promotes its students’ mental and physical well-being, safety and
respect for one’s self and others. All SUBOS governed institutions shall implement
policies and procedures in compliance with this policy and shall take prompt and
appropriate action to investigate and effectively discipline those accused of such
conduct in a manner consistent with all applicable laws.

POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE

In accordance with 2018 Regular Session Acts 635, 637 and 640 and 2019 Regular
Session Act 382 of the Louisiana Legislature (*Louisiana Hazing Laws"), the SUBOS
hereby adopts this Uniform Policy on Hazing Prevention (“Policy™) applicable to all of
their governed institutions. This Policy aims to enhance the Legislature’s efforts to
establish statewide mandatory requirements and is designed to help all SUBOS
governed institutions create and maintain safety for all students who participate in the
institutions’ activities, programs, groups, teams, organizations and Greek-lettered
associations.



1I1.

IV.

Each institution’s policy must comply with applicable laws and regulations, and must
be amended to reflect any subsequent changes to laws and regulations. SUBOS
recognizes that our governed institutions all possess unique characteristics (e.g.,
presence of Greek life, athletic teams, band and other such organizations vs. the lack
thereof: commuter vs. residential campuses; large vs. small campuses, presence of
campus police and residential advisors vs. the lack thereof). Thus, it is within the
purview of each institution’s administration to review, evaluate and apply this Policy
in a manner that ensures that it adequately aligns with each institution’s campus
characteristics and resources, provided that the interpretation and implementation are
in furtherance of the requirements of this Policy and do not result in substantive
changes to the Policy. Our governed institutions may also develop supplementary
procedures to further support the implementation of this Policy. However, the
mandatory provisions of this Policy establish the minimum requirements with which
all institutional policies must comply.

Each governed institution shall establish policies and procedures in full compliance
with this Policy and implement such policies no later than the beginning of AY 2018-
19. Each policy shall be reviewed for compliance with this Policy and applicable laws
and regulations and upon verification of such compliance, this management board shall
forward the institutional policies to Board of Regents by September 01, 2019.

For purposes of this Policy, the definitions of key terms and other mandatory provisions
shall remain consistent with those in Acts 640 and 635 and 637 of 2018 and Act 382 of
2019, codified at R.S. 14:40.8, R.S. 17:1801, R.S. 17:1801.1, R.S. 17:1805, and R.S.
14:502 respectively. In cases of any inconsistency, the statutory provisions shall
supersede any such inconsistent provision in this Policy. The statutory provisions and
this Policy shall supersede any inconsistent provision in an institution’s policy.

POLICY COMPLIANCE
All institutions subject to this Policy shall adopt this policy an institutional policy in
accordance with all applicable laws and this Policy.

All campus organizations shall, as a condition of operating at an institution, adopt the
hazing prevention policy that the institution has adopted pursuant to Subsection A of
this Section, which shall include possible institutional sanctions against the
organization in the event of a reported or confirmed hazing incident, and a policy that
prohibits hazing.

POLICY DEFINITIONS

a. Governed institution, education institution, or institution is any institution or
campus governed by the Southern University Board of Supervisors that is
supported wholly or in part by public funds.

b. Hazing means any intentional, knowing, or reckless act by a person acting alone or
acting with others that is directed against another when both of the following apply:

2iPa.ge”



i. The person knew or should have known that such an act endangers the
physical health or safety of the other person or causes severe emotional
distress.

ii. The act was associated with pledging, being initiated into, affiliating with,
participating in, holding office in, or maintaining membership in any
organization.

iii. Consent is not a defense.

iv. Hazing includes but is not limited to any of the following acts associated
with pledging, being initiated into, affiliating with, participating in, holding
office in, or maintaining membership in any organization:

1. Physical brutality, such as whipping, beating, paddling, striking,
branding, electric shocking, placing of a harmful substance on the
body, or similar activity.

2. Physical activity, such as sleep deprivation, exposure to the
elements, confinement in a small space, or calisthenics, that subjects
the other person to an unreasonable risk of harm or that adversely
affects the physical health or safety of the individual or causes
severe emotional distress.

3. Activity involving consumption of food, liquid, or any other
substance, including but not limited to an alcoholic beverage or
drug, that subjects the individual to an unreasonable risk of harm or
that adversely affects the physical health or safety of the individual
or causes severe emotional distress.

4. Activity that induces, causes, or requires an individual to perform a
duty or task that involves the commission of a crime or an act of
hazing.

5. For purposes of this Policy, hazing shall not include a physical
activity that is normal, customary, and necessary for a person's
training and participation in an athletic, physical education, military
training, or similar program sanctioned by the postsecondary
education institution.

¢. Organization is a fraternity, sorority, association, corporation, order, society,
corps, cooperative, club, service group, social group, band, spirit group, athletic
team, or similar group whose members are primarily students at, or former students
of, a postsecondary education institution, including the national or parent
organization of which any of the underlying entities provided for in this definition
is a sanctioned or recognized member at the time of the hazing.

3|Page.



4|Pége

Pledging is any action or activity related to becoming a member of an organization,
including recruitment and rushing.

Appropriate anthority includes:
i. Any state or local law enforcement agency.

ii. A 911 Public Safety Answering Point as defined in Title 33 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950.

iii. Emergency medical personnel.

Reckless behavior is an activity or behavior in which a reasonable person knew or
reasonably should have known that the activity or behavior may result in injury to
another, including but not limited to excessive consumption of alcohol, binge
drinking, drag racing, consumption of any controlled dangerous substance, acts of
hazing, or other similar activity.

Serious bodily injury is bodily injury that involves unconsciousness, extreme
physical pain, or protracted and obvious disfigurement, or protracted loss or
impairment of the function of a bodily member, organ, or mental faculty, death, or
a substantial risk of death.

POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

After the adoption of this policy, each governed institution shall immediately post this
policy, as written, on their respective websites; disseminate a hard copy of this policy
to all students at orientation or if orientation has occurred prior to the adoption of this
policy, disseminate a hard copy to all students via email; and revise or expand all related

policies at their institution’s. Governed institutions shall update all applicable policies
before August 31, 2019.

a.

Each institution’s policy must comply with applicable laws and regulations, and
must be amended to reflect any changes to such laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the following:

i. Act 635 of the 2018 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature, which
creates the crime of criminal hazing, provides definitions and exceptions,
and establishes exceptions and penalties;

ii. Act 637 of the 2018 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature, which
creates an obligation to offer reasonable assistance, including seeking
medical assistance, to someone who has suffered serious bodily injury
caused by reckless behavior, including hazing; and

iii. Act 640 of the 2018 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature, which
prohibits hazing at L.ouisiana’s postsecondary institutions, requires BOR to
adopt a uniform policy on hazing prevention, requires postsecondary
institutions to adopt and expand on BOR’s uniform policy in a manner
consistent with the laws and BOR policy.



5|Page

iv. Act 382 of the 2019 Regular Session of the Louisiana Legislature, which
amended LA R.S. 14:40.8, 17:1801, 17:1801.1, and 17:1805.

Failure to comply with any applicable laws and regulations, including those listed
above, shall constitute a failure to comply with this Policy.

SUBOS shall make all due diligence efforts to ensure its governed institutions’
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including those listed above.

. "While the provisions of the laws listed above are mandatory components of the

system policy, the best practices listed in Section VI below are SUBOS’s guidance
to the institutions on the implementation of hazing laws. Institutions may
supplement the provisions of this Policy as necessary, but any such supplemental
provision shall comply with the laws and this Policy.

In addition to the definitions and other provisions in compliance with laws and
regulations, including those listed above, all SUBOS governed institutions shall
implement the following measures to prevent and address hazing, beginning in fall
2018, unless otherwise noted:

i. Prevention and Education Programs:

1. Each new student shall be provided educational information on the
dangers of and prohibition on hazing during the new student
orientation process in the form of a handbook. In addition to the
requirement of providing educational information in the form of a
handbook as provided in the previous paragraph, beginning in the
fall semester of 2019, each new student shall be provided
educational information on the dangers of and prohibition on hazing
during the new student orientation process either in person or
electronically.

2. Each organization shall provide annually at least one hour of hazing
prevention education that includes education relative to such
policies to all members, prospective members, and anyone who is
employed by or volunteers with the organization. The education
may be provided in person, electronically, or both. Each
organization shall submit a report annually to the institution with
which it is affiliated relative to the students, employees, and
volunteers receiving such education evidenced by an aftestation of
such individuals receiving the education.

3. The hazing prevention education required under the provisions
above shall include the information about criminal penalties for the
crime of criminal hazing. Information shall also be provided to
organizations on their obligations under the law, including the duty



6|Pa.ge

to investigate and report; and on the possible loss of funding and
other penalties applicable to organizations under the Hazing Laws.

If the student receiving the information required in this sub section
is a minor that information shall also be provided to his parent or
legal guardian.

ii. Duty to Seek Assistance: In accordance with Act 637 of 2018, codified at
R.S. 14:502, each institution’s policy shall require any person at the scene
of an emergency who knows that another person has suffered bodily injury
caused by an act of hazing shall, to the extent that the person can do so
without danger or peril to self or others, give reasonable assistance to the
injured person. Each institution’s policy and educational information shall
include the criminal penalties for failure to seek assistance in violation of
R.S. 14:502.

iii. Reporting Requirement:

1.

Duty to Report: All campus organizations and institution officials
are required to report any allegations that involves the commission
of an act or acts of hazing to law enforcement as soon as practicable
under the circumstances, and with all details known to the
organizations or institutions with “no redactions”, including names
of all individuals alleged to have committed the act or acts of
hazing.

Any institution that receives a report alleging the commission of an
act or acts of hazing by one or more members of an organization that
is organized and operating at the education institution shall report as
soon as practicable under the circumstances, the alleged act or acts
to the law enforcement agency having jurisdiction and the place
where the allege act or acts of hazing occurred. The information
reported to law enforcement as required law shall include all details
received by the institution relative to the allege incident, with no
information being redacted, including the name of all individuals
alleged to have committed the act or acts of hazing. Failure to report
could result in a maximum penalty of $10,000 for violation of R.S.
14:40.8.

Required Documentation: The information reported to law
enforcement shall include all information and details received by the
institution relative to the alleged incident, with no information being
redacted, including the name of all individuals alleged to have
committed the act or acts of hazing identified in the report. The
institution shall also document in writing all actions taken with
regard to the report including but not limited to the date the report
was received, reports made to law enforcement as provided in R.S.



14:40.8, and any other information relative to the institution's
investigation, processing, and resolution of the incident.

4. All campuses and campus organizations shall utilize the
standardized form developed by the Louisiana Board of Regents to
report allegations of hazing. That form shall be immediately tumed
into to the campus Office of Student Affairs. The vice chancellor
shall forward the form and allied documents to SU System Office of
the General Counsel for submission to the Board of Regents.

iv. Enforcement of Laws, SUBOS Policy and Institutional Policy:

1. Each institution shall implement and enforce with full fidelity and
consistency the Hazing Laws as listed above, this Policy and the
institution’s own policy. Failure to enforce or inconsistencies in
enforcement shall constitute violation of the Hazing Laws and this
Policy.

2. For the purposing of enforcing hazing laws or investigating hazing
violations, campus police officer right to exercise the power of arrest
when discharging their duties shall extend to alleged acts of hazing
committed by members of an organization that is organized and
operating at the university or college for which the police officer is
commissioned regardless of the location where the alleged acts
occurred.

POLICY RELATED INFORMATION
In addition to the mandatory components of institutional policies and practices, each
institution is encouraged to follow best practices, some of which are outlined below:

a. Ongoing Prevention and Awareness Campaigns: Ongoing prevention and
awareness campaigns may consist of programming, initiatives, and strategies that
are sustained over time and focus on increasing understanding of topics relevant to
hazing prevention. An example of such an initiative or program is joining
institutions across the country in the observance of National Hazing Prevention
Week.

b. Data Collection and Analysis: Institutions are encouraged to create task forces to
gather, analyze and understand institutional data on hazing. Effective hazing
prevention presupposes an understanding of the cause, identifying any trends that
the data show and assessment of the risk factors as well as protective measures.

c. Effective Intervention: In collaboration with relevant organizations and student
bodies, each institution is encouraged to develop intervention strategies and
measures appropriate to the context specific to that institution and to the various
organizations affiliated with it. The role of bystander intervention and social
norming is key to hazing prevention and is recommended as part of campus
intervention strategies. In support of state laws to combat hazing, bystander

7|Pag.e”.



intervention training and social norming should be part of any education and
training aimed at preparing faculty, staff and community members to understanding
hazing issues and statistics on campus.

Response Plan: Institutions are encouraged to convene teams with the necessary
expertise, including coaches, resident advisors, Greek-lettered organization
officials, alumni and coaches. Each year before the beginning of the academic year,
the teams should develop a response plan delineating the procedures for handling
any hazing incident.

VII. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES
The Office of the President-Chancellor in conjunction with the governed institutions
administration will be charged with implementing this policy.
To report an allegation of hazing, individuals, campus officials, or campus organization
shall utilize the following:
i. Form A: Board of Regents Standardized Form for Institutions
ii. Form B: Board of Regents Standardized Form for Organizations
VIII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE
This policy was created on August 24, 2018, and amended on August 23, 2019. This
policy is subject to a five-year policy review cycle or as needed by legislative changes.
IX. POLICY APPROVAL
The effective date of this policy is determined by the approval date of the President-
Chancellor of the Southern University and A&M College System and the Board of
Supervisors of the Southern University and A&M College System.
President-Chancellor Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy

Southern University and A&M College System

The Honorable Domoine D. Rutledge, Esq. Effective Date of Policy
Chair — Southern University System Board of Supervisors

8jPage



SOUTHERN

UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

BATON ROUGE + MEW CRELEANS = SHREVEROAT

REGENTS

BOARD . REGENTS

HAZING REPORT FORM FOR INSTITUTIONS

NOTE:

1.This standardized form, developed by the Board of Regents pursuant to Act 382 of 2019, is to be used by
postsecondary institutions to report to law enforcement, as soon as practicahle any information received by
any official at the institution regarding incidents of hazing.

2.This report contains unredacted information, as required by Act 382 of 2019. Subsequent use and disclosure
of this report remains subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.

INFORMATION ABOUT INSTITUTION

Name of Institution
MName of Affiliated Organization(s) Relevant to the Incident
Full Name and Title of Contact Official at the Institution

Address
Phone Numbers Home Cell Work
INFORMATION ABOUT PERSDN[S} INVOLVED IN THE INCIDENT (USE ADDITIONAL FORMS FOR EACH PERSON INVOLVED)

Full Mame

Attending Institution

Affiliated Organization (Member or Pledge)
Home Address
Phone Numbers
INFORMATION ABOUT THE INCIDENT
Date of Incident

Police Notified DO Yes 0O No

Location of Incident [ On campus [0 Off- campus
Specific Location

Description of Incident (what happened, how it happened, individuals involved, factors leading to the event, etc.) Be
as specific, complete and accurate as possible and do not redact any information known to the institution official(s)
(attached additional sheets if necessary)

Were there any witnesses to the incident? [Yes [ No
If yes, attach separate sheet with names, addresses, and phone numbers.

Page 1of2



SOUTHERN'
UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

o BATOM ROUGE = NEW ORLEAMS « SHREVEPORT
REGENTS

BOARD N REGENTS

Was anyone injured? If so, identify the individual and describe the injury (e.g. Iar:er;fion, sprain, etc.), location of
injury (e.g. upper arm, shoulder), and any other information known about the resulting injury.

Was medical treatment provided? O ¥Yes O No [ Refused
If yes, where was treatment provided: O on site O Urgent Care [ Emergency Room O Other

REPORTER INFORMATION
Individual Submitting Report (print name)

| hereby affirm that the information contained in this report is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.
Signature: Date Report Completed:

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Report Received by Date

DOCUMENT ANY FOLLOW-UP ACTION TAKEN AFTER SUBMISSION OF THE INCIDENT REPORT

Date Action Taken By Whom

FORM A
INSTRUCTIONS: Pursuant to SU System Board of Supervisors’ Policy #13-002, this form must be turned into the campus Office of Student

Affairs as soon as practicable. Upon receipt, the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs shall immediately forward to the System Office of
the General Counsel. Any guestions regarding this form or its contents shall be directed to the Office of the General Counsel at (225)

771-4680.

Page 2 of 2



SOUTHERN

UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

"::'_*'s; |

REX JEH'I"- BATOMN ROUGE = NEW ORLEANS = SHREVEFORT

BOARDNf BREGENTS

HAZING REPORT FORM FOR ORGANIZATIONS
NOTE:

1.This standardized form, developed by the Board of Regents pursuant to Act 382 of 2019, is to be used by
organizations affiliated with postsecondary institutions to report any information received by the
organization regarding incidents of hazing, =

2.0rganizations must send this report to law enforcement and the afﬁltated institution as soon as practicable.

3.This report contains unredacted information, as required by Act 382 of 2019. Subsequent use and disclosure
of this report remains subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.

INFORMATION ABOUT ORGANIZATION

Name of Organization

Affiliated Institution

Name of Affiliated Parent or Mational Organization

Full Mame and Title of Contact Official at the Organization
Address

Phone Mumbers |
INFORMATION ABOUT PERSON(S) INVOLVED IN THE INCIDENT (USE ADDITIONAL FORMS FOR EACH PERSON INVOLVED)

Full Name

Affiliated Organization {Member or Pledge)
Home Address

Phone Numbers | Home
INFORMATION ABOUT THE INCIDENT
Date of Incident

Police Notified [OvYes [ No

Location of Incident O On campus O Off- campus
Specific Location

Description of Incident (what happened, how it happened, individuals involved, factors leading to the event, etc.) Be
as specific, complete and accurate as possible and do not redact any information known to the institution official(s)
(attached additional sheets if necessary)

Were there any witnesses to the incident? OYes [lNo

If yes, attach separate sheet with names, addresses, and phone numbers.

Was the individual injured? If so, identify the individual and describe the injury (e.g. laceration, sprain, etc.),
location of injury (e.g. upper arm, shoulder), and any other information known about the resulting injury.

Page 1of 2



SOUTHERN

; UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
REGENTS BATON BOUGE - NEW DALEANS = SHREVEPCRT
I.i-l:'l.'l.HE_] -__’H.L“I'.E!_‘:!'S
Was medical treatment provided? O Yes [ No [ Refused -
If yes, where was treatment provided: O on site O Urgent Care [ Emergency Room O other

REPORTER INFORMATION
Individual Submitting Report {print name}

| hereby affirm that the information contained in this report is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.
Signature: Date Report Completed:

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Report Received by Date

DOCUMENT ANY FOLLOW-UP ACTION TAKEN AFTER SUBMISSION OF THE INCIDENT REPORT

Date Action Taken By Whom

-

FORM B
INSTRUCTIONS: Pursuant to SU System Board of Supervisors’ Policy #13-002, this form must be turned into the campus Office of Student

Affairs as soon as procticable. Upon receipt, the Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs shall immediately forward to the System Office of

the General Counsel. Any questions regarding this form or its contents shall be directed to the Office of the General Counsel at (225)
F71-4680.

Page 2 of 2



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAw CENTER
Post OFrFice Box 9294
Baton Rouae, Louisiana 70813-9294

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR

i s August 12, 2019
FAX (504) 771-2474

Dr. Ray Belton
President/Chancellor

J. 8. Clark Administration Building
Fourth Floor

Baion Rouge, LA 70813

RE: Board of Supervisors Annual Review and Approval of the Southern University Law Center’s
Mission Statement

Dear Dr. Belton:

On August 24, 2018, the Southern University System Board of Supervisors approved the mission
statement of the Southern University Law Center to comply with SACSCOC requirements and
with the Southern University System Mission Review Policy.

The Mission Review Policy requires that the Board review the Mission Statement of the Southern
University Law Center annually and no later than August 31%. I hereby request that the Board of
Supervisors review the Law Center's Mission Statement and approve it at its August 2019 board
meeting. The Mission Statement has not been changed, and is attached for review and approval by
the Board of Supervisors.

If you have any questions regarding this request, please contact me.

Sincerely,

’:;/; 7{ | y’iu -

John K. Pierre, Chancellor and Vanue
B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor

APPROVED:

Dr. Ray Belton, President/Chancellor

‘An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution”



Law Center Mission

The mission and tradition of the Law Center is to provide
access and opportunity to a diverse group of students
from underrepresented racial, ethnic, and socio-economic
groups to obtain a high quality legal education with special
emphasis on the Louisiana civil law. Additionally, our
mission is to frain a cadre of lawyers equipped with the
skills necessary for the practice of law and for positions of
leadership in society.



wallyY
Q\\\“ 0“‘"::04,:

@\

R %J A.;

J’Ym“\

%“\“Hfﬂ,y
it ‘&“

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Conflict of Interest Statement

I, a member of the Board

of Supervisors of Southern University System affirm that:

@ 1 am familiar with the Bylaws of the Board.

() 1do not engage in conduct that is prohibited or unlawful.

© 1do not have a personal interest in a transaction with the University.

d 1do not engage in prohibited conduct relating to contracts with the University.

@ 1do not have any business interest or family relations that could be deemed a conflict of
interest under any law or board policy.

(® 1 have no conflict of interest as it relates to the institution.

If any situation arises that makes the above statements incomplete or incorrect, | will notify the
Board immediately.

Signature of Board Member

Name:

Date:




Board Self-Evaluation Instrument Evaluation Period: 2018-2019

. . Office of Strategic Planning, Policy,
South u System
QUIRSILUnIVErBIY =Y and Institutional Effectiveness

Board Member

Instructions: Please indicate your level of agreement with each statement listed below by clicking on the
appropriate box.

Board Management Function

&
(S
Ay
%, 4 q??/
% 6. @
i o) 4 2
b, B B Y %
S B B B %
1. The ultimate responsibility for management of the System and
its institutions rgsts withtYhe Manag%ment Board. a o J o o
2 Thmugh its policy-making process, the Board works collaboratively 1) ] i) O i ]
with the President-Chancellor and faculty to achieve the strategic
priorities of the System and its institutions.
3. The Board periodically reviews its policies to ensure that both the i B C | L
Bylaws and Policy Manual are up-to-date. -
4. Board members uphold the final majarity decision of the Board. 0 ) ]
5. The Board reqularly reviews the rale, scope and mission of its institutions. B 0 & 0O ‘O
Board Organization and Operation
&
S, %,
% % %.
% o % Y%
@,
% B % B %
CCN 'Eb CRC S
6. Board officer responsibilities are clearly defined in the Board's Bylaws. W, cm” (m (W =
7. Board committees have clearly defined responsibilities designed to assist B O @ g £l
the Board in its deliberations. )
8. The outcome of Board member preparation is productive Board meetings. m, m  m  (m m
9, Board meeting agendas are relevant to the items presented to the Board O O [ | O
for consideration.
10. Board minutes effectively capture and summarize Board actions. U L L ] L




Board Self-Evaluation Instrument Evaluation Period: 2018-2019

Board Ledership and Accountability

_' e:i'Board has an actwe profess:onal developm
program for current and new Board members. -

15. The Board monitors the effectiveness of its institutions in fulfilling their stated missions by
reviewing performance data aligned with institutional priorities and outcomes.

Board CEO Relations

s e
'47.The CEO s jOb descnpt;on is current and accurate - [ e e
18, The Board effectively. evaEua"tes the CEO'-".'-- Lo e B N N
19. The Board maintains open communlcat;on with the CEO L] L] Ll Ll
20. The Board provides the highestlevel of support to the CEO. . Al s a0




[] Above Average
L1 Poor _

Instructions: Indicate your overall rating of Board performance and provide responses to the open
[] Average

] Outstanding
Average

] Below

ended questions.
My overall rating of Board Performance is

What are the Board's greatest strengths? (List 3 examples)

'As a Board member, | am most pleased about:

am most concerned about:

_ As a Board member,

| recommend that the Board adopt the following three (3) Goals for the coming year:




POLICY TITLE
Board Dismissal

POLICY NUMBER

6-006
Responsible Unit: Effective Date:
Office of Strategic Planning, Policy, and Institutional Effectiveness | 08/23/2019
Responsible Official: Last Reviewed Date:
Vice President for Strategic Planning, Policy, and Institutional
Effectiveness
Policy Classification: Origination Date:
Governance 08/23/2019

. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE
The Board’s Bylaws address dismissal of Board members in Part I, Section C. The provision reads
as follows:

Board Dismissal: Members of the Board are considered to be appointed state officials in
unclassified service in accordance with the 1974 Louisiana State Constitution, (Article X. Public
Officials and Employees, Part 1., Section. 2B-5. Unclassified Service). Board members may be
removed from office through impeachment for cause. Cause may include, but may not be limited
to, commission or conviction during the term of office, of a felony or for malfeasance or gross
misconduct while in office. Due process shall be provided with a trial by the Senate (Article X.
Public Officials and Employees., Part IIl., Section. 24-A. Persons Liable., and Section 24-B.
Procedure). Additionally, Board members are subject to the Louisiana Code of Governmental
Ethics which governs their conduct and responsibilities, under Louisiana law, Title 42. Public
Officers and Employees, Code of Governmental Ethics (Louisiana Revised Statutes 42:1411.
Public officer; ground for removal; suspension; definitions). (4-23-99) (10-26-01) (6-21-02) (04-
12-19).

All board members of the Southern University Board of Supervisors, the governing/management
board for Southern University and A&M College, are appointed state officials in unclassified
service. As such, Southern University Board of Supervisors adopt the provisions in Louisiana’s
State Constitution and Louisiana State Laws pertaining to board member dismissal and due
process.

1|Page



. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE
This policy applies to members of the Southern University Board of Supervisors.

1.  POLICY COMPLIANCE
Adoption and implementation of this policy allows campuses of the Southern University System
to demonstrate compliance with SACSCOC Standard 4.2e — Board Member Dismissal.

IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS

Southern Association of Schools and Colleges, Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC):
SACSCOC is the regional body for the accreditation of degree-granting higher education
institutions in the Southern states. The mission of SACSCOC is to assure the educational quality
and improve the effectiveness of its member institutions. Accreditation by SACSCOC signifies
that the institution (1) has a mission appropriate to higher education, (2) has resources, programs,
and services sufficient to accomplish and sustain that mission, and (3) maintains clearly specified
educational objectives that are consistent with its mission and appropriate to the degrees it offers
and that indicate whether it is successful in achieving its stated objectives.

V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES
Board members, appointed state officials in unclassified service, are subject to Louisiana
constitution and its statutes concerning dismissal with cause, due process, and the right to appeal.
As such, Southern University Board of Supervisors adopt the provisions in Louisiana’s State
Constitution and Louisiana State Laws pertaining to board member dismissal and due process.

VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION
Applicable provisions include Louisiana State Constitution and Louisiana State Laws, namely:

e 1974 Louisiana State Constitution, Article X. Public Officials and Employees, Part I.,
Section. 2B-5. Unclassified Service

e 1974 Louisiana State Constitution, Article X. Public Officials and Employees., Part III.,
Section. 24-A. Persons Liable

e 1974 Louisiana State Constitution, Article X. Public Officials and Employees., Part III.,
Section 24-B. Procedure

e Louisiana Revised Statutes 42:1411. Public officer; ground for removal; suspension;
definitions

e Board Bylaws address in Part I, Section C.  Dismissal of Board Members

VIlI. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE
This is a new policy. The effective date of this policy is determined by the approval date of the
Board Chairman. This policy is subject to a five-year policy review cycle.

VIIl. POLICY URL
This section identifies the Southern University System website where the system policies are
archived — www.sus.edu.

2|Page


http://www.sus.edu/

IX. POLICY APPROVAL
This section identifies the appropriate official who has final authority to approve this policy.

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. Effective Date of Policy
President-Chancellor - Southern University and A&M College System

The Honorable Attorney Domoine D. Rutledge Effective Date of Policy
Chairman - Southern University Board of Supervisors

3|Page



PERSONNEL
AFFAIRS
COMMITTEE



PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

(Following the Governance Committee)
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom
15t Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Adoption of the Agenda
4. Public Comments

5. Action Items
A. Request Approval of Employment Contract for Dr. Orlando McMeans (SUAREC)

B Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000 / $75,000

(faculty)

Name Position/Campus Salary

Funding Source

1.

Hasib Ahmed Assistant Professor of Finance $90,000.00
‘ Dept. of Acct, Fin, and Econ
SUBR
{New Appaintment)

State

Marla Dickerson Director of CLE & Managing Fellow of the $89,700.00
Cannabis Compliance, Law & Policy
Law Center
SULC
{New Appointment)

State

Mary Cobb-Marshall MBA Online Coordinator $60,000.00
College of Business
SUBR
(New Position)

State

Kimberly LaMotte Academic Support Counselor & Instructor $87,000.00
Law Center
SULC
(Addilional Duties/Salary Adjustment))

State

Orlando McMeans Chancellor - Southern University Agricultural $220,000.00
Research & Extension Center & Dean - College of
Agriculture, Famity and Consumer Science
SUAREC
(New Appoinfment)

State/Federal

Habib P. Mohamadian Tenured Professor in Engineering $99,370.49
SUBR

(Reassignment}

State




7. Courtney Richardson

Academic Support Counselor &
Instructor
SULC
(Additional Duties/Salary Adjustment)

$84,000.00

State

8. Gregory P. Speyrer

System Analyst
Law Center
SULC
(Additional Duties/Salary Adjustment)

$75,000.00

State

9. Tesfalidet Tukue

Assistant Professor of Accounting (2F9862)
Dept of Acct, Fin, Econ
SUBR
(New Appointment)

$120,000.00

State

C. Unpaid Leave Request for Professor Latisha Nixon Jones (SULC)

7. Annual Evaluation of Southern University System President/Chancellor Dr. Ray L. Belton

(Executive Session may be Required)

8. Other Business

9. Adjournment

Mr. Sam Gilliam, Dr. Curman L. Gaines, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Mrs. Arlanda Williams

MEMBERS

Atty. Patrick Magee—Chair, Mr. John Barthelemy.—Vice Chair,

Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio




JOB CLASS
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
JOB CODE —
Elﬂmmm HO
CALID . NUMBER B éf 5.- ﬁ
CAMPUS: EUS S5UBR X SULAC SUAREC SUNO S5USLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9.MONTH _ X 12-MONTH OTHER (Specify)
X Academic Non-Academie . Civil Service
Temporary Part-time { % of Full Time) " Mestricted
Tenured Undergradunte Student _ Joh Appaintment
X Tenured Track Graduate Asalstant Prnbnt.lqnnry
Otlior {Speeify) Ratires Return To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employee  Vineota Hingorani Reason Left _ Hetired
DateLeft  _August 1,2018 Salary Paid  _383,008.00
@r,
Length of Employment _August 1, 2019 To May 15, 2020
Effective Date _August 12, 2019
Name _Hasib Ahmed S5 Sox M Race* _Asian
: {Laat # dijgits only)
Posltlon Titles _Asalstant Professor of Financa (JF9859) Depnriment: _Depl. of Acet., Fine, & Econ
Cheek One Exiating Posltlon *Visa Type (See Rovorse Side): F i ] |
Mew Fosition Explratlon Date:
“{Positlon vacancy authorlgation forin must be processed and approved to fiil
exfaling and new positione. Foiltion must be adverilsed hefore proceslng PAF, if
applicable)
Years Experlence 8 Southern Unlversity Experlence _0
Degree(s):  Type/Discipline (BA-Edueation) Institution/Loeation (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
Ph.D,—Finsnclal Beonomles  University of New Orleans July 2012
MS — Finangisl Econamics _University of Now Orleans 1014 —
BBA-Finance University of Dhakn (Rangladesh) 1 | S
Current Employer _ Universliy of New Orleans
nne
CheckOme X Mew Appolntment Continuation Sabbatical Lenve of Absence
Transfer Roplacement Other (Specify)
Recommended Salary  $90,000.00 ' Salary Budgeted _ S90,000.00
Source of Funds  State Funds for Economlcs
Iduﬂll‘y Budget: HIEDI-HZHS-E!ME Lacatlon Ecanomics
Form Code: Fage Item i
Change of:
From Ta
Position
Stalus
Salary Adjustment
Financlal Ald sl

List total funds eurrently paid this employee by
Southern University:
*Seo Reverse Side

Comments: (Use back of form

#Spe Reverse Side Gradunte School signature (if, applieable):

., E
Ch e g
' o] 1fiorm ¥ _
irector/Personnel L TDate Vies President/Finance L Tate
Husiness Affairs/Compiroller
Presidant Date Chajrman/8, 1, Bonrd Dite

of Supervisors



This information Is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil ngh& Laws
and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Pleass check one):

Hispanic er Latino X Mon-Hispanie or Nen-Latino

RACE (Plense check all that apply):

White, not of Hispanie origin. A person having orlging in any of the original people of Burope, Morth Afrien, or the Middle Bast.

Blrck. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origing in any of the Black racial groups of Africn.

Hispanie. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South Amerdern, or other Spanish culture or origins,
regardless of rce.

Asian or Pacific Islander, A person having erigins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
X Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

Ameriean Indian or Alaskan Native, A person having origing in any of the orlginal peaples of Morlh American, and wha
matntaing eultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition.

P B

COMMENTS: Dr. Ahmed is being hired as an Assistant Professor of Finanee to replace Dr, Hingorani who retired
August 2018,

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Between SAM -5 PM__ between Monday - Friday

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Ghirmay Ghebreyesus 771-5640 / 771-5934
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) ]
HRUSE ONLY:  5TATUS (circle one}: EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistanis being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule, All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certifleate of naturalization, resident alien card, HI-B and J-1
visag, passport, and F-1/1-94. The Iatter six (6) documents do not apply to 1.5. Citizens,

Lok CORBUTHERN (N VENEIBES YSTEM
RUNGET OFFICE

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization us

Resident Alien RA

H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) Hi AUG 14 20}

J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program)
F-1 Visn (Student Emp. FT Student ot 8.17.)
OFT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experiznce')

Do Not Write Below This Area

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)

Application for Emplayment Form Admin/Fae/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for elassified employess)
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitied to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Chock form)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (comploted by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor)
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budgst head)

Proposed Employes Appointment

Propased Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5 Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

REQ'D UP FIN&BUS AFFAL

198 M) Hayil
13PUG 1541159 R, B1472019



T 4 é/m.ea/ ;é/r%—, té

e ... SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813 :
) A i U ouil) !‘éf{'.l'":{‘f ““-’”Eﬁ‘!'\-‘:‘ TR s . . I RTIRTIY R TR -
X SUS.L] ASUBR ., SULAGT] 7 suaREC [ "SUNG' [T~ StsLA O]

,ﬂr*.**;*w%*‘ﬁ}*****:‘:**#***7':-*7‘:'******-‘,{-‘*":Jk;’é;‘n}i:(‘_*96_1\:';1’!'**,—************:E‘Gfrﬁkﬁtﬁp&?ﬁ**#ﬁ*?*93’«‘}7'\-**************
: %, - : AT AT TEATTY

Cagria B S BIONO RO S %A(EANCY;AUIHORIZATION

S HQ
Luted iy ********k*******************.j******** *w?f**********************************************
!

REQUEST THAT THE POSITION - Assistant, O'Eiﬂﬂ, or Professor of Finance Aﬁi@}iﬁCRlBED BELOW
BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR “Gallegs of Business STAYS
. . (Department or Unit) , i E
_ Source of F%}iﬁ/ j 5

Replacement X New Posifion* Unclassified State /i /

CivilService  [] Temporary X Taculty [ GepiptuinsAia 7 g

Tenured N Probationary (For Faculty this fs sanie as tenure track) M Systefii‘ﬂg}?ﬁ'ﬁug.ﬁ )

{1 Agency Fuifcﬁﬁgﬁj?‘-‘s;:,e ‘
*requires the approval of System President d"dfr“}’gx_,g'ﬁ?:

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION

(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved thtu
Human Resources). o
Assistant, Associate or Professor of Finance. Individual will provide the department with teachlgf\fg,
Research, scholatly publications and service for the program. In addition, the individual will work with:
Business outreach projects to the business community. Courses taught include, Finaucial Managerent,”

Commercial Banking, Investments, International Finance, Capital Budgeting, Risk and Insurance,_ ..

Portfolio Analysis, Real Estate and others, o
Salary/Range:  $80,000 to $120,000 Previous Incumbent (Dr, Vineeta ‘w '(,;1_4
Hingorani): - e
\// Approved ~ Disapproved // J/A{,é/z_p_,y__e,_w / G’/é. g /[Q’
/ / Department Head Date
MApproved Disapproved ;;/j affﬂ////{ { /4’/{”\/ Ve, /3 7 /, £
Dean/Director/Supervisor of Budget Unit Date’
COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE ONLY HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY
Funds Avaijlable Existing/ Approved Position
" Yes No v Yes No
Jﬁ?ﬁé % ‘ : : JobCode: [F [ Cafld: IM.[ Job Class: | 2 F 100 -

L, Bignature h f Date . .
YT Withall Willars uprafig
y/ (,;/Budgejﬂu@ber A Lot L 7 " Verified By: | Date:

s /RS b /9 op
. /Dﬂ‘?e

2 /f( p]}i‘oved Disapproved % /% |
oL & : //4 / /Vic§7P sident@rovist . Date
ﬁﬁi‘oved Disapprovéd 7 7 - /4

g < 4 Ptesident / Date

An Equal Opportunify Employer

Ap_g_foved Disapproved

Rev 5/11/2006

(-




Hasib Ahme&

Contact
Information

Research and
Teaching
Interests

'Edt'lcat'lon
Honors and
Awards

Academic
Experience

Research
Experience

Department of Economics and Finance Personal Email: hasibeml@gmail.com

University of New Orleans Cell Phone: 504-405-6581
New Orleans, LA 70148 Office Fax: 504-280-6897
Office Email: hahmed 3@uno.edu Citizenship: Bangladeshi

Asset Pricing, Tdiosyncratic Volatility, International Finance, Currency Market, Financial
Markets, Corporate Finance, Managerial Finance.

University of New Orleans, New Orleans, Louisiana USA.
Ph.D. in Financial Economics, expected July 2015 - -
Master of Science in Financial Economics, 2016
University of Dhaka, Dhaka, Bangladesh

Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance; 2011

Graduate Assistantship, 2015-present

Dissertation Fellowship Award, Semi-finalist, University of New Orleans Graduate
Schoal, 2017

Privateer First Year Graduate Out of State Scholarship, 2014.

Instructor

ECON 2000: Engineering Economics (Spring 2019} )
ECON 2000: Engineering Economics (Fall 2018) - Rating 5.88/5
FIN 4804: Finance Capstone (Summer 2018) Rating 5/5
FIN 4808: Derivatives Analysis (Spring 2018) Rating 4.79/5
ECON 2000: Engineering Economics {Fall 2017) Rating 8.99/5
ECON 2000: Engineering Economics {Summer 2017) Rating 4.59/5
FIN 8300: Principles of Financial Management (Spring 2017) ~ Rating 4.50/5
ECON 1208: Principles of Microeconomics (Fall 2016) Rating 8.85/6
FIN 8302: Investments (Summer 2016) Rating 5/5
Teaching assistant

FIN 6300: Financial Administration (Fall & Summer 2017, Fall 2016)
FIN 6218: Seminar in Financial Markets and Institutions (Fall 2018)

Tutor

MANG 6497: Special Topics in Management: Foundations of
Operations Management (Spring 2018}

MANG 6476: Operations Management (Spring 2019) -

ECON 6200: Managerial Economics (Fall 2018)

FIN 6300: Financial Administration (Fall 2017)

Published Articles

»  Ahmed, H., Hassan, M. K., & Rayfield, B. (2018). When and why firms issue
sukuk?. Managerial Finance, 446}, 7714-786.



Research
Agsistant

Grant
Projects

Conferences

Service
Experience

Non-academic
Work

Egperience

Skills

Working Papers
e “Pricing of Idiosyncratic R_lsk in an Intermedla.ry Asset Pncmg Model,” (Wlth
" Neal Maroney)

« “Pricing of Idiosyncratic Risk in Futures Market,” {with Neal Maroney)

o “Business Accelerators and Social Enterprises,” (with Jennifer Brodmann and
M. Kabir Hassan)

«  “Behavior of Momentum in the Foreign Exchange Market: Evidence from
Portfolio Approach,” (with Atsuyuki Naka and Phuvadon Wuthisatian)

+  “Financial Inclusion and Economic Development in OIC Member Countries,”
(with M. Kabir Hassan and Shadiya Hossain)

s “The Role of Financial Slack in Corporate Payout Policy,” (W.lth M Kabir
Hassan, Deepali Poudel and Vinh Tran) - '

M Kabir Hassan 2015-Present
University of New Orleans

National and Regional Trends in Community Banking 2015-2017
M Kabir Hassan, University of New Orleans

‘William J Hippler III, University of La Verne

Grant by New Orleans based Gulf Coast Bank and Trust

Coinpany

Role of Islamic Banking in Promoting Financial Inclusion 2017

- M Kabir Hassan, University of New Orleans

Grant by International Monetary Fund

e Behavior of Momentura in the Foreign Exchange Market: Evidence from
Portfolio Approach, Financial Management Association, New Orleans,
Louisiana, 2019

e  When and Why Firms Issue Sukuk?

o Financial Management Association, Las Vegas, Nevada, 2016
o Academy of Economics and Finance, Pensacola, Florida, 2016

Referee: Journal of Economic Cooperation and Development, The Service Industries
Journal, International Journal of Econornics and Management, International Journal
of Islamic and Middle Eastern Finance and Management

Discussant: Eastern Finance Association, New Orleans, Louisiana, 2015

Officer Grade 1, National Credit and Commerce Bank Limited, January, 2014 —

Bangladesh. August, 2014
Management Trainee Officer, National Credit and Commerce. February, 2013 —
Bank Limited, Bangladesh. December, 2018
Intern, Credit Analysis (SNEE) Division, Prime Bank Limited,  August 2011 —
Bangladesh. - November 2011

Computer: Stata, Julia, Python, SAS, Mathematica, TSP
Languages: Bangla {native), English (fluent)



References

‘

Neal Maroney, PhD.
Associate Professor of Economics and Finance &Graduate Coordinator

Department of Economics and Finance .
University of New Orleans

Email: nmaroney@uno.edu

Phone: 504-280-6908

M. Kabir Hassan, Ph.D.

Hibernia Professor of Economics and Finance
Department of Economics and Finance
University of New Orleans

Email: mhassan(@uno.edu

Phone: 504-280-6168

Atsuyuki Naka, Ph.D.

Profassor in Economics apd Finance
Max Derbes III Endowed Professorship
Department of Economics and Finance
University of New Orleans

Einail: anaka@uno.edu

Phone: 504-280-6896



A

Teaching Statement
- Hasib Ahmed

1 have taught the following undergraduate courses with full instructor responsibilities: Principles of Financial
Management, Investments, Finance Capstone, Engineering Economics, and Principles of Microeconomics. I have
also taught tutorial sessions for the Master’s program in Financial Administration. I taught Derivatives Analysis

for the Spring 2018 semester. My overall teacher rating is 4.45 out of 5.

I keep my classes very interactive and commuricative, rather than lecture intensive. My students enjoy
participating in class discussions and relating the material to real-world examples. [ make a point to include
rmaterial connected to current events in finance as well as industry case studies. I believe that people cannot truly
Jearn something unless they want to learn it. Therefore, I always try to stimulate my students’ interest in a topic
by relating to them the purpose, motives, and benefits of studying that particular topic before we delve into it. My
class discussions always include examples of how to apply the knowledge gained in the classroom to our personal

lives and careers.

There is no denying that students are interested in doing well on exams, so I also spend ample time on test
preparation. I have been giving open book and discussion pop quizzes for the last three semesters and have found
them to be very effective tools for learning. Students help each other, and when they cannot, they ask for my
guidance. The process makes them more confident so they become more comfortable shari.ng their opinions and
thoughts in class. I also check the progress of my students on a regular basis. When someone is lagging behind
in class, I offer them my help. In most cases, they tzke up my offer and study one-on-one with me.

The topics I cover are usually linked to a text. This allows any interested students to read the book in advance.

Also, the text works as a quick source of reference. I usually supplement the text by going through a few cases
with my students in the later part of the semester to improve their intuition. Overall, this structure caters to

students of different learning styles.

I encourage students in pursuing scholarly activities. I share my research ideas and methodology when related to
class topic. I send a clear message that if any student wants to work with me, or needs assistance, I would be very
happy to cooperate. Currently, [ am working on a paper titled “The Role of Financial Slack in Corporate Payout
Policy” with two of my students. I look forward to work with or gnide many mare students.

- Part of why I love teaching is that it refines my lmowledge in the subject area. It zlso gives me more incentive to

keep my lmowledge up to date, because I want to discuss interesting recent events. Also, discussing finance in an
interesting and fun way kindles a student’s interest to pursue a career in finance. I have really enjoyed teaching
each of my classes. I would love to teach Financial Markets and Institutions in the future. I believe my experience
worlkdng in the industry will help me relate the theories and practices to my students effectively.

Sincerely, .
Hasib Ahmed

Ph.D. Candidate/ Teaching Associate
Department of Economics and Finance
University of New Orleans

Email: hahmed 3@uno.edu, hasitbeml(@gamil.com



Research Statement
Hasib Ahmed -

As shown on my curriculum vitae, [ have been working on several papers with my colleagues, covering
topics as diverse as asset pricing, international finance, market microstructure, financial markets,
corporate finance, and entrepreneurial finance. My paper “When and Why Firms Issue Sulukr” was
published in Managerial Finance in 2018,

My dissertation, entitled “Pricing of Idiosyncratic Risk in an Intermed:ary Asset Pricing Model,” consists
of two essays that investigate the pricing of idiosyncratic risk and how it relates to expected returns using
an intermediary asset pricing model. The first essay analyzes whether the pricing power of idiosyncratic
" risk comes from frictions present in assets pricing models. The paper reevaluates the relationship of
idiosyncratic risk and return using a model that does not makes strong assumptions about participation
or diversification by households. The study will answer whether the mized findings in literature are due
to frictions arising from pricing mode} assumptions or rational inattention. The second essay .tests
whether idiosyncratic risk is priced in commodity futures market. This research will be the first to study
the pricing of idiosyncratic risk in commodity firtures market. '

I also have several working papers. One paper, entitled “Behavior of Momentum in the Foreign Exchange
Market: Evidence from Portfolio Approach,” examines the source and behavior of momentum return in
the FX market. The findings indicate that excess return from FX market momentum behaves differently
than excess return from the stock market; that is, the excess volatility from loser portfolio can explain the
excess return from winner minus loser (WIML) portfolio. Another paper, entitled “The Role of Financial
Slack in Corporate Payout Policy,” analyzes how free cash flow held by firms in excess of their expected
investment requirement and expected cost of financial distress (financial slack) motivates corporations to
take a payout policy. The findings indicate that excess financial slack does motivate firms to take a payout
policy and that the volatility of excess slack can predict any particular payout policy.

“Business Accelerators and Social Enterprises” studies the effect of business accelerators on social
enterprises by analyzing Propeller, a New Orleans-based Business Incubator and Accelerator that focuses
on social enterprises. The study provides recommendations on how business accelerators can help spur
social enterprise growth. My paper “Financial Inclusion and Economic Development in OIC Member
Countries” uses a fixed effect model, a dynamic pane] data model, and a propensity score matching model
to investigate how the relative strength of Islamic banking contributes to growth and inclusion in OIC
countries. The results indicate that a relatively strong Islamic banking industry in an OIC country
contributes to higher growth and financial inclusion.

I have also worked on grant projects concerning financial institutions and development finance. One study,
entitled “National and Regional Trends in Community Banking,” examines the comparative strength of the

 community banking industry in the U.S. The findings indicate that the industry has been shrinking and
losing its relative edge over the years, Another study, “The Role of Islamic Banking in Promoting Financial
Inclusion” looks at the effect of Islamic banking on different financial inclusion measures using cross
sectional and systemic dynamic panel data estimation techniques. The results indicate that the higher the
proportion of assets, deposits, and liabilities a country has in Islamic banks, the higher the level of financial
inclusion in that country. )

In addition to these studies, I have in mind many research ideas to work on in the future. My goal is to
produce high quality research papers that will contribute significantly to the fields of asset pricing and



international finance. However, I do not restrict myself to these fields only. I have worked in numerous
other areas of finance and economics and look forward to collaborating with my colleagues on a wide range

"of research studies in the future. -

Sincerely,

Hasib Ahmed

Ph.D. Candidate/ Teaching Associate
Department of Economics and Finance
University of New Orleans

Email: hahmeds@uno.edu, hasibeml@gamil.com



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

The Board of Supervisors of Southermn University and Agricultural and
Mechanical College (Board) hereby extends the position of Chancellor-Dean of
Southern University Agricultural Research and Extension Center (SUAREC) and
Dean of the College of Agriculture at Southemn University Baton Rouge (SUBR) to
Dr. Orlando McMeans, who hereby accepts the following terms of employment.

TERM OF EMPLOYMENT

The employment established in this Agreement is for an initial term of three (3)
years and three (3) months, commencing on September 1, 2019 and ending on
December 31, 2022,

The Board affirms the Chancellor-Dean's initial appointment as a full professor
with tenure at the SUBR School of Agriculture. The Chancellor-Dean will be
tenured in the department that meets SAACS credentialing requirements.

DUTIES AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

The Chancellor-Dean shall report and be responsible to the Board through the
System President as required in the Board's by-laws.

The Chancellor-Dean 's employment shall be subject to all other rules, orders
and regulations established and adopted by the Board, as amended from time to
time except as such rules, orders and regulations conflict with the express terms
of this Agreement.

The Chancellor-Dean shall comply with all other laws and regulations applicable
to his specific office and public officials.

The Chancellor-Dean will be subject to an annual review by the System President
to be conducted in a manner and by a procedure determined by the System
President. The President along with the Chancellor-Dean will establish
performance goals. The goals and objectives will be the basis for his performance
review for the three (3) vears of the Agreement and any extensions thereof.

COMPENSATION

The Chancellor-Dean shall be paid an annual salary of two hundred and twenty
thousand dollars ($220,000.00) for the term of this Agreement as compensation
for his services while serving as Chancellor-Dean. This annual salary will be paid
in the form of equal monthly installments no later than the last calendar day of
each month in accordance with SUS's payroll procedures.

Pape 1 of 6
GC 08-05-2019



The Chancellor-Dean shall receive a housing allowance of thirty-five thousand
dollars ($35,000.00) annually and an automobile allowance of fifteen thousand
dollars ($15,000.00) annually, which shall be paid in the form of equal monthly
installments no later than the last calendar day of each month in accordance with
SUS's payroll procedures.

The Chancellor-Dean will be eligible to participate in the benefits plans for health,
insurance, retitement and any other benefits that are available for full time
administrative employees.

The Chancellor-Dean will be required to meet the following benchmarks annuaily.
The President through the Board has the discretion and the decision to provide
incentive compensation to the Chancellor-Dean based on the following benchmarks.
The benchmarks are as follows:

1.. Improve the overall graduation rate at SUBR College of Agriculture
from the base year of 2019-2020.

2. Increase the enrollment and retention rate for the SUBR College of
Agriculture from the base year of 20:19-2020.

3. Demonstrate significant evidence of the advancement of the
Medicinal Piant Research and Development with special emphasis on
the development of the marijuana program from "seed to sell" in
accordance with the Louisiana Legislation, state and federal
guidelines.

4, Demonstrate significant evidence of the establishment and advancement of
a hemp program in accordance with the state and federal guidelines.

3. Develop effective funding-raising strategies, (i.e. corporate and
foundation donations, federal and state grants and contracts) leading to
the enhancement of the Land-grant campus physical plant and the
procurement of essential resources for the training and enhancement of
faculty and staffprofessional development.

6. Re-establish and upgrade multiple phases ofthe BAYOU youth
development programs leading to significant recruitment and training
of K-20 students within the Land-grant campus and throughout the
University system.

7. Improve searmless operations between SUAREC and the College of
Agriculture as demonstrated by stabilization of faculty/staff
composition and morate-promoting activities.

Pape 2 of 6
GC 08-05-2019



TERMINATION

Termination Without Cause

The Chancellor-Dean may be terminated without cause at the recommendation of
the System President with approval of the Board. If the Chancellor-Dean is
terminated without cause, he shall have the right to select an option as stated herein.
If the Chancellor-Dean is terminated without cause and elects to become a full-time
professor, he shall be entitled to eighty percent (80%) of his salary that he would
have received as Chancellor-Dean for the balance of the mitial term of this
Agreement.

The Chancellor-Dean, upon termination as Chancellor-Dean without cause, shall have
the right to: (a) remain at SUBR and assume the position of full professor with tenure
at SUBR or such other campus as may be mutually agreed upon by the parties or (b)
he may elect to leave SUBR. For purposes of this paragraph, the Chancellor-Dean
shall receive eighty percent (80%) of his salary for the balance of the term of this
agreement and upon the end of the telm of this agreement, the Chancellor-Dean's
faculty compensation shall be calculated as the average of the three highest paid
faculty salaries inthe department where the Chancellor-Dean is tenured.

If the Chancellor-Dean elects to leave SUBR following atermination without cause,
then he will not be entitled to any further compensation beyond amounts earmed
as of his last day of employment. Any amounts owed Chancellor-Dean under this
section shall be paid m the form of a lump sum no later than fifteen (15) days after
Chancellor-Dean 's last day of employment.

The parties agree that the above payments represent liquidated damages and are
all that is due should the Agreement be terminated without cause, except ordinary
claims for benefits accrued and vested as of Chancellor-Dean 's termination under
any pension or welfare benefit plan sponsored and/or maintained by SUS for the
benefit of full-time administrative employees.

Resignation

The Chancellor-Dean shall provide the System President with notice of resignation
of at least ninety (90) days unless such notice is waived by the System President or
occasioned by illness or disability. If the Chancellor-Dean voluntarily elects to
leave his position as Chancellor-Dean during the term of employment herein he
shall be entitled to assume his appointment as a full professor with tenure within
the Southern University System upon the approval of the President. He shall be
compensated at the average of the three highest paid faculty in the department he
is tenured. The Chancellor-Dean is not entitled to summer faculty pay unless agreed
by the President. His faculty position will begin at the start of the fall or spring
semester immediately following the expiration of the ninety (90) day notice period
or following the effective date of his resignation should it be sooner.

Page 3 of 6
GC 08-05-201%



Expiration

After the end of the term of employment specified herein, the Chancellor-Dean shall
revelito his position as an at-will Chancellor-Dean without any action required on
the part of the President or Board. The Chancellor-Dean shall continue as
Chancellor-Dean on an at-will basis upon expiration of this agreement subject to
the same telms and conditions as other unclassified administrative staff. In the
event the Chancellor-Dean is terminated or resigns after the expiration of this
agreement, he shall be entitled to assume his appointment to the faculty at the same
compensation as if he has resigned during the term of this agreeinent.

Termination for Cause

If the Chancellor-Dean is terminated for cause, he shall be telminated from all
positions with SUAREC immediately, including his position as a tenured faculty
member at SUBR. Ifte minated for cause, with the exception of amounts earned
prior to the Chancellor-Dean's termination date and ordinary claims for benefits
accrued and vested as of Chancellor-Dean's termination under any pension or
welfare benefit plan sponsored and/or maintained by SUS for the benefit of
full-time administrative employees, the Chancellor-Dean shall be entitled to
no further payments whatsoever after his termination date. The reasons for
termination shall be provided to the Chancellor-Dean in writing and he shall
be afforded an opportunity of not less than ten (10) days to respond to such
notice and a due process hearing before the Board or a designated Board
Committee.

The Board may terminate the Chancellor-Dean for cause for the following reasons
but not limited to:

Conviction of a crime of moral turpitude;
A finding of academic dishonesty as is defined in the Faculty Handbook;

Felony indictment for a crime of moral turpitude or other crime which would bring
SUAREC and SUBR's and Southern University System's reputation in disrepute;

Neglect of duty; and/or,

Disability (defined as an inability to fulfill the duties of Chancellor-Dean, with
the provision of reasonable accommodations, for a period of at least ninety (90)
consecutive days.

SERVICE ON CORPORATE BOARDS

The Chancellor-Dean may serve as a member of the Board of Directors of other
public or private corporations so long as such service is not a violation of any
law and will not interfere with or detract from the performance of his duties and
responsibilities as Chancellor-Dean or create any conflict of interest involving or
affecting the SUBR. The Chancellor-Dean shall obtain approval from the System
President prior to accepting an appointment to, or agreeing to continued service
on, any such Board. The System President shall not unreasonably withhold its
approval.

Page 4 of 6
GC 08-05-2019



EDUCATIONAL BENEFITS

The Chancellor-Dean and the members of his immediate family shall be entitled
to any privileges or benefits of attendance at SUBR or such other campus within
the Southern University System as afforded other full-time employees of the SUBR
or other campuses within the Southern University System.

NOTICES

Any notice required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed
given if given in writing, sent by postage prepaid certified mail, or hand delivery
to:

Chancellor-Dean Dr. Orlando McMeans and/or delivered to him at his office at
SUAREC.

President, Dr. Ray L. Belton, Southern University System, 4th Floor, J.S. Clark
Administration Building, Baton Rouge, La. 70813

With copies to the General Counsel, Deidre Robert, Southern University System,
4th Floor, 1.S. Clark Administration Building, Baton Rouge, La. 70813

Page 5 of 6
GC 08-05-2019



ENTIRE CONTRACT

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement between the
Board and the Chancellor-Dean with regard to all matters related to his
employment. There are no other agreements, conditions or representations, oral
written, express or implied, with regard thereto. This Agreement may be amended
only in writing and signed by both parties thereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOFT, this Agreement is executed by Dr. Orlando
McMeans, Chancellor- Dean, Southem University Agricultural Research and
Extension Center and Dean of the College of Agriculture; Dr. Ray L. Belton,
President, Southern University System; Domoine Rutledge, Chairman, Board of
Supervisors of Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College, as
ofthe  day of August, 2019.

CHANCELLOR-DEAN,
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY
AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH
AND EXTESNION CENTER
AND DEAN OF THE
COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE

Dr. Orlando McMeans

PRESIDENT,
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Dr. Ray L. Belton

CHAIRMAN,

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND
A & M COLLEGE SYSTEM

Domoine Rutledge, Esq.

Page 6 of 6
GC 08-05-2019



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
Z 261 A, A. LENOIR HALL

| PosT OFFice Box 9294

X BaTton Rouce, Loumsiana 70813-9294

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR

(225) 771-2552 July 31, 2019
FAX (225) 771-2474

Dr. Ray L. Belton — President/Chancellor
Southern University System and Southern
University and A&M College

4™ Floor, 1.S. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

RE: Appointment of Professor Marla Dickerson as Director of Continuing Legal
Education and Managing Fellow of the Cannabis Compliance, Law, and Policy Institute
and waiver of search

Dear Dr. Belton:

Cynthia Reed served as the Director of Continuing Legal Education for over a decade.
During the July 2019 Board of Supervisors meeting Ms. Reed was promoted to the position of
Associate Vice Chancellor for Academic Support and Bar Preparation. | am recommending that
the Southern University Board of Supervisors appoint Ms. Marla Dickerson as the Director of
Continuing Legal Education (CLE) and also appoint her as the Managing Fellow of the Cannabis
Compliance Law, and Policy Institute. The creation of the Institute was approved by the Southern
University Board of Supervisors at its June 2019 Board meeting in New Orleans.

Ms. Dickerson is an ideal candidate to assume the role of CLE Director and Managing
Fellow of the Cannabis Compliance, Law, and Policy Institute. She is currently serving as the
Director of the Pre-Law Summer Program for the Law Center, and ADA Coordinator. She is
pursuing a PH. D in Higher Education Administration, and earned a Juris Doctor degree in 2007,
a master’s degree in Agricultural Economics in 2003, and a bachelor’s degree in Agricultural
Economics in 2001, She is a Louisiana licensed attorney who has developed a medical marijuana
curriculum, focused of cannabis compliance, law, and policy. She was recently appointed as the
Diversity Vice Chair for the Cannabis Law and Policy General Committee by the newly elected
American Bar Association President. Her interdisciplinary education, skills, and experience make
her an ideal candidate for the combined positions. A copy of the letter to the Board requesting the
creation of the Institute is attached for your review.

"An Equal Educational Opportunity Institufion”



Dr. Ray Belton
July 31,2019
Page -2-

Combining these positions promotes efficiency and has a synergistic impact. Based upon
Ms. Dickerson’s education and experience, I believe that a waiver of a search is warranted. The
proposed salary for the 12-month position is $89,700.00. Ms. Dickerson currently has a 12-month
salary of $87,000.00. Hence, the proposed salary is a slight pay increase for her. I respectfully
ask that the Board consider this request at the August 2019 Board meeting.

If vou have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Yours Sincerely,

1) ' /
?su:k WAL,
ierre, Chandellor
d Vanue B. Lacour Endowed Professor

o

SoutHErN University Law CENTER



Marla Dickerson

EDUCATION

Louisiana State University, Department of Education, Baton Rouge, LA
Ph.D. Student in Higher Education Administration, Expected August 2020

Southern University Law Center, Baton Rouge, LA
Juris Doctor, Cum Laude, May 2007
GPA 3.35 ¢ Rank 34/145

Texas A&M University, College Station, TX
MS., Cum Laude, Agricultural Economics, December 2003
Thesis: Analysis of Farm-to-Retail Price Spread for Whole and Two Percent Milk in Seven Selected Cities

North Carolina A&T State Univ., Greensboro, NC
B.S., Summa Cum Laude, Agricultural Economics, December 2001

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

Southern University Law Center Baton Rouge, LA
Director of Pre-Law Academic Counselor, Instructor of Law, and ADA Coordinator 12/12 —Present
e Instructor for Lawyering Process I and Lawyering Process II
e Instructor for Law and Medicine (Medical Marijuana)
e Developed and implemented 2016 - 2019 Summer Pre-Law Program
Help students identify learning styles
Instruct students on academic skills
Develop and implement academic action plans
Provide feedback regarding writing samples
Conduct individual and group workshops and tutorial sessions
Coordinate ADA Services
Create ADA Policy
Assess ADA Accommodations application
Proctor students with testing accommodations
Provide course planning guidance
e Pre-Law Instructor — Academic Skills
e Coordinate and implement personal wellness events

Southern University Law Center Baton Rouge, LA
Teaching Assistant 07/05-04/06

e Assisted professors and conducted review sessions with students
TAMU Agricultural Econ. Dept. ' : College Statibn, TX
Teaching Assistant : 01/02-05/03

e Assisted students through one-on-one sessions and organized group study sessions
e Taught classes in basic microeconomic principles pertaining to agriculture

WORK EXPERIENCE
The Law Offices Dickerson, Leblanc, and Woods Addis, LA
Managing Partner ' 02/11-12/18

e Perform day-to-day management of all aspects of law practice

e Interview clients and perform in depth analysis of claims

e Research issues of family law, personal injury, contract disputes, and disputed ownership
»  Prepare pleadings for family and civil cases

e Engage in negotiations in both family and civil cases with opposing counsel



Attend status conferences and hearings on both family and civil cases

The Law Office of Victer J. Woods, Jr. Baton Rouge, LA
Associate 10/07 — 02/11

Represented clients and perform in depth analysis of claims
Rescarched issues and prepare pleadings for family and civil cases including petitions, answers,
reconventional demands, interrogatories, answers to interrogatories, judgments

Louisiana Department of Justice- . o Baton Rouge, LA
Law Clerk (Criminal Division) 05/06-05/07

Assisted attorneys with research pertaining to criminal and Medicaid fraud
Prepared pleadings, memoranda, and summary judgment motions

Lcuisiana Dept. of Agriculture & Forestry _ Baton Rouge, LA
Agricultural Specialist 12/03-07/04

Performed routine inspections of scales used for trade to ensure calibration
Conducted price verification and retail meter inspections

BAR ADMISSIONS

Louisiana, 2007

PRESENTATIONS

_ “Increasing the Effectiveness of Law School Pedagogy by Incorporating Mandatory Sustained .

Professional Development Seminars.” (May 2016). Presented at the annuai conference of the
Association of Academic Support Educators, New York, New York.

“Bridging the Gap: Determining the Effect of 2 Summer Law School Bridge Program for
Underperforming Students.” (October 2017). Presented at the inaugural Association of Academic
Support Educators Diversity Conference, Baltimore, Maryland.

“Social Justice Panel and Carinabis Education Panel.” (October 2018). Presented at Diasporic
Alliance for Cannabis Oppertunities Conference, Philadeiphia, Pennsylvania.

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS, ACADEMIC SERVICE. AND COMMUNITY SERVICE

Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated

Association of Academic Support Educators (AASE)

AASE Diversity Committee Ce-Chair (2016 — 2017) for Inaugural Diversity Conference
AASE Divessity Committee Chair {2017 — Present)

AASE Vice President of Diversity (2018 —Present)

Southern University System Grievance Committee Member

Southern University System Grievance Committee Chair (January 2019 — Present)
Southern University System Sexual Awareness Response Team (SART) Member

- ABA/TIPS Diversity Vice Chair for Cannabis Law and Policy General Committes (2019»/.020)

ABA Council for Diversity in the Educational Pipeline- Member {2019-2020}

AWARDS FELLOWSHIPS, HOIY ORS. GRANTS

Council on Legal Education (CLEQ), “2018 Pre- Law Summer Institute Grant™ $100, 000
Summer 2018

Council on Legal Education (CLEQ), #2019 Pre-Law Summer Institute Grant” $100,000
Summer 2019

Southern University Law School Scholarship 2004 -2007

2005-2006 SULC SBA Elections Committee Member

- 2006-2007 SULC Moot Court Board (Treasurer)

Heap Fellowship 2002 -2003

Association of Former Students Fellowship 2002 -2003

North Carolina A&T State University Dean’s List (7 semesters) 1998 -2001
Gamma Sigma Delta Agricultural Honor Society 1998 -2001



»  Golden Key National Honor Society 1998 - 2001
* Alpha Lambda Delta Honor Society 1998 - 2001
e USDA/1890s Scholarship 1998 -- 2001

REFERENCES
Available Upon Request




JOB CLASS

— SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
JOBCODE |M

| 1S I Personnel Action Form | POSITION

CALID U [ NUMBER 4 ¥
= a———— e
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC X SUAREC SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify)
X  Academic Non-Academic Civil Service

Temporary Part-time ( %_ of Full Time) Restricted
Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment
Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status

Previous Employee _N/A Reason Left N/A

Date Left N/A Salary Paid N/A

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment _09 .0 12019 To _09/30/2020

Effective Date _09/01/2019

Name _Marla Dickerson SS# Sex* F Race* _ B

T (Last4 digits only)
Position Title:  Director of CLE and Managing Fellow of the Department: Law Center — Academic Support
Cannabis Compliance, Law and Policy

Check One Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): :m

X __ New Position Expiration Date:
(Position vacancy authorization-form must be processed and approved to fill
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if

applicable.)

Years Experience _10 Southern University Experience 5

Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
J.D. Southern University Law Center 2007
M.S. Agricultural Economics Texas A&M University, College Station, TX 2003
B.S. North Carolina A&T State Univ., Greensboro, NC 2001

Current Employer _ Southern University Law Center

Personnel Action

CheckOne _ X  New Appointment Continuation Sabbatical E Leave of Absence
Transfer Replacement Other (Specify)
Recommended Salary  $89,700.00 Salary Budgeted $89,700.00

Source of Funds _Strencthenine HBGIL

Identify Budget: _Grant Location 311001-31710-61002-33000

Form Code; 1 Page _1 Item# 1
Change of: . <o

P - From - To
Position -. Academic C lor/ADA Coordi Director of CLE and Managing Fellow of the Cannabis
Compliance, Law and Policy
Status
Salary Adjustment S87,000.00 $89,900.00
Financial Aid signature (if, applicable):

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount
Southern University: 320150-32030-61002-34100 $87,000.00

*See Reverse Side

Comments: (Use back of form) I

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable):

l! .

"Vice Mudmﬂhnauu
Business Affairs/Comptroller

m.r %’U-ﬂ?

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board Date
of Supervisors

£l



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws
and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):
______ Hispanic or Latino Non-Hispanic or Non-Latine
RACE (Please checl all that apply):
_____ White, not of Hispanic origin. ammmmmynfmmmhﬁﬁmﬁ,mmemm

X Black. not of Hispanic Origin. Apemonhaviuguﬁginsinan}fufthamackrmiﬂ groups of Africa.

Hispanic. Ammﬁmmmmcmﬁsumﬁmmmsmmmuﬁm
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. Ihismhdudcs,fbruamph,(hhghmxmtﬁzﬁu‘q:pmnlmﬂamdm

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
maintains culnural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition.

’
COMMENTS: Marla Dickerson, duties are to direct all areas of the Continuing Legal Education (CLE) program
and Manage the Cannabis Compliance Law, and Policy Institute., Schedules and creates CLE Program training
and curriculum for continuing legal education credit. Develops Cannabis Compliance, Law and Policy offerings.
Coordinates symposiums and conferences on Cannabis Compliance, Law and Policy as well as engage in
fundraising for Cannabis Institute.

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Daily

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Chancellor, John Pierre
NUMEER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 130

HR USE ONLY:  STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Finaneial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
1D, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizeps.

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before emplovment is
offered.

B EMF 4 STA SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW GENTER
TYPE ENCUMBERES2EENDS AVAILABEERES
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization X Us 37 /
Resident Alien DATE RA 7T
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) 9 Hl o
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) i i
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Studeat at 51U.) F1
OFT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Fractical Work Experieace”) FO

Do Not Write Below This Area

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)

: " Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees)

. = Authority to ReleaSe (signed by eniployee) (submitied to Campus Police with Criminal/ Background Check form)
Supetvisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employes/ verified and signed by-supervisor),
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) o

— Proposed Employee Appointment S0:TTH 9 ONY BT,

Proposed Employee Clearance ’ Y344 SnePeiid dn GO

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

——

TITLE I
Ry, #5019



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813
SUS [J SUBR [] SULAC SUAREC [] SUNO []  susLA [

********t**************t**************t************t****ﬁk%w?***i***i*********t***********i

POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION

i:**********i’*:ﬁ'*i’**************i*************ﬁ*************’******ﬂ'* **ﬁ**i;*************i****
REQUEST THAT THE POSITION TITLE  Director of Continuing Legal Education AS DESCRIBED BELOW
(CLE) and Managing Fellow of the Cannabis
Compliance Law, and Policy Institute
BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR  Southern University Law Center

(Department or Unit)
Source of Funds
[] Replacement B4 New Position [l Unelassified B state
[ civil Service L[] Temporary [ Faculty [] Grant -in-Aid
Tenured [(J Ppro bationary (For Faculty this is same as tenure track) [ System Revenue

L[| Agency Fund State

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JU STIFICATION

(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with the appropriate Vice-
Chancellor, Chancellor andfor President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved through Human Resources).

Direct all areas of the Continuing Legal Education (CLE) program and Manage the Cannabis Compliance Law, and Policy
Institute. Schedules and creates CLE Program training and curriculum for continuing legal education credit, Develops
Cannabis Compliance, Law and Policy offerings. Coordinates symposiums and conferences on Cannabis Compliance, Law
and Policy as well as engage in fundraising for Cannabis Institute.

| 9NV 6102

0
4

Salary/Range: ~ "$89,000 - $100,000 Previous Incumbent (if replagers@yy): ~ N/A

iz F< )
¥ )5/l
*  Approved Disapproved A,M ¢ (7§ s f 6
/‘V T ep inent e ate
*  Approved Disapproved FA%T J

N B
!{//9

Deanﬂ)ﬁe&t&riﬁﬁpkwisnr of Budget Unit ‘Date
FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY
Funds Available Existing/ Approved Position

] i ges Mo

X Yes

_ No
; M% V ‘;/j g Employee Class: M U Job Class: 29 247

Signaflee baic Nithale (| Uliors |Bli12 /19

Budget Number | jfabf ~ 3/ 7/0- éﬁt@ b i 3 3000 Verified By: Date:

X Approved Disapproved /4}/{\-’% /) - K/ ‘5% 7
Dat

T ice Cha ellor,
D —
X Approved Disapproved : . N .
I cellor/Vice President Date

J
President Date
An Equal Opportunity Employer

Approved Disapproved

Rev, 8/05/2013



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
261 A. A, LEnOIR HaLL
PosT OFFICE Box 9294
BaTon Rouce, Louisiana 70813-9294

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR

(225) 7T71-2552
FAX (225) 771-2474

July 31,2019

Dr. Ray Belton, President/ Chancellor

Southern University System & Baton Rouge Campus
4" Floor — J.S. Clark Administration Building

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

Re: Proposal Salary adjustments to Courtney Richardson and Kimberly LaMoitte for
Additional Duties

Dear Dr. Belton:

In another letter to you dated July 31, 2019, I requested that Marla Dickerson, who
directs the Law Center’s Pre-Law Summer Program be appointed to the position of Continuing
Legal Education (CLE) Director and Managing Fellow of the Cannabis Compliance, Law and
Policy Institute. If Ms. Dickerson is appointed to be CLE Director and the Managing Fellow of
the Institute, I propose to have Courtney Richardson and Kimberly LaMotte assume additional
duties to restructure the delivery of the Law Center’s Summer Pre-Law Program.

Currently, the Summer Pre Law Program operates as a “boot camp™ or “bridge” program
for entering first year law students who have paid a seat deposit indicating their commitment to
attend law school at the Law Center. The program is offered in the daytime in a two week
increment, twice during the summer, and in a three week increment once during the summer
during the evening. The program is an essential part of preparing incoming law students for the
rigor of law school. The Law Center uses HBGI Title III funding to support the Summer Prelaw
Program, and it is offered at no cost to entering law students.

Because of the success of the program and its essential necessity, if the Law Center is
going to continue to be a premier “access and opportunity” legal education institution, the Law
Center is planning to expand and restructure the program beginning in the summer of 2020, The
plan is to offer the day “boot camp” or bridge sessions in three, two week increments, and the
evening “boot camps™ or bridge sessions in two, three week increments. Based upon the results
of the 2020 summer “boot camps” or bridge sessions, the Law Center will consider offering four,
two week day “boot camp™ sessions for summer 2021 and three, three week “boot camp™
evening sessions for the summer of 2021.

“An Equal Educational Oppartunity Instifufion™



Dr. Ray Belton
July 31,2019
Page -2-

In order to plan and implement the aforementioned changes, I am proposing that
Courtney Richardson be tasked additional duties to lead the planning of the proposed changes to
the evening “boot camp™ programs and that Kimberly LaMotte be tasked with additional duties
to lead the planning of the proposed changes to the day “boot camp™ programs for additional
compensation.

Currently, Ms. Richardson and Mrs. LaMotte serve as Instructors/Academic Affairs
Counselors in the Law Center’s Academic Support and Bar Preparation Unit. Ms. Richardson’s
current salary is $74,900, and Mrs. LaMotte’s current salary is $77,600. 1 propose that the salary
for Ms. Richardson be adjusted to $84,000, and the salary for Mrs. LaMotte be adjusted to
$87,000 for taking on the aforementioned additional duties. Both of them have been exemplary
staff members at the Law Center. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

I respectfully request that the proposed salary adjustments be presented to the Southern
University Board of Supervisors at its August 2019 Board meeting for approval.

Yours Sincerely,

Fa

e
T 7
;ljg‘ MIIAN L
. Pierre, Chancellor

d Vanue B. Lacour Endowed Law Professor

SoutHerN University Law CENTER




B CLASS
] SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
1| Somcn l’.umnnn].ﬂﬂmn.m:m N
POSITIO
CALID NUMBER L;.? /)»‘7 f 7 é ‘?
CAMPUS:  SUS SUBR X SULAC SUAREC SUNG SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER {Speeify)
Academic X Mon-Academic Civil Service
Temporary Part-time { % of Full Time) Resirleted
Tenured Undergraduite Studeni Job Appointment
Tenured Track Gradunte Assistant Probationary
Other (Specify) Teetiree Return To Werk X Permansnt Status
Previous Employes Reason Leli
Date Loft Salary Paid
Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment _July 1, 2010 To _Junc 30, 2020
Effective Date _August 13, 2019
MName _Mary Cabh-Marshall S5 ki Sex F Race® B
{Last 4 digits only)
Pailtlon Title: _MBA Online Coordinator Department: _MBA / College of Dusiness
Check One Existing Position *Visn Type (See ReverseSidey || ||
X MNow Position Expiration Date:

(Posltion vacancy autharizatlon form must be processed and approved 1o M
elating aad new pailieni, Pailtion mudi ba adverflsed before processing PAF, (T

applieatile.)
Years Experlence 37 Southern University Experlence 9
Degree(s):  Type/Discipline (BA-Educatlon): Institutlon/Locatlon (SU-Batan Rauge): Year:
BS ~ Education (Business) _Sonthern University and A&M College 1993
M.ED - Education _Southern Unlversity and A&M College 1897
_+30 Counseling Education Southern University snd A&M Callege _1006
Current Employer _Board of Regonts — LOSFA - Coordinator
ersonnel Acti
Chech One _ X Mew Appointment Contlnuation Sabbatleal Lenve of Absence
Transfer Replacement Other (Specify)
Recommended Salary _$60,000.00 Sulary Budgeted  _$60,000,00
Somrea of F.'uniln Munsier Business Admini {MBA) — Siate Funds
- 7 -6lP00- A 418 &
Identily Budget: 2110 Lacation MEBA
; Form Code: Fago Item #
Change of:
: From Ta
Fasition
Sintus

Salary Adjusiment

Financhil Afd lEntnre I"I l.n]'.r"l:l ble):
List finl funds currently pald this employes by Source of Funds Amount
Southern University:
*Sep Reverse Side

Comments: {Use back of form

Graduate Sehool signature (if, npplienble):

“Boe Reverse Slde

ﬂll!l.lil.tl Affairs/Compiroller

Dhate Chalrman/§. 1. Board Date
of Bupervisors




This information s requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Law.
and does not affect employment consideration,

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):
Hispanic or Latino X HMon-Hispanic or Mon-Latino

RACE (Please cheele all that apply):
White, not of Hispnnic origin. A persan having origins in any of the arlginal people of Buraps, North Afiies, ar the Middle Bast

X Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

— .

Hispanic. A person of Mexlenn, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish cullure or origins,
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific [slander. A person having origing In any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
Subcontinent, of the Pacific Islands. This aren includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Mative. A person having origing in any of the criginal peoples of Morth American, and who
maintaing cultural identification threugh tribal aifilintion or community recognition.

P = ————— = —=—————————————1
COMMENTS: Mrs. Marshall iz being hired as the MBA Online Coordinator,

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: $AM - 5 PM Monday - Friday
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: _Ashagre Yigletu 771.5640 / 771-6248
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 0

HR USE ONLY:  STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and beforg
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Finnncial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/studenis must bring a pictured
1D, socinl security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94, The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization us

Resident Alien RA

H-1 Viga (Distingulshed Merit & Ability) Hl

J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) 1

F-1 Viga (Student Emp. FT Student at 5.11.) Fl .
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practicnl Work Experience'™) FO

e e e e —————V .
Do Not Write Below This Area

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):
Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vaeancy Announcement (position advertised bofore processing PAF, if applicable)
Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Unel Poslitions(Clvil Service Application for classified employees)
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check form)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and sipnad by supervisor)
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head)
_____ Proposed Employee Appointment

Proposed Employee Clearance

Resiricted/ Job Appointment/C8 Rule 6,5g Letler of Justification {for classified, if applicable)
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

NN EREES oy 24000
AUG 15 2019
— '+ UM Rev. B/1452019

T FINP AVAILADLE




| SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813
SUS SUBR SULAC [] SUAREC [J SUNO susLA [
¥ 'ELQEL%‘-. L] ]

\mw e et e e e o e s e s o o oo e o e e o e o o o e s e e ek e
- ,19‘)‘“{5 12 POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION

AbrtPU————————— e e T S S A L LR bbb bbbttty

REQUEST THAT THE POSITION TITLE SUBR COB Online Programs Coordinator AS DESCRIBED BELOW

BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR COR Graduate ngﬁam.{; Office
(Department or Unit)

Source of Funds
[] Replacement [] X New Position [ X Unclassified [[] X State

] Civil Service [[1 Temporary [C] Faculty [} Grant-in-Aid
[] Tenured [ Probationary (For Facully this Is same as tenure track) L] System Revenue

Mency Fund State
VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION

(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with the
appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/for President, Salaries for classified positions must be approved through
Human Resources).

In order to succeed in the highly competitive online MBA national market and to meet the requirements of regional and
professional accrediting bodies, it is imperative to relaunch the online MBA with a seamless fusion of institutional strength
and qualified staff. Thus, one of the urgent tasks is hiring a professional and experienced COB graduate programs
coordinator for the On-campus MBA, Online MBA, JD/MBA and Graduate Certificate in Supply Chain Management. The
primary responsibility of the COB graduate programs Coordinator is to facilitate harmoniously with the other University units provide
assistance in arcas such as recruitment, application submission, admissions, transfer, registration, advisement, graduation, program
marketing/promotion and other support services to COB graduate students.

Salary/Range: 60,000 — 65,000 Previous Ipeumbent (if rgplacemepy:  None

X Approved __ Disapproved WM oL, gi‘fgf H?
’f)eﬁrtmﬁtz_ﬂead ate
l/ Approved _ Disapproved %ﬁ)zﬁgﬁp % i /6"“::’ . 4 / = / a

Q‘M %/1 M i)uunmirccturf.‘:‘upe;\'r'imw of Budget Unit " Date’

FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY
Funds Available Existing/ Appraved Position
Yes No v Yes - No

—— _—

%/M Employee Class: M_l ) Job Class: Y 4’4 _‘{z

S nature ~ Date % 3 __wba'lw 8/’3/“?
W%ﬂﬁr 5“5[ M \?rr ied By: Date:

A wﬁ%% BIOZ - ZAH DD /] 7 )
."Z !:IL LT < ’ 3 ¢ / . 7 3= L
L~ Approved __ Disapproved s € “-"Jf o / ) f.).(;'-:'f}
Viee Chancellor for Einance and Admin. Date
3,// Approved  Disapproved Jounes H . A ,,.“m?h{__;{_:}ﬂ__ gfﬁl E'.-L‘:!;:'
Ex. W(.'lmn:ell;brr’ Ex.V/President Date
v Approved  Disapproved (’:j_ﬂ—*—f '5—) g J’% //ﬁc’é z:jz'/ /_fz_’j/
/ President Date

Rev, 8/05/2013

GF



Office of the D.m SOUTH ERN/ Vaice: (225) 771-5640

COFegrIREEng UNIVERSITY FAX: (225) 771-5262
Agricultural & Mrulhnmul Callags
PerBOE R0 Website: www.subr.edu

July 30, 2019

Dr. Bijoy Sahoo, Senior Associate Vice Chancellor for
Academic Affairs

Third Floor Clark Administration Building

Southern University

Baton Rouge, LA 70813

Dear Dr. Sahoo:

We would like to hire Ms, Mary Marshall as the Online MBA Coordinator for the MBA
program in the College of Business. Mary Marshall is highly qualified for the position
and we have been authorized by the University to start this program by the beginning of
the Fall 2019 semester. Thus, it is critical that we have someone in place as soon as
possible. Therefore, we request a waiver of the normal search and advertising process to
hire Mary Marshall as the Online MBA Coordinator and start her in the position within
the next two weeks, Ms, Mary Marshall worked previously as the Assistant to the
Associate Dean and MBA Director, thus she will be able to help fast start the Online
MBA program based on her experience in previously working with the program.

rostd e A

Donald R. Andrews, Dean

Approvedi%‘;%’d"‘ E_ L ‘l‘
Bijoy Sa enior Associate Vice Chanctllor for Academic Affairs Date

Approved J 5
James Ammans Executive Vice Presidentf xecutive Vi t; Ch?nce lor Dat
Approved ( Ay % f / g / 97

Ray Belton President — Chancellor Southern Unluersitv Date

Attachment:



AACSB

ACCREDITED

SOUTHER
EIIH}_VII-II{H'I"\‘;! L

1 AT LIETUIRAL & MECHARICAL OO Eo

College of Business

August 14, 2019

Dr. Bijoy Sahoo

Senior Associate Viee Chancellor
Southern University and A&M College
Baton Rouge, LA 70813

Dear Dr. Sahoo.

I'would like to thank the SUBR administration for approving the hire of the MBA Online Coordinator,
providing overload for the COB graduate students Career Services Councilor and other supports to
launch the SU Online MBA in the Fall 2019 semester. So far among 17 students that submitted
application seven arc admitted and the applications of the remaining 10 candidates is being reviewed.

In order to start the MBA Online with seamless coordination and administrative efficiency, we have
identified Ms. Mary Cobb-Marshall, former staff member in the College of Business MBA Program and
who currently is an employee with the Louisiana Office of Student Assistance (LOFSA) —a program of
the Board of Regents. She serves as Coordinator in the Field Outreach Services Division. Ms. Mary
Cobb-Marshall has expressed her willingness to once again return to Southern, her alma mater, and
assist in implementing the SU MBA Online as she did when the on-campus MBA program was
launched in 2006. Mary holds a Master of Education degree - Curriculum and Instruction, a B.S.
degree in Business and Computer Science and Certification in teaching — (Business Education,
Computer Seience Literacy, Counselor Education, Supervision of student teacher and Counseling, In
addition, she possess highly developed interpersonal skills that helps her to connect with students and
the CORB stakeholders. [t is hard to imagine a better candidate that can fit the job descriptions required
for the MBA Online Coordinator position.

Therefore, in view of the profile of the above candidate and in the interest of time, | request a formal
approval for a search waiver from open recruitment to hire Ms. Mary Cobb-Marshall at a 12m0Onth
salary of $60,000.00 as the MBA Online Coordinator staring September 1, 2019, Ms, Cobb-Marshall
has expressed her willingness to return to Southern with a pay cut. This truly demonstrates her strong
commitment to the institution.

Again, highly appreciate the University's continued support to launching the SU MBA Online program.,

Sincerely,

i

Donald R. Andrews, PhD
[Jean




APPROVAL SIGNATURE

J g ;"!-‘;-"_‘ girsilj'
Bijoy Salloo, PhD

Senior Associate Viee Chancellog

B,

Benjamin Pugh &
Vice Chaneellor for Finance and Administration

O 1, Aispre

(Mmes H. Ammons, PhD
Ex. Vice Chancellog— Ex. Vice President

Date

# 15119

Date

3"/.'5/(‘?

Date

/ Date



SOUTHERN
URIVERSITY Bt AACSE

AR ULTURAL 8 MEC PANIEAL LI

College of Business

100% MBA Online

College of Business (COB) Online Graduate Programs Coordinator Job Description

Essential Duties and Responsibilities of the COB Graduate Programs Coordinator

]

:l 7

6.

Coordinates daily operations of the COB Online Graduate programs as related to student
recruitment, admission, advisement, registration, transfer, financial aid, graduation,
grievance and other matters related to COB Online graduate students.

Provides appropriate answers to inguiries from prospective applicants and existing COR
Online graduate programs students on admission requirements, curriculum requirements,
registration, advisement, financial aid, graduation and other matlers of interest to
graduate students,

Works closely and collaborates with the Offices of eLearning, Office of the Registrar, the
Graduate School, Financial Aid, Office of Communications and Office of International
students.

Complies with policies and procedures governing the University’s graduate programs and
ensures that the COB Online Graduate programs are operated at a maximum efficiency.
Recruits potential students for the COB Online Graduate programs (Online MBA  and
Graduate Certificate in Supply Chain Management) nsing designated marketing
strategics,

Review and maintain all completed application files and recommend admission
decisions.

Advise students on course selections and schedule planning, and will provide ongoing
advisement and counseling as the student progresses through the program,

Displays excellent networking abilities,
In collaboration with the University relevant units, participate in developing marketing
malerials 1o promote the COR Online Graduate programs.,

. Actively participates in developing and implementation of marketing and promotional

activities.

. Provides course offering schedules and other information to prospective students and the

relevant university units and CORB departments.

. Altend educational workshops, meetings, conferences and other events associated wilh

the online and other graduate programs,

. Prepares periodic reports regarding the COB Online Graduate programs recruitment,

retention, graduation, degree of student satisfaction and overall trends and submit to the
COB Associate Dean and Graduate Programs Director,

. Report daily administration of the graduate programs within the College of

Business.

. Additional duties include but are not limited 1o: coordination with vendor and

internal resources, program tracking and reporting. involvement in campus and

college committees, and assistance with other graduate program.



Mary A. Cobb-Marshall

CAREER OBJECTIVE:

To obtain a position that will allow me to use my leadership skills, analytical, technical,
planning, counseling, organizational, motivational and creative abilities to enhance an
organization's mission.

WORK EXPERIENCE:

November 2016 - Present

Regional Coordinator, Board of Regents, LOSFA

602 North 5th St,

Baton Rouge, LA

225-219-7525

Supervise 13 Middle and High Schools in East Baton Rouge Parish School District as part of the
Field Outreach Unit, Presentations on TOPS, Financial Literacy, Financial Aid and Match and
Fit. Supervise student workers and On-Site School Coordinators, Oversee over a half million
dollar budget (State and Federal Funds), Project lead on a number of projects throughout the
State, Project lead on My College Advocate, Project lead on Catahoula Parish Project, Presented
on State and National Levels at Symposiums and Conferences, Records and file Management.

August 2010 — November 2016

Counselor, Glen Oaks High School, 11 and 12 Grades

Woodlawn High School, 9™ and 10® Grades

East Baton Rouge Parish School System

Baton Rouge, LA

225-753-1200

I have performed Counseling duties for all grades. These duties were: Implementing a
guidance program for 250 students at Glen and High School and 750 students in total
which is over half of the 1300 students that are served at Woodlawn High School. Help
students with Louisiana Core-4 Curriculum which is College Prep and TOPS aligned.
Schedule, plan, plan honor roll program, meet with parents concerning student successes
and failures, PBIS behavioral specialist, serve on many committees at school, attended
workshops on suicide prevention, LA Core-4 curriculum, Individual Graduation Plans,
TOPS and other College Preparations, School Literacy Program, Transcript Maintenance,
testing, and any other jobs necessary for the successful matriculation of students enrolled
-and the overall success of our school.

September 2007 — August 2010

Southern University and A&M College — College of Business

Master of Business Administration Program (MBA)

Assistant to the Associate Dean and MBA Director

Baton Rouge, LA 70813

225-771-5640, Ext. 36

Administrative duties and project based duties, event planning, (Programs, Workshops
and Interviews), student advisement, travel to AACSB Conferences and Seminars,
Presentations, Database Management of MBA Students, Process Travel and



Reimbursements, Arrange Conference Calls, Secretary to the Southern University MBA
National Board of Advisors, Take and Transcribe Minutes, Accounts Receivables and
Accounts Payable, Supervisors of Graduate Assistants and Student Workers.

January 2007-August 2007

Counselor, Istrouma High School

Baton Rouge, LA

225-922-5400

Counsel Students, Scheduling, Testing, and any other duties.

August 1998-December 2006

Teacher — Business & Computer Technology Subjects

Glen Oaks High School and Central High School

Baton Rouge, LA

225-922-5400

Taught the following courses: Keyboarding, Business Computer Applications, Computer
Science, Introduction to Business, Free Enterprise, Accounting, and Business English
Mentor-Parental Involvement-9th Grade Students; Served as a Supervisor for student
teachers; Coordinator of Career Day for 4 years; Served as School-to-Work Coordinator
for 5 years; Coordinator of Career Options Program for 5 years; Technology Facilitator —
Faculty/Staff and Parental Involveinent Classes; Coordinator of Homecoming activities;
Business Department Chairperson for 6 years; Louisiana Mentor/Assessor for First Year
Teachers; Member of Instructional Leadership Team; Member of SACS Committee;
Assistant Softball Coach; and Manager of all athletic events and concessions

January 1994-May 1998

Teacher — Business & Technology Subjects

Pointe Coupee Parish School Systent

New Roads, LA 70760

225-383-8674

Keyboarding, Business Law, Accounting, Record Keeping, Business Math, Clerical
Practice, Computer Literacy, and Yearbook Advisor

Cheerleader Sponsor, FBLA Sponsor, Homecoming Chairperson, School-to-Work
Advisor, and Coordinator of Career Day

EDUCATION:

Southern University, Baton Rouge, LA
Plus 30 Hours — Counseling and other courses for Administration Certification
December--2006

Southern University, Baton Rouge, LA
Master of Education — Curriculum and Instruction
December--1997

Southern University, Baton Rouge, LA _
Bachelor of Science — Business Education/Computer Literacy/Computer Science
December-- 1993

CERTIFICATIONS:
Louisiana Type A — Teaching Certificate - #057092



Business Education
Computer Science and Literacy
Counselor Education K-12
Supervisor of Student Teachers
Counseling
Microsoft Office User Specialist (MOUS) — Word 2003
Louisiana Teacher Assistance and Assessment Program — Assessor/Mentor
Completed the Ethics Training for Government Employees - February 2015

REFERENCES:
Available Upon Request



JOBCLASS3 |2 |5 |0 |0
JoB cope 1 =im=im| SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
il (%! -
— o - Personnel Action Form POSITION
CALID u NUMBER 3 M9 |9 |2 |8
—_— —
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC X SUAREC SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify)
X  Academic Non-Academic Civil Service

Temporary Part-time ( % _of Full Time) Restricted

Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment

Tennred Track Graduate Assistant Probationary

______ Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employee _N/A Reason Left _N/A
Date Left NJA Salary Paid N/A
== ===
Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment 09/01/2019 To _09/30/2020
Effective Date _09/01/2019
.~a Sex
Name _ Kimberly LaMotte F Race* B
(Last 4 digits only)

Position Title: Academic Support Counselor and Instructor Department: _Law Center — Academic Support

Check One _ X  Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): m

New Position Expiration Date:
(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if

applicable.)

Years Experience _28 Southern University Experience 3

Degree(s):  Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
J.D. Southern University Law Center T 2012
Doctorate of Pharmacy Xavier University of Louisiana, New Orleans 1994
B.S. in Pharmacy Xavier University of Louisiana, New Orleans -1991

Current Employer _Southern University Law Center

Personnel Action

Check One New Appointment _X Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence
Transfer ___ Replacement Other (Specify)
Recommended Salary _$87,000.00 Salary Budgeted $87,000.00

Source of Funds _ Strengthenine HBGI

Ideniiﬁ Budget:- _Grant & Stﬁdént Success Location 320150-32030-61002-34100

Form Code: . BORI10 Page 1 Item # _1
Change of: .
From To
Position Academic Support Counselar and Instructor Academic Support C lor and Instructor
Status o
Salary Adjustment _S77,600.00 $87,000.00 .
Financial Aid signature (if, applicable):
List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount
Southern University: 320150-32030-61002-34100 $77,600.00

*See Reverse Side
I[ Comments: (Use back of form) _ﬂ

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable):

- ; : .!.“.'-.z....d g .
3 g / Doc

ce PresidentFinance
Business Affairs/Comptroller

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board of Supervisors Date



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights
Laws and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):
______ Hispanic or Latino Men-Hispanic or Non-Latino
RACE (Please check all that apply):
__ White, not of Hispenic origin. A person having erigins in any of the criginal people ef Eusope, Nowth Afries, or the Middle East

X Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa

I:ﬁs.'pa.'n.i.c. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish colnmre or crigins,
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands, This area inchudes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Native, A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
mainteing cultural identification through tribal affiliation or commumity recogniton.

e, —————————————————————————————————

COMMENTS: Kimberly LaMotte, will assume additional duties to restructure the delivery of the Law Center’s
Summer Pre-Law Program.

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Daily

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Shawn Vance

NUMEBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 5

HRUSE ONLY:  STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipf), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, HI-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/I-94. The latter six () documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

Documeniation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before emplovment is

offered.

)3 T STATUS):
s souTHERE universiTy (RRBEREr
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization ENCUMBERED / FUNDS AVAILABLE
Resident Alien oo B A o
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) 0
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Fmgram} DATE 34— é ; 5}4‘ g

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Studeat at S.10.)

&
g M org e
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-*Practical Work Experience”)

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)

Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertized before processing PAF, if applicable)

Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Unel Positions{Civil Service Application for classified employees)

Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Campus Polics with Criminal/Background Check form)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor)

1]

Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) BT OONHET,
Proposed Employee Appointment 444 ShFFeNId 4 G034
___ Proposed Employes Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, lfa.pphnable}

CONTINGENT UPON AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

Rev. H12019



KIMBERLY HARDY-LaMOTTE, PHARM.D., ESQ.

EDUCATION

Juris Doctorate 2012 Southern University Law Center, Baton Rouge, LA
Doctorate of Pharmacy 1994 Xavier University of Louisiana, New Orleans, LA
B.S.in Pharmacy 1991 Xavier University of Louisiana, New Orleans, LA

PROFESSIONAL LICENSURE

Bar Roll #34852 Louisiana State Bar
Pharmacy License #14931 Louisiana Board of Pharmacy

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Academic Counselor/Instructor of Law July 2018 — present
Southern University Law Center Baton Rouge, Louisiana

* Academic counselor in the Office of Academic Support providing various programs to ensure
student success throughout their matriculation in law school.

* Coordinate the Teaching Assistant (Board of Student Advisors) program, serve as a writing fellow in
the supplementaf Louisiana Bar Prep program, and teach Lawyering Process ! to first year law school

students.
Assistant Adjunct Professor of Law August 2017 — May 2018
Southern University Law Center Baton Rouge, Louisiana

* Taught Lawyering Process ! to first-year law school students as a course offering foundational skills
(critical reading, outlining, case briefing, etc.) necessary for academic success in faw school.
*  Taught Constitutional Law !l to upper tevel law school students.

Legislative Aide April 2013 —~ October 2014 & July 2016 - present
Louisiana House of Representatives Baton Rouge, Louisiana

» Manage district office and annual supplemental allowance of State Representative.
¢ Assist the State Representative in meetings with various advocacy groups.

* Respond to all constituents’ issues and requests.

e Draft & pubiish routine district newsletters to constituents and stakeholders,

* Assist the State Representative in planning and coordinating annual district events.
* Interface with other House and Senate staff in coordinating bill hearings.



Pharmacy Policy & Research October 2014 — July 2016
Louisiana Department of Heaith and Baton Rouge, Louisiana
Hospitals

*  Work within the Office of Behavioral Health, Health Pian Management in coilaboration with
Medicaid on the integration of behaviorai health pharmacy services into the Bayou Health plans.

» Coordinate program development and operation, quality monitering, and compliance of pharmacy
services.

¢« Perform RFP and contract review. ‘

* Coillaborate on legislative projects including bill drafting and tracking.

Legal Extern January 2012 — May 2012
Louisiana Department of Justice ~ Baton Rouge, Louisiana

*  Assist attorneys defending medical malpractice claims against the state of Louisiana.
* Conduct legal research as reguested by staff attorneys.
* Draft memoranda in preparation for legal proceedings.

Inpatient Pharmacy Manager June 2001 - August 1998

MD Anderson Cancer Center Houston, Texas

* Represent the hematology and bone marrow pharmacy satellites at Operational Pharmacy Services.

«  Manage/supervise the pharmacy staff of the hematology and bane marrow transplant pharmacy
satellites. :

* Inpatient human resources representative for the Division of Pharmacy.

* Develop and initiate policies and procedures for the storage and distribution of investigation drugs
and new formulary agents.

-Inpatient Pharmacist August 1995 — June 19598
University of Alabama at Birmingham Birmingham, Alabama

*  Processed all inpatient orders for the bone marrow transplant unit.

» Develop order sets for various diagnoses reguiring admission to the bone marrow transplant unit.

* Develop and initiate policies and procedures for the storage and distribution of new formulary
agents.

« Attend daily clinical rounds on all patients in the bone marrow transplant unit.

*  Staff the orthopedic surgery and renal/liver transplant units.

*«  Manage/supervise pharmacy technicians, students, and interns.

Clinical Pha'rmacy Resident July 1994 —June 1995
Veterans Administration Hospital New Orleans, Louisiana

* Attended Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee meetings to discuss cost effectiveness of various
new agents requested on the formuiary.
* Prepared outpatient prescriptions for mail order to veterans in the greater New Orleans area.




Attended daily clinical rounds on various patients in the inpatient setting.
Prepared case studies and various journal articles for presentation to the pharmacy staff.

Retail Pharmacist : September 1991 —~ June 1994
K&B Pharmacy New Orleans, Louisiana

Dispensed outpatient prescriptions and counseled patients on all new prescriptions.
Managed/supervised pharmacy students, technicians, and clerks.

Maintained adequate stock levels for over-the-counter medications.

Collaborated with store management on various personnel issues.

PROFESSIONAL & COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS/VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

American Bar Asscciation, Member

Louisiana State Bar Association, Member
Association of Academic Supwport Educators, Member

Association of Academic Support Educators Online Presence Committee, Member

Baton Rouge Delta Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, Member

Board of Trustees, Episcopal High School of Baton Rouge, Past Secretary

Southern Area of The Links, Incorporated, National Trends and Services Facet Chair

La Capitale Chapter of The Links, Incorporated, Technology Chair/Health & Human Services
Committee Member

Mavyor-President Sharon Weston-Broome’s Healthcare, Social Services, & Mental Health Sub-
Committee Transition Team Member '

Health Law Society, Scuthern University Law Center, Past Secretary

Board of Directors of Young Leaders’ Academy of Baton Rouge, Inc., Past Member

Junior League of Baton Rouge, Inc., Sustaining Member

Baton Rouge Chapter of Jack and Jill of America, Inc., Associate Member



Stz SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
JOB CODE

; Personnel Action Form [posrrion ] I
] mm %—‘

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC SUAREC X SUNO SUSLA

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH _X OTHER (Specify)
Academic X Non-Academic Civil Service
Temporary Part-time { % of Full Time) Restricted

X  Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment

Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status

Previous Employee _ Baobby Phills Reason Left  Resigned

Date Left Januwary 31, 2019 Salary Paid S200,000.00

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment  Jubv 1, 2019 To _June 30,2019
Effective Date September 1, 2019

Name _Orlando Fitzgerald McMeans S5% J00K-XX-XXXX Sex M Race* _B
Last 4 digits oaly)
Position Title:  Chascellor-Dean Southern University Agricultural Department:  Southern University Agricultural
Research and Extension Ceater and Dean of College of Research and Extension Center
Agriculture
Check One _X__ Existing Position “Visa Type (SteReverseSidey: || ||
New Position Expiration Date:

(Position vatanty suthorization form must be processed and approwved o fill
existing and mew patitions. Pesition mast be advertised before processing FAF, if

applicable.)
Years Experience 19 Southern University Experience 0
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location Year:
BS Horticnhure Alabama Agriculture & Mechanical University 1952
MS Horticulture University of Ilinois at Urbana-Champaign 1994
PhD Horticulture University of Dlinois at Urbans-Champaign 19497
FhD Plant Molecular Biology Virginia Pol ic Institute and State Universi 1998
Current Employer _ West Virginia State/Gus R. Douglas Land Grant Institute
Personnel Action
Check One New Appointment Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence
Transfer X  Replacement Other (Specify)

Recommended Salary _ 5220,000.00 Salary Budgeted S220.000.00
Source of Funds _State Budaet

Identify Budget: Location

Form Code: Page Item #
Change of:

From Io

Position
Status

Salary Adjustment

Finanecial Aid E'uﬂ.wre (if, applicable):

List total fands corrently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount
Southern University: S220,000.00
*See Reverse Side

Date s Vice President/Finance Date
Business Affairs'Comptroller

Date Chairman/S.U. Board Date
of Supervisors



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws
and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino X Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Affics, or the Middle East.

X Black. not of Hispanic Origiz. A person baving origins in any of ths Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cubsn, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins,
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
Subcontinent, ar the Pacific Isiands. This area incfudes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alasken Native. A person having origins in amy of the criginal peoples of North American, and whe
maintains celtural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition.
S0l

COMMENTS:
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 8:00 AM — 5:00 PM Monday thru Friday
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Ray L. Belion

SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER _225.771.4680
NUMSBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 25

HRUSE ONLY:  STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, gradnate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to
report to and be cleared by the Hnman Resources before any emaployment is offered and before starting to work.
All sindents are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt),
and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured II}, social security card, birth
certificate, certificate of natnralization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The Iatier
six (6) documents do mot apply to U.S. Citizens.

Documentation must be provided fox review and approval by Homan Resources before employment is
offered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):

IYPE CODE EXPIRES
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization Us

Resident Alien RA

H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) H1

I-] Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) Il

F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.11.) Fl

OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience™) Fo

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APFROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):
Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAT, if applicable)
Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positicns(Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Human Resources with Criminal/Backeroumd Check form)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employes/ verified and signed by supervisor)
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head)

Proposed Employee Appointment
Proposed Employee Clearance
Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

Rev, 072422007




SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM

Office of the Executive Vice President/Executive Vice Chancellor
J. 8. Clark Administration Building, Third Floor
Baton Rouge, LA 70513
Phone: (225) T71-4025

August 2, 2019

Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.
President-Chancellor

Southern University System

4" Floor, J.5. Clark Administration Bldg.
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

Re: Request for Waiver of the Vacancy Announcement for a Professor of Mechanical Engineering
Position in the College of Sciences and Engineering

Dr. Belton:

I respectfully submit this letter to request authorization to waive the vacancy announcement for the
position of professor of mechanical engineering in the College of Sciences and Engineering to appoint
Dr. Habib Mohamadian to the post. Since the Graduate Studies dean pesition became vacant, Dr.
Mohamadian has served as interim, Consequently, we are recommending that he fill a faculty position in
the College of Sciences and Engineering since Southern University is finalizing its search process for a
new dean of Graduate Studies.

Dr. Mohamadian has been with Southern University since 1980 when he was hired as an assistant
professor and project director for several grants under the then College of Engineering and Computer
Science. He became an associate professor in 1986, moving up the ranks to professor, chairman of
Mechanical Engineering, and dean of the College. Dr. Mohamadian earned his Ph.D. and master's degrees
from Louisiana State University and his bachelor’s degree from the University of Texas at Austin.

The need to advertise for the position of professor in the College of Sciences and Engineering is not
necessary as Dr. Mohamadian is a tenured professor and desires to return to his former college. | am
recommending a salary of $599,370.49,

Sincerely,

TEesnes 1 - Pwncon 5/@._2

lames H. Ammons, Ph.D.
Executive Vice President/Executive Vice Chancellor

“Five Campuses, One Vision... Global Excellence”



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY - BATON ROUGE, LA 70813
sus [J SUBR SULAC [] suarec [J suoNo [0 sEACE[V[E

*t****i*******iii*i*i*i********t****ﬂ*******i#iﬁ*****ﬁ***i*************ti*ﬁ* dede i o e ok e o e e b
™h

POSITION VACANCY AUTHORIZATION | ANG D 2 2018
**************it*!*i***********i***t**iiiittii*i*i**********************iti%#ii*i*********'
REQUEST THAT THE POSITION TITLE  Professor AS DESCRIBED BELOWPR
BE AUTHORIZED AS A VACANCY FOR _Mechanical Engineering Department WAUEMIC AR AIRS

(Department or Unit)
Sonrce of Funds
Xl Replacement [ New Position O] Unclassified [ state
Civil Service = [] Temporary [ Facuity [] Grant -in-Aid
] Tenuored O Probationary (For Faculty this is same as tenpre track) System Revenue

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION
(Include rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salaries for classified positions must be approved through

Human Resources).
A posilion in mechanical engineering isrequested at the rank of Professor with asalary range of $85,000 w0 $100.000. The effort of this
position will be at 100%. The position will ulso start in the Fall 2019 semester or 25 soon as it can be filled. The applicants should have a
sirong background in the Experimental Solid Mechanics, Thermal Stresses Mechanics of Composite Materials: Material Properties, Failure
Criteria, and Strength Applicant should have an camed Ph.D. in Mechanical Engincering (ME) or & dlosely related field. be willing to engage
in inspirational reaching in both the undergraduate and graduate levels, and have plans to develop active, externally funded research activity
and new Ph.1). program in Engineering. The applicant must be presently authorized to work in the U.S. on a full-time basis. The ME
Department needs this position to be filled in order to properly deliver (instruct) undergraduste and graduate courses in the specialty areas of
mechanical engineering (and the Master of Linginecring Program). In addition, thiswill help the ME depanment/program meet minimum
ABET accreditalicn requirements of having adequare faculty wilth expertise in the area of Experimental Solid Mechenics, Thermal Stresses,
Mechanics of Composite Materials; Material Properties, Failure Criteria, and Strenpth

Salary/Range: $85,000 to $100,000 Previous Incumbent (ifreplacement):  Dr. Chuan-Lin Huang
v Approved Disapproved Dwan m / e 8/2/2019
Department Héad Date
L Avproved __ Disspproved e Lafes
D ctor/Supervisor of Budget Unit a
FINANCE/BUDGET OFFICE ONLY HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY
Funds Available Existing/ Approved Position

Mo / Yes No

Employee Class: Hn Job Class: 97 /ﬂ,{?

i B,

AN
U By:

Verjfied

: ] | i
Approved Disapproved
g ice Chancellor
Approved Disapproved ETI;'I e S H - .ﬁghg wmrs f %,; g
Chancellor/Vice President Date

President Date
An Equal Opportunity Employer

Rev. 8/05/2013




HABIB P. MOHAMADIAN

Southern University and A&M College Office Phone: (225) 771-4622
Office of Graduate and Professional Studies Cell No.:
T. H. Harris Hall, Suite 1055 E-mail: habib_mohamadian@subr.edu

Baton Rouge, LA 70813

EDUCATION

BS:  University of Texas at Austin, 1976

MS.; Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, LA, 1978
Ph.D.: Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, LA, 1982

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2/17 —Present Interim Dean of Graduate School

7/16 —1/17  Dean, College of Sciences and Engineering

7/02 -6/16  Dean, College of Engineering

5/98 —6/02  Chairman of Mechanical Engineering Department

6/06 - Pres. Board Member, Advancing Minorities’ Interest in Engineering (AMIE)
7/02 — Pres. Member, HBCU Council of Engineering Deans

4/03 - Pres. Member, Louisiana Council of Engineering Deans

8/92 - Pres. Professor, Mechanical Engineering, Southern University.

8/86 - 8/92  Associate Professor, Mechanical Engineering, Southern University.
8/98 - 09/01  Chair, SACS Principal Committee on Educational Support Services
4/96 - 12/02 Campus Director and Assessment Coordinator of Synthesis Coalition
4/83 - pres.  Consultant for Becnel Engineering Company and other consulting firms.
8/79-8/86  Assistant Professor, Mechanical Engineering, Southern University.
8/80 - pres.  Project Director and Principal investigator on several grants.

AREAS OF RESEARCH

Experimental Solid Mechanics, Thermal Stresses; Mechanics of Composite Materials; Modeling,
Control and Optimization with Diverse Applications on Electrical, Mechanical, Automotive and
Biomedical Systems: Signal Processing and Image Processing; Assessment of engineering education
outcomes

Refereed Book Chapter:

Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, "Digital Image Processing for Spatial Object Recognition via Integration of
Nonlinear Wavelet-Based Denoising and Clustering-Based Segmentation”, Chapter 11, Advances in
Spatial Data Handling and GIS, Lecture Notes in Geoinformation and Cartography Series, Springer-
Verlag Publisher, pp. 145-155, DOI: 10.1007/978-3-642-25926-5_11, ISBN 978-3-642-25925-8, Berlin
Heidelberg, June 7, 2012 (El 20134216853239

PUBLICATIONS

1. Hang Yin, Patrick Carriere, Huey Lawson, Habib Mohamadian, Zhengmao Ye, “Characterization
of Salinity Impact on Synthetic Floc Strength Via Nonlinear Component Analysis® 6th
International Conference on Information Management and Big Data, Lima, Peru, August 21-23,
2019

2. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, and Hung Yen, "Quantitative Impact of Multiple Level Segmentation
Using Swarm Intelligence Based Approach”, 2016 International Mechanical Engineering and
Technologies Conference (MECHATECH 2016) May 17 - 18, 2016, istanbul, Turkey

3. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, “Application of Modern Control Theory on Performance Anaiysis of
Generalized Notch Filters”, 2016 International Conference on Modern Circuits & Systems

S ———— e I .



Technologies (IEEE MOCAST 2016), May 12 - 14, 2016, Aristotle University, Thessaloniki,
Greece

4. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, "Nonlinear Least Squares Regression Analysis and Diagnosis for
Optical and Laser Measurement Systems", International Journal of Electrical, Electronics and
Data Communication (IJEEDC), pp. 1-6, Volume 3, Issue 7, July 2015, Institute of Research
and Journals Press

5. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian "Intelligent Control Based Multilevel and Multiband Digital Image
Thresholding Using Fuzzy Entropy and Particle Swarm Optimization”, International Journal of
Advance Computational Engineering and Networking (IJACEN), pp. 24-30, Volume 3, Issue 7,
July 2015, Institute of Research and Journals Press

6. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Adaptive Clustering Based Dynamic Routing of Wireless Sensor
Networks via Generalized Ant Colony Optimization®, Elsevier Journal of information Engineering
Research Institute (IERI) Procedia, Vol. 10, pp. 2-10, ISSN: 2212-6678, DO
10.1016/.ieri.2014.09.063, Elsevier, 2014

7. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Simple Engine Exhaust Temperature Modeling and System
Identification Based on Markov Chain Monte Carlo Approach®, Journal of Applied Mechanics
and Materials, pp. 224-228, Vol. 598, Trans Tech Publications, DOI
10.4028/ www.scientific.net/AMM.598.224, Switzerland, 2014 (El 15074751)

8. Z. Ye and H. Mchamadian, "System ldentification of Simplified Engine Exhaust Temperature
Model Based on Markov Chain Monte Carlo Approach”, Journal of Applied Mechanics and
Materials, Vol. 598, pp. 224-228, DOI 10.4028/www.scientific.net/AMM.598.224, Trans Tech
Publications, Switzerland, 2014

8. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Comparative Study of Path Loss Models for Wireless Cellular
Networks and Optimal Power Control with Respect to SINR Balancing", Journal of Information
Systems Technology and Planning (JISTP), pp. 1-13, Volume 6, Issue 16, ISSN 1945-5240,
2013, International Consortium Press

10. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Creativity Stimulation for Engineering Education Enhancement with
Quality Assurance Through Integration of ABET Technology Accreditation and LiveText
Assessment Accreditation”, Journal of Applied Global Research (JAGR), ISSN1940-1833,
pp.55-64, Volume 8, Issue 16, 2013 , International Consortium Press

11. Z. Ye, H. Mchamadian, “Remote Sensing Feature Detection and Geoinformation Retrievai Via
Multiscale 2D Gabor Wavelet Transform”, pp.601-611, Proceedings of 16th Internationa!
Academic Conference, Amsterdam, May 12 - 15, 2015

12. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, "Intelligent Control Based Multilevel and Multiband Digital image
Thresholding Using Fuzzy Entropy and Particle Swarm Optimization”, Proceedings of the 2015
International Conference on Technological Advances in Electrical, Electronics and Computer
Engineering (ICTAEECE 2015) , May 8-10, 2015, Barcelona, Spain

13. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, "Nonlinear Least Squares Regression Analysis and Diagnosis for Optical
and Laser Measurement Systems", Proceedings of the 2015 international Conference on
Engineering and Natural Science (ICENS 2015), May 8-10, 2015, Barcelona, Spain

14.Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, H. Yin, “Pedagogical Advancement of Postgraduate Education by
Incorporating Class Projects and Accreditation Management”, Proceedings of 2015 ASEE Guif
Southwest Annual Conference, March 25-27, 201 5, San Antonio, Texas

15. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, H. Yin and Y. Ye, "Practical Contour Tracing Via Integration of Adaptive
Contrast Stretching and Gabor Wavelet Transform”, Proceedings of 2014 Second International
Conference on Advances in Computing, Electronics and Communication (ACEC2014), pp. 93-
97, ISBN: 978-1-63248-029-3 DOI 10.15224/ 978-1-63248-029-3-82, Oct. 25-26, 2014, Zurich,
Switzerland

16. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Adaptive Clustering Based Dynamic Routing of Wireless Sensor
Networks via Generalized Ant Colony Optimization", Proceedings of 2014 Internaticnal
Conference on Future Information Engineering (FIE 2014), July 7-8, 2014, Beijing, China

Y Ar—— : ., I,



17.Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Multiple Ant Colony Optimization for Single Depot Multiple Trip
Vehicle Routing Problems”, Proceedings of 2014 Ershov Informatics Conference (PSi 2014),
pp. 43-54, June 24 - 27, 2014, St. Petersburg, Russia

18. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "System ldentification of Simplified Engine Exhaust Temperature
Model Based on Markov Chain Monte Carlo Approach”, Proceedings of 2014 Internationai
Conference on (ICMSC2014) Mechanics, Simutation and Control, June 21-22, Moscow, Russiza.

19. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Enhancing Decision Support for Pattern Classification via Fuzzy
Entropy Based Fuzzy C-Means Clustering", Proceedings of the 2013 52nd IEEE Conference on
Decision and Control, pp. 7432-7436, December 10-13, 2013, Filorence, ltaly (El
20142517845860 & El 14157522)

20. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Model Predictive Control on Wall Wetting Effect Using Markov
Chain Monte Carlo", Proceedings of the 2013 IEEE Latin-American Conference on
Communications (LATINCOM 2013), November 24-26, 2013, Santiago, Chile (El
20141617591738 & El 14148312)

21. Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Multivariate Optimization for Spectral Analysis Via Markov Chain
Monte Carlo Approach”, Proceedings of the 2013 IEEE Latin-American Conference cn
Communications (LATINCOM 2013), November 24-26, 2013, Santiago, Chile

22.Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Multilevel Wavelet Transform Based Sparsity Reduction for
Compressive Sensing”, Proceedings of the 2013 Workshop on Artificial Intelligence Technigues
for Ambient Intelligence, pp. 1-8, July 16-17, Athens, Greece

23.Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Analysis of Multistage Sampling Rate Conversion for Potential
Optimal Factorization", Proceedings of the 2013 |EEE 10th International Conference on
Sampling Theory and Applications, pp. 244-247, July 1-5, 2013, Bremen, Germany

24.Z. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Exploiting Intelligent Decision Supports for Model-Driven
Biomedical System Analysis”, Proceedings of the 2013 Iberian Conference on Information
Systems and Technologies, pp. 818 — 823, June 19-22, 2013, Lisbon, Portugal (El
20134817022669 & El 13848791) 16, ISSN 1940-1833, 2013

25. Zhengmao Ye, H. Mohamadian, "Comparative Study of Path Loss Models for Wireless Celluiar
Networks and Optimal Power Control with Respect to SINR Balancing", Journal of Information
Systems Technology & Planning (JISTP), pp. 1-13, Volume 6, Issue 16, ISSN 1945-5240, 2013

26. Zhengmao Ye, H. Mohamadian and Y. Ye, "information Loss Determination on Digital Image
Compression and Reconstruction Using Qualitative and Quantitative Analysis", Journal of
Multimedia, Academy Publisher, Vol. 6, No. 6, pp. 486-493, December, 2011 (EI
201151146209720)

27. Zhengmao Ye, H. Mohamadian, Yongmao Ye, “3D Space Display of Evolutionary Algorithms
Based Non-Convex Optimization”, 3DAS2010 International Conference on 3D Systems and
Applications, Tokyo, Japan, May 19-21, 2010.

28. Zhengmao Ye, H. Mohamadian, "Integration of Wavelet Fusion and Adaptive Contrast
Stretching for Object Recognition with Quantitative Information Assessment”, International
Journal on Graphics, Vision and Image Processing, ISSN 1687-398X. Vol (8), Issue (V), pp. 33-
42, Jan 2009

29. Zhengmao Ye, H. Cao, S. lyengar and H. Mohamadian, "Medical and Biometric |dentification
for Pattern Recognition and Data Fusion with Quantitative Measuring”, Chapter 6, Systems
Engineering Approach to Medical Automation, Artech House Publishers, 2008

30. Zhijun Li, Zhengmao Ye, H. Mohamadian, “An Electronic Control System for Exhaust Emissions
and Fuel Economy of Quasi-Homogeneous Lean Burn Gasoline Engines”, 2007 American
Control Conference New York, NY USA, July 11-13, 2007

31. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, Y. Ye, "Quantitative Representation for Trimulus Contrast Enhancement
and Grayscale Watershed Segmentation®, Proceedings of the 2008 World Congress on
Intelligent Control and Automation (WCICA 08}, June 25-27, 2008, Chongging, China

32, Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, L. Li, Q. Meng, Z. Li, "Theoretical and Practical Mechanisms on Lowering
Exhaust Emission Levels for Diverse Types of Spark Ignition Engines", Proceedings of 2008

T —— TN,



SAE International Powertrains, Fuels and Lubricants Congress, 2008-01-1545, June 23-25,
2008, Shanghai, China

33. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, Y. Ye, "Gray Level Image Processing using Contrast Enhancement and
Watershed Segmentation with Quantitative Evaluation”, Proceedings of 2008 IEEE international
Conference on Content-Based Multimedia Indexing (CBMI 2008), June 18-20, 2008, London,
UK

34.Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, Y. Ye, "Independent Component Analysis for Spatial Object Recognition
with Applications of Information Theory Synthesis", Proceedings of the IEEE International Joint
Conference on Neural Networks (IJCNN 2008) and the 2008 IEEE World Congress on
Computational Intelligence (WCCI 2008), Hong Kong, June 1-6, 2008

35. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, Y. Ye, "Sensing Data Discrete Wavelet Fusion for Pattern Recognition
with Qualitative and Quantitative Measuring”, Proceedings of the 2008 IEEE International Joint
Conference on Neural Networks (JJCNN 2008) and the 2008 IEEE World Congress on
Computational Intelligence (WCCI 2008), Hong Kong, June 1-6, 2008

36. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, "Comparisons of Two Feedback Servo Systems for Control Engineering
Education: A Case Study on Student Performance of Speed Control Systems", Proceedings of
the 2008 ASEE Gulf Southwest Annual Conference, #6-2, March 26-28, 2008, Albuguerque,
New Mexico

37. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, H. Majlesein, "Adaptive Enhancement of Gray Level and True Color
Images with Quantitative Measurement Using Entropy and Mutual Information”, Proceedings of
the 40th Southeastern Symposium on System Theory (SSST 2008), March 16-18, 2008, New
Orleans, LA, USA (El 9940416)

38. Z. Ye, Z. Li and H. Mohamadian, "Engine Performance Improvement on Fuel Economy and
Exhaust Emissions Using Lean Burn Control Technologies”, WSEAS Transactions ¢n
Environment and Development, 2008, Volume 3, Issue 4, pp. 65-71, April 2007, ISSN: 1790-
5079

39. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, S. Pang and S. lyengar, "Contrast Enhancement and Cluster
Segmentation of Gray Level images with Quantitative information Evaluation”, WSEAS
Transactions on Information Science and Applications, Volume 5, Issue 2, pp. 181-183,
February, 2008, ISSN: 1709-0832

40. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian and Y. Ye, "Practical Approaches on Enhancement and Segmentation
of Trimulus Color Image with Information Theory Based Quantitative Measuring”, WSEAS
Transactions on Signal Processing, Volume 4, Issue 1, pp. 12-20, January, 2008, ISSN: 17990-
50562

41. Z. Ye, Z. Li and H. Mohamadian, "Lean Burn Engine Control for Fuel Economy and Exhaust
Aftertreatment”, #571-300, Proceedings of the 2007 WSEAS International Conference on
Energy Planning, Energy Saving, Environmental Education, Arcachon, France, October 14-185,
2007

42. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, S. Pang and S. lyengar, "Image Contrast Enhancement and
Quantitative Measuring of Information Flow”, #571-298, Proceedings of the 2007 WSEAS
International Conference on Mathematical Methods and Computational Techniques in Electrical
Engineering, Arcachon, France, October 13-15, 2007

43. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian and Y. Ye, "Digital Trimulus Color Image Enhancing and Quantitative
Information Measuring”, #571-299, Proceedings of the 2007 WSEAS Interational Conference
on Mathematical Methods and Computational Techniques in Electrical Engineering, Arcachon,
France, October 13-15, 2007

44. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian and Y. Ye, "Discrete Entropy and Relative Entropy Study on Nonlinear
Clustering of Underwater and Arial Images”, Proceedings of the 2007 IEEE International
Conference on Control Applications (CCA 2007), pp. 318-323, Qct. 1-3, 2007, Singapore (El
082011252389 & El 9797049)

45. Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian and Y. Ye, "Information Measures for Biometric Identification via 2D
Discrete Wavelet Transform”, Proceedings of the 2007 IEEE International Conference on

T O S N N B T T Ity st —reoeerrer

Page 4

e — D —



Automation Science and Engineering (CASE 2007), pp. 835-840, Sept. 22-25, 2007, Scottsdale,
Arizona, USA (El 9796683)

46. Z. Ye, Q. Meng, H. P. Mohamadian, J. T. Wang, L. Chen, and L. Zhu, "Investigation of Deposit
Formation Mechanisms for Engine In-Cylinder Combustion and Exhaust Systems Using
Quantitative Analysis and Sustainability Study", International Journal of Thermophysics,
Springer, Vol. 28, No. 3, pp. 1056-1066, August, 2007 (DOI 10.1007/810765-007-0228-5) (El
073810821037)

47. Z.Li, Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, Y. Zhang, X. Sun, G. Zhang, "NOx Emission Aftertreatment Study
on Lean Burn Gasoline Engine Using Absorber Reduction Catalyst”, SAE Technical Paper
Series 2007-01-1932, 2007 JSAE/SAE International Fuels and Lubricants Meeting, July 23-26,
2007, Kyoto, Japan

48. Z. Li, Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian, X. Wang, Y. Zhang, G. Zhang, "An Electronic Control System for
Exhaust Emissions and Fuel Economy of Quasi-Homogenous Lean Burn Gasoline Engines”,
Proceedings of the 2007 IEEE American Control Conference (ACC 2007), pp. 2973-78, July 11-
13, 2007, New York City, USA

49. Z. Ye, Y. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Biometric Identification via PCA and ICA Based Pattern
Recognition", Proceedings of the 2007 |IEEE International Conference on Control and
Automation (ICCA 2007), pp. 1600-1604, May 30-June 1, 2007, Guangzhou, China (E!
9807853)

50. Z.Ye, Z. Li, H. Mohamadian, "Research on NOx Emission Aftertreatment of Lean Burn Gasoline
Engine Using Absorber Reduction Catalyst”, Proceedings of the 2007 ASME/IEEE Joint Rail
Conference and internal Combustion Engine Spring Technical Conference, March 13-16, 2007,
Pueblo, Colorado, USA (EI 073410774556)

91. Zhengmao Ye, Q. Meng, H. Mohamadian, J.T. Wang, L. Chen, L Zhu, “Quantitative Analysis of
Engine Deposit Formation and Sustainability Study”, International Journal of Thermophysics,
Proceedings of 16th Symposium on Thermophysical Properties, July 2006, Bouider, USA

52. Zhengmao Ye, H. Mohamadian, J.T. Wang, "Computerized Examination of Cylinder Pressure
Rise and Heat Release Analysis for Rapid Compression Machine", Proceedings of the 3
BSME-ASME International Conference on Thermal Engineering 20-22 December, 2008, Dhaka,
Bangladesh

53.Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian and Y. Ye, "Process Control Potentials on Gasification and Combined
Cycle Integration”, Proceedings of the 2006 IEEE international Conference on Computational
Cybernetics (ICCC 2008), Aug 20-22, 2006, Tallinn, Estonia

94.Z. Ye, H. Mohamadian and Y. Ye, "Integration of IGCC Plants and Reachable Multi-Objective
Thermo Economic Optimization”, Proceedings of the 2006 IEEE International Conference on
Computational Cybernetics (ICCC 2006), Aug 20-22, 2008, Tallinn, Estonia

55.Z. Ye, Y. Ye and H. Mohamadian, "Design of Fuzzy Stochastic Nearly Optimal Controf”,
Proceedings of the 2006 IEEE World Congress on Computational Intelligence (WCCI 20086 -
IEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Systems (FUZZ 20086), pp. 8458-8462, July 16-21,
2008, Vancouver, Canada

56. Z. Ye, P. Bhattacharya, H. Mohamadian, H. Majleseinand Y. Ye, "Equational Dynamic Modeling
and Adaptive Control of UAV", Proceedings of the 20068 IEEE International Conference on
System of Systems Engineering (SOSE 2008), pp. 339-343, April 24-26, 20086, Los Angeles,
USA

S7.Z. Ye, Y. Ye, H. Mohamadian, P. Bhattacharya and K. Kang, "Fuzzy Filtering and Fuzzy K-
Means Clustering on Biomedical Sample Characterization", Proceedings of the 2005 IEEE
International Conference on Control Applications (CCA 2005), pp. 90-95, Aug. 28-31, 2005,
Toronto, Canada (El 8671440)

58.Z. Ye, L. Li and H. Mohamadian, "Multi-Variable Optimization on Engine Variable Intake Valve
Closing Timing for Engine Overall Performance”, Proceedings of the 2005 ASME Internal
Combustion Engine Division Spring Technical Conference (ICESO05), pp. 75-81, April 5-7, 2005,
Chicago, USA (EI 05479488979)

T — : = : T ——_—_—_——



59. H. Mohamadian: “Development of Fatigue Damage Mechanics for Application to the Design of
Damage-Tolerant Composite Components,” J. Composite Science and Technology, Vol. 22, No.
6, 1997.

60. H. Mohamadian: “Curriculum Design and Academic Assessment: The Engineering Thought
Process,” Proceedings of the Engineering Pipeline National Conference, PP. 23-26, Houstcn
Texas, Sept., 1997.

61. H. Mohamadian: “Strain-Stress Analysis of Various E-glass Composite Laminate Joints under
Flexure Loading,” Polymer Composites, Vol. 17, No. 2, 1996.

62. H. Mohamadian: “Graphite Laminate Tearout Due to Hole Driling,” Composite Material
Technology, ASME PD -Vol. 62, 1995,

63.R. Mirshams, Z. Li, H. Mohamadian: “High Temperature Tensile Properties and Fracture
Characteristics in Two Phase Gamma TiAl and TiB2 Particle Reinforced TiAl Alloys,” Scripta
Metallurgica et Materialia, Dec. 1395.

64. R. Mirshams, H. Mchamadian, and K. Crosby: “On the Effects of Strain Path on Work Hardening
Behavior of Uitra Low Carbon Sheet Steels," Journal of Materials Engineering and Performance,
Vol. 3(1), p. 64, 1994

RESEARCH, EDUCATIONAL, AND EQUIPMENT AWARDS AND GRANTS

The SUBR/Board of Regents Fellowship Program: The Pathway to the Professorate in Public Policy
and STEM at Southern University and A&M Coliege, 2019, Habib Mohamadian, Patrick Mensah,
Demian Ejigiri, $45,000

Louisiana Board of Regents, Workforce and Innovation for a Stronger Economy (WISE) Initiative:
Enhancement of College of Engineering & Computer Science Workforce Training Facilities, H.
Mohamadian, P. Carriere, and E. Khosravi, $160,000.

Louisiana Board of Regents, “The LONI Institute: Advancing Biology, Materials, and Computational
Sciences for Research, Education, and Economic Development”, H. Mohamadian, M. Stubblefield, D.
Jerro, and E. Khosravi, $1,000,000.

National Academy of Sciences, “Advancing Scholarship in Engineering Education”, H. Mohamadian,
$12,000.

Halliburton Corp., “Engineening Summer Institute”, H. Mohamadian and J. Peters, $50,000

Lockheed Martin Corp. “Enhancement of College of Engineering Activities”, H. Mohamadian, $120,0600
The Boeing Company. “Engineering MSER CAD Modeling Tools”, H. Mohamadian, E. Blevins, and A.
Jana, $100,000

IT Initiative, “High Performance Computing and Networking”, H. Mohamadian, $385,000.

SUBR-Title 1, “Assessment of Engineering Education Outcomes”, H. Mohamadian, $125,000

SUBR Graduate School, " Enhancement of Graduate Labs", H. Mohamadian $169,400

NRERL/DOE “Fatigue Test and Analysis of E-glass Composite Materials,” Ira Graham, H. Mohamadian,
C. Wang-$325,000

PNL, “A Measurement of Residual Stresses in Zircaloy Tubing,” R. Mirshams, H. Mohamadian-$64,600

Clin Corporation, “Student Participation in Research Activities," H. Mohamadian-$7,500

resm— _. T T AR TR



NSF, “Effects of Prestrain State on Uniaxial Tensile Properties of Sheet Steels,” R. Mirshams, H.
Mohamadian- $100,000

Louisiana Board of Regents, "Engineering Research and Education Through Acquisition of Material
Testing Equipment,” S. Ibekwe, R. Mirshams, H. Mohamadian, and S. Pang-$39,000

General Dynamics, “Constant Amplitude Fatigue Crack Growth Rate Testing of RX218-T851 Plates,”
H. Meohamadian-$245 000

Synthesis Coalition/NSF, “Self-Paced Laboratory Learning Stations,” H. Mohamadian- $210,000

TACOM, “Determination of High Temperature Mechanical Properties and Coefficient of Thermal
Expansion of Advanced Alloys,” R. Mirshams, H. Mchamadian, S. Pang, C. Yang, and K. Crosby-
$185,895

NASA, “Fractographic Studies and Analyses in Database Documentation and Development.” R. Diwan,
H. Mohamadian- $200,000

Synthesis Coalition/NSF, “Assessment of Engineering Education Outcomes,” H. Mohamadian-
$125,000

The Boeing Company, " Senior Design Projects," H. Mohamadian, S. Ibekwe- $195,000
Title 1ll, " Assessment of Student Learning Outcomes," H. Mohamadian-$120,000

Louisiana Board of Regents, "Development of SU/LSU Joint Research and Educational Program in
High Performance Networking," S. Iyengar, Ernest Walker, 1. Dabipi, S. Pang, H. Mohamadian-
$312,118.

Louisiana Board of Regents, "Enhancement of the LSU/SU Joint Engineering Research and
Educational Program in Composite Materials," S. Pang, H. Mohamadian-$500,000.

Various Industry, "Adopt-A-Lab Initiative”, H. Mohamadian-$275,000.

RECOGNITIONS AND AWARDS

Selected as Outstanding Teach of Year in the Department of Mechanical Engineering-1982, 83, 86, &7,
and 89.

Awarded the Outstanding Board Member of Advancing Minorities’ Interest in Engineering (AMIE)
Organization.

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS/ACTIVITIES

2010-2011 American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME) Feliow
Member of. American Wind Energy Association (AWEA), American Engineering Education (ASEE), and
Society for Mining, Metallurgy, and Exploration (SME)

Elected Member of Pi Tau Sigma Honorary Engineering society.
Member of Synthesis Coalition Board of Directors

Advisor, Boeing Education Relation Division

Review papers for ASEE/GSW

Chairman Sessions ASEE/IGSW

Review Textbooks in mechanical engineering, McGraw-Hill
Co-Chairman, ASEE/GSW, 1994, 2006

Review papers for AWEA

Panelist for NSF

T o : I



WORKSHOP PARTICIPATION

2015 ABET Summer Commission Meeting and Workshop, Baltimore, MD, July 2015
‘Engineering Deans Council Public Policy Colloquium (PPC)-The National Academies”
Washington, DC, February, 2012

3. " ASEE Global Colloguium on Engineering Education”, Istanbul, Turkey, October, 2011

4. * Annual ASEE Workshop on K-12 Engineering Education”, Salt Lake City, Utah, June 2009

5. “ASEE Engineering Research Council Summit, Workshop & Forum”, Arlington, VA, March 2007
6. “ABET Reviewers Training”, Dallas, Texas, June 2005

7. “E-Business Informational and Introduction to SAP*, Baton Rouge, La, May 2004

8. “3-D System Stereo-Lithography” Baton Rouge, La, Jan 2003

9. “EC 2000 ABET Assessment” Terra Haute, Indiana, April 2003

10. “ ABET Assessment” Houston Texas, June, 2002
11
12
13
14
15

N =

. "Failure Analysis of Composite Materials," ASME, Houston, TX, 2002
. "Non-Destructive Examination - Applying ASME Code, " New York, NY, 2001
. " Finite Element Analysis Using I-DEAS," SDRC, Milford, Ohio, 2001
. " Mechatronics,” UC Berkeley, California, 2000
. "Integrating Design into Engineering Curriculum.” Southern Methodist University, Dallas, TX,
2000
16. "Advanced Materials Application” ASME, Chicago, 2000.

WORKSHOP CONDUCTED

1. Assessment of Engineering Education Outcomes-Southern University, September 2012
2. Curriculum Mapping of Engineering Programs, Southern University, May 2010

3. Capstone Engineering Design Assessment Workshop-Southern University, October 2007.
4. Laboratory Preparation and Assessment Workshop- Southem University, March 2007.

FUNDRAISING INITIATIVES

Adopt-A-Lab Initiative (AALI) - The AALAI solicits sponsorships from industry to help support one or
more instructional enhancement efforts. The sponsored contributions may be in-cash or in-kind,
preferably in multiple units of $5,000 per year, per adopted activity. Any laboratory that is fully adopted
may be named after sponsoring organization, as long as the sponsorship remains current. Currently
12 of 35 engineering laboratories are adopted by our industrial partners.

Dean’s Challenge Initiative-Dean of College of Engineering has challenged the college’s alumni and
friends to join him in investing in knowledge, and he is willing to make it worth your while. From August
15, 2006 until July 30, 2010, the Dean will match gifts to the College of Engineering at SUBR from
faculty, staff, students and alumni of the coliege. So far about $50,000 has been contributed.

Scholarship Endowment Funds Initiative- the College of Engineering Endowment Fund was created in
2006 to aid underrepresented students who are seeking a career in engineering. The scholarship is
dedicated to the alumni of the college who have been great supporters of student scholarships. So far,

one endowed scholarship has been fully established and the first payment instaliment has been
received for three more.

Adopt-A-Professor Initiative- the Louisiana Board of Regents supports professorship endowmant
programs within the State of Louisiana, on a 40%-60% share basis for a total of $100,000. Endowmeni
funds are perpetual and the monies received are to be invested and managed by the Southern
University System Foundation. Income from specific endowment fund is used to supplement the safary
of a professor of exceptional distinction in the Colfege. In addition, an endowment provides a very
special opportunity to recognize an individual or organization by naming the endowment in their honor.
The college has secured three endowed professorships.

T —— - _— —

Pge 8



Capstone Design Projects Initiative- In order to involve our industry partners, support is requested to
educate our prospective engineering and technology graduates in working hand-in-hand with industrial
sponsors on a real-life project. The support requested is in the form of supplying the college with lists
of industry-related projects/problems from which our students can choose from and consequently find
a solution for. The budget to cover all expenses for up to three projects is $15,000. The college
sponsors up to $10,000 of the cost and the sponsoring company will pay the remaining $5.000. There
are five sponsoring companies for this initiative.

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

Expert Witness on various cases

Advisory Board Member- Baton Rouge High School and Greenville Elementary School
Member- Clean Power and Energy Research Consortium

Advisory Council Member- Scotlandville Magnet High School

Judge, Louisiana Science & Engineering Fairs since 1995

Member, International Education Advisory Board, Southern University, Baton Rouge




JOB CLASS SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

IOBIEaDE Personnel Action Form [posiTioN
CALD i NUMBER F |78 104
———
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR _X SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH X 12-MONTH OTHER (Specify)
X Academic Non-Academic Civil Service
Temporary Part-time ( % _ of Full Time) Restricted
X Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment
Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
___ Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employee _N/A Reason Left
Date Left Salary Paid

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment 08/01/2019 To _06/30/2020
Effective Date _08/01/2019

Name Habib P. Mohamadian SS# Sex M Race* _ Other
(Last 4 digits only)
Position Title: _Tenured Professor in Engineering Department: _College of Sciences & Engineering
CheckOne __ x _ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): m
New Position Expiration Date:

(Rosition vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if

applicable.)

Years Experience 41 Southern University Experience _38

Degree(s):  Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
Ph.D.-Mechanical Engr. LA State University-Baton Rouge 1982
M.S.- Mech Engr. LA State University-Baton Rouge 1978
B.S.- Mech Engr. University of Texas 1976

Current Employer _SUBR

Personnel Action

Check One New Appointment Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence
X___ Transfer Replacement Other (Specify)
Recommended Salary _99,,570.49 Salary Budgeted 99,370.49
Source of Funds Mechanical Engineering
Identify Budget:  211001-22685-61000- Location
21000
Form Code: Page Item #
Change of:
From To
Position Dean of Graduate Studies Tenured Faculty College of Science& Engr.
Status 12 mos 9 mos
Salary Adjustment 132,494 99370
Financial A.id&‘n.iture (if, applicable):
List total funds currently paid this emplovee by Source of Fun Amount
Southern University: . - =
*See Reverse Side
I Comments: (Use back of form) |
*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable):
r—

Supervisdr Daté ‘ReapAhit Head “Date

57*

ice P res:d:nu‘i‘manm
Business Affairs/Comptroller

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board Date
of Supervisors



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws
and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino MNon-Hispanic or Non-Lating

RACE (Please check all that apply):

__ 'White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origing in axy of the original people of Europe, North Africs, or the Middle Bz
____ Black notof Hispanic Origin. A person having crigins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexicen, Puerto Ricen, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins,
regandiess of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the criginal peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
X Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands, This area includes, for example, Chinz, Jepan, Korez, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Mative. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North Armerican, and who
maintaing coltural ideptification through tribal affilistion or commumity recognition.

COMMENTS: Effective , 03/01/2019, DrHabib Mohamadian will return to tenured professor faculty position in

College of Science and Engineering from Interim Dean of Office Graduate Studies

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: M _F; 8-5

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Dr. Patrick Carriere
SUPERVISOR/DEFPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER _225-771-5170

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any)

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being emploved through the use of this form are to
report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to worke
All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Account (fee receipt),
and a class schedule, All prospective emplovees/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth
certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-1/1-94, The latter
six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

Docomentation must be wvided for review and approval nman & t
offered.
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):
TYPE cop UTHERN
BUDGE

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization us
Eesident Alien R4 - MG0520
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) Hi
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) : n
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student 2t 5.U.) Fl AVAILABLE
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Pricr Approval-“Practical Work Experience™) Fo

Do Not Write Below This Area

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):

Approved Position Vacaney Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)

Position Vacancy Anncuncement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Unel Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employess)
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Hiuman Resources with Criminal/Background Chack form)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by emploves! verified and signed by superviser)
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head)

Proposed Emploves Appointment

" Proposed Employes Clearance ¥
Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Imnn (for classified, if appﬁf%lle)ﬂﬁlﬂ S,

T SNEPRMIS dfy LO

Ny

i
Rev. 07242007



JOBCLASS3 |2 |50 |0
_|_| | SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
JOB CODE M RSl Personnel Action Form
Skt POSITION 3 |Mm
CALD U [ NUMBER | ° A
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC X SUAREC SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify)
X  Academic X Non-Academic Civil Service
Temporary Part-time ( % _ of Full Time) Restricted
Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment
Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employee _N/A Reason Left _N/A
Date Left N/A Salary Paid N/A

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment _09/01/2019 To _09/30/2020
Effective Date _09/01/2019

Name Courtney Richardson SS# Sex F Race* B
(Last 4 digits only)
Position Title: _ Academic Support Counselor and Instructor Department: _Southern University Law Center
CheckOne _ X  Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): :ED
New Position Expiration Date:

(Position vacancy anthorization form must be processed and approved to fill
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if

applicable.)

Years Experience 8 Southern University Experience 2

Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
BA- English Louisiana State University 2009
JD Southern University Law School 2013

Current Employer _Southern University Law Center

Personnel Action

Check One New Appointment _X Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence
Transfer Replacement Other (Specify)
Recommended Salary _$84,000.00 Salary Budgeted $84,000.00

Source of Funds Strengthening HBGI

Identify Budgét: Grant & Student Success Location 320150-32030-61002-34100

Form Code: ~ BOR10 Page Item #
Change of:

From To
Position Academic Support Counselor & Instructor Academic Support C lor and Instructor
Status
Salary Adjustment §74,900.00 S$84,000.00
Financial Aid _s@ture (if, applicable):

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Am »nt J_
Southern University: 320150-32030-61002-34100 $74,900.00

*See Reverse Side
|[ Comments: (Use back of form) |

Graduate School signature (if, applicable):

Buosiness Affairs/Comptroller

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board Date
of Supervisors



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws
and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please check one):

Hispanic or Latino X MNon-Hispanic or Mon-Latino

RACE (Please check all that apply):

White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having crigins in 2ay of the original people of Europe, North Afries, or the Middle Eact
X Elack. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in amy of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerte Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanich culture or origine,
regardless of race,

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indisn
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Istands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korez, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having erigins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who

mainteins cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition.

= - — —
COMMENTS: Courtney Richardson, will assume additional duties to restrocture the delivery of the Law Center’s
Snsnmm-l"m—lnw!'rngrim

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: £:00 am — 5:00 pm Monday thro Friday
EMFPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Vice Chancellor, Shawn Vance
SUPERVISOR/DEPARTMENT CONTACT NUMBER _225-771-4900 '
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 5

HRUSE ONLY:  STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form are to
report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before starting to work.
All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement of Acconnt (fee receipt),
and a class schedule. All prospective employess/students must bring a pictured ID, social security card, birth
certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 visas, passport, and F-11-94. The latter
six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens.

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Homan Resources before emplovment is
offered.

CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): SOUTHESN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
TYPE ENCUMBERBDE FUNDS AVAIEXRIRES
i DOC. 1.D. & # ;
Resident Aber o emen S /7
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) o B (DA 20
I-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) I 7
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at 5.11.) F1
OPT (E-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience™) FO
Do Not Write Below This Area

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):
Approved Position Vacaney Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Application for Employment Form Admin/Fac/Unel Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Authority to Release (signed by employee) (submitted to Human Resources with Criminal/Background Check form)
; Supervisory Criminal/Background Chetk Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisor)

—_* Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) EOTTH QO BT.
___ Proposed Employee Appointment . 544 SnEsHid dn QO3
Proposed Employee Clearance -

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

Rev. 07242007



Courtney M Richardson

. BAR ADMISSION: State of Louisiana, October 2014
LICENSURE: Notary Public, ID# 140128, December 2014
EDUCATION

Southern University Law Center, Baton Rouge, LA
Juris Doctor, May 2013
e Senior Editor, Journal of Race, Gender & Poverty
e Student Member, American Bar Association
e Student Member, Baton Rouge Bar Association
e Certified Mediator
e Student Attomey, Mediation Clinic and Elder Law Clinic
e Board of Supervisors’ Scholarship Recipient
e Community Service/Volunteer Work
e Junior Partner’s Academy

Louisiana State University, Baton Rouge, LA
Bachelor of Arts & Sciences, English Literature, December 2009
e Tuition Opportunity Program for Students (TOPS) award recipient
e Academic Competitiveness Grant recipient
e Pending Member of The National Society of Leadership and Success
e Residential Hall Association
Service Learning (Tutoring Program)
Community Service/Volunteer Work
e Junior Mentor

EXPERIENCE
Southern University Law Center Baton Rouge, LA
Academic Counselor & Instructor of Law July 2019 — Present

Serves as a professional resource in all areas of academic counseling and advising to law
students. Works directly with students through scheduled meetings and posted office hours to
assist in all aspects of the law school experience. Works in individual and group sessions with
students to teach and enhance analytical, exam writing, and other academic related skills.

Southern University Law Center Baton Rouge, LA

Writing Fellow — SULC Supplemental Bar Prep Program May 2018 — Present
Helps SULC graduates to prepare for the Louisiana bar exam by reviewing answers and
providing feedback on practice exams. Works with participants through in-person individual
meetings to offer suggestions on how to improve their answers.

Southern University Law Center Baton Rouge, LA

Academic Coordinator & Instructor of Law March 2018 — June 2019
Coliects and processes data regarding academic assistance and bar preparation services being
provided to students. Coordinates data collection concerning the activities of the Office of
Academic Support and Bar Preparation services to evidence the work performed and assistance
provided to students for assessment and accreditation purposes. Werks with students to enhance
analytical, exam writing, and other academic skiils.



Courtney M Richardson

LA Workforce Commission, Board of Review & Appeals Tribunal Baton Rouge, LA

Administrative Law Judge January 2015- March 2018
Determines whether an individual is qualified for unemployment benefits as defined by Louisiana
Employment Security Law. Reviews and summarizes lower level Unempioyment Insurance
appeal hearings by conducting an examination of compliance to fair hearing standards and
compliance to Louisiana Employment Security Law. Examines legal and administrative
documents, resolves procedural questions, and grants or denies reopening requests of appealed
decisions. Reviews testimony in detail, finds the facts, applies facts to the law, interprets the law
and draws conclusions. Drafts written decisions setting forth facts and reasons for the decision,
the applicable law, and the decision reached. While with the Appeals Tribunal, I conducted fact
finding hearings and examined testimony in detail.

Williams Law Practice Amite, LA

Law Clerk — Contract Work . August 2014- October 2014
Contracted as a law clerk to perform legal research on family law, criminal law and civii law
matters. Also to draft petitions including divorce and custody petitions, briefs, letters and other
legal memorandum which were vital to many court cases. Assisted with discovery including
drafting deposition questions, drafting and responding to interrogatories and requests for
production of documents.

Ponchatoula High School - ; Ponchatoula, LA

Permanent Substitute Teacher January 2014- May 2014
Hired as a permanent substizute teacher for a ninth grade English teacher. Responsible for
teaching English to five classes of ninth grade students. Prepared lesson plans, daily coursework,
created tests, and prepared students for standardized tests. Attended daily planning meetings with
experienced teachers.

Grodner & Associates Law Firm Baton Rouge, LA
Law Clerk August 2013~ January 2014
May 2011- September 2012

Perform legal research on civil matters including personal injury, new home warranty act,
medical malpractice and worker’s compensation. Draft petitions, complaints, briefs, letters and
other legal memorandum which present arguments that could be used during trial as weli as in
other legal documents including settlement agreements and motions for summary judgments.
Communicated with opposing counsel and clients. Perform ail aspects of the client intake
process, prepare clients for their appearance in trial and at depositions, develop client-testimeony
for trial and their depositions, and act as a liaison between clients and attorneys. Assisted in
discovery including drafting deposition questions, drafting and responding to interrogatories and
requests for production of documents.

ASSOCIATIONS

o Wills for Hero’s _

e Member, Louis A. Martinet Legal Society, Inc., Greater Baton Rouge Chapter
e Member, American Bar Association

¢ Member, Louisiana State Bar Association



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
261 A, A. LENOIR HALL
PosT OFFICE Box 9294

BatoN Rouse, Louisiana 70813-92594

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR

(225) 771-2552
FAX (225) 771-2474

July 31,2019

Dr. Ray L. Belton — President/Chancellor
Southern University System and Southern
University and A&M College

4™ Floor, J.8. Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813

RE: Assignment of IT Analyst Greg Speyer of the Southern University Law Center to take
on additional duties for additional compensation to address Analytic Data needs

Dear Dr. Belton:

It has become painfully obvious to me that the Law Center needs to realign Information
Technology (IT) functions in order for the Law Center to keep up with data driven information
needs and analytics information gathering. Because of the constant and ongoing institutional and
external data gathering needs along with managing the collection, analysis, and general availability
of such data for institutional planning, operations, and accreditation processes, I'T plays an integral
role in the identification, acquisition, and employment of needed software, development tools,
hardware systems, and services for the development and maintenance of Law Center specific data
warehouses, products, and other data methods.

IT has an essential policy and procedural advisement and development role regarding the
Law Center’s data gathering, and analytics functions. From an analytics perspective, evaluation
of state and federal legislative and regulatory proposed actions, as well as accrediting bodies
regulatory proposed actions, is critical because such proposed actions have significant implications
for organizational performance and evaluation of Law Center programs.

The foregoing discussions exhibits a need for an IT personnel staff member to be engaged
in the following:

e Providing guidance to the various departments of Law Center on data governance

e Working in conjunction with academic affairs, student affairs, and institutional
research leaders in the management and development of the Law Center’s gathering
and analytics functions

o Collecting and analyzing data to assess short-term and long-term institutional needs

» Designing, developing, and maintaining data warehouses and data marts.

“An Equal Educational Oppertunity institution™



Dr. Ray Belton
July 31, 2019
Page -2-

e Providing consultation to the Law Center’s leadership team, faculty, and staff on
information technology systems and business/academic processes related to
analytics activities and initiatives.

Rather than creating a whole new analytics staff, project teams, and operational structure
associated with analytics related projects which would be extremely costly, I proposed that the
Law Center create additional duties within IT to address analytic data needs.

The Law Center has been blessed to have a talented IT personnel member by the name of
Gregory Speyer who has helped the Law Center identify analytic methods, tools components, and
services for the collection and dissemination of analytical data, on an ad hoc basis. I would propose
that Mr. Spever be tasked to take on the additional duties associated with analytics data
management. Mr. Speyer currently serves as the Analyst in the IT Department at a salary of
$61,644.00. I propose that his salary be adjusted to $75,000.00 to compensate him for taking on
the additional duties outlined in this letter. I would appreciate it if you presented my request to
the Southern University Board of Supervisors at its August 2019 Board meeting.

If you have any questions, please fee free to contact me.

ours Sipcerely,

4

%
A N J e
L-'; TN\~ [ 2L
. Pierre, Chancellor

and Vanue B. Lacour Endowed Professor

SoutHeERN UniversiTy Law CeENTER



Employment

GREGORY P. SPEYRER

2012-Present Southern University Law Center

2011-2012

2005 - 2011

Information Technology and Analytics

Responsible for the Analysis and interpretation of Law Center data, related to enroliments, retention, transfer,
completers, academic assessment, institutional accreditation progress and compliance, financial, budgeting,
and related data to advance the Law Center's educational policy, administrative decisions, strategic planning
and assessment activities.

Present findings and recommendations to the Law Center registrar/enroliment management, admissions,
financial aid, finance, budgeting, academic affairs, chancellor's office, and other college-wide
usersf/consumers.

Provide input on indicators and metrics to support continuous improvement of educational programs and
services, to include accreditation core theme indicators.

Work with various Law Center departments in the use of consistent processes for preparing internal and
external reports, dashboards, and data sets.

Initiates and provides input on institutional policies, procedures and practices refated to the collection, analysis
and management of data.

Work closely with Law Center faculty and administration in SACS accreditation activities especially as it
relates to provisioning/analysis of data and support of IT systems designed to facilitate the development of
accreditation applications and tracking.

Work closely with academic, student services, and administrative services to design survey instruments to
capture performance outcomes and collect data to assess college-wide goals and objectives.

Provide consultation to faculty on information technology services and business process analysis related to
faw center services.

Provide project management services as needed for various Information Technology and Analytics initiatives.

Produce annual reports that document the department's progress provisioning and delivery of services.

Develop policies, strategic, and operational plans as needed.

Develop applications and use software tools (e.g. decision support systems, statistical tools, applications,
database tools, etc.) to extract, transform, load, and analyze data to discern actionable insights.

Louisiana Health Science Center — Shreveport, Louisiana

Electronic Health Record (EHR) System Implementation

An enterprise operation of approximately ten hospitals and multiple clinic locations serving citizens across the
State of Louisiana.

Responsible for development and delivery of vendor guided systems and associated training programs
associated with a federally funded, state-wide electronic health record project.

Louisiana Community and Technical College System, Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Enterprise Information Systems

* An enterprise operation consisting of sixteen colleges with over fifty physical locations serving over 75,000
students and approximately 5,000 facuity and staff.

¢ Responsible for information systems design and strategic planning, technology evaluation and
acquisition, application development and management, on-premise and outsourcing services, help desk,
telecommunications, contract review and negotiations, information integrity and security, general and IT
disaster recovery and business continuity operations.

¢ Responsible for an innovative mix of on-premise and externally hosted and supported solutions spanning
many phases of LCTCS services, and operations.



2003-2004

» Member of Louisiana Optical Network [nitiative management council.

Accomplishments:

Successful bidding, selection, negotiation, and approval for procurement implementation and ongoing
third-party support of a $34,000,000 commeon Enterprise Resource Planning {ERP)/Student Information
System (SIS) serving alt community and technical colleges under LCTCS.

First Louisiana higher education system to establish a common extemally hosted and supported
ERP/SIS.

Working with the Online Executive Directors, selected, designed and negotiated external IT operating
structures, services, negotiated pricing and agreements, and created operating budgets for the
LCTCSOnline.

First Louisiana higher ed system to select and deploy a third-party, externally hosted common record
scanning/imaging system for technical colleges.

Successful deployment of high-speed network using fiber and metro-Ethernet to LCTCS institutions.
Expanded access to bandwidth, commodity internet service, internet2 service, and increased security and
reliability of wide area network services.

Established SharePoint services for use in content management, collaboration, workflow, dash boards,
intranet, and project management

Working with the LCTCS Foundation Executive Director established foundation donor tracking and
accounting systems.

Stabilized and increased reliability of PeopleSoft ERP system serving 13 of 16 institutions.

Established external hosting services for PeopleSoft ERP system. Increased reliability and access during
normal and emergency/disaster events.

Developed general and IT disaster recovery plan for enterprise services and systems.
Established third party help desk.
Stabilized and established reliable support service for the technical college Student Enroliment System.

Negotiation, planning, and implementation of LCTCS participation in the Latrac government transparency
initiative with the Division of Administration.

Working with the Legislative liaison, developed the tick sheet tracking system.

Worked with state agencies in the development of an alternative data center/disaster recovery/data
replication site for state agencies and higher ed institutions.

Established security administration position and enterprise T security standards and cperations.
Successful completion of legislative auditor general and focused IT audits with no material findings.

Utilization of off-site data vaulting services for backup and recovery of critical data.

Phoenix Health Systems/East Jefferson General Hospital, New Orleans, Louisiana

Enterprise information Systems

An enterprise operation of approximately 70 staff and managers
Annuai IT budget of approximately $12,000,000.

Executive responsible for information design and strategic planning, technology evaluation and
acquisition, application development and management, help desk, telecommunications, information
management workflow processes, information integrity and security, and the medical and clinical uses of
data, contract review and negotiations, information integrity and security, general and | T disaster recovery
and business continuity operations.

Medical school, allied health, and professional graduate administration affiliations.

Over 450,000 unduplicated outpatient patient visits, 35,000 ED visits, and 60,000 inpatient admissions
per year with an annual budget over $252,000,000/year. ’

Member of Executive Staff and Leadership Council, and Strategic Planning Committee.




Accomplishments:

Revision of the health care organization’s Information Systems/Information Management strategic plan.
Reconstituted Information Management/Information Technology governance.

Evaluation, selection, and negotiation of enterprise Hospital Information System (HIS) to replace iegacy
system; a $35,000,000 acquisition for complete replacement.

Implementation structure and project plans developed for HIS replacement.
Establishment of outsourced IT operations

Valuation, acquisition and merger of a private hospital and associated information systems, departmental
systems, information systems organizations, policies, procedures, & budgets.

implementation of severa! PeopleSoft modules in support of developing paperless and selfserve
environment.

1992-2003 Health Care Services Division (HCSDVMedical Center of Louisiana (Charity) at New Orleans/Louisiana

State University Medical Center
Enterprise Information Systems

An enterprise operation of encompassing nine hospitals across Louisiana and associated IT systems and
staff,

Annual budget of approximately $10,000,000.

Charged with overall development and support of hospital information, clinical, and telecommunication
systems for a statewide nine-hospital network.

Serves urban and rural tertiary care, and ambulatory care facilities.
Multipte medical school, allied health, and professional graduate administration affiliations.
Supports large-scale statewide outpatient services.

Over 1,900,000 unduplicated outpatient patient visits, 330,000 ED visits, and 135,000 inpatient
admissions per year with an annual budget over $800,000,000/year.

Member of Enterprise Executive Staff and Leadership Council.

Accomptishments:

Development of the health care system'’s first comprehensive Information Systems strategic plan.

Working with HSC management, consolidated aspects of hospital networking, database, security
administration, server administration, HIS programming support, security administration, web services,
and IS contract administration for improved services and reduction in operating costs.

Selection, negotiation, and deployment of an enterprise-wide common laboratory, medical credentialing,
bili scrubber, quality assurance, medicai records, and pharmacy information systems serving all HCSD
facilities.

Selection, negotiation, and installation of an enterprise Radiology Management and PACS. Installed at
largest facility. Selected by vendor as national reference site. Supported interpretation of radiology
studies across the State and in Australia.

Negotiation of enterprise hospital information system contract serving the nine-hospital system.

Merger of hospital information systems, departmental systems, information systems organizations,
policies, procedures, & budgets between an HCSD facility and private hospital.

Consolidation and sharing of IT hospital management and staff between several hospital sites improving
quality of service and reducing human resource costs by 20% in affected facilities.

Board member of the community access program associated with the New OCrleans area.

Medical Center of Louisiana (Charity} at New Orleans

Hospital Information Systems
+ | directed ninety-six staff and managers.

s Overall responsibility for development and support of hospital information and telecommunication
systems in the medical center.

« A 750-bed tertiary care facility (60,000 admissions/year, 170,000 ED visits, 483,000 outpatient visits
annually). Multiple medical school, allied health, and professional graduate administration affiliations.



1986 — 1996
EDUCATION
AND

CERTIFICATIONS

Social &
Professional
Affiliations

Medicatl Center of Louisiana {(Charity) at New Orleans

Applications and Systems

Managed and directed forty staff and managers in the development and support of hospital information
systems.

Managed an information systems department responsible application systems (clinical, financial &
administrative), networking, security administration, and telecommunications.

Responsibilities included all department head administrative, personnel, budgeting, planning, project
management, and system activities for the staff under my direction.

Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center

Team Instructor — Medical Informatics

Team teaching of medical informatics course to LSUHSC graduate students. Lectured on Computerized
Patient Record systems.

Delgado Community College, New QOrleans LA

Instructor, Computer Information Systems

Credit classes taught for applications programming, systems analysis, database management, and files
and data structures.

Master of Business Administration/Technology Management

Masters — Archives and Records Administration

Bachelor of Science, Cum Laude- Computer Information Systems

Bachelor of Arts, History

Felfow — Health Information Management Systems Society

Previously Certified in the Governance of Enterprise Information Technofogy - Information Systems
and Augdit Control Association

Project Management Master Certification Program — American Project Management

Member — Infarguard — FBI and private/public partnership concerning information security and
threats.

L636 0 Multi-Hazard Emergency Planning For Higher Education — Dept. of Homeland Security
{CS 100 — Introduction ta Incident Command System — Dept. of Homeland Security

ICS 200 — ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incident — Dept. of Homeland Security

iCS 700 — National Incident Management System (NIMMS) — Depf. of Homeland Security

{CS 800 — National Response Framework — Dept. of Homeland Security

Association of Computing Machinery (ACM)

Healthcare Information Management Systems Society (HIMSS).

- Member — e-Prescribing task force.

—  Member - Annual Education Conference Committee — Leadership and Management Track.
— Member - Education Commitiee.

—  CPHIMS charter certification received, 2001

—  ltem contributor and reviewer to the CPHIMS Practice

—  ltem writer for the CPHIMS certification exam, 2003.

— Reviewer, mentor/coach and moderator for annual conference.

Member of the Council of Information Services Directors (CISD)

—  President 2008-2009 - First Vice President 2007-2008 - Second Vice President 2006-2007
Member ~ Association for Institution Research

Member — Higher Education Bata Warehousing Forum



JOBCLASS3 |6 |7 |0 |5 |
55 CODE SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
M Personnel Action Form [posiTION 2 Jasls |50 1% |e
CALID i NUMBER
U
—=
CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC X SUAREC SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify)
Academic X Non-Academic Civil Service
Temporary Part-time ( % _of Full Time) Restricted
Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment
Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status
Previous Employee _IN/A Reason Left _N/A
Date Left N/A Salary Paid SN/A

Profile of Person Recommended
Length of Employment _09/01/2019 To _09/30/2020
Effective Date _09/30/2019

Name Gregory P. Speyrer SS# Sex M Race* w
(Last 4 digits only)
Position Title:  System Analyst Department: _Law Center =IT
Check One _X _ Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side): ||| |
New Position Expiration Date:

(Rosition vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if

applicable.)
Years Experience _30 Southern University Experience _$S
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
B. A. History University of New Orleans 1982
_B.S. Computer Information Sys. Tulane University 1986
M.B.A. Technology Management University of Phoenix 2000

Current Employer _Southern University Law Center

Personnel Action

Check One New Appointment x Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence
Transfer Replacement Other (Specify)
Recommended Salary _$75,000.00 Salary Budgeted $75.000.00

Source of Funds  Strengthening HBGI

Identify Budget: _Grant Location 320146-36301-61002-36000

Form Code: e | Page _1 Item# _1
Change of:

From To
Position - System Analyst System Analyst
Status
Salary Adjustment $61.644.00 $75,000.00
Financial Aid signature (if, applicable):

List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount
Southern University: 320146-36301-61002-36000 $61,644.00

*See Reverse Side

L

Comments: (Use back of form) 1

*See Reverse Side Graduate School signature (if, applicable):

haeonsd Vpsee S11/5

ity

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board Date
of Supervisors



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Righis Laws
and does not affect employment consideration.

ETHNIC ORGIN (Flease check one):
Hispanic or Lating MNon-Hispanic or Non-Latino
RACE (Please check all that apply):
X White, not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Eurepe, North Africa, or the Middle East
Black. not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.

Hispanic. amnﬁmmmmwmhmmwmwmmmm
regardless of race.

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the criginal peoples of the Far East, Somtheast Asta the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area inchudes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa,

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who
maintzing cultoral identification through tribal affiliation or community recognition.
“
COMMENTS: Rather than creating a whole new analytics staff, project teams, and operational structure
associated with analytics related projects which would be extremely costly. Gregory Speyer will take on
additional duties for additional compensation to address Analytic Date needs.

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Daily

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Mirs. Lata Jobason

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (ifany) 3

HRUSE ONLY:  STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistants being emploved through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visas, passport, and F-1/1-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens,

offered.
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
TYPE EECCUMBM | FUNDS AVEXRRES:
LD @
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization b =
Resident Alien DATE___pa 5/5/# &
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) e Hi Y,
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) 1
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) - F1
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience™) FO
“
Do Not Write Below This Area

For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information cutlined below):
Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Application for Employment Form Agdmin/Fac/Uncl Pesitions(Civil Service Application for classified employess)
; Authority to Release (signed by,employee) (submitied to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check form)
g wacwcﬁﬁmm“kgmmdmmk&m(mmpm?dbymwmﬁﬁmwbymj

Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employee and budget head) S0 TTH 9 BNUET,
Proposed Employee Appointment K TE440 SRgeiid Jn A03Y
Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

Rev, §L201%



JOB CLASS
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
ol Personnel Action Form [pogirion
S QSIT]
CALTD NUMBER 9 lﬁ &
CAMPUS: SUS _ SUBR X SULAC SUAREC SUNO SUSLA
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9.MONTH _ X__ 12-MONTH OTHER (Specily)
X __ Academle . Non-Academic . Civil Service
Temporary Part-time ( % of Full Time) Restriciod
Tenured Undergradunte Student Job Appolntment
X ‘Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary
—_ Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Parmunent Stutus
Provious Employe¢e  Mary Darby Reason Left _Retired
Date Left _May 2018 Snlary Paid  _S69,379.00
e
Length of Employment  _August 1, 2019 To _May 15, 2020
Effective Date _Aupgust 12, 2019
Name _Tesfalldet Tukue S50 = Sex M . Race® _ Biek

{Laat 4 diglis anly)

Posltion Title: _Assistant Professor of Accounting (2F9B62) Depariment: _Depi, of Acct,, Fine, & Econ

Check One ¥, Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Slde): [ F |1 [ ]

i New Position Expiration Date:
{Pasition varancy auiherizailon form muit be processed and approved 1o Al
exlating and new positions, Pasltlon must be adverilsed before pracealng PAF, if

applieable.)

Yenrs Experlence 15 Southern University Expericnce 0
Degree(s):  Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institutlon/Loeation (SU-Baton Rouge): Year:
Ph.D. = Accounting Rutgers Unlversity 7
United Matlons Inst for Training =~ _UNITAR 2007
BA — Accounting  (CPA) Unly, of Asmara 2004 (Sum, 2019)

Current Employer St Jaseph's Universlt

e

Personnel Action
Check One _ X New Appointment Continuation Sabbatieal Lenve of Absence
Transfer Replacement Other (Spesify)

Recommended Salary _$120,000,00 Snlary Budgeted £120,000.00
Source of Funds  State Fund A:munilm

Identily Budget: _211001-22205-21000 Lacation Aceounting

Form Cade: Page Item #
Change of:

Erom 1o

Pasition
Stalus
Salary Adjustment

Financial Ald signature

List futnl funds eurrently paid this employes by
Southern University:
*See Reverse Sido

Comments: {Use buek of form

if, applieable):

Amount

uml
KA PS5 2

*Seé Reverse Slde Gradunte School signature (if, applleable):

Ditector/Parsonnel ' Date ¥ice President/Finance Y Date
Husiness Affalrs/Comptroller

President Dute Chairman/3.U. Bonrd Date
of Supervisors



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws
and does not affect employment consideration,

ETHNIC ORGIN (Please cheek one):
______ Hispanic or Lating X Mon-Hispanic or Non-Latine
RACE (Flease cheelc all that apply):
__ White, not of Hispanic arigin. A person having orlglns In any of the original people of Eurape, Morth Afiiea, or the Middle East,

X Black. notof Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa.
Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or erlging,
regardless of race.

Asgian or Pacific Islander. A person having orlgina In any of the originnl peoples of the Far East, Soulheast Asia, the [ndlan
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. Thiz area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine [slands, nnd Samoa.

American Indian or Alaskan Mative, A person having origins in any of the eriginal peoples of Morth American, and wiho
maintaing cultural identifieation thecugh tribal affilistion or community recagnition.

COMMENTS: Dr. Tuke is being hired as an Assistant Professor of Accounting 1o replace Dr. Darby who retired May
2018,

EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: Between SAM =3 PM between Monday - Friday
EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: Ghirmay Ghebreyesus 771-5640 / 771-5934
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 1]

HR USE ONLY:  STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT

GUIDELINES: All employees, students, graduate assistanta being employed through the use of this form
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources hefore any employment is offered and hefors
starting to work. All students are to bring with them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement
of Account (Tee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a pictured
ID, social security eard, hirth certificate, certificnte of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1
visns, pussport, and F-1/1-94. The laiter six (6) documents do not apply to U.5, Citizens.

offered,
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS): )
DUTHERN UNEY] SYSTEM
IIEE PG i
United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization us
Resident Allen RA AlG 14 2019
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) Hi -
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Pragram) I
F-1 Viga (Student Emp. FT Student at 5,11} Fl AILABLE
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-"Practical Work Experience™) Fo

Do Not Write Below This Area
For Human Resource and Budgetary Control Use Only!

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below):
Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions)
Position Vacancy Announcement {position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable)
Application for Empleyment Form Admin/Fac/Uncl Positions(Civil Service Application for classified employees)
Authority to Release (zsigned by employee) (submitied to Campus Police with Criminal/Background Check form)
Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Form (completed by employee/ verified and signed by supervisar)
Exemptions Survey Form (signed by employes and budget head)
____ Proposed Employee Appointment
_ Proposed Employee Clearance

Restricted/ Job Appointment/C8 Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable)

5oy 19 FINESUS RFFAL e
*anue 15m11:39



Ko

SOUTHERN U'NIVERSI’I'Y BATON ROUGE, LA 70813

o

V; 111

ootk ok e ok e ok Fe o ek sk ke ke ek e o ok ek o kR

SSS Dl SUBR X Prg suiAG T

- SUAREC []

#{\j*;ﬂ\'**#k-ﬁ-******-:r**w********************************k******

suNo [1  SUSLA []

[BIBNOY 13 AM LhpysPifopy: VACANCY-AUTHORIZATION

L e T ] *1’:1’:***u***********w******w*

REQUEST THAT THE POSITION ™

Ry Vi

gy R Ty T L a et e e b 3T T 20T

Asststant Assoﬁate or Professor of Accounting A%%ESCR!BED BELOW |

BE AUTHORIZED AS A VAGANCY FORJ Kc,uﬂsge of Business

~ Replacement X
[ ] Civil Service ]
0 Tenured ]

New Position*
Temporary
Probationary (Far Faculty this is same as teoure track}

SOk
"(Department or Unit) ~ :
Sum ce of Fun& ! ‘/;:f“
Unclassified IX] state V {a -
X Faculty |:| Galtitp-Aid 9 2018

*requires the approval of System President

[:l System, ?ﬁéﬂuﬁu
] Ageney ﬁﬁ’tlej;te Yicg: 1,

il = \W(f cor
o d T &’Jf
—

VACANCY DESCRIPTION AND JUSTIFICATION

(Inchude rank (for faculty) and approximate salary; initiator of form must have prior approval of salary/salary range with
the appropriate Vice-Chancellor, Chancellor and/or President. Salarfes for classified positions must be approved thru

Human Resources),

(-".F

Assistant, Associate or Professor of Accountancy. Individual will provide the department Wlth,IEaChlI]g,

Research, scholarly publications and service for the program. In addition, the individual will work w1th

outreach p1 olects o the busmess commumty Comses taught include, F1nanc1a1 Accountlng, >

—r

Financial Statement Analysis, Auditing Accounting Information Systems and others. _ - ;.'j_.',_‘ .

)

Salary/Renge:  $90,000 to $140,000  Previous Incumbent (if replacement): Dr. Mary De{fﬂy ; ne

/ Approved __ Disapproved /g ,/ /A& AR o / t’)/ 2.4 /fg

' Department/ Head "Date
]/Approved Disapproved %Z/VZZX ZZ / 47%‘-1‘7/5’

Dean/Director/Supervisor of Budget Unit

COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE ONLY
Funds Available

O?F%%Z/

L Yes No

Date

Yes No

HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICE ONLY
Existing/Approved Position

@ﬂﬂl}.ﬂ Py

Job Code: |/ | Calld:

TAA] Job Class: 12 20300

/‘,

2 A,

Approved Disapproved
{
/Approved D:sapproved

Y

' pproved Dlsapproved

Wthale, by — /)//é’/’?'
: Varified By: Date:
ones 8. A e g 51 l2o s
£ V1 AMI.(()J;\C / a/
/)
/ g VW Date
“ / President ¢ Date

An Equal Oppottunity Employer

Rev 5/11/2006



2. CURRICULUM VITAE

Tesfalidet 'T. Tukne
3734 Conshohocken Ave
Philadelphia, PA 19131
(973)420-8595 -
testukue(@gmail.com

CITIZENSHIP - T.S.

EDUCATION

o Rutgets, The State University of NJ: Ph.D. May 2017
o Major: Accounting '
o Minor: Finance

+ United Nations Institute for Training & Research (UNTTAR): Research Fellow: (2005~ 07)

o University of Asmata (UOA): B.A (Magna Curz lands) i Accounting (2004)

CERTIFICATION
e CPA —InView (Sumnmer 2019)

SRILLS
. SAS, STATA, SAP, SQL, MATLAB, PEACHTREE

TEACHING EXPFRIENCE
A, TEACHING POSITIOINS
e Saint Joseph’s Univetsity — Assistant Professor (2017 — Present)
e Saiut Joseph’s University — Instructor (2014 —2017)
» Rutgers University - Instructor: (2012 -2014)
« Rutgers University: Graduate Teaching Assistant (2010 ~2012)
« TOA: College of Business & Fconomics (Gradunate Teaching Assistant) (2004 -2007)-

B. COURSES TAUGHT ' X ‘
« Financial & Managerial Accounting for Matiagers (MBA) ~ (Average Rating — 4.71/5.00)
« Anditing & Assurance Sexvices (Average Rating — 4.56/5.00)
« Tinancial Statement Analysis (Average Rating —4.53/5.00) -
o Intermediate Accountihg (Average Rating —4.62/5.00)
« Financial Accounting (Average Rating ~4.67/5.00) -
« Managerial Accounting (Average Rating —4.58 /5.00)
+ Managerizl Accounting (HONORS) (Average Rating — 4.61/5.00)
s« Excel Competency (Computer Augmented Accounting)- (Average Rating ~ 4.55/5.00)
« BECKER CPA Review Sessions— Financial Accounting & Reporting (FAR)
« BECKERS CPA Review Sessions— Anditing & Attestation Setvices (AUD)

2



A, COMPLETED RESARCH PAPERS
e Internal Controls and Operational Effidency (Submitted fot AAA n2019)
e Business Risk and Audit Fees: Evidence from Innovation Firms: (Presented at AAA in 2018)

e Internal Controls & Innovations (Presented at AAA in 2017)

. B. RESARCH-IN-PROGRESS o
e Innovations and Cost of Equity Capital (Presented at ABR in 2017)

« Innovation and Compensation Schemes: Evidence from Pension Benefits

« Relationship between Advertising & Product Quality Revisited: The Case of Product Warranty (Claims)

s Long-term Effect of Frand on Innovation firms

C. ACADEMIC CONFERENCES & SYMPOSIUMS
e American Accounting Association Annual Meeting, 2018, Washington, DC .
e 40m World Continnous Auditing & Reporting Sympostutn, 2017, Newark, NJ
e American Accounting Association Annual Meeting, 2017, San Lisgo, CA
» Academy of Business Research Fall Conference, 2017, San Antondo, TX
e Deloitte Foundation ~Ttue Blood Seminat fot Professors, 2017, Dallas, TX
e 38th World Continuous Auditing & Reporting Sympostum, 2016, Newark, INJ
e 35th World Continuous Auditing & Reporting Sympostum, 2015, Newark, Nf
e American Accounting Assodiation Annual Meeting, 2015, Chicago, IL.
o 33:d World Continuotis Anditing & Reporting Symposium, 2014, Newatk, N
s Amefican Accounting Assodation Anrual Meeting, 2013, Anabeim, €4,
e American Accounting Association Antual Meeting, 2012, Washington, DC
« 9585 Word Continnous Auditing & Repotting Sytnpostam, 2013 - Newark, NJ -
s  Armerican Accounting Association Mid-Atlantic Regional Meeting, 2012, Philadelphia, PA
e Ametican Accounting Association Mid-Atlantic Regional Meeting, 2011, Baltimore, MD
e 239 Woild Continuous Auditing & Reporting Symposium, 2011 - Newark, NJ
« 21t Wotld Contimuous Auditing & Reporting Sytnpostum, 2010 Newark, NJ
e Accounting for Intangibles Sytnposium, 2010, Newark, Nj

ACADEMIC SERVICES (Departtoent, College & Univetsity)

o Academic advisor for mote than 50 students, Accounting Department, SJU
e TFinandal Accounting and Anditing Coutse Coordinator, Accounting Depattrnent, SJU
e Faculty Procedutes and Policles Sub-committee member in the Faculty Senate, SJU
e Board of Student Academic Review, SJU . _ ) )
« Assurance of Learning (AOL) Committee, College of Business, SJU
e AACSBH Accreditation Repott committee, Accounting Department, SJU
e Continuous Improverment Repott (CIR) Review Committee, Accounting Depattment, SJU
e Internship Committee, Accounting Depattment, SJU (2015-Present)
o Editodal Assistant for Journal of Acconnsing, Anditing & Finanse JAATF)
"o Ad Hoc Reviewer for the Journal of Acconnting, Anditing and Finance
e Ad Hoc Reviewer for the International Journal of Disclosure and Governance.

3



PROFESSIONAL EXPERTENCE ‘ _
e Finandal Consultant and Transaction Analyst, MTB Import and Export Co (2008 — 2009)
e Internal Auditor, University of Asmara (2004 —2007)

AWARDS AWND HONORS
Saint Joseph Univetsity
e Dean’s Summet Research Grant

Rutgers Business School, NJ

e Depattmental Nominee for the Dean's Teaching Excellence Award (2013/2014)
» Dissertation Fellowship awatd for the academic yeat 2014/2015

o Dean's Sumnmer Scholatship Grant (Surnmer 2013)

o Dean's Summet Scholarship Grant (Summer 2012)

o Research and Teaching Assistantship (2010 - 2013)

Univetsity of Asmata
e  Valedictorian of the and Gold Medal Winner of the College of Business and Econormics (2004)
e Dean's hono list of College of Business and Economics (1999 - 2004)

MEMBERSHIP
o Ametican Accounting Assodation (AAA)
¢ Academy of Business Reseatch (ABR)
o Nottheastern Assodation of Business, Economics and Technology INABET)



3. REFERENCES

Dt. Dan Palmon

Willizn ]. von Minden Professor of Accounting

Chait, Depattment of Accounting and Infotmation Systerns
Rutgets Business School

1 Washington Park, Room 920

Newatk, NJ 07102-3122
dpalmon@business.rutgers.edu

(973) 353-5472 (Office)

(201) 658-5833 (Cell)

Dt. Miklos Vasathelyi

KPMG Distinguished Professor of Accounting Information Systems

" Ditectot, Rutgers Accounting Reseatch Center & Continuous Anditing & Reporting Lab
Rutgers Business School

1 Washington Park, Room 946

Newatk, NJ 07102-3122

mﬂdosv@andtomeda.rugers.edu
(201) 4544377 (Cell)

Dsz. Bharat Sarath

Professot of Accounting

Department of Accounting and Information Systems
Rutgets Business School

New Brunswick, NJ

bsarath@andiomeda.ngers.edu
(848) 445-3447 (Office)



4. RESEARCH STATEMENT

RESEARCH INTEREST

Innovation has long been tecognized as a major driver of economic growth (Portet, 1992). Empirical
teseatch and sutveys of business activities also show that firms with higher levels of innovation tend to
emjoy significant competitive advantages and inctease in firm value, Recognizing the impottance of
innovation for firm and national growth, a latge mamber of stakeholdets including investots, firm managets,
policy rakers and tegulators have become increasingly interested in inhovation in recent yeats. Although a
btoad tange of litetatute that provides insights into the underlying factors that impede or enhance
innovations has prolifetated, there is a relative dearth of stdies that specifically examines the Finandal
tepotting and Audit practices in innovation firms. Accounting infotmation is very ctucial for bath the fitm
and its stockholdets to make informed decisions. My reseatch interests mainly focus on the Financial
tepotting and Auditing practices in innovation fitms; and 1 believe my research will have practical and
academic implications. My goal is to produce high impact reseatch that will be published in top journals and
influence a new generation of thought Jeadets.

CURRENT & FUTURE RESEARCH

Spedifically, my curtent researches focus on the performance evaluation, finandal reporting pract'tces,' and
audit procedutes in innovation firms. I have two completed working papets that I plan to submit for
pub]icatfoﬁ soor. The fitst paper examines audit fisk in inhovation firms; wheteas the second one
investigates the effect of internal controls on innovation productivity. Both essays will conttibute to the
literature as the first studies to investigate the questions under study. Furthet, my other cuttent research
ptojects include a study on innovations and compensation schemes, intetnal controls and operational
effidency, and long-term effect of fraud on jnnovation frms, and innovations and cost of equity capital. I
have presented my wotk at 2 number of accounting conferences ovet the last few yeats. My tesearch
projects have also been recognized by the Dean's office at Rutgets and Saint Joseph’s University; and T have
been awatded summer research funds and fellowship grants for my reseatch projects.

Ovwet the yeats, I have built several unique datasets that I am planning to use in future wotks. The datasets
include various information zbout innovation firms collected from the National Buteau of Economic
Research (NBER), United States Patents and Tradematk Office (USPTO), Boston Consultancy Group,
Forbes and othet institutions. Building the datasets was a challenge, but it taught me more about thinking
through an idea than simply telying on the information in publicly available datasets.

Thete are plenty teseatch questions I would like to investigate about capital structures, cotpotate govetnance
and compensation schemes of inpovation firms. Tn addition to archival reseatch, I am willing to consider -
behavioral methods that could help me answer my specific research questions. - .

T am also cutrently serving as the Editotial Assistant for the Jourmal Acconnting, Anditing and Finance (JAAF),
giving me exposute to the cutting-edge reseatch of others. T am comnmitred to the ongoing exchange of ideas
with the acadermic comtmunity throughout my cateet, so as to continue to grow and excel as a scholar, and
theteby to benefit my institution, my field, and most impottantly, my. students. Overall, I believe my
professional and academic experiences have prepared me for interdisciplinaty research in accounting and .
innovation, and an exciting cateer at Southern University.



5. TEACHING STATEMENT .

“The medioers teacher 12lls. The good teacher explains. The superiar teacher demonstrases. The great feacker inspires and drives
the student to think.” - William Arthur Ward

MOTIVATION o
In my entire experience as a student, I have always felt fottunate to have had several enthusiastic professots,

who not only have opened the gate to the fascinating wotld of knowledge, but also bestowed on me the
ability to think independently. Inspired by their influences, I have developed a very high appredation and
respect for teaching; and consequently, decided to devote myself to it. The knowledge we accumulate as
reseatchers and practitionets is valuable only if it is shated, Thetefote, the main motivation for embracing
teaching as patt of my careet s driven by the desite to contribute to the learning process as well as the
conviction that teaching would be the best way to acknowledge and return the favor I had received from my
‘previous professors. Moteovet, given my interdisciplinary tesearch in innovation and accouating, I can
provide several petspectives of accounting that resonate with other coutses offered at Southern University. 1
am cxcited to make each class at the department a unique leatning expedence by anchoting the fundamental
concepts of accounting with practical examples drawn from well-known innovation and technology firms.

PHILOSOPHY

As a teacher, my primaty goal is to facilitate the intellectnal and professional developtment of my students in

every possible way. Towards this goal, my teaching philosophy embraces the following key elements: (1)
. Cleat leatning objectives and expected leatning outcotnes, which outline the concrete list of tasks to be

falfilled throughout the coutse. (2) Inspiration, that is to stimulate the intellectnal potential and cutiosity of

the stadents and foster critical thinling. (3) Commitment, by which a good teacher can get students engaged

in the subject matter both in and out of the class room. ' '

EXPERIENCE AND METHODOLOGIES

My experence as an educator is diverse. 1 have taught a vatiety of accounting coutses both at the

undetgraduate and graduate level in a classroom setting as well as online at Rutgers and Saint Joseph’s -
Univetsity. My expetience also includes advising students on statewide case competitions and scholatship

applications, mentoring honor students on their senior essays, and running CPA exam treview sessions. In

those periods, I have been able to develop and apply vatious teaching styles and methodologies effectively.

T endeavor to cteate an atmosphete in the classtootn whete T at Jeast spark the students’ thitst for ]ﬁlbwledge "
and an appteciation for leatning. On the first day of class, I communicate my teaching philosophy by
emphasizing the importance of critical thinking and communication skills, along with the learning objectives °
so that students can understand my approach to the class envitonment and my expectations of then.
Similatly, I would like to inspire my students to be independent thinkets and feseatchers. Whenever
possible, I expose students to my rescatch as 2 'way of expanding their intellectual and professional horizons.



I believe that the best learning expetience is hands-on; and evety theoretical topic should be. motivated by
some practical example. To that effect, I frequently begin class sessions with 2 discussion of current events
or global issues that draw the class to tangible observations. Tn my graduate classes, I adopted the use of a
finandcial statement analysis project where the students choose publicly traded technology firms to follow on
the first day of class. T have them complete a seties of assignments each week and at the end of the semestet,
they will be asked to produce a written repott and present their findings to the class. The projects add
vatiety to the class while giving students a chance to polish their wtiting and presentation sldlls.

TECHNOLOGY

Advances in information technology have significantly ttansformed the role of accounting and accountants
in business. Recognizing its importance, sevetal Accreditation bodies and Professional assodations have
called for the integrations of information technology into accounting cutriculuras and professional practices.
‘The AACSB insists business students’ learning experiences to include the use of approptiate instrctional -
technologies and technology tools [AACSB 2010]. Likewise, ATCPA promotes the adoption of IT-
empowered accounting systems and business practices among its top ptiotity initiatives; and recommend
that individuals entering the accounting profession must acquire the necessary skills to use technology tools
effectively and efficdently [ATCPA, 2006, 2010]. Similatly, in its repott to the university faculty, the Bedford
Comtmittee of the American Acconnting Association (AAA) suggested accounting academics to acquire
necessaty skills to catty out computer-assisted teaching and learning,

I firmly believe that the integration of catrent and emetging technologies into the existing accounting
coutses ensutes practical leatning and contextual understanding of technology in the business wotld. This
approach will equip students with skills that ate in demand and ‘wotl-read’ in the industry. In the past few
yeats, I have developed and successfully integtated different technology modules into my coutses using SAP
and Microsoft tools.

ENGAGEMENT, IMPACT AND FEEDBACK

I enjoy teaching and I am vety proud of the impact that I have made on my stadents so far. Overall, I
believe that my teaching is well received by the students and that I have established my teputation as an
open, motivating and considerate ptofessor. The anonymous course evaluation ratings by students and peer
obsetvation repotts suppott this contention and suggest that my philosophy and pedagogical style result in
providing the students with a meaningful academic interaction. Across all of my coutses, I have consistently
beaten the depattment and college average in evety teaching evaluation categoty and I have also been
nominated for the Dean’s Awatd in teaching excellence at the Rutgers Business School. Sitnilatly, my -
commitment to help stadents goes beyond the classtoom. When tequited, T make tayself easily available to "
provide extra assistance in both academic and professional matters. Several of my students and advisees
have won PWC case competiions and statewide ATCPA scholatships; whereas more than half of my CPA
teview students passed their CPA exams on their first try. I believe 2 successful teacher represents a goc-)dl
tole model for many students s an intellectnal and as 2 professional, and I would strive to engage and affect
the stadents with my devotion ahd enthusiasm. o o



6. LEADERSHIP AND SERVICE STATEMENT
Ty is high time the ideal of success rhonld be replaced with the ideal of service.” — Albert Binsein

Leadership is the act of taking the initiative to serve as 2 change agent in ethical and responsible manner.
Teachets typically define cateet satisfaction in terms of their ability to be of setvice to others and make a
difference in the lives of their stadents. Therefore, the initiatives to lead lies with in all teachers, and our
instinctive initiatives to lead stems from our desire to improve the quality of teaching and learning for all
students. And at institutional level, educational leadetship should tecognize the light within each teacher and
male it brighter through a concetted effort to achieve the highest possible outcome and ensure continuous
improvernent. To that effect, my educational philosophy of leadership would focus on developing a positive
calture that all the stakeholders including students, staff, and community members face to be a patt of,

rather than finding ways to escape.

My leadership style is collabosative — a process that involves investing in followers and fosteting
relationships that will establish a group dynamic that collectively shares a common vision. Educational
leaders rmust be able to build relationships with all stakeholders, discover and play to the strengths of their
faculty and wnivetsity community, build leadership capacity by empoweting othets-to ensute continuity, and
lead by examples and engagement. I want to be a leader who explicitly communicates with all stakeholders
and passionately implements the above key components to create 2 positive’ learning culture within the
university.

In the past few yeats, I have been involved in vatious leadership activiies and scrved on different-
committees at depattment, college and university levels. Some 1 have sought out and volunteered fot,
whereas others were offered and suggested to me. At the department level, I have been setving as an
academic advisor for more than fifty students and a coordinator for Finandial Accounting and Auditing
coutses offeted by the depattment. Similarly, T am currently serving s a member of accounting internship
. committee and accounting technology team. .o . ' o

At college level, T have worked as membet of the Assurance of Leatning (AOL) committee that petiodically
collects data and prepates assessment reports and AACSB accreditation teport for the college of business.

At the university level, I previously served as a member of the Board on Student Academic Review
(BOSAR). Cutrently, I am a member of Faculty Policies and Procedures (FPP) sub-comnmittee in the
university Senate. In these positions, I have worked on different engaging mandates including assembly and
expression policy and faculty setvice-learning mandates for the univetsity.

Like many faculties who ate passionate about their cateet, I find that I work 2t my best when faced with
fresh and exciting challenges. Having been involved in vatious leadership activities and setved on different
comtmittees, 1 am highly motivated to take on a position of greater leadetship in the depattment of
Accounting, Finance and Economics as needed (assigned) as it cotresponds to my core values of developing
positive cultutes, effective commusication and contimually stiving to promote the “academic and
professional expetience of its stakcholders. '



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER
261 A. A. LENOIR HaLL
Post OFFICE Box 9294

Baton Rouce, Louisiana 70813-2294

OFFICE OF THE CHANCELLOR .
(225) T71-2552

=3 s
=
FAX (225) 771-2474 = @
(= =2
o a2 i
Lt 1 .
f‘: L i =
'._: =
July 31, 2019 =
b
Dr. Ray Belton - President/Chancellor =

Southern University System and Baton Rouge Campus
4" Floor - 1.5, Clark Administration Building
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

Re: Unpaid Leave for Professor Latisha Nixon Jones

Dear Dr. Belton:

Latisha Nixon-Jones who has ably led the Law Center’s Disaster Legal Clinic for the past three
years after the great flood of 2016 has been offered a Visiting Professor position at the University of
Oregon Law School, for a two-year term. The Disaster Legal Clinic has gained national attention for its
work in 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 in Louisiana, Texas, Florida, Puerto Rico, and North Carolina.

This visiting professor opportunity will enhance her professional growth as a legal scholar. |
therefore request that the Southern University Board of Supervisors grant her a two-year unpaid leave
of absence/sabbatical for the 2019-2020 and the 2020-2021 academic years, at its August 2019 Board
meeting. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Yours Sincerely,

éﬁ%lﬁﬁvanue B. Lacﬂur

ndowed Professor

*An Equal Educational Oppartunity Institution”



SOUTHERN
UNIVERSITY BOARD
OF SUPERVISORS



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
(Following the Personnel Affairs Committee)
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom
1! Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019

AGENDA
1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call
3. Adoption of the Agenda
4, Public Comments

5. Special Presentations
A. Above and Beyond Award

6. Action Items

A. Approval of Minutes of July 23, 2019 Regular Meeting of the SU Board of
Supervisors

B. Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations

C. Request Approval of Contract between Southern University System and
Refreshment Solution, LLC for Lease of Space for Vending Operation
Services (SUS)

D. Request Approval of Uniform Affiliation Agreement (SUS)

E. Resolutions

7. Information Items
A. Medical Marijuana Update
B. System President’s Report
C. Campus Reports

8. Other Business

9. Adjournment




CONTRACT AGREEMENT
Between
Southern University System and Refreshment Solutions, LI.C
For Lease of Space for Vending Operation Services

1. This agreement effective on the 1¥ day of July in the year Two Thousand-Nineteen, by and between the
Southern University Board of Supervisors on behalf of the Southern University System, herein appearing
through Ray L. Belton, Southern University System President-Chancellor party of the first part (herein
termed the “University” or “State”) and Refreshment Solutions, LLC, represented by Gregory J. Lucia, 225
Apple Street NORCO LA 70079 (herein termed the “Contractor” or “Lessee™), do hereby enter into a
contractual agreement under the following terms and conditions.

Witnessed, that the University and the Contractor, for the consideration hereinafier specified, agree as {follows
that:

a) Request For Proposal No. 10269
b) Proposal Submitted by: Greg Lucia
Chief Customer Officer
Refreshment Solutions, LLC
225 Apple Street
NORCO LA 70079
Ph: (504) 250-9915
And accepted by: Southern University and A & M College System
¢} Performance Bond (based on minimum guarantee)
d) Certificate of Insurance

Are all hereby made a part of this Contractual Agreement to the same extent as if incorporated herein full,
except as noted below. In the event of any inconsistent or incompatible provisions, this signed agreement
(excluding the RFP and Contractor's proposal) shall take precedence, followed by the provisions of the RFP,
and then by the terms of the Contractor’s proposal.

2. Contractor shall provide vending operation services which include: product, installation, maintenance,
repairing, servicing, and supply of coin-operated and card operable snack vending machines on each
University campus.

3. Contractor shall lease space on each University campus for the purpose of providing vending machine
operations that will provide needed services for students, faculty, staff, administration, alumni and guests;
that is a revenue generating auxiliary; that contributes to the social environment of the University; and that
plays a role in recruitment, retention, and overall satisfaction of the University’s students and other
constituents.

a) Southern University Baton Rouge (SUBR)— Vending Operations which include thirty-five (35)
snack machines. Southern University Baton Rouge location has a separate contract for
soda/drink consumption.

b) Southern University New Orleans (SUNO) — Vending Operations which include sixteen (16)
snack machines and fifteen (15) beverage machines.

c) Southern University Shreveport (SUSLA) — Vending Operations which include fourteen (14)
snack machines and fifteen (15) beverage machines.

Contractor, as an independent operator, shall provide to the SUS commnunity at all three site locations on a
non-exclusive basis, the vending machines within the leased spaces provided on each campus, and other
such premises and facilities as mutually agreed upon.



LENGTH OF LEASF,

1. The contract shall be effective from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022 with an option to renew for two (2)
additional one (1) year period.

LEASE TERMINATION

1. Termination of Contract for Cause

a.) The State may terminate the contract for cause based upon the failure of the Contractor to comply with
the terms and/or conditions of the contract, or failure to fulfill its performance obligations pursuant to the
contract, provided that the State shall give the Contractor written notice specifying the Contractor’s failure.
If within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, the Contractor shall not have corrected such failure
or, in the case of failure which cannot be corrected in thirty (30) days, begun in good faith to correct such
failure and thereafter proceeded diligently to complete such correction, then the State may, at its option,
place the Contractor in default and the contract shall terminate on the date specified in such notice.

b.) The Contractor may exercise any rights available to it under Louisiana law to terminate for cause upon
the failure of the State to comply with the terms and conditions of the contract, provided that the Contractor
shall give the State written notice specifying the State’s faifure and a reasonable opportunity for the State
to cure the defect.

2. Termination of Contract for Convenience

a.) Either party may terminate the contract at any time by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the other
party of such termination or negotiating with each other for an effective date.

b.) The Contractor shall be entitled to payment for deliverables in progress, to the extent work has been
performed satisfactorily.

3. Termination of Contract for Non - Appropriation of Funds

The continuance of the contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds to fulfill the requirements of
the contract by the Louisiana legislature. If the legislature fails to appropriate sufficient monies to provide
for the continvation of the contract, or if such appropriation is reduced by the veto of the Governor or by
any means provided in the appropriations act or Title 39 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950 to
prevent the total appropriation for the year from exceeding revenues for that year, or for any other lawful
purpose, and the effect of such reduction is to provide insufficient monies for the continuation of the
contract, the contract shali terminate on the date of the beginning of the first fiscal year for which funds are
not appropriated.

4. Termination of Contract - Other

a.) If, because of reasons beyond the control of the University (i.e. fire, act of God, war attack, etc.),
business operations at Southern University or in any facility is interrupted or stopped, the University shall
have the right to suspend or terminate the contract by registered or certified written notice without any
penalty thereof.

b.) Ifthe contract is terminated by the Contractor prior to the expiration date of the contract, the University
will seek liquidated damages. Further, in case of default of the contract, the University may procure the
articles or services from other sources and hold the contractor responsible for any excess cost or loss of

revenue occasioned thereby, including reasonable attorneys' fees and actual costs.
1



c.) In the event the University terminates this contract, the University shall have the right to grant a contract
to another person to implement and/or maintain an operable system, and seek damages if any, from
terminated Contractor.

d.) Neither the University’s nor Contractor’s delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy
occurring to such party upon non-performance or default under this contract shall impair any such right,
power or remedy of or shall be construed as a waiver of any subsequent non-performance or default. All
waivers must be in writing.

e.) Termination, expiration or non-renewal of this agreement shall not affect any rights of either party
accrued prior to such termination, expiration, or non-renewal.

CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Contract Changes

a.) No additional changes, enhancements, or modifications may be made to this contract without the prior
approval of the University through the Southern University Purchasing Department,

b.) Changes to the contract include any change in: compensation; beginning/ending date of the contract;
scope of work; and/or Contractor change through the Assignment of Contract process. Any such changes,
once approved, will result in the issuance of an amendment to the contract.

2. Independent Contract Status

a.) The relationship of the parties is that of independent contractors, and no tenancy, partnership, joint
venture, agency, fiduciary or other relationship is created. Neither party may order any goods nor services,
incur any indebtedness, or enter into any obligation or commitment on the other party’s behaif.

b.) The parties agree that the contractor, its officers, agents, and employees, in the performance of this
agreement shall act in the capacity of an independent contractor and not as an officer, agent, or employee
of the state. The contractor agrees to take such steps as may be necessary to ensure that each subcontractor
of the contractor will be deemed to be an independent contractor and will not be considered or permitted to
be an agent, servant, joint venturer, or partner of the state.

3. EEOC Compliance

The Contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the following as applicable: Title VI and Title VII
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of 1972, Federal Executive Order
11246, the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Vietnam Era Veteran’s Readjustment
Assistance Act of 1974, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, the Age Act of 1975, and
Contractor agrees to abide by the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Contractor
agrees not to discriminate in its employment practices, and will render services under the contract and any
contract without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, veteran status, political affiliation, or
disabilities. Any act of discrimination committed by Contractor, or failure to comply with these statutory
obligations when applicable shall be grounds for termination of the contract.



4, Indemnification

a.) Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State of Louisiana, University, its officials, agents and
employees from liability of any nature or kind for action by Contractor related to violation of copy right
laws whereby the contractor is not the patentee, assignee, or licensee.

b.) Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State of Louisiana, University, its officials, agents and
employees from any and all claims, demands, actions or causes of actions arising from the fault of
Contractor, its parent, and its subsidiaries, and the directors, officers, employees agents, representatives,
sub-contractors, and suppliers of all of them.

¢.) Contractor shall not hold the University responsible or liable for the pilferage, damage or theft of any
equipment and inventory before, during, or after the contractual terms. The University shall not be held
liable for loss of inventory, equipment, etc. due to fire damage or loss due to heating or cooling
malfunctions, weather, or other actions of which the University has no control.

d.) Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnity, save, and hold harmless the State of Louisiana, all State
Departments, Agencies, Boards and Commissions, its officers, agents, servants and emnployees, including
volunteers, from and against any and all claims, demands, expense and liability arising out of injury or
death to any person or the damage, loss or destruction of any property which may occur or in any way grow
out of any act or omission of Contractor, its agents, servants, and employees, or any and all costs, expense
and/or attorney fees incurred by Contractor as a result of any claim, demands, and/or causes of action except
those claims, demands, and/or causes of action arising out of the negligence of the State of Louisiana, all
State Departments, Agencies, Boards, Commissions, its agents, representatives, and/or employees.

e.) Contractor agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for and defend any such claims,
demand, or suit at its sole expense and agrees to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, even if it
(claims, etc.) is groundless, false or fraudulent.

f.) Contractor shall assume direct responsibility and liability for any damage, negligence, or theft by any of
its employees.

5. Permits, Licenses, Taxes, and Certificate of Authority

a.) The Contractor shall secure and furnish to the University all necessary licenses and permits that are
required to conduct business in the State of Louisiana and East Baton Rouge Parish. It is the responsibility
of the Contractor to keep current verification of all licenses and/or permits at all times during the terms of
the contract.

b.) The Contractor shall be responsible for payment of all labor, equipment, materials, services supervision,
bonds, insurance, taxes and any other costs necessary to execute, in full conformity, with an agreed upon
contract. The Contractor shall be responsible for any applicable Federal, State, County, Parish, Municipal,
or other taxes, The Contractor hereby agrees that the responsibility for payment of taxes from the sales of
goods and services under this agreement shall be said Contractor’s obligation and identified under their
federal tax identification number.

c¢.) The Contractor is responsible for withholding state and federal income taxes, and shall provide
workmen’s compensation insurance for its employees. The Contractor shall also comply with all other laws
relating to employees such as wage and labor laws, safety and health requirements, and other applicable
regulations.



0. Fiscal Funding

The continuation of this contract is contingent upon the appropriation of funds to fulfill the requirements
of the contract by the legislature. If the legislature fails to appropriate sufficient monies to provide for the
continuation of the contract, or if such appropriation is reduced by the veto of the Governor or by any
means provided in the appropriations act to prevent the total appropriation for the year from exceeding
revenues for that year, or for any other lawful purpose, and the effect of such reduction is to provide
insufficient monies for the continuation of the contract, the contract shall terminate on the date of the
beginning of the first fiscal year for which funds are not appropriated.

7. Auditors

It is hereby agreed that the Tegislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana and/or the Office of the
Governor, Division of Administration auditors shall have the option of auditing all accounts of centractor
which relate to this contract.

8. Remedies for Default

Any claim or controversy arising out of this contract shall be resolved by the provisions of LSA - R.S.
39:1524 - 1526.

9. Insurance
The Contractor shall purchase and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for

injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with service performance
by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.

SERVICE/WORK REQUIRED

1. Service Expected

2.} The Contractor shall install, maintain, repair, service, and supply all coin and card operated snack
vending machines on the University's campuses.

b.) The Contractor shall arrange a satisfactory method with the University for the payment of refunds due
individuals as a result of machine failures or unsatisfactory products.

¢.) The contractor shall provide appropriate retail items that are responsive and sensitive to the needs of
students, faculty, research personnel and staff, and compatible with the educational and cultural objectives
and atmosphere at the University.

e.) The contractor shall only purchase materials, goods, promotional items and/or advertisements bearing
the name, seal, logos and other indicia of the University from appropriate trademark licensees. The
contractor shall pay to University a trademark license fee as determined by University for all such items
manufactured/produced and sold by the contractor, if not purchased from a trademark licensee.

f.) The contractor shall not permit any business arrangement or payment problem with any of its vendors
to delay any delivery of merchandise. If any action or non-action by the contractor has or will cause a delay,
the contractor shall make appropriate arrangement by whatever means necessary to have the merchandise,
or other temporary items to be timely delivered.

4



g.}) The contractor shall honor the University's One-Card program which is a debit card system for
University students, faculty and staff, alumni, guest, and visitors. The contractor shall pay University's
designated administrative or other fee for participating in the program which shall be based upon a
percentage of the gross sales (sales less sales tax) or other mutually agreed upon means.

h.) In support of the University's educational, cultural and other programs, the contractor shall, if requested
and within its ability to do so, provide services in other locations on campus or other University controlled
property or facilities in connection with special University events (i.e., athletic events, symposia, lectures
and concerts). Any additional commission/compensation to be paid by the contractor in connection
therewith shall be mutually determined.

i.) The contractor shall agree to promptly withdraw from display or sale any item which the University
requests to not be sold in the Vending Machines. Such University requests shall not be made arbitrarily or
capriciously and shall be based on reasonable safety, health or security concerns; competent legal counsel;
campus environment; or, with respect to items affecting the education program, the considered decision of
the appropriate faculty bodies. The contractor shall be provided the opportunity to discuss with appropriate
University officials or counsel, and request reconsideration of requests for withdrawal of items.

j.) The contractor shall post, conspicuously and without equivocation, contact information and emergency
numbers on each machine.

k.) Machines should include any measures that may deter or prevent vandalism of machines and/or theft of
product. Such measures must be visually acceptable to the setting in which they may be placed. The
University will be the final approver of such devices.

1.} All product vended will be priced on a fair and competitive basis in order to maximize the sales and
provide the maximum return.

2. Equipment provided by University

Under this agreement, the University shall provide at its own expense, and the Contractor will be permitted,
the space located in designated building(s) on the University’s campus. University will provide adequate
ingress and egress, including a reasonable use of passageways and driveways. It will also provide heating,
lighting, ventilation, and the utilities required for the provision of such services.

3, University’s Responsibilities
a.} The University will maintain and repair the building structure, including the maintenance of water,
sewer, and electrical lines, existing ventilation facilities, electrical light fixtures, heating and air

conditioning; provided that the Contractor shall bear the expense of repair necessary because of his own or
his employee's fault.

b.) The University will not be liable to the Contractor for any loss, damage, cost, or expense which might
result from the interruption of such service so long as the University undertakes to restore such services as
promptly as possible following an interruption,

¢.) The University will have the final decision as to the Iocation of all vending machines.

d.) The University will provide a named representative (Director of Auxiliary Services) authorized to advise
Contractor of University's approvals, consents and instructions under this agreement.

5



¢.) University may prohibit sale of items it finds offensive or inappropriate.

£} The University will appoint an advisory committee composed of faculty, staff and students whose charge
shall be, as often as necessary, to review the Vending Operations and report their findings to the Director
of Auxiliary Services of the University. It is anticipated that the Committee and the contractor shall share
information and views regularly throughout the year.

4. Equipment provided by Coutractor

At its own expense, the Contractor shall install, maintain, repair, service, and supply all of the equipment
required for the snack vending operations at each site. All capital equipment purchased and furnished by
the Contractor shall remain the property of the Contractor. Any items lost, stolen, or damaged through
negligence or abuse shall be replaced at the Contractor’s expense.

5. Contractor’s Responsibilities
a.} Contractor will comply with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders.

b.) Contractor shall maintain and operate the equipment and provide services included in this contract in a
courteous, efficient, and orderly manner and in conformance with all applicable laws and regulations.

¢.) Contractor shall obtain all required licenses and permits, pay all required fees, taxes and other charges,
and shall conduct the vending operations without undue interference with the general and normal operations
of a University.

d.) Contractor agrees to use reasonable care in the use of the space assigned under the contract, and upon
termination of the contract, shall have such space in as good condition as when received except for ordinary
wear and tear, and damage or destruction beyond Contractor’s control and not due to Contractor's fault or
negligence. Contractor shall be responsible for any loss or damage to property owned by University that is
in Vendor's possession or control, or is cause by vendor or its employees or agents in the course and scope
of their employment.

e.) The Contractor shall keep the machines stocked at alf times with fresh products suitable to the University
campuses.

f.) The Contractor shall service and repair all machines within twenty-four (24) hours after being advised
of a malfunction at no cost to the University.

g.) University reserves the right to at any time to inspect products. After such inspections, the Contractor
will be advised in writing of unsatisfactory conditions, if any, for which the Contractor is responsible.
Deficiencies shall be corrected promptly by the Contractor.

h.) Contractor shall ensure that all Contractor's personnel and agents observe all regulations in effect at the
University to include, but not limited to personal conduct, appearance, and traffic and parking.

i.) Contractor shall provide adequate vehicles, such as a van, in order to transport related items necessary
in the normal operation of the contract. Contractor vehicles shall not park on University sidewalks.

j.) Contractor agrees to keep energy consumption at a minimum and shall comply with energy conservation
practices and policies and shall endeavor to conserve the use of energy thereof. The University shall not be
liable for any loss that may result from the interruption of failure of any such utility.

6



k.} Contractor shall submit, in writing to the Director of Auxiliary Services, the names and phone numbers
of supervisory and other personnel that may be contacted in the event of an emergency or problem; and the
names, addresses, and phone numbers of all employees to be utilized in entering any facility on campus.
The Contractor is responsible for keeping this information current and up-to-date at all time.

i.) The Contractor's service personnel shall be fully insured and bonded. Access to University residence
halls shall be at enirances, during hours, and under conditions specified by the University.

m.) The Contractor may not change the pricing structure for products as agreed upon in the Snack Vending
Services Agreement without the University's prior approval.

6. Vending Operation
a.) The Contractor shall provide expert supervision in all phases of vending service management.

b.} The Contractor shall be responsible for the entire vending operation including: maintaining an adequate
product supply in all designated equipment; maintenance and proper care of the equipment; and
employment of all personnel required to properly operate the complete service at the University.

c.) The Contractor shall maintain high standards of sanitation and cleanliness at all times. The

Contractor shall keep the inside, outside, top and underneath of all vending machines in a clean and sanitary
condition at all times and shall furnish adequate mechanical service, as needed, at no expense to the
Univetsity. All city, county, state and federal laws concerning health and sanitation shall be observed.

d.) The Contractor will furnish suitable waste receptacles, as needed, convenient to the machine locations
and will be responsible for the cleanliness of the receptacles and the area around them and the machines at
all times. A regular program of steam cleaning of waste receptacles or the furnishings and use of plastic
liners, or both if needed, will be required. The University personnel will assist in emptying the receptacles
when practical.

e.) A date coding system must be used for all perishable foods. Expiration dates must be visible on all
products in the machines.

f.) The process for, and number and location of, refund stations may be changed by mutual agreement of
the Contractor and University.

g.) In the event of a change in the cost of merchandise sold through the machines exceeding 10 per cent or
a sales tax increase, the commission or the vending price may be adjusted to reflect such change upon a
mutually agreeable basis without in any way affecting any of the other provisions of this contract. The
Contractor shall be required to justify the change to the satisfaction of the University. No change in the
commission rate or vending price shall be applicable until reduced to writing and signed by both parties.

h) The work/service to be performed, completed and managed is located at the respective SUS campus:
SUBR, SUSLA, and SUNOQ. The contractor(s) will be responsible for the number of machines listed herein.

i) Vending manager will meet regularly with the Director of Auxiliary Services, and meet with other
designated University management and committees as needed. Vending manager will work cooperatively
with campus officials in the development and improvement of Vending programs, services, and policies.
These meetings shall be used to air grievances and determine corrective courses of action. Contractor shall
make available, other company representatives of executive status to be available for consultations with
University officials to discuss problems and/or improvements needed in the Contractor’s management of
Vending services.
7



j.) During peak “rush” or “peak” periods, Contractor shall utilize sufficient additional resources as needed
to ensure services and products are available to the campuses.

7. Purchasing, Delivery, Storage

a.) The Contractor shall make all purchases in its own name and not in any way attempt to bind the
University in its contractual agreements. Any contract documents issued by the Contractor must be very
clear that it is the Contractor that is being bound by the document, not the University.

b.) Delivery of merchandise to and from the University campuses will be at the contractor’s risk and
expense. The contractor shall promptly unjoad and store any shipments delivered to University premises.

8. Security

a.) The Contractor shall collaborate with appropriate University officials concerning questions of discipline,
enforcing regulations, and internal security and theft control. The contractor shall not, except in physically
dangerous or other emergency situations, summon public emergency services except through the public
safety dispatcher. If a student of the University is suspected of theft and is to be arrested by public authorities
or prosecuted, the contractor will advise Campus Police, the Vice Chancellor of Student Affairs, and inform
the Director of Auxiliary Services.

b.) The contractor shall control all keys to the Vending Machines. No keys shall be in the possession of the
University.

¢.) The University will provide effective and prompt support to the contractor in its efforts to assure the
security of its equipment and stock. If the contractor feels the measures taken by the University for the
resolution of any security problem are insufficient, the contractor shall have the right to present its views
and recommendations to the Vice President of Finance and Administration who shall not unreasonably
deny its requests.

d.) In the event of malicious damage to the Contractor's equipment located on the University premises
under the terms hereof, or in the event of theft of money or merchandise from said equipment or storage
areas as a result of unauthorized breaking and entering, the total financial loss shall be sustained by the
Contractor. The University agrees that normal security checks of the building containing the Contractor's
equipment while the buildings are open to the public shall include checks of said equipment, that said
buildings shall be locked when not in use, and that all reasonable security precautions against theft and
malicious mischief shall be taken; provided, however, that the University shall not be deemed to thereby
assnme any responsibility for damage to or theft from or of the Contractor's equipment or supplies.

9. Machine Criteria

a.) The number, type, and location of all machines must be approved by the University. The placement,
removal, or expansion of vending locations shall be determined by mutual agreement to best maximize
revenues and resuitant commissions.

b.) The Contractor shall furnish the labor and materials necessary for the installation of vending equipment
according to plans mutually agreed upon by both the University and the Contractor, and shall pay the costs
of the installation, except for water and electricity lines which are to be furnished by the University.



¢.) All machines must be new or newly remanufactured as in Appendix C, and must be state-of- the-art.
Vending machine equipment must be modern, and a regular program of preventative maintenance,
renovating and replacing machines (as required) must be instituted. The University shall be the final judge
as to the acceptability of equipment.

d.) All machines shall be equipped with-sold-out indicators on each selection or shall be capable of giving
a refund. All machines shall be equipped with dollar bill acceptors and validators.

e.) All machines proposed shall be from recognized manufacturers and carry the N.AM.A. Seal where
applicable. The colors, models, types and designs of these machines shall be mutually agreed upon by the
University and the Contractor. The University reserves the right to approve product advertising on the
machines. Machines are to be uniform in size and color, unless otherwise specified.

£.) Contractor shall provide at a minimum the following machines. Machines may be added or deleted based
on need and by mutual agreement between the Contractor and the University.

. SUBR: 35 Snack machines — which includes at least I sandwich/milk machine.

. SUSLA: 14 Snack machines — which includes at least 1 sandwich/milk machine and 15
beverage machines.

. SUNO: 16 Snack machines — which includes at least 1 sandwich/milk machine, 15 beverage
machines.

g) The Contractor shall also furnish additional equipment and personnel as required by the University for
future expansion, and to withdraw equipment no longer desired at that location, by the University.

h.) Area treatment (common fronts, panels, indirect lighting, end fillers, etc.) may be required in certain
locations so that a vending bank and area may be established.

10. Card System

Contractor agrees to provide at least 50% of equipment with debit/credit card readers compatible with the
University’s official I. D. issued card. Under mutual agreement, confractor agrees to complete a separate
contract governing application of use regarding readers and Southern University’s One-Card Program.
Southern University must initiate contact with 3™ party company supplying ID card technology to work
with contractot.



FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS

1. The following financial terms and conditions shali be in effect during terms of the contract:

a.) The Contractor shall pay to the University an annual commission of:

PRODUCT SUBR SUNO SUSLA

s Candy, Gum, Mints 27.3% 27.3% 27.3%
e Crackers, Cookies, Chips, & Snacks 27.3% 27.3% 27.3%
s Milk & Choc. Milk 27.3% 27.3% 27.3%
*  Fresh Pastries 27.3% 27.3% 27.3%
*» (Coffee, Hot Chocolate, & IJot Tea 27.3% 27.3% 27.3%
* Microwave popcorn 273% 27.3% 27.3%
»  Other Pastries 27.3% 27.3% 27.3%
e Packaged Sandwiches N/A N/A N/A

e (Other Food Items N/A N/A N/A

o Other Approved Items 27.3% 273% 273%
s  Soda Machine Drinks N/A 32% 32%

OR the minimum guaranteed annual payment listed below, whichever is greater,
e SUBR: $56,130.00 (Fifty-six thousand, one hundred, thirty dollars)
e  SUNO: $24,960.00 (Twenty-four thousand, nine hundred, sixty dollars)
s SUSLA: $18,910.00 (Eighteen thousand, nine hundred, ten dollars)
» Southern University System annual minimum guarantee totals $100,000.00. This will be
recalculated at the end of each year of contract to insure breakdown by campus is evenly
distributed based on last 12 months of vending sales.

b.) Annual Guarantee: The Contractor shall pay the University the annual guarantee amount in twelve (12)
equal monthly payments within fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month.

c.) The monthly payments shall be accompanied by (1) a detailed report indicating gross sales by product,
machine, and location, and (2) copies of monthly collection reports. The collection reports shall identify
each machine by type and location.

d.) The term gross sales or gross revenue as used herein is defined as total funds collected from each
machine. No deduction shall be made for taxes for which the successful respondent may be liable, including,
but not limited to, gross receipts tax, sales tax, and use tax.

e.} Contractor shall maintain such accounting records and books in connection with all operations under
this lease, as may be satisfactory to the University. The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to
assure that all income is immediately recorded. The Contractor shall establish adequate internal controls
and determine at such frequent intervals as may be necessary that the controls are being maintained. The
University shall have full access at all times to the Vendor's accounting records with or without notice.
Contractor shall provide an annual report by a CPA within 60 days after me closure of Contractor's fiscal
year. Additionally, The Contractor will provide an internal annual report covering the on-campus operations
within 60 days after the closure of the fiscal year.

f.) The University reserves the right to have its representatives (including the State of Louisiana
Office of the Legislative Auditor) audit the Contractor's books, records, and operations, and obtain other
desired information to determine contractor's compliance with the contract.

10



g.) The Contractor shall make every effort to comply with requests for information. When requested by the
University, the Contractor shall also furnish information as to costs of operation, which may affect the
maintaining of sale prices at a satisfactory level.

h.) The records arising from the operation of this lease shall be retained by the Contractor for a period of
five (5) years following its termination or expiration date, unless permission to the contrary is given by the
University in writing.

i.) Contractor agrees that the retail prices in the vending machines will be comparable to those in the college
vending arena and must be agreed upon by the University.

j.) Contractor agrees to establish a scholarship program to be administered by the University. The
scholarship will be awarded to Southern University students at the discretion of the University. The award
shall be $10,000 for the Southern University System each year of the contract. The breakdown by campus
will be $5,600 to Southern Baton Rouge; $2,500 to SUNO; and $1,900 to SUSLA.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT CLAUSE

This contract, the RFP, and any exhibits specifically incorporated herein by reference, constitute the entire
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter.

THUS DONE AND SIGNED AT Baton Rouge, Louisiana on the day, month and year first written below.
IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of this day of

2019,

WITNESSES SIGNATURES: SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY A&M COLLEGE SYSTEM

By:

RAY L. BELTON

Title: PRESIDENT-CHANCELLOR

WITNESSES SIGNATURES: CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE:
By:
Print Name Gregory J. Lucia

Title: Chief Customer Officer

11



RECRUITMENT AND ADMISSIONS COMMITTEE
Alexandria City Hall Ballroom
1* Floor
Alexandria, Louisiana 71301
Friday, August 23, 2019

AGENDA

Call to Order
Roll Call
Adoption of the Agenda

Public Comments

Information Item:
a. Native American Recruitment Initiative Presentation

Other Business

Adjournment

MEMBERS
Mrs. Arlanda Williams — Chair, Mr. Raymond Fondel — Vice-Chair,
Atty. Edwin Shorty, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Donald Dunbar, Mrs. Ann Smith,
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge-- Ex Officio



	Academic Affairs Committee
	Athletics Committee
	Facilities and Property Committee
	Finance Committee
	Governance Committee
	Southern University Board of Supervisors



